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B STV A TV U S S T oS Bahria Orchard, Rabwind Road,
. Banria Towr Lahore
Tliy e St e Tel: 042-35451384

Fax: 042-35341010

Ref: BTL/Sves/Elect/PL/28-011 Dated:Q%Feb 2024

The Registrar

National Electric Power Regulatory Authority
NEPRA Tower Attaturk Avenue (East)
Sector G-5/1, Islamabad

Pakistan

Subject: APPLICATION FOR GRANT OF ELECTRIC POWER
SUPPLY LICENSE

|, Brig Bakhtiyawar Lal Hussain (Retd) being the duly authorized representative
of Bahria Town (Private) Limited, by virtue of attached Board Resolution hereby
apply to the National Electric Power Regulatory Authority for the grant of an
Electric Power Supplier of the Last Resort license to Bahria Town (Private)
Limited for the projects of Bahria Town, Mohlanwal, Lahore and Bahria
Orchards, Raiwind Road, Lahore pursuant to Section 23-E of the Regulation of
Generation, Transmission and Distribution of Electric Power Act, 1997.

| hereby certify that the documents-in-support attached with this application are
prepared and submitted in conformity with the provisions of the National Electric
Power Regulatory Authority Licensing (Application, Modification, Extension and
Cancellation) Procedure Regulations, 2021, as well as the Eligibility Criteria
(Electric Power Supplier Licences) Rules, 2023 and undertake to abide by the
terms and provisions of the above-said regulations and rules.

| further undertake and confirm that the information provided in the attached

documents-in-support is true and correct to the best of my knowledge and no
material omission has been made.

The Licence Application Fee will be remitted on receipt of Demand Note of the
exact amount from NEPRA.

7 I 7

_ABrig BM&\I Hussain Retd)
// Director Services Bahria Town Lahore

\ iR
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E-STAMP

LT

1D:; PB-LHR- §5381108A2BFOFBF
Type: Low Denomination .
Amount: Rs 300/- Scan tor online veritication
Description: AFFIDAVIT- 4
Applicant: BAHRIA TOWN PVT LTD [00000-0000000-0

 Representative From: BAHRIA TOWN PVT LTD | : MPHAMM A 't) } B\VE
Agent: Self e 1! Q
Address: Lahore Nt e, l\
Issue Date: 18-1an-2024 11:46:10 AM ~ ™ -
Delisted On/Validity: 25-Jan-2024
Amount in Words: Three Hundred Rupees Only
Reason: NEPRA ISLAMABAD
Vendor Information: Muhammad Javed| PB-LHR-832 | Kahna Nu Lahore
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Type “eSlamp <18 digit eStamp Number>" sand to 8100

BEFORE THE NATIONAL ELECTRIC POWER REGULATORY AUTHORITY

"Application for seeking Electric Power Supply License for Bahria
Town, Mohlanwal, Lahore and Bahria Orchards, Raiwind Road,
LLahore"

'HON BEHALF OF BAHRIA TOWN (PRIVATE) LIMITED

AFFIDAVIT

[, Brig Bakhtiyawar Lal Hussain (Retd) Director Services, holding CNIC No. 35201-
2986374-3 of Bahria Town (Private) Limited hereby solemnly affirm and declare
that the contents of the accompanying Application for Supply Licence (the

"lLicense") is true and correct to the best of my knowledge and belief and the

nothing material has been concealed there from.

| also affirm that all further documentation and information to be provided by me in
connection with the accompanying application for Supply License will also be true

to the best of my knowledge and belief.

/ Der(,tor Serviges Bahria Town Lahare abo | ,
f\'\iHL LTSS TONER

Sl Rie ?hgn(‘ A Lanire Pekisian

Date Sa-Yan 2024



BAH P\l AV TOWN

BAH RIA TOWN ’“T:':::‘g-:: | Customer Support Center

2 e :bahraCcmplew Phasa 8
| PRIVATE LIMITED $dtsboili ey | Bahria Town Rawalpindi,
“ YOUR LIFESTYLE DESTINATION

CERTIFIED TRUE COPY OF THE EXTRACT OF A RESOLUTION

PASSED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OFBAHRIA TOWN (PRIVATE)

LIMITED, HAVING I1'S REGISTERED OFFICE AT CORPORATE_HEAD

OOICE BAHRIA ORCHARD, RAIWIND ROAD LAHORE

""Application for seeking Electric Power Supply License for Bahria Town,
Mohlanwal, L.ahore and Bahria Orchards, Raiwind Road, Lahore"”

WHLEREAS, the Management of Bahria Town (Private) Limited (herein
referred the "Company") desirous of applying to the National Electric Power
Regulatory Authority (NEPRA) for Electric Power Supply License in respect
of Bahria Town at Mohlanwal, Lahore and Bahria Orchards at Raiwind Road,
[.ahore.

RESOLVED THAT the Board of Directors of the Company hcreby approve to
file Application for sceking Electric Power Supply License (The
"Application") under NEPRA Jaws with the National Electric Power
Regulatory Authority (NEPRA).

FURTHER RESOLVED that the Company be and hereby authorizes Brig
Bakhtiyawar Lal Hussain (Retd) Director Services of the Company holding
CNIC No. 35201-2986374-3 to file the Application, deposit fees and submit
documents/License Applications for Electric Power Supply Licence of the
Company with NEPRA, and any documentation ancillary thereto.

FURTHER RESOLVED that the Company be and hereby authorizes and
cmpowers Brig Bakhtiyawar Lal Hussain (Retd) to do all acts and things
necessary/incidenial for the processing, completion and finalization of the
Applications as he may deem fit on behalf of the Company.

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT M/s Saglain & Husnain Advecates and
Corporate Counsels, 65/3, FCC, Gulberg IV Lahore to appear and act for the
Company as its counsel in connection with the processing, presentation of the
Company’s Supply Licence. Furtherresolved that the said Advocates or any one
of them to do ail acts.and things necessaryfor the- processing, complction and
finalization of the Appiications with NEPRA with concurrence of the
Authorized Person.

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT a certified true copy of this resolution be
communicated to whem it may concern and shall remain in {orce until notice in

writing to the contrary be given. @ J\)
J
| : ' \ .3

Hamid Riaz
Company Secretary

Company Secretary
Bahria Town (Pvt) Lid.

24/7Toil Free | T: 9251111333888 | csrwpho@bahriatown.com.pk
0800 00100 | £ 92515705821 1 www.bahriatown.com !
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Ref: BTL/Svcs/Elect/PL/28-012 Dated: an 2024

POWER OF ATTORNEY

We, BAHRIA TOWN (PRIVATE) LIMITED, (the "Company"), hereby appoint
and constitute Mr. Muhammad Saqlain Arshad Advocates and Corporate
Counsels to appear and act for us as our advocates in connection with the
Licensee Application (the "Application") filed in respect of seeking Electric
Power Supply License under NEPRA laws with the National Electric Power
Regulatory Authority (NEPRA).

I/We also authorize the said Advocate or any cne of them to do all acts and
things necessary for the processing, completion and finalization of the
Application with NEPRA.

For and on behalf of Bahria Town (Pvt) Limited

c)}
r; Baichtyawar ,LarH@m (Retd)

Director S ces/Bahna Town Lahore

ACCEPTED

MUHAMMAD SAQLAIN ARSHAD
ADVOCATE HIGH COURT

65/3 FCC, GULBERG IV
LAHORE.



CHECKLIST FOR EXAMINATION OF APPLICATION FOR THE .GRANT OF
ELECTRICITY SUPPLY OF THE LAST RESORT LICENSE UNDER NEPRA

LICENCING REGULATIONS, 2021 AND ELIGIBILITY CRITERIA (ELECTRIC
SUPPLY LICENCE) RULES, 2023

Serial

No.

INFORMATION / DOCUMENTS REQUIRED
UNDER NATIONAL ELECTRIC POWER
REGULATORY AUTHORITY LICENSING
(APPLICATION, MODIFICATION,
EXTENSION AND CANCELLATION)
PROCEDURE REGULATIONS, 2021 (THE
“REGULATIONS™)

INFORMATION /
DOCUMENTS SUBMITTED

Application for Supplier of Last Resort License
along with Affidavit, Authorization from Board
and Power of Attorney pursuant to Regulation 3

(1) of the Regulations.

Yes. The requisite documents

are enclosed with the

Application.

Application Fee pursuant to Regulation 3 (1) of the

Regulations.

The Fees shall be paid to the

NEPRA as soon the exact

amount to be submitted s
confirmed in writing by the

Authority.

Application in Triplicate pursuant to Regulation 3

(3) of the Regulations.

Yes,

Certified Copy of Certificate of Incorporation

pursuant to Regulation 3(4)(c)(i)(A) of the

Regulaticns.

Attached as Annexure [ (A)

Certified Copy of Memorandum and Articles of
Association pursuant to Regulation 3(4)(c)(i)(B) of

the Regulations.

Attached as Annexure | (B)

The last Annual Return of the Company pursuant

to Regulation 3(4)(c)(ii)

Attached as Annexure [ (C) &
(D)




The authorized, issued, subscribed and paid-up

Please refer to Annexure | (C) ’

expression of interest of such sub-contractors as

required pursuant to Regulation 3 (4) (d) (viii) of

7 share capital of the Applicant pursuant to | [Latest Annual Return/Form-A]
Regulation 3(4)(c)(ii1) of the Regulations. for the requisite details
The Shareholding pattern of the Applicant | Please refer to Annexure I (C)
i including - list of shareholders pursuant to | [Latest Annual Return/Form-Al
Regulation 3(4)(c)(iv) of the Regulations. for the requisite details
A Prospectus and Company Profile pursuant to | Attached as Annexure II (A) &
5 Regulation 3(4)(b) of the Regulations. (B)
Certitied Copy of Annual Reports and Latest | Attached as Annexure Il (C)
10. Audited Financial Statements of the Company
pursuant to Regglation 3(4)()(i}C) and 3(H)(d)(i1)
of the Regulations.
Evidence of cash balance held in reserves and bank | Attached as Annexure Il (D)
1. certificates pursuant to Regulation 3(4)(d)(i) of the
Regulations. |
Details of charges and encumbrances attached to | Attached as Annexure Il (E)
12. Applicant’s  assets pursuant to  Regulation
3(4Xd)(it) of the Regulations. | ‘
Expression of Interest to provide credit or | Attached as Annexure Il (F) |
13. financing pursuant to Regulation 3(4)(d)(iv) of the
Regulations.
Documents describing the net worth and the equity | Please refer to Annexure Il (C)
1. and debt ratios of the Applicant pursuant to | for the requisite information.
Regutation 3(4)(d)(v) of the Regulations.
i Detailed Profile and CVs of senior management | Attached as Annexure III (A)
15 purstuant  to  Regulation  3(4)(d)(vi) of the
Regutations.
Employment records of engineering and technical | Attached as Annexure [I1 (B)
16. staff of Applicant pursuant to Regulation |
3((dy(vii) of the Regulations. l
. Profile of Sub-contractors, if any, along with | Antached as Annexure I (C) ‘
&




the Regulations.

18.

Verifiable references with reference to experience
of  the Applicant and its Sub-contractors as
required pursuant to Regulation 3 (4) (d) (ix) of the

Regulations.

Attached as Annexure [II (C)

19.

Feasibility Report pertaining to Technical and

Financial proposals in reasonable details pursuant

to Regulation 3 (4) (e) of the Regulations.

Attached as Annexure [V (A)

20.

Relevant Feeder Maps pursuant to Regulation
3(4)(a). Schedule-lll Clause D(1.) of the

Regulations.

Attached as Annexure IV (B)

21.

Number of Consumers and Expected Load
pursuant to Regulation 3(4)(a), Scheduie-11I Clause

D(1.) of the Regulations.

Attached as Annexure IV (C)

22,

Consumer class/category, sub-category on the
basis of sanctioned load and voltage level pursuant
to Regulation 3(d4)(a), Schedule-11l Clause D(2.) of

the Regulations.

Attached as Annexure [V (D)

23.

Tariff categories of consumer classes to be served
pursuant to Regulation 3(4)(a). Schedule-IIT Clause

D(3.) of the Regulations.

Attached as Annexure 1V (E)

24.

Demand and consumption pattern on different time
periods pursuant to Regulation 3(4)(a), Schedule-

I Clause D(4.) of the Regulations.

Attached as Annexure IV (F)

Information Relating to Proposed service territory
pursuant to Regulation 3(4)(a). Schedule-111 Clause

D(10.Xi) of the Regulations.

Attached as Annexure V (A)

26.

Intormarion Relating to Billing and collection
procedures (including provisions for remote
metering) pursuant to  Regulation  3(4)(a).

Schedule-1II Clause D(10.)(ii) of the Regulations.

Attached as Annexure V (B)

27.

[nformation Relating to ability to access consumer

Attached as Annexure V (C)




metering systems and other services/equipment

‘pursuant to Regulation 3(4)(a), Schedule-I1l Clause

D(10.)(iti) of the Regulations.

28.

Information Relating to basis of common services
for commercial and residential consumers and their
allocation thereof pursuant to Regulation 3(4)(a).

Schedule-[IT Clause D(10.)(v) of the Regulations.

Attached as Annexure V (D)

29.

Types of Metering System

Attached as Annexure V (E)

30.

Metering and Testing Facilities

Attached as Annexure V (F)

31.

Procurement Plan for meeting expected Ioads
(including own generation and/or longterm and
short-term PPAs, as the case may be) pursuant to
Regulation 3(d)(a), Schedule-IIl Clause D(3.) of

the Regulations.

Attached as Annexure VI (A)

32,

12-month projections on expected load, number of
consumers and expected sale of units for each
consumer category pursuant to Regulation 3(4)(a).

Schedule-II1 Clause D(6.) of the Regulations.

Attached as Annexure VI (B)

33.

3-year Investment Pian indicating
schemes/models/framework for undertaking supply
of electric power (including frameworks for
providing  non-discriminatory  services and
acquisition/sale of assets in relevant service
territories)  pursuant to  Regulation  3(4)(a).

Schedule-III Clause D(7.) of the Regulations.

Attached as Annexure VI (C)

Training and development procedures and manuals
pursuant to Regulation 3(4)(a). Schedule-1IT Clause

D(8.) of the Regulations.

Attached as Annexure VI (D)

Consumer Service Manual pursuant to Regulation

| 3(4)a), Schedule-1ll Clause D(9.) of the

Regulations.

Attached as Annexure VI (E)




36.

Information Relating to Emergency Provisions and

3(4)Xa),
Schedule-ITI Clause D(10.)(iv) of the Regulations.

Protocols pursuant to  Regulation

Attached as Annexure V] (F)

37.

Affidavit stating whether the applicant has been
granted any other license under the Act pursuant to

Regulation 3(4)(g) of the Regulations.

Attached as Annexure VI (G)

38.

A duly authorized statement stating whether the
applicant has been refused grant of license under
the Act and, if so. the particulars of the refused

application, including date of making the

application and decision on the application

pursuant to Regulation 3(4)(h) of the Regulations.

Attached as Annexure VI (H)

39.

Bank Guarantee Equivalent to Applicable Annual
License Fee for two years pursuant to Regulation

3(8) of the Regulations.

The requisite Bank Guarantee
shall be submitted to NEPRA in
due course after confirmation of

the exact applicable amount.

INFORMATION / DOCUMENTS REQUIRED
UNDER THE ELIGIBILITY CRITERIA
(ELECTRIC POWER SUPPLIER LICENCE)
RULES, 2023 (THE “RULES”)

INFORMATION/
DOCUMENTS SUBMITTED

40.

The Company is registered with the SECP pursuant

to Rule 3{a) of the Rules.

Yes. The Incorporation
Certificate and other Statutory
documents are attached with the

Application as Annexure-[.

The Company shall have minimum paid-up capital

41. | e For the requisite details, please
of one hundred and fifty million rupees pursuant to
. . refer to latest Annual
Rule  3(b) readwith Schedule-I (Minimum
. . Return/Form-A of the Company
Solvency Requirements) Clause 3({iii) of the Rules. |
| attached as Annexure-[ (C).
The Company shall have and maintain minimum
42 For the requisite details, please

net worth of five hundred million rupees pursuant

to Rule 3(b) readwith Schedule-l (Minimum

refer to Prospectus. Profile, last

Annual Audited Financial




Solvency Requirements) Clause 3(iv) of the Rules.

Statements and Cash Balance
Certificates of the Company
attached as Annexure-ll (A),

(B), (C) & (D).

43.

The Company has a strategic business plan for
three vears duly certified by the chief executive
officer or chief financial officer or company
secretary, demonstrating its capability to undertake
electric power supply business pursuant to Rule

3(c) readwith of the Rules.

For the requisite details, please

refer to Annexure Il & V1.

44,

The Applicant shall fulfill minimum human

resource requirements pursuant to Rule 3(d)
readwith Schedule-Il (Minimum Human Resource

Requirements) Clause 3 of the Rules.

For the requisite details, please

refer to Annexure III (A) & (B).

Affidavit declaring and affirming fulfillment of
obligations imposed on it under the National
Electricity Policy and the National Electricity Plan
made under section [4A of the Act pursuant to
Rule 3{e) readwith Schedule-1ll {(Affidavit) of the

Rules.

Attached as Annexure VI (I)

46.

Applicant for.a Supplier of Last Resort (“SoLR™)
Licence ought to hold a Distribution Licence

pursuant to Rule 4(1) of the Rules.

The Application for grant of
Distribution License is pending

before the NEPRA.

47.

Other obligations as mentioned under Rule 3(f).
Rule (g), Rule 4(1)(a), Rule 4(1)(b), Rule 4(1)(c)
and Rule 4(1){d) of the Rules.

The Company aftirms that it

fulfills  all  the requisite

obligations.
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ANNEXURE I

STATUTORY DOCUMENTS OF
COMPANY

CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION
MEMORANDUM AND ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION
LATEST ANNUAL RETURN/FORM-A

LATEST FORM-29



THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017

263

FORM A

THE COMPANIES {GENERAL PROVISIONS ANF FORMS) REGULATIONS, 2018

{Section 130(1) and Regulatian 4}

ANNUAL RETURN OF COMPANY HAYING SIIARE CAPITAL ;

PART-I
(Please compizte in typescript or in bold block capitals)

Pusy o

1.1 CUMN (Registration Number) [no37589

1.2 Name of the Company [BAHRIA TOWN (PRIVATE) LIMITED

1.3 Fec Payment Deils 1.3.1 Challan No  |M-2022-980265 J .32 Amoumt Rs.1320/-
1.4 Form A made uplo { 28 1 1 2022 ]
1.5 Date of AGM B 28 | 11 2022 |
PART-I{
1A
2.1 Regsieeed office address: [Customer Suppon Center, Bahria Complex, Phase 8, Bahria Town. Rawalpindi ]
2.2 Email Address: iEsmid’iqu@)’d‘W-wm )
2.3 Office Tzl Nou: [031-5705822 )
24 Office Fax No.: {os1-5705821 ]
2.4 Principal line of Business: |Land developers B
2.6 Mobilc No. of Autborized Officer (Chief Executive/ Director/ Company
Sccretary/ Chicf I'inancial Officer) Hamid Riaz - 0300-528%740
2.7 |Authorized Share Capital
Classes and kinds of Shares 1 No. of Shares | Amount 1 Face Value
Ordinary Shares 120,000,000 ] 1,200.000,000 ] 10
1.8 (Paid up Sharc Capital
Classes and kinds of $Shares | No. of Shares Amount lssue Price
Ordinary Shares | 22.000.000 220,000,000 i0
2.9 [Particuiars of the bolding/subsidiary company, if soy 1
Neme of company Holding/Subgidiary ! % of shaces held ]
Nik Nil ] Nil i
2.10 Lhicf Executive Officer
[Name [Malik Riaz }usssin NiC Je i1 Tolifriol2y6y1{3]4]9
{Address THouse No. 03, Street No. 89, Sector G-6/2. Islamabad

2.1 Chief Finxncial Olficer

(Name Aamnir Rasheed Awan [ NIC J6l1tiJolt]selsfzioltjglo]ls)
(Address House No. 1665, Street No. 76, Scctor F. DHA Phase | Rawalpirdi. ]

2.12 Secreiary

[Name THamid Riaz I NIC [3]7[4lols]elal7i{sja]7]203]
jAddress |House No. 247, Street No. 27, Ali Block, Phase 8. Dahria Town, Rawalpindi |

2,13 Lepal Adviser

Name [Qaiser Qadser Qureshi ] NIC [3{77alo{sTolalafaltls]al?]
{Address [House No. 48-F-2. Lalazar Coluny, Rawaipindl ]

2.14 Particulars of Auditor(s}

@mc: jAamir Salman Rizwan., Chartered Accountants ]
{Addrcss: 1359, Diock, G3., Johar Town Lahere.

Com AFgcretary
Bahria niiPvy Lid




2.15 Particulers of Share Registrar (if applicable)

Name: -
Address: -
e-moil -
tign-
2.16 List of Dircciors as on the dote of annual retum is made
i sS4 Name Residentizl Address Naticnality NIC Na. (Passport Mo. if foreigner) Date of
Appointment or
tlection
1. |Melik Riaz Hussain House No. 03, Sueet No. 3%, Sector G-8/3, Pakistani 61100-7026134-9 28-11.2022
Islamabad
2. tHinna Malik Hause Mo, 2, Strest No. 1, Phase 11, Bahria Pakiswni 37405-3212758-4 28-11-2022
Touwm, Rawalpindi
Use separate sheet, if necessary
2.17 List gl members & debenture bolders on the date upto which this Form A is made
SKE Foiio‘ Name Address Nationality | No. of shares NIC No. (Passport No. if foreigner)
] held/Debenture
Members
l. Malik Riaz Hussain House No. 03, Street Mo. 39, Pokistani 21,999,900 |61101-7026134-9
Sectar (3-6/3, Islamebad
2 Hinna Malik House No. 2, Sucet No, |, Phase | Pakistani 100 37405-3212758-8
11, Bahrie Town, Rawalpindi

Debenture holders

1 ] Nit Nil L.\m J Nil Nil-

Use separsic sheet, if necessary
2.18]Transfer of shares (debentures) since last Form A was made
S# Name of Transfergr Neme of Tmnsferee MNumber of shares transferved Date of registration of transfer
Members
Debeature holdery
Use scparate sheet, if nccessary
PART-11
3.1 Declacation:
I do hereby sctemnnly, and sincercly declare that the information provided in the form is:
{i) oue and correct 10 the best of my knowledge, in consonance with the record as maintained by the Company snd nothing has been concealed; and

{iiy hercby reporicd afler complying wildt and (ulfiiling ali requirements under the relevant provisions of law, rules, regulations, directives, circulars and notifications
whichever is applicabie. ’

3.2 Name of Authorized  Officer™ 4
designation/ Autherized 1nf:nq!d§rf-"|\(v|4'.il‘1\ W) .o

33 Signatures {O o5

\ o ATTESYE
e dstamapet il VF: =8

3.4 Regismation No of Authorized [ntermediary,
il applicable

eoretary
(Pvt) Ltd.

15 Duate

gampany Registration Ottice islamahad




FORM 29

THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017 ’
THE COMPANIES (GENERAL PROVISIONS AND FORMS) REGULATIONS, 2018
{Section 197 and Regulationsd & 20) -
PARTICULARS OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS, INCLUDING THE CHIEF EXECUNIVE, SECRETARY, CIHEF FINANCIAL OFFICER, AUDITORS AND LEGAL
ADVISER OR OF ANY CHANGE THEREIN

PART-1 e
(Please complzic in {ypescript or in bold biock capiais} P UBL __,/?\NY REG! S?R?\\
[ lc -&S) n / 4 ]'/o\\
N 1ea,
. )} CUIN (Registtion Numbier)  [0037589 . ;’8 i /C;’ \,
i 1 € % g
1.1 Name ol the Compsny BAHRIA TOWN (PRIVATE) LIMITED \ 4 !jtl ’622 2
. ~ - Lred J
1.2 Fee Payment Deiails 121 Challan No. |M-2022.475157 l 122 Amaunt IES' 13200 | R
R — Tl mapag /
\"\—“___,,.-
PARTHI
2. Paticulars*: [ _
Prescat Rame in full | NIC No or passport Father's/ Usuat residential Address Desiguati Natioaaiity ** Business Date of preseat Mode of Nature of directorship
No. in case of Husband's name occupaiion*** appoi tor |appoi { change | (nomines! independent
Forcign National (if any) change {any other fzdditionat/other)
Remaghg****
(&) (b} {033 () (c) (1] (&) (h [} Q)
2.1} New appai Jelectiv -
Malik Riaz Hussain 81101-7026134.9 Malik Ashig House No. 03, Street No. 59, Chiel Exccutive Pakistani Husiness 28-11-2022 Re-Appointment -
Hussain Sector G-673, Islamabad
Malik Riaz Hussain 61101-7026134-9 Malik Ashigq Houss Nu. 03, Streey N, 89, Dircctor ' Pakiswani Business 28-11-2022 Re-Llected -
Hussain Sector G643, Islamabad _
Hinna Malik 3740532127588 Ddo Misbah ul House No. 2, Street No, 1, Director Pakistani Privaw Service 28-11-2022 Re-Elected -
Hussain Phase 11, Bahriz Town,
Rawalpindi
Hamid Riaz 37405-8373477-3 Ghalib Jang H.Ho. 247, Strect No, 27, Ali|  Company Scoretary Pakistant - 131092021 - -
Black, Phusz 8, Bahria Town,
Rawalpindi
Aanir Rashaed Awan 61101-55201%0-5 Abdul Rasheed | H. No. 1663, Street No. 76, | Chief Financial Officer Prkistani - 27-11-2021 - -
Awan Secior F, DHA, Phase
1 Rawalpindi
Qaiser Qudear Qureshi 3740504441737 Anwar quul HNo. 48.5.2, Legal sdvisor Pakisuani BALLD 31-10-2006 -
Qureshi .
Calony, Rawalpindi
o
| Aamiz Sslman Rizwan., - - . Auditor - 28-11-2022 By Resalution -
e 359, Blook G3, lohat Town E
Lahore \

Bahria b {Pvt) Ltd.



22) Ceasing of uffice/Reti Mosigaation:

2.3} Any otk chanpe in particufuss pelsting 1o columns {s) w{x) shove:
[ . I : g : 1 - | B o - - | : 1

1n the casc of & fiem, the full namc, sddress and ebove menioned pariculars of each parter, 3nd the datc on which ¢ach became g partper,
Ir: gase the nongnelity s act the nativzality of ozigin, provide the nationality of otigin as well.
Algo pravide particulars of athar dirccsorships o offices heid, if anyv.™,
“res  Incase of resipnation el & dirzetor, the resignatian lettes 2nd in casc of removal vf a dircctor, member’s resolution be gfiached.
PART-111

3 Declzoation:

11 {dnhacby solemnly, and sincerely declars that the infusination provided in the (oo is:
(3} trus 2w comest to the best of my Lrowledge, in consanznce with tie secard as maistaioed by the Company 248 nothing hos boen: conzealed; and
{ii) herchy repedted afier complying with znd fu'filling 23 requicements under the rxlcvant provisions of taw, niizs, reguimions, ditectives, circulars and uatifications whichievar is applicable.

3.2 Nune of Aubwnzed Offca  with

iCtzmpau)- Seqeisry

designarions Autherized Jary (Hasid Rivz d
. 7X
33 Signawres
] T
R B0
“¥ ! 0\)
. 34 Registrarion Mo of Authorized Latermediary, if applicable T ] Company/Sgcretary

o8 Mot Yeur Bahria n {Pvt) Ltd.

35 Date 2 ] [ U e N

[
loixt Registrar
(1 y Reglstration 0ftice Isiamatad




ANNEXURE 11

COMPANY PROFILE & FINANCIAL
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BAHRIA TOWN (PVT) LTD

PROSPECTUS

Stepping practical into the shoes of his father Malik Riaz Hussain started his
life in 1970 in the career as construction business. He started his abilities as
petty contractor work but very soon due to his outstanding abilities and hard
work rose to the status of a contractor with no financial limit. During that period
he completed a number of reputable major projects like dual carriage way of
Mall Road Rawalpindi starting from Radio Pakistan to Airport costing more
than Rs.100 Millions. This project was completed in record time during the
eighties. His vision and ambition were however always very high. He wanted
to do something extraordinary and unique. Being a very kind hearted person
he always wanted to help the poor, living in urban slums, by providing a

housing project at an affordable cost. Bahria Town is therefore an outcome of
his cherished dreams.

Malik Riaz Hussain is better know at home and abroad as a builder, trend
setter and dynamic entrepreneur, who has introduced innovative Malaysia,
Turkey and UAE take pride in investing with Bahria housing projects of
international standards. Bahria Town development represent a unique mark of
distinction for Pakistan, this is why international entrepreneurs from Town. His
innovative concepts and unique technologies are practiced by other urban
developers in the country. The company has created business opportunities
for local suppliers, employs more than 10,000 workers, in direct employment
and has created 15,000 jobs in the supply chain network. Besides helping the
economy of the Pakistan in several forms Malik Riaz is also one of the leading
philanthropic personalities of the country.

In order to mitigate the housing crises in Pakistan, annuail deficit of 350,000 he
hs recently launched Awami Villas that caters exclusively to the needs of the
lower income segment in the country; which has the fastest growing middle
class in the region. He has taken this initiative without any profit motivation; a
large share of the cost of the project will be borne by him.

The project of Bahria Town was launched in 1996 with true spirit of enterprise
and vision of providing quality life style at affordable cost. Malik Riaz Hussain
is totally dedicated to this project. His dedication and untiring hard work has
brought the project nationally and internally to a level which has set an
example for others to follow. All projects are self sufficient in terms of services
such as, distribution of electricity, gas, water and telephone.
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Besides providing housing facilities toc the general public at large, Bahria Town
is working not merely for its members but for the community as a whole. It has
generated a developmental process which has brought an increase in the
GDP by creating employment opportunities. it has thus taken a small but an
effective step in the poverty aileviation and thus raising the general standard
of living of the common man.

Bahria Town is now spread over 150,000 kanals in Rawalpindi/lslamabad and
about 75,000 kanais in Lahore, and in the process of providing plots and
constructed houses of different sizes. Bahria Town, no doubt is a housing
scheme of international standards.

Malik Riaz is now an icon in the housing sector and enjoys a reputabie name
in Pakistan and abroad as well. With his vision Bahria Town shall be
pioneering, Innovating and will become a leading source of housing and
lifestyle solutions to the masses and riches of Pakistan.

His personal contribution to organizations and fields outside the realm of his
business interest presents his selfless efforts and generous social work
towards nation building. He believes that the only road to the transformation of
the community is to empower the people to help themseives for which he has
established an education trust fund. He has separate department responsible
for charitable projects who are directly inveolved in these initiatives. To meet
his objectives effectively Malik Riaz is also coordinating with many

organizations and institutes nationwide and supports them in providing health
and education to the remote areas.
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Bahria Town (Private) Limited
Company’s Profile

Bahria Town (Private) Limited (BTL) is a company registered under the Company's
Ordinance 1984.

Bahria Town (Pvt) Lid is one of those housing schemes which are unique in many
aspects providing numerous facilities to its residents. A spacious net work of major
and minor roads with footpaths, ornamentai plants and fancy street lights is an
integral part of BTL. Beautiful play grounds and parks, all types of sports facilities
including a mini golf course add glamour to the housing scheme.

Keeping in line with the internationa! standards all utilities are underground; it has its
own grid stations, telephone exchange and Sui gas network. Community centre,
wedding halls, clubs, education and health facilities, fire brigade and many more -
adds to the comfort and living standard of its residents. Environmental aspects have
been adequately taken care through BTL horticulture department. Proper waste
water treatment plants are in place and disposal of solid waste and its proper
disposal have been designed on the most modern methods.

The proponent of BTL is Mr Malik Riaz Hussain. Talking of Bahria Town Lahore;the
scheme is located 12-14 km from Thokar Niaz Baig Lahore and 10 KM from M2
interchange Lahore —Rawalpindi.Total area of the housing scheme is approximately
75000 kanals out of which 10,000 kanals are on Raiwind Road about 12 KM from
Thokar Niaz Baig. The estimated cost of the project is approximately Rs.30.5 billion.
It will accommodate an estimated population of 85000. Globally the construction and
housing industry accounts for 10-12 per cent of the GDP and 7 percent emplioyment.
The current project is providing numerous job opportunities directly and indirectly. It
is playing an important role in boosting the economy of the country because

numerous industries are involved during the design, construction and operational
phases of the project.

Amazing Facts About Bahria Town

Largest private sector developer in Asia it is the first real estate developer in

Pakistan to have a fully integrated Enterprise Resource Planning and Management
System.

Bahria Town has over hundreds of heavy construction equipment units deployed at
the Lahore and Rawalpindi projects sites. The worth of this equipment is over
4 billion rupees with strict compliance to international quality and safety codes.
Bahria Town is the first and only developer in Pakistan to maintain such a high
inventory of  equipment. This speaks of the commitment  and

forward planning of the organization. All other developers use third parties to
complete the development.
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12~ ,: Home Plus is the third largest card company in Pakistan with a member base of over

"+ 85,70000: belonging to different regions of Pakistan, with a huge response from the
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First ever project in private sector with underground 'provision of utilittes and
supplies.

The first of its kind state of the art call centre operational 365 days a year.
The first ever real estate developer in Pakistan to transform into local muitinational

with a corporate ideology based on “Community First and Profitability Follows™.

Qur driving force Is choosing change over compliancy, challenge over goals,

- pioneers over followers and life style.

Bahria Town pays million of rupees in direct and indirect taxes. Conducting its .
business as a progressive corporate member of the society it provides opportunities
to many in the form of project management and customer driven initiatives.

Bahria Town employs more than 10,000 workers in direct and indirect empioyment,
who are working tirelessly to develop the current project with operational excellence.
Quality and safety are the tow most important factors besides facilities like school,
health cover, career path, training and development and financial aid for the needy.

The organization provides employment opportunities for over 1,000 local suppliers
and creates another 1,500 job associated through supply chain network in
Islamabad and Lahore.

100,000 households are dependant on Bahria Town for their sustenance and
development through direct, indirect and supply chain associated employment.

Bahria Town enjoys the largest member base in Pakistan. It has over 1500,000
customers, making in the largest real estate developer in Asia.

rural areas.

If the direct/ indirect employees of the Bahria Town are lined up with their arm

stretched wide open along with the Bahria's equipment they will form a line from
Lahore to Rawalipindi.

Bahria Town is an equal opportunity employer and has a richly diverse workforce.
The employee base consists of people belonging to different casts, creeds, religions

~ " and from different regions such as Philippines, Middle East, Malaysia and the United
States.
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If we line up the bricks that Bahria Town consumes in a year they will go around the
world 5 times!

By the Grace of God Almighty Bahria Town (Private) Limited is the biggest name in
housing sector today.

The Company was incorporated by the Bahria Foundation in collaboration with the
private sector on 15t January 1996. Bahria Town still holds the record of having

marketed 5,600 plots in 30 days. Its projects gained instant popularity in general
public in Pakistan and amongst overseas Pakistanis as well and on account of very
competitive prices and development per international standards. The company holds
the confidence of its more than 100,000 subscribers in Pakistan and all over the
world today as it has implemented international development standards not
seen/emuiated in Pakistan ever before.

In Bahria Town projects, development works are executed scientifically using plant
and machinery worth approximately Rs.04 billion. The development standards
actually exceed metropolitan standards in Pakistan. The Bahria town shops at
Rawalpindi/ islamabad and Lahore present an eye-catching scene with full width
carpeted streets and walkways on both sides of the streets paved with tiles. Services
are laid on both sides of the streets. Underground electrical system has pad
mounted transformers meeting national standards on power distribution.

Taking in to account Bahria Town Rawalpindi/islamabad; the project launched on 18t
January 1996, spreads over 12,000 kanals of land along picturesque Soan and
Korang rivers. lts land use policy strictly conforms to CDA/RDA specifications. Three
out of seven phases have already been completed. Work is in progress on in fourth
and fifth phases. The entire project is expected to be completed by the year 2003.
Phases | - VIl has almost been completed and Phase 1V is near to its completion.

Phase VIl and IX were announced in September 2003 and August 2004
respectively and were heavily oversubscribed. Phase VIII attracted around 15,000
members whereas 52,000 members booked their plots in phase IV. Total Land
measuring some 80,000 kanals has been purchased and development is being
carried out by Bahria Town itself and Habib Rafiq (Pvt) Ltd, a renowned Developer.

Bahria Bridge, built by the Company at its own expenses over Korang river is 490
feet long and conforms to NHA “AA: stand (75 tons rating). It is by far the largest
bridge built in Pakistan by any housing company for its use. The bridge is in fact
social service rendered by Bahria Town in getting people together as it links CDA
Zone V with the city of Rawalpindi through an alternate and much needed link route.
Ancther bridge has been built on Soan River connecting Bahria Town with GT Read.
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Grid Station of 132 KV/11 KV is installed by Bahria Town at its own cost to provide
glectricity to Bahria Town Lahore Scheme at Multan Road, Lahore and Bahria
Orchard, Raiwind Road, Lahore. M/S Siemens have provided the equipment for the
installation of both the Grid Stations.

A 4000 line telephone Exchange with the facility of DSL and IP TV is also working in
Bahria Town Lahore. Sui Gas is available in entire developed areas of the scheme.

Parks and a Safari Zoc are attaching a lot of public from the adjoining areas and
from Lahcre. A large variety of animals and birds are available in the Zoo.

Projects of Bahria Town are as under:

Safari Villas Rawalpindi

It is unigue housing project with a picturesque landscape and a breath of fresh air in
the thickly populated Rawapindi City. Located on the bank of River Korang and
adjacent to Safari Park it presents a true scene. This uneven piece of land is an
attractive and amazing creation of nature. its surrounding river and population free
pure environment makes it a dreamland.

Three hundred villas of different designs have been built in Safari Villas. Currently
over 400 families are living at these villas. Safari Villas — ! is fully completed while
construction of Safari Villas — Il and Extension is proceeding in fuil swing and is in
the completion stage. This is a completely secured gated community with our
maintenance and security team present 24 hours a day at resident’s service. It has a
fully functional club, swimming pool, tennis court, squash courts and a small
commercial center. The school and college provide best educational facilities.

Safari Apartments, Rawalpindi

Located strategically at the eniry point of Bahria Town and Safari Villas. Safari
apartments give a unique lock with their beautiful and symmetric designs. Five
blocks contain 40 apartments. The entry point of block is wide, beautiful and laced
with tiles. The project is coming to completion . The common compound walil with a
security check point will prevent unauthorized entry. Round the clock maintenance

facilities for the residents include electrician, plumbers, carpenters, sweepers and
gardeners.

Safari Homes, Rawalpindi

Safari Homes, a project of 2,000 houses especially designed for low income people
of which 1,000 have already been booked. A contract has been signed with a
Turkish Firm M/s Areaa of international repute to construct 2,000 houses within a
period of 2-3 years. Around 500 houses are nearing completion. Safari Homes will
provide quality living to the people having low income.



Meadows/Executive Lodges

Meadows/Executive Lodges a project of 500 luxurious houses have been designed
and launched especially for the Pakistanis returning from abroad and for local
people. These houses are being sold at a price of Rs.17.50 million to Rs.25.0

million. Around 100 such houses have been constructed in Bahria Town Phase I, 1l
and V!.

Bahria Town Lahore Project

After the successful launching of a project at Rawalpindi/lslamabad, Bahria Town
launched its second mega housing project at Lahore on 23 January 1997. The
project has approximately 75,000 kanals of land which is being developed out of
which sector A, B, Executive Lodges, 5-7 Marls Scheme have been fully developed.
Sector C having 15000 customers launched in September 2004 has been
developed by Habib Rafig, a renowned land developer company.

Executive Lodges

For those who like more rcom and more garden space, the area designated for
Executive Lodges offers a choice of four to thirty-six kanals plots. You have option to
make your own farmhouse or have our architects design and built for you. Within
easy reach. yet secluded, Executive lodges offers privacy and tranquility in a world
full of day-to-day stress.

You can wake up to the trilling of birds every morning, away from the noise and
pollution, surrounded by trees in a tranquil setting.

Safari Homes, Lahore

Safari Homes a project of 1,000 houses especially for low income people has
already been booked. 450 houses have been completed and handed over to the
owners, the remaining are almost 80% complete. These houses are being
constructed under the supervision of highly qualified team of professionals. Safari
Homes is providing a quality living for the people having low income.

Awami Villas, Rawalpindi/lslamabad/Lahore

The desire of having a home has been an elusive dream for many Pakistanis. Now
on completion of 10 successful years of Bahria Town. It proudly announced a new
low cost housing project of Awami Villas deploying the steel patient pre fabricated
modular structure technology. Awami villas will cater exclusively for the demands of
the low income class and is aimed to mitigate the housing crisis of our Country. Over
100.000 houses will be built and made available through an easy installment plan
stretching over a 16 year period. The phase | of the project has been launched in
Rawalpindi. Machinery for fabrication of wall panels has been imported at a cost of
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US$ 3.0 million including sheds. The factory has been commissioned on 14" August
2006. Necessary land for the project adjacent to DHA Phase 2 extension has been
purchased and is being developed.

Bahria Heights

Bahria Heights is another prestigious project of Bahria Town situated in Phase-I. It is
a project of quality furnished 2-Bed/Studio apartments in a beautiful location. Bahria
Heights was launched on 26" June 2005 and all the units have been sold out. it
meets all the internationally quality standards to lift your luxurious living in Pakistan.

- Future!/ under hand Projects

Various projects like Bahria Springs. Bahria Oriental Gardens, Bahria Gold City,
Bahna Paradise, Bahria Gateway, and Bahria Heights-Il wiil be launched in the near
future.

Human Resource Development

Bahria Town employs more than 2,500 people on its projects contributing to human
resource development in an important sector of Pakistan economy.

Environmental Consciousness

Bahria Town (Private) Limited is an environmentally conscious Company. All its
projects are designed to meet national standards on pollution. Proper sewerage
treatment plants have been installed and proper collection/disposai of sold waste is
being carried out through hydraulic compacters purchased by Bahria Town.

Sociai Obligations

" Bahria Townships are planned with mosques, schools, colleges, clubs, hospitals and
green areas. Mosques have already been constructed in Bahria Town Phase |,
Safari Villas Rawalpindi and at Bahria Town Lahore.

A club and a Community Hall with a swimming pool, a tennis court, squash court and
a fitness centre is available for the residents of Safari Villas/Bahria Town Lahore.

A 100 bedded hospital, with modern diagnostic facilities is fully functional at Bahria
Town Lahore.



Bahria Town Schools & College from Nursery to O level is fully functional at Lahore
site.

A college named after the world-renowned nuclear scientist and head of KRL, Dr A
Q Khan in Safari Villas Rawalpindi is providing quality education.

A Medical College campus is functional in Sector C Bahria Town Lahore with 200
students in 15t and 2™ year. A medical center equipped with latest equipment and
qualified doctors and staff is fully operational and providing medical facilities to the
general public of the area around Safari Villas.

Management at Corporate Level

The Board of Directors

The affairs of the Company are governed by a board of Directors who are also the
co-owners of the Company. Their names appear in annexes. The shareholders meet
at Annual Generai Meeting once a year. The directors meet as frequently as needed
for smooth running of Company’s affairs but not more than four months apart.

Monitoring the progress of Development works is an essential item on Company’s
agenda.

Chief Executive’s Vision of the Projects

The Chief Executive, who is the driving force behind the Company and the Board of
Directors, has a vision which can be described as under:-

The time has come to offer better living standard to our people who have suffered
tremendously at the hands of dishonest developers. Let us develop Bahria
Townships with standard matching those seen abroad so that our projects become
an example for others to follow. While doing so, let's ensure that cost remains
affordabie. Let there be no penny pinching on attainment of quality. We would do
with marginal profits but we would not compromise on quality. If we make our
projects the very best in the market, we would naturally be the market leaders and
we would make a niche in the market for ourselves. This way we can stay in the lead
and in business for a very long time.

The Board of Directors and senior managers uphcld CE’s vision and the result of
this synergism is that anyone who visits Bahria Town projects at Rawalpindi/

Islamabad and Lahore comes back full of praise for the quaiity of development
works.



Management Strategy

Company’s eight-point management strategy stands on the following corners stones:

Use of Corporate Assets. A sensible re-induction of profits ensures the success of

new projects. Major projects like turnkey construction of houses by the hundreds
thus become possible.

Financial Soundness is ensured generating and maintaining a healthy cash flow.
We also retain a core reserve in surplus property (land and houses).

Building Value of Property as a Long Term investment. Bahria Town projects
promise excellent return on investment by providing unprecedented quality of work
and services by virtue of which Bahria town projects are rated head and shoulders
above the competition.

Quality of Management. Which is a product of civil-military combination of leaders?
Civilian Chief brings professional expertise while ex-military senior officers provide
the much-needed driver for a “fast track” execution of our projecis. Technical
consultancy is being provided by the consuitants of the international repute like TAK
Management, Maxcorps, Ranhill, Akitech Jururancang, E&G Parslow efc.

Ability to Attract, Develop and Keep Talented People. Our doors are open to

anyone who can prove his or her talent in one of many fields of activities and
interests we are engaged in.

Community and Environmental Responsibility. We stand committed to meet
community social, education, health, recreational and religious responsibilities. We
also stand committed to treat our sewer before discharging out. It would be our

gndeavor to invoke segregation of garbage into biodegradable and recyclable
(paper, metal and giass) categories.

Quality of Products and Services. We exceed CDA/RDA/LDA standards in that we
provide sewer, fresh water and electrical services on both sides of the street. Hence
no need to cut our expensive carpeted streets.

Innovativeness. To explore additional features and services for the clientele such
as the planning of a Cornice along the Soan River this would have viewpoints and
ice-cream pariors for the residents of recreation.



Management at Proiject Level

Each project staff is headed by a General Manager Project and has highly
professional staff including engineers, surveyors, and others at different levels. All
project heads report to Deputy Chief Executive who ensures implementation of
policies framed by the Board of Directors. The organization of Bahria town
Rawalpindi/islamabad/Lahore is available in the Annexes. The number of personnel

employed in the Head Office is around 100 which is not much when judged in the
light of diverse tasks undertaken.

Summary

Entity

City vast spaces, huge arsenal of heavy earth moving machinery worth greater than
Rs.04 billion, 15000 man strong engineering and deveiopment team, 500 specialist
executives one visionary leading the lot to set the tone for a mega real estate
development. At the cutting edge of urban development on a scale unsurpassed
elsewhere in the world, it charts new trends and vision in urbanization, economic
and physical planning for urban growth.

Achievement

Over 60,000 kanals of land based infrastructure fully developed in Islamabad and
L.ahore, Bahna Town developments represents a unique mark of distinction for
Pakistan as they continue to develop master planned communities which are clearly
ahead of their time. These futuristic communities are serviced with huge
infrastructure network ranging from dedicated electric grid stations to schools and
service hospitals. The achievement of all this in short span of 10 years speak for the
robustness and operational excellence of the company.

Vision

Bahria Town shall be pioneering, innovating and will become a leading source of
housing and lifestyle solutions to the masses and riches of Pakistan. We shail
employ the most quality HR, cutting edge tools, best of the market partners and
efficient, robust and quick delivering systems and processes for the uitimate

satisfaction for our members and to become the first choice for every housing
decision.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the members of Bahria Town (Private) Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Bahria Town {(Private) Limited (the

Companco. which comprise the statement of financial position as at June 30, 2021, and the

PRI EINTET st

of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in

catement of cazh flows for the vear then ended, and notes to the financial statements.
wing @ summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and we
i that, exeept for the matrers referrved in paragraph (a) to (hy of the Basts for Qualified Opinion
tion below, we have obtained all the information and explanations which. to the hest of our
Lnowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

ot ;_:nr';

Tyl
L

[t our spinmon and to the best of pur information and according to the explanations given to us, except
| ible effects of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our

comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows togetner
with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards as
spplicable in Pakistan and give the information requived by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017,
1 the munner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's
aifanes as at June 30, 2021 and of the loes, the other comprehensive income, the changes in equity
s ash flows for the vear then ended,

Basis tor qualified opinion

2 The Company has not carried out impairment test on the long-term investments costing Rs.
1 022 billion (refer note 17 to the financial statements). This constitutes a departure from
applicable financial reporting framework. Consequently. we were unable to determine
whather any adjustments to these amounts were necessary:

b The Company has nol carried out impairment test on loan and advances amounting Rs.
3515 billion (refer note 25 to the financial statements), and has not implemented credit loss
model. This constitutes a departure from applicable financial reporting framework.
Consequently, we were unable to determine whether any adjustments to these amounts
Were necessary’

o+ The Company has not made provision for swaff retirement benefits which constitutes a
loparture from applicadle financial reporting framework (refer note 113 to the financial
statementst, The related impact on these financial statements could not be determined in
iheenee of the relevant mtormates;
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d: During the vear, the Company has filed a Civil Miscellaneous Appeal (CMA) before the
Honourable Supreme Court of Pakistun (the Supreme Court) seeking amendment and
adiuztment o the totu! lakility payable {vefer note 7.1 to the financial statements) by the
Company in the light of the shortfall of land due 1o non-availability of land which cannot be
tranaferred to the Company (vefer note 7.2 and 14.1.30B to the financial statements). Based
sn the this, the Management haz worked out that toral payable against available land of
V174747 acres 13 Es, 316.766 billion instead of Rs. 460 billion. Accordingly, an adjustment

waed any judgment owing te rhis CMA regarding adjustment to the lability As the matter
is subjucice before the Supreme Court, we are unable to substantiate the basis used by the
management in making these adjustments;

«r In addition to the above, the Company has filed a petition with Honowrable Supreme Court
of Pakistan (the Supreme Court) seeking extension in pavment period of outstanding
Hiability puvable 1o Supreme Court amounting Rs. 407.309 biilion (refer nete 7 to the
financial statements). Accovdingly, the Company has classified the liakility payabie to the
Supreme Court as nun-current and has not measured 1t at amortized cost as required by the
applicable financial reporting framework. The Supreme Cowrt has not passed any judgment
owing to this CMA granting any extersion in repayment pericd to date. Further, the
Company hag also notaceounted for additional provision relating to the markup on account
of delay in vepayments in accordance with the requirements of the judgement (refer note 7.1
to the financial statements? passed by the Supreme Court. As the matter is subjudice before
the Supreme Court, we ware unable to verity the classification and valuation of outstanding
Hability pavable o the Supreme Court and resulting markup provisions on delayed
aaviienta

f1 The Company hus neither accounted for revenue in accordance with nor has complied with
disclosure requirements of LFRS 15: Revenue from Contracts with Customers, which
censtitutes a departure from applicable financial reporting framework. In the absence of
relevant information, we were unable to determine the related impact on these financia!
statements:

2t The Company has nerther accounted for leases in accordance with nor has compiied with
diselosure requirements of [FRS 16: Leases, which constitutes a departure from applicable
tinancial reporting framework. In the absence of relevant information, we were unable v
determine the related impact on these {inancial statements; and

i) The Compuany has not kept proper fixed asset records as required under section 220 of the
Companies Act. 2017 In the absence of relevant records. we were unable to verify the
zxistence and valuation of fixed asserts.

W conducted cur audit in accerdance with Internationai Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as
appheatle 11 Pakistan, Our regponsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Acecuntants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accouniants as adopted by the [nstitute of Chartered
“;\ccrmm:mts of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in

¢ Page 20t 5

cretary
4w (Pv1) Lid:




Aamir Salman Rizwan

chartered accountants

sccordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

Emphasis ofx'#[attérs

1} We draw attention to note 7 to the financial statements, which describes that the Company
is required to pay Rs. 07.309 billion to the Hanourable Supreme Court of Pakistan as a
result of its order issued on March 21, 2019, Further, the Company is facing litigation before
the Honourable Supreme Court of Pakistan in respect of title, allotinent and usage of land
{refer note 14.1 to the {inancial statements). Qur opinion iz not modified in respect of this
matter: and

it Further, we draw attention to notes 17 and 23.1.3 to the financial stutements, which
describe that title of the investment in subsidiaries having aggregate cost of Rs. 130.200
million and title of land having aggregate cost of Rs. 42,159 billion were not held in the name
of the Company. Qur opinion is not mrodified in respect of this matter.

information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the

information included in the directors’ report, but does not include the financial statements and our
auditer's report thereon.

Our epinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
anv torm of assurance conclusion thereon.

In wnrection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility 1s to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
mizatated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report
oy this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Munagement is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the
requirements of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management
Jetermines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
mis-tatement, whether due to fraud or error,

in preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
nd nsing the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations. or has no realistic alternative but to do su.

Buard of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
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Auditors’ Responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are tree from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our cpinjon. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit condueted in accordunce with ISAs as applicable in Pakistun will abways detect a
muterial misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
cansidared materal if, individually or in the aggregsate. they could reasonably be expected
inthuence the economie decisiors of users token on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance witn [SAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional .
swlzment and matntain professicnal skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o ldentity and assess the risks of marterial misstatement of the tinancial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procadures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that s sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis [or
cur opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery.
intencional omissions. misrepresentations. or the override of internal control.

+ (Obtain an undersranding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
nroceduras that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an apinicn o the etfectiveness of the Company's internal control.

» Ewvaluate the approprioteness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and reluted disclosures made by management.

» Uenclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the geing concern basis of
acceunting and, based un the audic evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
existz related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditiens may cause the Companv to cease to continue as a
golng congern,

Evaluat: the overal: prasentation. structure and content of the fnancial statements.
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and eventa in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We commuriceate with the board of directors vegarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
vung of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal

cuntrol that we identify during our audit.
3
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B Aamir Salman Rizwan

chartered accountants

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a; except for the possibie effects of the matters described in Basis for Qualified Opinien section
above, proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);

b} except for the possible effects of the matters described in Basis for Qualified Opinton section
abuove. the statement of financial positicn, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows
together with the notes thereen have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act,
2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the bocks of account and returns:

¢} except for the possible effects of the matters described in Busis for Qualified Opinion section

above, investinents made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year
were for the purpose of the Company's business: and

no Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980).

The ¢ngagement partner on the audit resulting :n this independent auditors’ report is Ahmad
Sulinnn Arshad.

% P, -
. _‘ £
- @E;—;f rtered Acdotintants f"u... (\-ﬁ..‘"—-"{“
Place: Lahore ";'
Date: o .
1 oMae
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Bahria Town (Private) Limited

Statement of Financial Position

As at June 30, 2021

2021 2020
Nate e (Rupees in thousands) ..........
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share eapital and reserves
Share capital
Issued, subscribed and paid up capital 5 220,000 220,000
Revenue reserves
Accumuiated loss (173,417.797) (172452812)
(173,197.797) (172.232,812)
Non - current liabilities
Advance fram customers 0 189.259.414 ‘: 173,607.410
Puvable against land 7 267,138,080 { 380.000.000
Long term security deposits 8 269,912 j - 266,681
Total non-curvent liabilities 4560,668.006 353.874.091
Current liabtlities
Current maturity of payable against land 9 - 27,468,685
Current portion of advance from customers 10 312,980,398 241.433.266.
shart term tinancing 11 950,000 730.000
Friade and other payables 12 28,711.987 60.486,147
Mark-up acerued 13 2.777 4,390
Total current liabilities 342,645,162 330.142.6088
Lotal cquity and liabilities 626,1158.371 711.783.967
Contingencies and commitnients 14
ASSETS
Non - current asscts
Property, plant and cquipment 15 7,5503856 21434746
[ esument property 16 23,009,621 23,638,379
Long term investments 7 1022340 1.022.540
Long term loans and other receivables 18 1,161,820 -
i g term projects 19 42,983,082 42,084,125
[ ong tenm security deposits 29 230,798 230,798
Long tem certilicate of deposit 21 - 10.000
Dyeicrred 1ax assct- net 212 3,726.185 3,040,564
Total non - current assets 89.6910.,702 91.460.952
Current asscts
Stores and spares 697,132 671973 ;
Inventorics 23 372,974,801 494.840.269
Irade and other receivables 24 2,405,520 1.476.992
f.oun and advanees 15 146,533,755 106,523,074
Deposits and prepavments 26 308.019 207.790
Due from related partics 7 0,989,507 6,963 869
Advance tax due from Government 1w 24,967 16,259
Short term investments 29 1,660,000 -
¢ ash and bank balunces 30 4.834,962 8,620,787
“ Total current assets 536.424.669 620.323.015
S Yotal assets . - 626.115,371 4 711.783.967
e ATTESTED
'l'/‘(" umm\'),(// wtes 1o 40 Vwrm wr fregial ik .N{l SUHCICNEy.
‘ e - / U’
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Bahria Town (Private) Limited

Statement of Profit or Loss
For the yvear ended June 30, 2021

Sales

Cost ol sales

Gross profit/ (loss)

Operuating expenscs

Crenerai and administrative expenses
Seliimg and distribution expenses

Operating loss
finance cosl
Other churges
Net foss
ey conwe
PLoss {Tom joint venture projects
b.oss hefore taxation
Taxation
o Lass after taxation

A

I

The airexed notes 1o 46 form an integral part of these financial staienents.

e

ri

Chief Fxecutive

,

Notc

31
32

TED

2021

2020

wes (Rupees in thousands) ...,

42,151,614 17,458,175
(40,603,502) (23,601.246)
1,348,112 (6.143.071;
(6,443,519) (6,249.286)]
(645,251) (432.696)|
(7,088,770) (6.681,082)
(3,540,638) (12.825.033)
(324,071) C(59.933)
(6,713) (440,684)
(6.071,442) (13.325,670)

5,403,043 4,655,819
(272,798) (3185.154)
{941,197) (9.055.005)

(23,788) 2,554,340
(964,983) (6.500.663)

[w/t/w A//W
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Bahria Town (Private) Limited

Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the vear ended June 30, 2021

Note
Fass for the vear

{rther comprehensive inecome

flems that may be subsequently'reclassified in profit or loss
ftems thut wiil not be subscguentiv reclassitied in profit or loss

2021 2020

.. (Rupees in thousands) ........

(964,945) (6,500,665)

Total comprehensive toss for the year

(964,985) (6.300.663)

A

A T N

L The armiexed notes 1 to 46 form an integral part of these finuncial statements.

:"/ 4
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Bahria Town (Private) Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity
[For the year ended June 30, 2021

Bulance as at Juiyv 01, 2019

Comprehensive loss for the year:
Loss forthe vear

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive loss for the year

Baluanee as at June 30, 2020

Balanee as at July 01, 2020
Comprehensive fuss for the vear:
Loss for the vear

Other comprehensive income

Toral comprebensive foss {or the year

}c\ Balunce as st June 30, 2021
-

A e

Share capital

Revenue reserves

1ssucd,
subscribed and
paid up capital

Accumulaied loss

Total equity

.. (Rupees in thousands)

........................

220.000

(163.932.147)

(6.500.663)

(163,732.147)

{6.500.665)

- (6.300.6635) (6,500.663)
220,000 (172,452.812) (172,232.812)
220,000 (172,452.812) (172,232.812)

- (964,98%) (964,985)

) (964.‘;85) (964,9-35)
220,000 (173,417.797) (173.197,797)

The annesed notes | 1a 46 form an iimegral part of these finaicial statements.

retary
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Bahria Town (Private) Limited

Statement ot Cash Flows
I-or the year ended June 30. 2021

2021 2020
Note cevreees (Rupees in thousands) ........
Cash from operating activitics
Nuloss fur the vear betore L (941197 (9.035.005)
Add adjusiment for non-cash ineome and evpenses
Ciain on dispesid of property, plant and equiprent {(754,110) (2.363)
frevenue fron reud estate 3t (36.094,340) 112.363,449)
Raceltation charges 37 (60,000) (120,000)
Vigortization of jony werns loan 37 - {10.872)
Ront expense 13 45,730 31942
Insurinee expenine 33 7,406 4,639
fepainienr of propersy, plant and squipment 33 0,747 -
Prepreciztion on property. plant and equipament 15.1.1 L0825 LO76.E53
Depreciution vn imvesimaent property 33 1,189,972 [316,965
i untice cusl 35 524,071 39933
Fachunge fosy 36 0,713 63.68U
Prescsion for imaiirmnent o investinent 6 - 1750t
Provision o doabtiul debr 36 - 200,000
i it cost 3 (6.154.288) 7.703.034
Cost ol devefopinent 32 124,504,559) 7 698,630
Interest income on am-wincing 37 1146,333) -
{ags Trom joint . entore 12.2.1 272,798 385154
(64,147,739 6,418,322
Operating loss hefore working capital chynges (63,088,936) (2.236,083)
erease deCrEie 10 current desets
Stowes amd spares 25.157) (63,929)
Prade and ither recaivable 585,904 626,063
boan and advanges ($0,010,681) 6iLOT2 367
HIRRULTTTERN ' 13.044.533 (43.215.361
Licposiis I prepivRiviRis (133,371) i70.439)
Siest erny nestment {1.666.000) -
fone lerseeuniy deposts - {10,600
Piae fromt related parties i23,638) 2076940
Increasesadecrease? in cutrent ahilities
i rade and orher pavables 131,958,163 £7.240,896)
Pavible against land {159,320y (40.032,554
Advanee from custoniet s 122,732,262 37,215,888
Long erm seeurty deposils 3,231 56,944
{ avh (ram operating actiyities {2,713,262) 7.706.320
i s paud {(714.117) (334,086}
ity o {56.90%) (53,3443
NSt cash (usedpenerated from operating activities A 7 (3.184.258) Z.316.390
Cash Taw [rom investing activitics
Pan ment for aequistizon o property, pliast and eguspmient {139.391) {GSS,JEBE
Provecds roam disposal of property. plant and cquipmient 8,635 13,338 §
Croveads romd paviment op) Caprtal worll an- progress 824,869 (284.638)
M ment dgianst ong werm project {898,957) (2,146,891
Provecds from disposal of long term certifivite of depos) 1L -

{3.040,436)

Net cash ased in investiog activities ATT % Eﬁ B (4414,824)

£ oasit fTow From tinapeiny activibies

V\) * 200,000 [

Crocecds IO short e l'm:mcmg:

750.000 1

LI

ot cush venernted I uaticine okt - : 3 500,
Net cush generated from financing uC&ump ny. eta r\J] ( (),000 750000
Net (decrease) increase in cash :mdgalhcﬁg\: 52} ( Vt) tefA-B+0) (3,779,112) 3.020.454
Exchange loss \ 6.713) (65,680
) Cavh and cash equivalents at the heginning of the year L 8.620,787 3.666.013
\ Casheand c:isl:/u(]lli\':llcnls at the end of the year 30 7] 4,834,962 8.624. 787
N ra .
’\? Hi vt notes o Mﬁu'@dﬁ Gnegnd purt of these sinancuald swiements. o
. e < f
o a7 R & '
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- Bahria Town (Private) Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2021

I The Company and its operations:

i

Bahria Town (Private) Limited ("the Company™) was incorporated on January 14, 1997 under
the repealed Companics Ordinance. 1984 (repealed with the enactment of the Companics Act,
2017 on May 300 2017). The registered office of the Company is situated at Customer Support
Center. Bahria Complex. Phase 8. Bahria Town. Rawalpindi.

[he Company s mainly engaged in development of land for housing colonies, construction of
villus/houses, apartiment buildings/high vise buildings and exccution of projects through joint
verture agreements,

The Company is also engaged in purchase and sale of electricity w the dwellers of its housing
scheme. Necessary approvals has been obtained by the Company from The National Electric
Power Regulatory Authority (NEPRA) for the Rawalpindi/lslamabad (Safari Villas, Phase T io
VI & Garden City) whereas License for Lahore project 1s in process.

Geographical location of the Company's oflices for operational purposcs of the Company are as

under:
Rawalpindi/islamabad

- Customer Support Center. Bahria
Complex. Phase 8. Bahria Town
Rawalpindt.

- Corporate Otfiee. Phase-1l. Bahria
Fown, Rawalpindi.

- Garden  City,  Phase  VIL
Rawalpindi /Islamabad. ’

- 17-miles  Murree  expressway,
Near Phulgran. 1CT Islamabad.
- Phase [, Bahriz Lnelave. Kun

Road [slamabad

- Plot # 56N, scetor F7/G7. Jinnah
Avenue, Blue Area. islamabad.
L.ahore

- 3ahria Orchard.
Rarwind Road ahore.

Karachi

- 9-Km Toll Plaza Super 1lighway.
Bahria Town. Karachi.

- Plot # 172-C and 173-D. block-2.
PECHS, Main Tariq Road. Karachi.
Nawabshah

Ahmed & Shah Road.
shaheed Benazir Abad. Sindh.

WAVA

Purpose
Registered flead Office and Customers' Support
Center (Rawalpindi/ [slamabad Projects).

Corporate Otlice.

TESTED

Site Ottice.

Goll City. Conmpan ‘éecretary

BahriaFcwn (Pvy) Ltd.

Bahria Enclave Head Office.
Mall ot Istamabad.

Purpose

Site Oftice and Customers' Support Center
(Lahore Projects).

Puarpose

Karachi Site Office and Customers' Support
Cenler (Karachi Projects).

Bahria Town. Tower.

Purposc

Site OlTice.

- The Company is developing/ maintaining projects in the above mentioned geographical

5 locations,

ioos
P
RN



Bahria Town (Private) Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
[-or the year ended June 30, 2021

2 Ntatement of compliance and significant accounting estimates

2.1 Statement of compliance

Fhese lnancial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in
Paxistan comprise of:

- Intermationud Financial Reporting Standards (IIFRS standards) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (1ASB) as notified under the Companies Act. 201 7; and

- provisions of and divectives issued under the Companies Act. 2017,

Where provisions uf and direetives issued under the Companies Act. 2017 differ from the IFRS
standards. e provisions ol and directives issued under the Companics Act. 2017 have been
Vobosweed »

2.2 Basis of ipeusurement

Chese financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention using accrual
hasis ol accounting. excepl (or cash ow information.

Lav

Functional and presentation currency

IEY N
v

Fhese finuncial stawements wre presented in Pakistan Rupee (Rs. 7 Rupees) . which is the
Company’s functivnal currency. Amounts presented in the financial statements have been
rounded ofF o the pearest thousand of Rs. 7 Rupees. unless otherwise stated.

24 Those fnancial statements ace the separate nancial statements of the Company.,

(]
;Jl

Use of significant estimates and judgments

e prepuration of financial statements in confermily with approved accounting siandards
fequires management o make judgment. estimates and assumptions that effect the application off
policies und reported amounts of assets und Habilitics. income and expenses.

Fhe estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other
fuctors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. the results of which form the
basis of making judgment about carrying vilue of assets and linbilities that are not readily
anparent rom other sourees. Actual results may differ rom these estimaies.

Fhe estumates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
aeeounting esthimates arc recognivzed in twe period in which estimates are revised i the revision
citeets only that periad. or in the period of the revision and future periods it the revision effacts
hoth current and future periods.

the arcas where vartous assumptions and estimates are significant to the Company's tinancial
sittements or where judgments were exercised in application of accounting policies are as
Y PRI

~uselut Hves, residual values and depreeiation method of property. plant and equipment:

; ;gubnl cost:
an

useiul {ives. residual values and depreciation method of investmend prope

Impatrrient foss o non-finaneial assets othier thain inventories:

nrovision fee expeeted credit joss.

-provision for impairment ol inventoriesd stores and spirres: Com ahy retary
- eslimation of provisions: Bahria n{Pvy Ltd

estimation ol contingent lubilities: and

SUTTENE ICOIME WX SApense, provision for current tax and recognition of deferred tax asset.

A



Bahria Town (Private) Limited

Notes

to the Financial Statements

For the year ended June 30, 2021

3 STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS TO PUBLISHED APPROVED
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

3.1

32
DL

New / Revised Standards, Interpretations and Amendments
Fhe accounting policics adopted o the preparation of these financial statements are consistent
with those ol the previous tinancial year. except for new standards, interpretation and
amendments o following standards as described below:
RS 3 Business Combinations - Definition of a Business {amendments)
HRS7 & Financial mstruments - Amendments regurding pre-replacement issues in the
RS O context of the interest Rate Benchmark Retform (IBOR)
IAS T & Presentation of Financial Statements &  A\ccounting Policies, Changes in
IAS 8 Accounting Bstimates and  Errors: Definidon o Material, o clarify the
definition of material and its alignment with the definition used in the
Conceptual Framework (amendments)
RS 16 Covid-19-Refated Rent Coneessions (Amendment to [FRS 16)
RS 1O Cuovid-19-Related Rent Concessions bevond 30 June 2021 - Amendment to
IFRS 16
The adoption of the above standards, amendments and improvements 1o accounting standards
did not have any material ctteet on the itnancial statement.
Standards, Interpretations and amendments to approved accounting standards that are
nofl vet effective:
Fhe tollowing amendments 1o the approved accounting and reporting standards. applicable in
Pakistan. would be effective from the dates mentioned below against the respective standards
and interpretation have not been adopied carly by the Company:
Effective date
Standard or {annual periods
[nterpretation beginning on or
after)
INS 7T & Interest Rate Benchmark Retorm - Phase 2 -
SIAS Y Amendments to IFRS 90 TAS 39 RS 70 1FRS 4 and 01 January 2021
A
W RS 16




3ahria Town (Private) Limited

Notes to the Financtal Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2021

HRS A Business Combinations - The amendment updates a
reference in HFRS 3 to the Conceptual Framework for
.. . . . . . ] . ey YO
Finaneial Reporting withowt changing the accoymiing 01 January 2022

requireients {or business combinations.

TAS 1D Property. plant and cquipment - Amendment o clarity the
profibition on an entity [rom deducting {rom the cost of
Can item of property. plant and cquipment any procecds
irom selhng dems produced while bringing that asset to .
the location and condition necessary {or it o be capable 01 January 2022

of wperating in the manner intended by muiweement.

Instead. an entity recognizes the proceeds [rom sclling

such items, and the cost ol producing those iems, in

PAN 37 Provisions. Contingent Liabilitics and Contingent Assets
to specify which costs an entity needs to include when 01 January 2022
assessing whether a contraet is onerous or loss-making,

IAS Presentation of Financial Suiements 1o clarify how 1o .
o e e ] . 01 January 2023

classily debt and other liabilities as current or non- -

PAS Presentation ol Financial Statements 1o require that an
entity discloses tis material accounting policies. insicad ol
its significant accounting policies. Further amendments 01 January 2023
exnhain how an entity can identify @ material accounting
policy.

IAS 8 Accounting Policies. Changes in Accounting [istimates
and Prrors (Amendments) - Definition of Accounting
tstimates. Under the new delinition, accounting estimates 01 January 2023
are Tmonetary amounds in financial statements that are
subject 1o measurement uncertainty”

Consolidated  Financial  Statements & [nvestment in
RS 1D Associates and Joint Ventures - Sale or Contribution of
& TAN 28 Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Ventuie -- { Amendment)

Not yet finatized

fhe ubove new amendments to standards and interpretations are not expected (o have any
material impact on the Company s linancial statements in the peried of initial application.

[n addition o the above new standards and amendments o standard and interpretations. The
IASB has aiso issued the revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting (the
Conceptual Framework) in March 2018 which is elfective for annual periods beginning on or
alter January 01, 2020 Tor preparers of financial stalements who develop accounting policics
based on the Coneeptual Framework. The revised Conceptual Framework is not a standard. and
nane ol the coacepts override those in any standard or any requirements in a standard. The
purpose of the Conceptual Framework s to assist 1ASB it

developing standards, o help
TgEstandard in place and to

T Comban é‘/%)cretary
Bahria Town (Pvt) Ltk



Bahria Town (Private) Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2021

in addition e the above new standards and amendments o standard and  interpretations.
improvements o various accounting standards have also been issucd by the TASB in May 2020,
Such improvements are generally effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 01
January 2022, The Company expects that such improvements to the standards will not have any
material impact on the Company’s financial statements in the period ol initial application.

Further. the following new standards have been issued by IASB swhich are yet to be notified by
ihe Sceuritics and Lxchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) for the purpose ol applicability in
Pakistan.

RS | First time adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards

RS 17 insurance Contracts

'he Company expects that the adoption of the above revision. amendments and interpretation of
the standards will not aficet the Company’s [inancial statements in the period of initial
4 Nignificant accounting policies
i acineiple accounting policies which have adopted in the preparation of these accounts are as
4.1 Taxation

he tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognized in profit
or foss. except that a change atiributable to an item of income or expense recognized as other
cemprehensive income s also recognized direetly in other comprehensive income.

4.1.1 Current

Provision for current taxation is based on laxable income at the eurrent rates ol laxation
ailer considering rebates and tax credits available. ifany. The charge for the current tax
also includes adjustments where necessary. relating w prior years which arise from
assessments framed/tinalized during the vear.

4.1.2 Deferred

Defereed tax is provided by applying balance sheet fiability method for all temporary
differences at the date of statement of financial position between tax bases of assets and
Habilities and their carrying amounts {or financial reporting purposcs.

Deterred tax asset is recognized lor all deductible temporary diflerences and carry
forward of unuscd tax losses and tax credits. ifany. w the extent that it is probable that
wsable profits will be available against which such temporary ditferences and tax
losses/credits can be utilized. Deferred tas liabilities are recognized lor all major
taaabie wemporary differences.

The carrying ainount of delerred income fax assets is reviewed at cach reporting date
and reduced Lo the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred fncome w@x asset to be wtilized.
Unrecognized deferred income tax assets are reassessed at cach reporting date and
recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable prefit will allow
N deferred tax asser o be reeovered,
L
"'v{'.\tﬁ\,




Bahria Town (Private) Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
or the vear ended June 30, 2021

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are mceasured at the lax rates that are expected Lo
apply 10 the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled. based on tax
rates thut have been enacted or substantively enacted at the date of statement of
financial position. Deferred ax is charged or credited to the statement of profit or loss
for the period. except in the case of items credited or charged to equity in which case il
ts included in cquity or statement of comprehensive income. In this regard. the effects
o delerred taxation of the portion of mcome expeeted to be subject 1o final tax regime
is adjusted in accordance with the requirements of Accounting Technical Release - 27
ol The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (FCAP). 11 considered matertal.
4.2 Property, plant and equipment
Owned assets

Property. plant and cquipment are initially recognized at acquisition cost. including any ¢osts
dircetly attributable to bringing the assets w the location and condition necessary for it (o be
capable ol operating in the manner intended by the Company’™s management. Property, plant and
cquipment are subsequently  stated  at cost less accumulated  depreciation and  identified
impatrment fosses, ifany.

Land s not depreciated. Depreciation on other tixed assets is charged to the statement of profi
ar foss on the reducing balance miethad at the rates as spectfied in the relevant note the financial
statements. Normal repairs and maintenance ts charged o the statement of profit or loss as and
when incurred. whereas al major renewals and replacements are capitalized.

Depreciation on additions to property, plant and equipment except ivechold land is charged from
the month in which an asset is acquired or capitalized. while no depreciation is charged in the
month in which an asset is disposcd off.

FTie assets” residual values, usctul fives and depreciation methods are reviewed., and adjusted
prospectively if appropriate, i there is an indication of a signilicant change since the last
reportng date,

Anussets carrying amount s written down immediately 1o its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrving amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Crains or losses on disposal of property. plant and equipment are included in current vear's
statement of prohit or loss. Impairment loss and its reversal (if anyv) is also charged to the
stutement of profit or loss for the vear.

4.3 Investments

investments tn subsidiaries. associates and joint ventures are stated at cost less provisions for
impairment, if any.

the Company determines at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that the
mvestment 11 the subsidiaries. associates and joint ventures is impaired. 1 this is the case, the
Company cateutates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable
_amount of the subsidiary, associate. joint venture and its carrying vafue and recognizes the same
\ in the prolit or loss.
A,
’E: B
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Investment property

lnvestment property is the property held either to carn rental income or for capital appreciation
ar tor both, but not for sale in the ordinary course of business services or for administrative
purposes. Investment property is measured at cost on initial recognition and subsequently cost
bess accumudated  depreciations accumulated  impairment losses with any  change therein
recognized in stalement of profit or loss.

Cost of investment property includes expenditures that are directly atributable 1o the acquisition
ol the investment property. The cost of self-constructed investment property. includes the cost of
malerials and diveet fabour, any other costs directly auributable to bringing the investment
proverty © a working copdition for their intended use and capitalized borrowing costs.

Minor renewals/replacements/repairs and mainienance cost are charged to profit or loss as and
when incurred. Major renewals and replacement are vapitalized,

Any gamn or loss on disposal of an investment property (caleulated as the ditference between the
net proceeds from disposal and the carrving amount ol the iteny) is recognized in statement of
profit or loss.

Foreign currencey transhiations

Pransactions i foreign currency are translated 1o the functionad currency using exchange rate at
the date ol ransaction. Monetary assets and liabilitics denominated in foreign currency at the
repoiting date are wanslited to the functional curreney at exchanve rate at that date. Non-
morctary dsscts and liabilities denominated in foreign curreney that are measured at lair value
are lranslated o the functional currency ot exchange rate at the date that fair value was
dewrmined. Non-monciery asscts and labilitics denominated in foreign currency that are
measured ai hiswrical cost are wanslated w the functional curreney at exchange rate at the date
of trapsaction. Any gain or foss ansing on wansaction is recognized 1 profit or loss/ statement
Receivable from customers

Plots where physical possession hus been handed over aidd amount is partially recoverable is
treated ay receivable from customers. These are stated @t book value. Bebts considered bad are
provided tor or written ol and no general provision for the bad and doubtful debts is

vidvance from custonmiers

tnstallments reecived rom customers against atiotment ol plots has been considered as an
advance. 1 hese are recognized us revenue on the basis of completion of percentage of wark
done while advances where development work is vet 1o siart has been considered as long icrm
QAVIICES TOM CUsSIOmers.

Trade and other payables

frade aind oiher pavables are recognized hitiaily at Lar value asd subsequently measured at
amerdzed cost gsing the effective interest method. These are classified as current liabilities if
~ayment is due within one vear ar less (or in the normal operating cvele of the business i

S’?ecretary
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Revenue recognition
- Revenue from - sale of plots, houses. villas. apurtment buildings, commercial and
residential towers is recognized on the basis of completion of percentage of work done.
- Revenue from sale of electricity, rental income. profit on pls bank accounts and protfit
from Joint Venture Projects is recognized on accrual basis.
- Deduction from customers, plot transter fee, customer registration fee and surcharge on
late payment from customers is recognized on actual reccipts basis.

Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs diveetly auributable o the acquisition. construction or production of qualifying
assets, ifany. arce added to the cost ol those assets. untl such time as the asscts are substantially
ready lor their intended use or sale. Investment income carned on the temporary investment of
spectlic borrowings, i any, is deducted from the borrowing costs clicible for capitalization. All
other borrowing costs are recognized as expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Cash amd cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in statement of financial position at cost. For the purpose
ol cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash in hand, balance with banks
on current and saving accounts. cash deposit receipts and payorder in hand.

Inventory

Project land and project costs ineurred during the vear are classified as inventory. These arc
carried at the lower of cost or Net Realizable Value (NRV). Work-in-process comprises of plots,
houses. villas. apurtiment. buildings, commercial and residential towers in the process of
construction/ development. Cost in relation to work-in-process comprises of cost of dircet
malterials. labour and appropriate overheads. if any. Net realizable value signifies the estimated
scHing price in the ordinary course of business less cosls necessary to be incurred in order to
muake the sale.

Stores and spares have been valued at lower of net realizable value or average cost except for
iems i transit which are stated at cost.

Staff retirement benefits

The Company operates an onfunded gratuity scheme covering all permanent employees who
have compleled the minimum qualitving period. However, no provision has been carried in
these linancial statements sinee the Company has no permanent employee at its strength.
Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial labilitics are recognized when an entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments. A {inancial instrument is any contract that gives rise to

\ 4 financial asset ol one entity and a financial lability or equity instrument of another entity.,

A
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Financtal assets
Initiad recognition and measurement

Financial assets wre classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at
amortized cost, tair value through Other Comprehensive Income (QCL, and fuir value
through proitt or foss.

the classiiteation of financial assels at initial recognition depends on the financial

asset’s contractual cash flow characieristics and the Cempany’s business model ior

managing them. With the exception ol irade receivables that do not conlain a
significant linancing component or for which the Company has applicd the practical
expedient, the Company injtially measures a financiai asset at its fair value plus. in the
cuse of a financial asset not at fair value through protit or loss. transaction costs. rade
receivabies that do not contain a signiticant Onancing component or for which the
Company has applicd the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price
determined urder [FRS-13 as explained in relevant note Revenue from Contracts with

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortized cosi or fair
value through OCI it needs to give rise to cash Nows that are “Soiely Payments of
Principal and Interest (SPP1)" on the principal amount outstanding, This assessment is
relerred o as the SPPE test and is perforied at an instrument fevel.

Phe Company’s business model for managing lnancial assets refers to how it mandyges
its financial assets in order to gencrate cash flows. The business model determines
whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the
financial ussets, or both,

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time [rame
established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are
recognized on the trade date. i.e. the date that the Company commits o purchase or sc
the asset.

Subsequent measurement
f-or purposce of subsequent measurement, financial assets ave classified in four
- Finaneial assets at amortized cost (debt instruments?y:

gains and

- Financial assets at fair value through OCH with reeveling of cumulative g

fosses (deht instruments):

- Iinancial asscts designated at {air value throtgh OCT with no reeyeling of cumulative
sains and losses upon derecognition (ecquily instruments); or

- Financial assets at fair value through protit or loss.
Finuncial assets at amortized cost (debt instruments)

Fhe Company measures [nancial assets at amortized cost if both of the following
conditions are met;

The financial asset is held within a business modet with the objective to hold financial

nigLes,

w1 SFieipul amount vuistanding.
an-j vy
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Financial assets at amortized cost are subsequently measured using the IR method and
are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognized in proflit or loss when the
asset is derecognized. moditied or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through OCI (debt instruments)

The Company measures tinancial assets at fuir value throuch OCI if both ol the
following conditions are met:

The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective of both holding to
collect contractual cash Nows and selling, and

e contractual terms ot the Tinancial asset give rise on speeified dates to cash flows
that ure solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
For Jebt instruments at fair value through OCL terest income. loreign exchange
revaluation and impairment losses or reversals are recognized in the statement of profit
or loss and computed in the same manner as for fnancial assets measured at amortized
cost, The remaining fair value changes are recognized in OCH Upon derecognition. the
cumulative fair value change recognized in OCL s recycled to profit or loss.

Financial assets designated at fair value through QCI {(equity instraments)

Epon initial recognition, the Company can eleet to classity irrevocably its equity
investments as equily instruments designated at fair value through OCT when they meet
the definition of equity under 1AS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not
held for trading. The classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never reeyeled 1o profit or loss. Dividends
are recognized as other income in the statement of protit or loss when the right of
payment has been established. except when the Company benetits (rom such proceeds
as a4 recovery ol part of the cost of the financial assct. in which casc, such gains are
recorded in OCL Lquity instruments designated at fair value through OCI are not
subject o impairment assessment.

Based on business model of the Company. it clected 10 classify irrevocably its equity
investments under this category.

Finuncial asscts at fair valae throush profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss inciude lnancial assets held for
trading. financial assets designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit
or less, or financial assets mandatorily required to be measured at fair value. Financial
asscis are classified as held for trading if they are acquired lor the purpose of selling or
repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives. including sceparated embedded derivatives,
are also classtiied as held lor trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
mstrumenis. Financial assets with cash Tows that are net solely payments of prineipal
and interest are classified and measured at tair value through profit or loss, irrespective
ot the business model. Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments 1o be classitied
at amortized cost or at fair value through OCI, as deseribed above, debt instruments
may he designated at fair vilue througl p‘:

climtnutes. or signiificundy reduces. un lé&:ﬂ nti§

m initial recognition if doing so

3 misnjnch.
2?2 &
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Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the statement of
finuncial position at fair value with nct changes in fair value recognized in the
statement of prolit or loss.

Derceognition

A financial asset (or. where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of
similar financial asscts) is primarily derecognized (i.c.. removed [rom the Company’s
statement ol tinancial position) when:

i) The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired. or

i) ‘The Company has transterred its rights 1o receive cash lows (rom the asset or has

assumed an obligation 1 pay the received cash Nows in full without material delay w a
third party under a “pass-through’™ arrangement; and cither:

(a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset. or
(b) the Company has neither transterred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the assel. but has transterred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has
entered into a pass-through arrangement. it evaluates i, and to what extent. it has
retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the assct, nor transferred control of
the asset. the Company continues to recognize the transferred asset to the extent of its
continuing invoivement. In that case, the Compuany also recognizes an associated
Hability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that
reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transterred assct is
measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

Impaiirment of financial assets

The Company recognizes an ailowance lor Expected Credit Losses (ECLs) for all debt
instruments not held at lair value through protit or loss. ECLs are based on the
diffcrence between the contractual cash fHows due in accordance with the contract and
all the cash tlows that the Company expects to receive. discounted at an approximation
ol the original effective interest rate. The expected cash lows will include cash 1tows
from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral o the
contractual terms.

L s are recognized in two stages. FFor credit exposures for which there has not been
signilicant increase in credit risk since mitial recognition. ECLs are provided for credit
losses that result from default events that are possible within the next 12-months (a 12-
month LCL). For those credit exposures for which there has been a signilicant increase
in eredit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance iy required for credit losses

. expected over the remaining fife ol the exposure. irrespective ol the tuming of the
v\ detault (a hiletime LCL).

N
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lor trade receivables and centract asseis. the Company appries a simplitied approach in
calcutating ECEs. Theretore, the Company does not track changes in credit risk, but
nstcad recognives a loss allowanee based on lifietime ECLs at cach reporting date. The
Company bas established o provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss
eaperiencs, adiusted  for forsard-looking fuctors specilic to the debtors and the

CCOnOMIC Crvirotment.

For debt instruments at faie vatae through OCL the Company applics the fow eradit risk

simpliiication. At cach reporting date. the Company cvaluates whether the debt
strament is considered o have low credit risk using il reasonable and supportable

Cwiormation that is availabie without undue cost or effort. In making that evaluation. the

i
v

Company reassesses the intersal credit rating of the debt instrument. In addition, the
Company considers that there has been a signiticant incrcase in credit risk when
contractual payments are more than 30 davs past due.

Pne Company considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 30
days past due. However, in certain cases, the Company may also consider 4 financial
asset o be in default when internal or external information indicates that the Company
b unlikely 1o receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full betore taking into
account any credit enhancernents held by the Company. A financial asset is written off
when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash NMows.

Off-setting of financial assets and Llabilities
Finaacial assets and liabilites are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement
ot financtal positien when there is a legally enforecable right to offset the recognized
dmounts and there is an intention to settle either on a nel basis, or to realize the asset
and settle the Habitity simultancously.
Financial liabilities
[nitial recognition and measurement
Financial labilities are classified, at initial recognition. as financial liabilities at tair
value through profit ov loss, loans and borrowings. pavables. or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge. as appropriate,
A inancial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and. in the case of loans and
borrowings and payables. net ol divectly attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent measurement
vhe measurement of lnancial Habilities depends on their classilication. as described
below:
Fimancial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair vaiue through prefit or loss include {inancial abilities held
for trading and financial labilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss,
Financial liabilities are classiticd as hetd tor trading §f they are incurred for the purpose
ol repurchasing in the near term. E
AL e ’
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Gains or losses on liabilities held for wading are recognized in the statement of
comprehensive income. Financial Habilitics designated upon initial recognition at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the initial date of recognition, and only if
the eriteria in IFRS 9 are satisfied. The Company has not designated any financial
tiability as at fair value through profit or loss.

by Financial liabilities at amortized cost

Alter initial recognition. interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the Lffective Interest Rate (E1R) method.

Gains and losscs are recognivzed in statement of comprehensive income when the
habilitics are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process.

Amortized cost is culeulated by wking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization
is included as inance costs in the statement of comprehensive income.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
rosult of past events it is probable that a transfer of economic benelits will be required Lo settle
the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognized for future
operating losses. Provisions are measured at the present value ol the amount expected to be
required 1o sctile the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value ol money and the risks specilic to the obligation.

Countingent liability

Contingent liability is disclosed when:

- there 1s o possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be
contirmed only by the occurrence or non occurrenes of one or more uncertain future events not
whoily within the controt of the Company: or

- there is present obligation that arises from past events but it is not probable that an outflow of
resources embodying cconomie benefits will be required to settie the obligation or the amount of

the oblivation cannot be measured with sutficient refiability.

Y

Company /
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2021 2020
Note viereeenee. (Rupees in thousands) ...........
5 Share capital
Authorized share capital
[20.000.080 (20201 120,600.000) ordinary shares of
R 10y cach ‘ 1,200,000 1.200.000
Issued, subseribed and paid-up capital
22000000 (2620: 22.000.000) ordinary shares of
Ky, M- cach fully paid in cash 220,000 220.000
3.1 Reconciliation of issucd, subscribed and paid up capitat
2021 2026
Number of shares
21.000,000  22.000.000 At beginning of the year 220,000 220.000
- - fssucd during the year - -
22,000,000 22000000 Althe end of the year 220,000 220,000
¢ Advance from customenrs
Cusecured
Advaiee from custoniers 302,239,812 415,040,676
[oss: carrent portion 10 312,980,398 241,433,260
Nu-current portiion 6.1 189,259 414 173.607 410
6.1 1his represents advance received [rom customers including those projects where development
3 owork has yet fo start.
y

(.

~ e
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2021 2020
Note veeeemens (Rupees in thousands) ...........
Mfavable against Land
Securcd
Payable ta Hoenourable Suprente Court of Pukistan
Opening balance : 407,468,688 447 501.239
Add: Addition’ (adjustment) during the vear 7.2 & 23.1.1 (140,170,679) -
. 267,298,006 447.501.239
Poss: paid during the year 159.326 40.032.554
ot panvable ugainst land 207,138,680 407.468.68>
Least current portion 9 - 27.468.685
Nan-current portion 267,138,680 380.000.000
7.1 This represents the amount payable against land consequent to the order passed on March 21, 2019
oy Honourable Supreme Court ol Pakistan for implementation ot its judgment dated May 04, 2018
that was passed in CMA No. 376-K of 2014 in SMC No. 16 of 2011 in respect of Bahria Town
(Privater Limited, Karachi project (Company's Karachi project). In the mean time. the LHonourable
Supreme Court of Pakistan has accepted the Company's offer of Rs. 460 billion 1o acquire the
rights of the land measuring 16,896 Acres in 5 Dehs i.e. Deh Bothari, Deh Langhaji. Deh Konkar,
Deh Kharkharo and Dch Kathore. which are identified in site plan prepared and agreed upon by
SUPARCO, Survey of Pakistan and Representative of the Company and marked as "C". subject to
ihe following conditions:
ai The Company agreed to pay a sum of Rs. 460 billion within a period of seven years commencing
trom September 01, 2019 10 August 31, 2026:
o) The down payment of Rs. 235 billion (including the amount already deposited with the account
maintained by the Flounourable Supreme Court ol Pakistan and the payments admittedly made o
the Government of Sindh) will be paid on or before August 27, 2019;
¢y Remaming amount of Rs. 435 billion shall be paid as follows:
1= Firstly. in forty cight (48) monthly installments of Rs. 2.5 billion starting from September 01.
2019z and
i- thereatier the balance payments shall be made in thirty gix (36) equal monthly installments along
with 4 % mark-up charged annually w.e.t. September 01, 2023,
dr - dnevent o detault in repayment. Company shall be Hable to pay mark-up on any delault @ 10%

i

T

~

~ bheeome due and pavabic.,

per anpum. This shall be in addition 1o other penal consequences provided in the said order;
Fach monthly installment shall be paids settled in full by the 7th dav of cach month in advance:

0% of outstanding amount of Karachi project towards allotices as well as future sale proceeds.
cotlected or deposited shall be transterred 10 the designaled accounts already openced by the court.
Such an amount shall be utilized towards the down payment and installments mentioned above:

-

1
HE i .
r l} ) consecuttve installiments or three

;}j vhole balance amount shall
n (F.‘-\"t] Ltf}.

-
[ case of detault and faiture w deposit the down pu}'mc{")\'t'
mstaliments in total. shall constitute a default resulting. @
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Security:

Ry The seeurity tor payments will be propertics listed in paragraph 9 of CMA No.2232 of 2019,

wiich arc as follows:

i- Undisputed land owned by Karachi project which it gave in nullilied exchange; and

ii- Non-saleable Tand or built up property in Karachi including Theme Park, Danzoo. Rali Cricket
Stadiwm, Faumah School. Head office. Tospital. Stafl Colony. Cine Gold Cinema, Fire Station,
Quarantine Centre. Fiffel Tower, Grid Station. Bahria Dancing Fountain, Buttertly Mesh Touse.
Parks and Playgrounds. Restaurants. Pewrol Pumps, Service Stations, Slaughter House. SNG Plant,
STP. Water Reservorrs. Green Valley. Hotel, Substations, Corporate Office, Facilitation Centre.
Weighing Station:

Fhe said preperties cannot be encumbered, burdenced. mortgaged. varied. wransferred or sold by
Company without permission ol the Court.

N ihe past’ present directors/ sharcholders/ promotors of Bahria Town (Private) Limited (BTKi.)

sshalt furnish personal guarantees to the satisfaction of the Registrar of this court whereby they

shall be joimily and scverally fiable for any detault which may be committed by BTKL in terms of

this order.

Other terms and conditions:

Company's Karachi project is permitted o allot and otherwise deal with 16,896 acres, the property
m guestion. as a builder/ developer only.,

- On receipt of entire payment as mentioned above, leaschold rights in the property in question of
16896 acres may be transferred on lease by the government of Sindh and/ or the Malir
Development Authority to Company's Karachi project for a period ol 99 years.

Phe Company moved an application to the Hounourable Supreme Court of Pakistan (Honourable
Court) having CMA - No. 1234 of 2021 dated 24th Januwary 2021 secking amendment and
madification of” pavment schedule. as per Order dated 21st March 2019.

Further. the management worked out that total available land is 11.747.47 acres instead of 16.896
acres. Total payvable calculated by the Honourable Court was Rs. 460 billion based on total land of
[6.896 acres. Hence! value of per acre fand comes to be Rs. 27.225 mullion. Based on this. the
Management has worked out that total pavable against available land of 11.747.47 acres is Rs.
319766 billion (refer note 141308 & 23.1.1).

2021 2020
Note <eveeeeees (Rupees in thousands) ...........
¥ Long term security deposits
Neeurity deposits against rented property 8.1 269,912 206,681
269,912 ' 266.68]

8.1 This include the security deposits amounting 1o Rs. 25.006,000/- (2020: Rs. 13.000.000/-) received
from Escorts Investment Bank Limited - a velated party against rented land and buildings.

8.2 Bifurcation of secarity deposits
Total wiilizable amount 269,912 266,681

269,912 266.081

vmount utihsed durtng the vear

Cohmouni ket in separate hank aceona
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8.3 This represents security deposits received against rented land and building at the time of approving
rew sgrecments, inoterms ol section 217 of the Companies Act. 2017, As per terms of the
agreement. the Company hos a right w use these security deposits for the purpose of the company
and which shall be refundable at the time of expiry of agreement.

2021 2020
Note ceeeamenn (RRupees in theusands) ...

9 Current maturity of payable against land

Secured

Puyable to flonourable Supreine Couirt of Pakistan

Currert portion of pavable against land 7 ~ - 27.468.683
HY Corrent portion of advancee from customers

Cnsecared

Current poruen of advance from customers 0 & 10.1 312,980,398 241.433.266

1.1 Fhis represents advance reccived from customers against sale of plots. apartments and villas that
fits not s tur been recognized as income as per note 4.7 above.

i1 Nhort rerm financing

Lt frops hunking compuny- secured

Allied Bank Limited

Ruentnyr {inance 11.1 950,000 750,000
P Tiis represents short term running {inance facility obtained from Allied Bank [imited {1505
fotal amoent of runuing tacility amounts o Rs. 1.000.000.000/-. 1 carrics mark-up @ deposiy

-~

rate G735 (20200 deposit raie +0.75%). The loan 1s secured against cash collateral in shape ol lien
nver Company and its associates maintained with ABL with 5% margin (refer note 30.2).

12 Vrade and other payables

cmade creditors - contractos’ suppliers 8,114,111 8,791,869
Retention micney 682,501 703.670
Aceruest hiabiittics [2.1 1,260,227 1.030.437
Anrdilors remuneralion 20,000 14000
Due o related parties- unsecured 12.2 4,610.846 - 52364155

Litestvle Developmoent (SMO-Privare) Limited 12,3 92,141 -
Due wadlectios of projects 13,613,618 43,485,507
Ldvanee rent ftom wnants 74.801 12,613
Withiwokding tax pavable 235,221 1334533
Cithers 8,521 6094
28,711,987 60,486,147

12,1 aceruced Babilitiey

Stdi salarwes payable ATAK TRD 637,820 465,898
Ltiliues pavable N 377,112 531,236
o Othew Co g‘;cretaw 435,295 :":3?:)?
\/ - Bahri Wi {Pvt) Lid, 1,260,227 1.030.437
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2021 2020

Note rveeeenee (Rupees in thousands) ...
Duc to refated parties - unsecured
DB Joing Venture Project 12.2.1 3,976,440 5.331,230
Vieky Trading (Private) Limited 12,2.2 371,579 612,250
Guide Trading {Private) Linited 12.2.2 62,827 115.363
Fseorts Capital Timited 12.2.2 - 27.050
4,610,846 6.280.413
DB Joint Yenture Project:
Duc ({from) to DB joint venlure 2.633.277 4.460.8835
Vdd: accumulated share ol loss- net ,
Opening accumulated share ot loss- net 1,070,365 685211
i.oss recognised during the year 272.798 383,134
' 1,343,163 1.070.363
3.976.440 3,531,250

This represents the amount due 0 DB Joint Venwure Project. It is a tri-partite joint venture
agreemient between the Company. Detense Housing Authority (DHA} and [Habib Raliq (Private)
Eimited (HRL) where in the Company has to acquire land for the project. Under the agreement. the
Company with co-partner. HRI shall develop and market the project and protiv(loss) shall be.
shared e ratio ol 40:40:20 by the Company. DIA and HRL. respectively. The share of loss:
cqual to Rs. 272,798 million for the vear ended June 30, 2021 (2020: loss of Rs. 383.134 million)
from the joint venture project has been recoenized in these financial statements basced on
unaudited linancial statements of the joinl venture.

These represents advance obtained from related parties 1o meet the needs for working capital. The
amount s interest {ree and is repavable on demand.

Fhis represents amount payable 1o Lilestvle Development (SMC-Private) [imited against the
procuremient of Jand on behali of Bahria Town (Privale) Limiied.

13 Murk-up accrucd

y Mark-up payable on ranning finance lacility 2,777 4.590

\,.

/\“* —

AT

Comdany’; @jretar‘f
Bahria Te®n {Pvt) Ltd.
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cor the vear ended June 36, 2021
t4  Contingencivs and comnitments
4.5 Caatingenvies
Court/
Sro Derails of litigations . Date ?f Purties naine zulho‘n'ty If] Current status
institution which litigatinn
was filed
St Lr Dleclzegtion wnd pomanent junchors of - S-Aug- 17 Az Bibi vs Hahria Civil Court Pending for evidence by Asia Ribi.
R, 40 iy Town
Sooun G declaration wd permanemt inpunction of  1o-Dec-08  Khalid Jameel v Bahein Civil Coun Pending tor evidence by Khalid Jameel.
Re, 3000, Town
PooSun i declacdion and perminent injunciion of 3-8Sep-20 Mubanunad Abbas vi Crvil Coun Pending for final devision by Court.
e $I04 0 Baliias Town
L Mot Case, Spueatic 'erionmarce 2-8Sep-i3 “Jun Muhamngad vs Civil Cowrt Pending {or inal decision by Court.,
Buhria Town
St of Respondent and civil appeal forwrniten 15-Dec-14 Uahria Town vs Punjab Civil Coun Fending for urgumcm} on stay application.
I'rovines
co P apeatie Ponermignes 23dan-18 Riaz Akhtrvs Bahna  Iligh Court Pending for final adjudication.
Town
Hummak Tand swt for declaration and 2019 Bahria Town vs Roman Civil Coun Natice 1o defendant
purrnaaent injusvion of Ry, 100,000,000 Cathalic
s Mot Cuse Caeplunt under Consumer Proteetion nle Shuaib Ashial vs High Cuurt Pending )
Baiiria Town clc.
B Reawary o Danniges 2019 Baiwia Foundation vs | ltgi Court Pending for final sdijudication.
Hussain Global
Associates
T Ut weovery ol AN -Feh-M Kashif Aziz Civil Coar Court bas erdered for submission of writter
Paund Fawn I Performa Pany V' statement
e e e s fixed ton wrilten statemiesst Wascerm Manad
CboSmi tor declarating gnd permmnent mjunction  38-FeheTo Civil Coun Pablication m Rosnami sama for defendint No.
roganding RKiders Noo D276 Khawat No, 994 in }
whieh Halma Tewn deim that detendant are Amana
nsigiiing clectricity pol) case is pending for notives
osuit Ba decknation pantition apd permianent 3-Mar-20 ‘Rouch Civil Court Pending tor written argusnients on stay
mjunction renarding Khasra No. 1359 Khawat Mo, Vs application
B0 Monya Paud Bagwal land meusuning 6K-7™ Bahriz Tuwn
aews e wuse i Used o argumems dor stay
aaplivitiion
P dedaranon and permanent injunction ind 3-Mar-200 Raja Abdul Gades Civdd Cour Penaing fer evidence by Raja Abdui Qadeer.
sty TIK-OTM Measn Pind Bagw ol now the- Vs
vdse s stding for piaien Y evidene Bairia Jown
4 Bu s ennery of R 200,000 - cose i fixed Sor 3=Mar-200 Aotz Haider Civil Court arguments on applicution U/0 7 Rule 1!
APTNRETS On sEy Gppiicaion Vs
Bahria Tuwn
- 1o duclimaun sid pernsaent injenction 3Mar-200 Babria lown Civi! Court Lot by sumimoned defendant for appearance
2 Kinerw oo WARED V3740 3373 Mours Vs Berlore cnurt
RTTTLINT | TTWRIRTEETN nsitaed by the Baliia town s Ronan Kkt
R an Kinde S ditae 18 Dved dor argumend
T I A H T
oo Nt A dedlergbion penmaneni and  oumdaters Mar-20 Sheikh Khatig Civil Coun Pending for written arauments or sty
initinction recovery of R 104 37 SN regarding Mchmoad application,
piot regtsiranan Noo D 0872 Phase V1l now the 'S
cus s fixed tor subimussion of wotlen siucmeni Bahiia Town
wnder 20 ol arivtranon ot regarding 4-Mar-20 Hamid Nawvae Civil Coun Pencmy for written arguments -
e 37200 Kol and recovery of K. Vs maintnabeditv.
e the wise i Tar sulnisson Baliria jown
MOoSwet o deddamtion and pernnsnompenciar =Mar-2 Musen Parveen vl Court Ponding for wntten renly
havar No 4T Khatoont No 923
Mowsr MonliLhe now e case o (xed or TED

BERULRARVIN U THN
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Bahria Town (Private) Limited

Jotes 1o ithe Financial Statements
Cor the vear ended June 34, 2021
ta St B of  a0d 80160

mckent v the case

[RIGRTH

ARY  Show
fyr evidence of

IOy

freed

pE I ase

St Doy deciaraiion
20 et

suit or decluration
310 Lamd Cgse

sen oy derkuabon

2 banmd Caxen

i ol patitios

N
2 Tamd e
RITHa
Al
i

cetlation of Mty on

4-Mar 20

10-Jun-17

t3-Jui-14

12-Nuv-15

SMay- 15

T -7

2-0c1-20)

20-Jan-20

22 dun-16

“Absar Hussain

N

Muhammad Wagar Civil Court Dismissed
Vs !
ARY

Hanud Naway Civil Count Pending o
V. appiication.

Bapria Town
Nargis Bibi Vs, Baliria
Town

Civil Cotrr Pending for
‘ _apphication,
Muharamail lsimail Civil Count frewding for
LR

Bulirs Town

Civil Cowrt Court has s

Lamited for

Apwar ul Hag

Vs

Buhria Town
Irshand altah Khan Cinit Court

Va

Peneding tor

Rithria Town
Mubanunad Ashral Civil Count
Vs

Arshud Javed

befine viourt
Ciwil Court Pending for
v§ application.
Muhammad Sideem
Zareein Sobirab Civil Coun
Vs

Pending for
application,
Zaua Malik erc,

e e

n nop-prosceution.

writien argumenis un siay

WTitten arguroents on stay
evidence by Muhammad Fsmail.
1mongd Bahria Town {Pvi)
ppearance belbre courl.

videnee by trshad ultah Khap.

Court has su inmoncd defendant for appearance

yritten arguments on stay

»*rimm argunients On Stay

|

smert and the Corepany ~ lesal advisor. are of the view that the suteome of the above referred litigations are expucted 1 e favorable and a hability, if any,

St on the setierent of these e es v not hkely o e matenal, Ageordingly no provision has beer made in these figanciyt statergents in this regard,

Qe the Company oy deabog with o imporimt ises

LRS00 reluling o Bubeme Cakin Pac
Sand R MA A0 sclating to Bahria Golf
eonAs e provesdiops where by
Tudement of Honorable Suprome Court of Pakustan
popassed on 052G in CMASSSW2004

RO 2018

oy g

sl
proceedings SUP is comvidermg the profection of

respectively.  Im these

curd pany sighe m Badea Powa Rawalpindi
CPakbt aris and Gol? City Compaay s suppesed

e s ko of segtdarize s projects which mvolve

Vst bl However the nunagement and

e Lot advrsoe, are of the view thar at

e othe amotnt am et e rantiticd with

Wh brcgise procccdings are sub-
yadw Betore SO and no thael ardees Lave Been

Aaniet o thuse proccetdings The Company has
and Rs. 23 billum

enpettrociy tor seitioment that hun vel nos teen

v s 22 ialien

asvepted by the NOPL Hheielore, nu pravisson theee

aumnsl Bay been these  [tnanctal

provided i

NS (B

+-May-19

Honourable
Government Instition Supreme Court
af Pakistan

{alwia Town Vs

Provipee of Punjab cre,

Bahria Jown {Pvt) Ltd.

The case is pohding adjudication.




Bahria

Town (Private) Limited

votes to the Financial Statements
cJorihe vear ended June 30, 2021

1

sernmenl stitution tited interim reference

st il compuny and 19 other persons thiough
ity ChinrmarDirector  on 09012020 helbre
tilit Counts at Rawalpindi/lsiamabad as
wug referted by Honourable Supreme Court of
dostan vide order dated H7.01.202¢ in HRC No.
Mie-Goof M7 whete i the  Gavernment

Sccounta

taninion sas divected 1o inguive, investigate and
e the reference in cise cognizable alfences are
mais ot as per reconunendations af Y canigined
woihe Final iSynthesist Report. According o
weferones, the Compuny has stgned Joint Venure-
Awzeomient with Galuxy  Corstruction  (Private)
Paruted % construction ot bigh rise onilding
canely “Bahta Town feon Tower Project” on the

e

toand enorvached amenity  fund measuring
TUERE Ny Yamds ooul ol 17336 s vds. The
Carpany o facsestad an amount of Ry, 24388

Bihion orerer Note Nl T oas of repartig date.
Hiweover, the management wf the Company s

il 1 wdt conie of xid reference will be m
s favapr, therelure, no provision against this has

et inade in these financial statements.

tn omaved e appli

Huu

wrable  Supreme Court of  Pakistan
awonrable U

‘1 seeking defernient of
installment tee a peciod of W
aptember 2020 ander onier of

et dated 31032018, Th
pred e the Honourable Court vide s
S Dith Deoganloy

ont s o meaihl

W,
A4 of 2021 wus filed un 2ith
seeking  amendment and
it seheditle | as per Ovder

Db Mg owas filed on 1Ytk Febraary

to ke o aeeount adiustment of
Lens e contained 1o Order dated
. e telid Ll avallabie for use ta
anl s approsmsitely AT T Aeres
M Acres. e the said CMA the
seinent warked out that toral wwniahle Innd
s of E6,886 aeres. Tutal
; ired b the Supreme Court was R,
Bl based on totd Lowl of 1B, 896 aeres,

[HIEATORN L)

¢ avres inst

: lund cnapes by be fla
Based o i tins,  the
1 s worked out that total pavable
et avnplable dand of 11717 47 aeees 1w W

St tathion Keening m vicw thee land avadabie,

it o per ac

B

amean of pavable agamst dand as
neder dated 2103208 he
v, Aaather CM4 D 11
with the Court on this subject
wineht s pewhing adiudieation. Based on ihe

2l asivisar, the management
wtual Hablity 1o Re. 314756

> of

9-Jan-20

2020,
Fuliruary 04,
20121
&
Sanuvary 24,
Bilnd1

February UK,
2021
&
Juuary 24
2021

Babria Town Vs

CGovernmient Institution  Supreme Court

of Pakistan.
Malir Pevelopnnnt
Aurhor ity ete.

Rabru Town tPrivate;

ol Pakistan,
&alir Development
Authority ote.

Honourable

.ol Pakistan

wion fo Lhe December 16, Bahrin Town (Private? - Hounourshle
Limited Vs, Fouderation Supreme Courl

-l Pakistan

Hounourahle
Limitedl V., Federativn  Supreme Court
of Pukistan

The ease is pending adjudication.

Date in office

Date in aifice
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hovifies Jis

e 1ax lovwed cortain eapenses and
autd el Ry 109 260 million fin the tax

v 1320 af e lncome Tax
1 1o Rs.
The Con
before ITAY

wrealsy and the

baren red

liied  an

e desittowad cortaen eagenses and

Jeinided o Hao U230 aiinen f the tax
temi E250 of the

weth

e RaSENTS omiliken by CFF CAppealsy. The
p aserteved filed an appeal belere
the desisioin oider of CIT (Appeads)

pending pelere FUAT

; e b 203 of the
nunes: 2000 The Compeny has
betore 1he CTTAppealsy and she

o

matier s sow pending betore [TAT.

waf e 779145 million for the wax
PIX5A) of the ecome Tax
Al othat hast beent reduced o Ra
iy CTE oAppeais),

Campary
ab hefore FEaY
(Appealyy anid the
er iy inw paming helore [TAT

Bled wn apn

e

¢y ailhenities dllowad

TN GRpenses il
voeated deptand of Re. 10023 billion for the ax

wear 204 ws 12303A) ol the Inconwe Tax
Ordmance, 2000 ihwt has besn reduced o Rs.
U2 40 nulien by CIfiAppealsy. The Compuny
borig apgrieved  filed an appeai betore ITAT
anainat thedecisine onder of T (Appealsy and the

mane sy sow odivy betore FEAT

<l fi

e

sadlowed ventam expenses and
wl af R, BT,
220500 resd with see. 124 of the
tncome Tax (ramanee, 21 that iy

wl

w 205S

Bl tor the 1ax

5

s been reduced
e R 230002 audiien by CTT s Appeals), The
od filed an appeal beture

Cerere TTAT

and e et s stow pending

fhe tay

onties disallowed
ot Rs B

2238 at the mcomwe tax

sEan expenses ad

wreatesd dunne 255 vition Lo e tax

cedr 2o
Crdinence, 2HH tha bhas boen reduead 100 Rs.
0TI pltion by CIT iAppeals). The Company
ieved fiilled an appead before [TAT
n order of CT'T {Appeals) and the
matier s now pending,

heing

The iathorties QinaHowasg Cortan expenses and

sreatad densand of Rs. 1292 hidlion fur the tax year

Jhinoas |

read w 2S5t of the lnvome
L2001 That has been reduced o Ry,
vitbion semanded back.

ot Ordinane

Mol gt

Y

sk ot R, 190 08

The tax authories disailuved cortiin expensys ana

wa order of CFT {Anpealsh

F2-Jup-t7 Babria Town &
ioner Inland
Revenue (A

cals)

2-lan-15 0 Babrn Town (Privine)
Limted &
Commussiones Infand

Revenoe CApneals

2300017 Babao Lowa (Prvated
Limted &
Cuonnnissavner nfand
Revenue tAppeals)

14-Nov-i T Bahria Town [Privite}
Liniied &
Lommmssoner inland
Revenoe (Appreals)

2-Nov-ls Babwia Town (Private)
Limaed &
Commissioner Intacd
Revenue (Appeals)

22-hun-17  Bahrna Town (Private)
Limoed &
Commissioner [nlend
Revenue tAppeals)

b Nov 17 Babra Town &
Contmssioner [nlamd
Revenue (Appeals)

11-0c1-18  Babriz Town & Income Lurge Tux

Tax Ofitcer

Bahria 1

Ingome

Tncome Tax

appelate tribanal

eonwe Tas
Appellate
Fribunud

Iheome Tax
Appeliate
Trbunal

fncome Tax
Appeliate
Tribunal

ncwime Tax
Appellat:
Tribunal

eome Tax
Appellate
Fribunal

Appeil:
Tribunal

A¥LT
Citee (L TOH
[siamiabid

vt} Ltd.

Pending in Income Tax Appellate Tribunal

Pend:ig in inconte Tax Appellate Tribunai

Panading in Bweonge Tax Appeliate Tnbural

Pending in Incorge Tax Appellate Tribunal

Punding in Incode Tax Appellate Tribenm

Pending i Irewme Tax Appellate Tribunal

pending in Incorfe Tax Appellate Tribral

Pending with lniium\: Tax Depantment




Bahria Town (Private) Limited

votes to the Financial Statements
Jor the year ended June 30, 2021

M The Company has inadvertently filed amnesty on  $-Tul-20  ‘Bahria Town (l”r'i\"mc';“ -Large TAS:paycr ‘-Pcnding with lnu;m;:l‘.nxl')cpanmunl. '

hune 3, 2009 gnder Aascts Declaration Ordinance Limited & Large Office (LT,
AN 2019 declaring Tand and investment i Taxpayer Office (L.TOY, 'Islamabad
subsidiaries of Rs. 8.017 billion and Rs, 130.200 Islamabad

miilion respectively committing pavment of tax Rs.
425,719 milflion payuble uptil June 300 2020,
Because of non paytment ot tax, 1axy authorities
tssued aotice ws TG of the Invome Tax
Ordinance, 20001 which s pending il date.
Company has requested Federal Board of Revenue
{EBRY o reetify the mistake which has been
refused. Comnpany iy contesting the issue and
mapagernent is af the view that the issue will be
satthed with tes authorities

A The tax antherttios disallowed certain eapenses and  t=Nov-17 - Babiria Town & Income ‘Tax Pending in Income Tax Appellate Tribunat
created dematud of R 1,175.875 million dor the tax Commissioner nland  Appeilate
vaar 2006 wx 22(3AF of  the mcomwe tax Revenue tAppeals) Tribunal

Dadimice 2001 dt has been reduccd 1o Rs.
THL3T5 mullion by CT1 (Appeals). The Company
seing  aggrieved fifled an appeal before [TAT
sgainst the decision aeder of CIV iAppeals) and the
A mmabler m oew pending,

AT

N
Company é’éretary

Bahria {(Pvt) Ltd.



Bahria Town (Private) Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the vear ended June 30, 2021

The management of the Company is of the view that the outcome of these cases pending with authoritics
are expected o be mots favour and therefore no provision has been made in these [inancial stalements in

this regard,

14.2

4200

ta
i~

14,

14.2.3

Commitments

Letter of puarantee 1ssued by commercial Banks on behalf of the Company, nutstanding at the year

eid umounted o Rs. 123,986 million {2020: Rs. 38.280 mitlien].

Bank guarantoc amoeunting 0 Rs. 300.000 miliion (2020: nil) has been issued in favour ¢f
Peshawar Development Authority (PDA) by United Bank Limited on behalf of the Company.

Performance bonds amounting o Rs. L.818 billion (2020 Nil) in tavour of Dircctor (MP&1)
Rowualpindi Development Authority: Meropolitan Planning & “raffic Engineering Die by The
United Insurance Co. of Pakistan Limited on behall of the Company, These performance bonds are
counter guaranteed by Bahria Town (Private) Timited against the right of licn on property cither
movable or immovable or any other asset 1o recover the said amount by way of attaching ol the
property and ¢ or asscts through the court of law under the aforesaid performance guarantee in case
ol defauit. In addition w the aforementioned counter guarantee. collateral against earmarked;
allocated immiovable! ixed personal property upto 10% of the guarantee sum insured in favour of

3021 2020
Note civeenees {Rupees in thonsands) ...........
15 Property, plant and equipment
Operating iixed assets [5.1 11,296,938 Pi.145 398
S . pital work-in-progress 15.2 6.259,898 10,289 148

A~
Q_ -
\

17,556.856 21.434.740
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Bahria Town (Private) Limited

'

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2021

15.1.2 Gain‘tloss) on disposal ol asscts:

2

3

)
A

. . Accumulated , Sale . Mode of [Parficular of Relationship with
Particular Cost N L. why Gain/{L.0ss) o ! v
depreciation nrocecds dispesal {pur¢haser buyer
.................... {Rupees in thousands) covvveniinnnnas ;
Plunt and N ) . . M/S Agrico .
] " 2212 8.660 13.782 22442 8.6600 Ncgottation S{ < Independent party
Malners : Progucts .
oo . , < sucance
NMotor Yebiche 3.807 1.620 2283 4881 2.886 Laimn I'PL Insurance Ltd. Independent party
cle % ]
. e insurance .
Ltotor Veduele L0 1.377 21829 4.4006 1.612 '1“.‘ U rPI Insurance Lid. Independent party
chum :
. o . - .n _ losuranee
Vioter Vehicle 2,055 832 1.202 233 933 l:.l“ tr PP Insurance Lad. [ndependent party
clam :
. ) . . Josurance
Motor Veliele 23001 1.388 1412 2 800 1.543 1\‘“ ane P Insurance Lud. Independent party
claim '
. .. ‘ Insurance . f
WMot Vohike 2.20h L1380 1.020 2.200 1.326 l\'l nee I tnsurance Lid. Independent party
claim o
[RIETN _ N - . Lo ' .
' .02 1938 ANIRA 3.021 1938 Neoatiation Pakjvision Independent parts

e

N




Bahria Town (Private) Limited
Notes.to the Financial Statements
FFor the vear ended June 30, 2021

2021 2020
Note evrsreene {Rupees in thousands) ...........
15.2  Capital work in progress
Sherion Howel - Golf Clity 15.2.1 5,223,084 5,223,084
Buildings 15.2.2 1,036,814 2,142,333
Cirand Llotel - Bahria Springs, Rawalpind: 13.2.3 - 2232855
Girnd Station 15.2.4 - 690,898
6,259,898 10.289.148
12.2.7 Sheraton Hotel - Galf City
Omening balance 5,223,084 3177.007
S '.LlLlIU ‘ - 43,987
5,223,084 S.225.084
[ess: Transterred to property. plant and equipment - -
Closing as at June 3G, 15.2.1.1 5,223,084 3.223.084
15.2.2 Buildings
Opening balance 2,142,333 1943747
Adds Addnion 142,806 201,386
2,285,139 2142353
foss: Vransierred to property. plant and cquipment 1,248,325 -
Closing as al June 30. 15.2.2.2 1,036,814 21423523
13.2.3 Grand Hotel - Bahria Springs, Rawalpindi
Opening bulance 2,232,833 1078853
Adds Addimon 33,425 L. 153,900
2,266,258 2,232.833
T ess Sold during the year 2,266,258 -
Closing as at Junce 30, 15.2.3.3 - 2.232.833
1324 Grid Station
Vpering balanee 691,898 HUN.EYE
Adds Additon
690,898 £90.898
Leust Transferred to inventories 690,893 -
Closing as at June 30. 15.2.4.4 - 690.898
15.2.1.1 This represents cost ineurred on building of hotel in Goll Ciwy Project-Rawalpindi which 15 1n
process o U construction. '
[$.2.2.2 This renresents cost incurred on buildings of Hospital. Cinena and Customer Support center Phase

yH-Rawatpindi. (20200 buildings of customer support center Phase-VIH- Rawalpindi. corpuorate
office Enelave Project- Islamabuad and Maintenanee Complex-Karachi) which are n process of
construction.
15.2.3.3 Phis represenied cost incurred on construction of Gpand otel - Spring North, Bahria Town. Phase
A Rowalpindi whieh was i nrocess ot ::unsﬂ e 'i'@"ma«.r. during the year the grey structure

s said building was sold out By the Company, (,JN
I )
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15.2.4.4 This represented cost incurred on construcetion ol Grid Station in Rawalpindi which was in process

ol construction. During the vear the Grid Station construction is completed and transferred o

development cost.

2021 2020
Note veeeeeee (Rupeces in thousands) ...........
16 Investment property
Al cost
Land - rented out 16.1 32,000 32.000
Fand and buildings - rented oul 16.2 22,977,621 23.606,379
23,009,621 23.638.579
{6.1  Land - rented out
Opening batance 32,000 32.000
Additions during the year - -
bossodisposa made during the vear - -
Closing halance 32,000 32.000
16o.1.1  this represents Tollowing luand:
| 2021 2020
l Sr. no. Location (Rupces in (Rupees in
i thousands) thousands) :
| E Rawalpindi!/ Ishunabad [ 32,000 ] { 32,000 J‘
2021 2020
Note eeeeeeees (Rupees in thousands) ...........
16.2  Land and buildings - rented out
Cost
Opening balunce 25,034,046 25034046
whditions during the year Nol.214 -
Laesst disposal made during the vear - -
Closing balance 23,595,260 23.034.046
Less: Accumulated depreciation and impairment
Opening balance £0 1,427,667 110,672
\dd: depreciauon for the vear N Tt'a} 1,189,972 1.316.995
Fosst disposal made during the N - -
Closing balance . Fecreta™ 2,617,639 1 427,667
. of : I3 . ~ )
Carrying value as at June 3,5 - gown (Pvi) L9 22,977,621 23.606.379
R ahna :
Depreciation rate 1% 10%
16.2.1  ihis represents following land and buildings:
H‘\n ll,nc:niun I Land I Building l Total
............... (Rupees in thousands ..
g ; Karuehi LL3NTA03 11,773,689 33,161,062
X 2 Ranuipindi” Islamabuacd J23.9356 1477177 1801133
3 L adhore 42064 591.001 635003
Total 11,753,423 13,841,837 25,395,260




Bahria Town (Private) Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
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This represents frechold land and building located at Karuchi. Tahore and Rawalpindi/ Islamabad
owned by the Company. This property is not oceupied by the Company and is held for capital
appreciation and carming rental income. The Company carries this investment property under cost
model as its fair vatue cannot be reliably determined as there is no active market for this property
and @ recent comparable transaction for identical property s also wnoet availabie. Further, the
application of valuation techniques 1s not supposed Lo provide a reliable measure of fair value.

16.3  Amounts recognised in statement of profit or loss

Rental inconie

he rentad income o orespect of ihis property amounting to Rs. 622,356,128/~ (2020: Rs.
308.818.775/-) hus been recognivzed in profit or loss and included in “other incomic”.

Depreciation

Duepreciation amounting Rso 1189972356/ on this property is caleulated using reducing batance

qarcthod o allocate the cest less accumulated depreciation over its estimated useful tife. The
depreciation on investment property measurcd al cost is chareed 1o adminmistrative and general

CAPETIECS,
2021 2020
Note e eveereenes (RUpees in thousands) ...
17 fong term investments
Subsidiaries companics- at cost S

Bscorts nvestment Bank Limited {quoted) 17.1 392,140 8O 140

Fseorts Capitad Fimded (un gquoted) 17.2 - -
Classic Pnierainment (Private) Liuntted 17.3 110,000 110,000
Ralt Propeniies (Private) Limited - 17.4 _ 10,000 10,0430
Parudine Read Bstate (Private) Limited 17.5 10,004 10,000
Vicky Urading {Private) Himited i7.6 100 0
Gunde Tradme (Privatey Limited 17.7 100 100
1,022,340 1.022.540
17.1 - ihe Company's sharcholding in Escorts Investment Bank Limited (VIBU) s 87.96% (2020

$7.90%) equivalent to 119279077 shares {20200 119.279.077).

- Aot the reporting date shares of BIBLL were quoted in Pakistan Stock Exchange Limiwed us o
R 1009 {20200 Rs. 7.830% The valae of Cy

e B . \"
as diselosed i is auditea financial st lAlh pantl
(2029 Rs. BO8.OT3 273/-).

pivesunent on the basis of net assets of Hi
rvehr ended June SO, 2021 was Rs, 738433 U‘<

N
%J retary

P-\:'{} Ld.

L B4

ary

:-J
[

~Eseurts Capital Limited (un quofe@f™

ahra e e
Invesiment Ba 175,004 175004
L.ess: provision for impalirment 17.2.1 175,004 175004
1721 Provision for impairment
Uipening badance 175,004 -
Poovision made Juring ihe yvear 36 - V75,004

Closing balunee 173,004 173,000

ol e




Bahria Town (Private) Limited

Noles to the Financial Statements
f-or the vear ended June 30, 2021

- BCL has incurred loss before 1w of amount Rs. 16.82 million (2020: Rs. 31.22 million) for the
vear ended 30 June 2021, and its accumulated losses amount te Rs. 316.42 million (2020: Rs.
299,52 mithion) as at reporting date. The trading terminal of ECL 18 suspended since 10 October
2016, Moreoser. during the year, ECL has surrendered the Trading Right Entitlement Certificate
(1 RECY of Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited.

Based on above facts, the management of the Company has reassessed the amount ol subsidiary as
at the reporting date and based on its assessment the above provision has been made during the

Ve,

17.2.2 - the Company's sharcholding in Bscorts Capnal Limited (FCL) was 100% (equivalent to
pan} & | q
F7.001.000 shares) (2020: 17.301.000 shares) having nominal valuce o' Rs. 175,001,000 along with
300 siares having nominal value of Rs. 3.000 in the name ol following petsons:

Name No. of Shares Value {Rupees)
Mulhammad Rasheed Alam 100 1.000
Sved Moosa Rarza 100 1.000
Mohanmimad Munir 100 1.000

- As o the reporting date, the value of Company's investment on the basis of negative net assets ol
PO as disciosed inoits unaudited Tinaneial statements for vear ended June 30, 2021 is Ra.
TRAVOI8E- 2024 Re. 73.327.754-)

(7.3 - [he Commany's sharcholding in Classic Entertainment (Private) Limited (CEL) 100% (cquivalent
i FLO0G.004 shares) huving nominal value of Rs. 110,000,000 in the name of following persons.
Name No. of Shares Value (Rupees)

Wagas Riffat 5.500.000 55,000,000

Waseem Riftat 330,000 535.000.000

- As of the reporting date. the value of Company's investment on the basis of net assets of CEL as
disclosed mois un-audited financial statements tor vear ended June 30, 2021 wus Rs. 56.120.074/-
(20200 Rs. R, 27.922.173:-).

P74 - The Company's sharcholding in Rafi Properties (Private) Limited (RPL) 100% (equivalent to
H30.000 shares) has ing nominal value of Rs. 109,000,000 in the name of following persons.
Name No. of Shares Value (Rupees)
Waseem Riltat 50.000 3.000.000
Malik Riaz Hussain 50.000 5.000.000
- As of the reporting date, the value of Company's investment on the basis of net assets ol RPI. as
diselesed in s audited financial statements for year ended June 300 2021 was Rs. 1.908,840,277.-
P2020: Rs. 1418915875/,
17.5 “he Compuany's sharcholding i Pge 1EQ;tmc {Privatey Limited (PRE) 100% (equivalent

w0 10D.0UY shares) having noninal valu 10000000 in the name of following persons.

Name yjreta"" No. of Shares Yalue (Rupees)
. - . . e v .

Malik Riaz Huss@@MF ‘ (&Vﬂ Ltd. 50.000 3.000.600

Waseem Riltag Bannia 7= 50,000 5.000.000

s i the reporting date. the value ol Company's invesunent on the basis of net assets of PRI as
aisciosed in s audited fnanelal statements tor year ended June 30, 2021 was Rs. 1.946.761.875/-
Sob M P AN 0000y



Bahria Town (Private) Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
tor the yvear ended June 30, 2021

170 - The Company's sharcholding in Vicky Trading (Private) Limited (VL) 100% {equivalent w0
1000 shares) having nominal value of Rs. 100,000 in the name ot tollowing persons.

Name No. of Shares Yalue (Rupees)

IFarhat Hlussain 300 50,000

Waseem Ridfat 300 30.000

- As ol the reporting date, the value of Company's investment on the basis of net assets of V1. as
disclosed in its audited Nnancial statements for vear ended June 30. 2021 was Rs. 847,134,555/~
(2020: Rs. 687.256.6897-).

17.7 - The Company’s sharcholding in Guide Trading {Private) Limited (G'TL) 100% (cquivalent to
L0006 shares) having noninal value of Rs. 100,000 in the name ol foilowing persons.

Name _ No. of Shares Yalue (Rupees)

tarhat 1ussain 300 50.000

Wascem Rifiat 500 50.000

- As ol the reporting date, the value of Company's investment on the basis ol net assets of GTL as
disclosed in its audited financial statements lor vear ended June 30, 2021 was Rs. 144661291~
(20200 Rs, 194 785.636/-).

. al
i Related parties Date of incorporation Registered address 1
! i
Lscorts Investment Bank May 1501995 Alfalah Building. Lst ¥Floor. Secter B.
famited Bahria Town. Lahore,
scorts Capital imited June 03,2008 Alfalah Building, 1st Floor, Sector 3.
Bahria Town. Moehlanwal 1.ahore.
Classic Bntertainment May 24, 2006 Ollice No. 1. Old Head Oltice. Phase-i,
(Private) Limited Rahria Town. Rawalpindi.
Rafi Properties (Private) August 24, 2017 louse No. 4, Sircet No. 90, Scctor G-6/3.
fimited Islamabad.
Paradise Real Estate August 23, 2017 House No. 4, Street No. 99, Scctor G-6/3.
tPrivate) Limited Islamabad.
Vieky {rading (Private) Julv 24, 2013 House No. 168, Street No. Y. Baluia
Pamited Town, Phasc-1i. Rawalpindi.
Gurde Trading (Private) July 29,2013 Touse No. 168, Street No. 9. Bahria
Fimited Town. Phase-{1, Rawalpindi.
2021 2020
Note veeeeenee (Rupees in thousands) ...........

14 f.one term loans and other receivables

Refated purties - at amortized cost

Jseorts lovestment Bank Limited - unsceured i8.1 - -
Vseorts Capital Limited - unsecured 18.2 - ) -
Others - at amortized cost
. Recenable irom N Associates and 18.3 ‘
Y ibders (Private Linioed : 1,161,820 -
oo Bundersirrnvales :
ghwders tPrvale) eaamile ,L\T ’:'_§ .E,D

1,161.820 -




Bahria Town (Private) Limited

Notes 1o

the Financial Statements

For the yvear ended June 30, 2021

18.1

8.2

1831

Escorts Investment Bank

This subordinated loan paid to subsidiary Company, Escorts Investment Bank Limited (1:IBL) tor
mecting Minimum Equity Requirement (MER) was unsecured and receivable on demand atter
expiry of minimum tenure ol 24 months upto January 30. 2020. {t carried mark-up at the rate of 3-
month KIBOR as on date ot reeeipt of {oan.

Phe maximum amaeunt due as ot the end of any month during the year was Rs. Nil (2020: Rs. 630
mitlions.

Fhe loan had been scttled during ther previous year against issunace of ordernery shares ol 1134,
as retered inthe now 1701

2021 2020
Note veeeeennnns (Rupees in thousands) ...
Fscorts Capital Limited
Principal amount 200,000 189,128
Addr amortization of foan during the vear 37 - 10.872
240,000 200,004
besst classitied as short term 25 2610,004) 200,000

Piis cepresents onseeured and interest free sub-ordinate loan to subsidiary company Fiscoris
Capttal Limited provided on Juruary 51, 2018, The loan amount was receivable in a single tranche
atter bwenty four 24 months from the daie of agreement. which period should have boen
atomatically extended for an additional twenty four (24) months, in case repayment of the
principal portion of loan would not be expressly demanded by the lender in writing. However. the
foan has been classified as repayable on demand from February 01, 2020 onwards.

e maximum amount due as at the end of any month during the year was Rs. 200 million {2021
Rs. 200 million).

Regeivahie from NI Associades and Builders (Private) Limited -

Original outstanding balanee 18.3.1 3,000,000 . -
Pose: Bitfeot ol discounting 35 468.973 -
PFrosent value oi the recervable 2,331,025 -
Adad: Unwinding of discount, 37 146,333 -
Laows: ropanyviment during the year 1,001,100 -
1,676,258 -
o Cuarrent portion of  fong term
recervithle shown ander cuvrent assets 24 314,438 -
1,161,820 -

This represents the amount reeeivable trom NK Associztes and Builders (Prvale) Limited against
thix sale ot Grand Hotel.

/écretaf'{

;‘\‘D\‘gt‘} Ltd .
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2021 2020
Note cvevenns (Rupees in thousands) ...........
19 l.ong term projects

Buhria feon projecet. Karachi 19.1 20,801,948 26,506,018
Madt of fsfamabad. 1slamabad 19.2 4,641,535 4,7225.69¢
Pahrii Opal 225, Karachi 19.3 2,787,516 2779911
AbRehma Project. Lahare 19.4 7,124,112 6.957.951
Bahrid §loshang Pearl. Karachi 19.5 1,627,971 1,614,546
42,983,082 42,084,125

19.1 the Company exceuted joint venture agreement with Galaxy Construction (Private) Limied o
construct sinty two story complex "Bahria Teon Project, Karachi” (BIP - Karachi) consisting ol
effices and commercial facilitics on plot owned and in possession of Galaxy Construction
(Privatey Limited. "The scope and responstbilities of both parties are as [olows:

- Cratasy Constraction (Private) Timited is the owner of plot bearing Survey No. 05 and 06, Sheet
No. CFA-3 with additional land and alignment land. siwuated in the Clifton Quarters. Karachi
measuring 17336 square yvards:
- the Company shall assume the responsibility to carry out alt financtal investments for success/ul
completion, management and marketing of the project:

The Company s entitled 1o tirst recover 1t investment from the surpius available in the project

sfter mecting all the expenses and atter completion of the project;

- Partners shall share the protiv(loss) determined after meceting all the expenses in the rauo of

....
o
1B

The Company made investment of Rs.1.014 billion in purchase of land located at Plot No. 56 N
sttuated in Sector F7/G7. Jinnah Avenue, Blue Arca, Islamabad measuring 5120 square yards i
the name of Vicksy Prading {Private) Timited vide agreement executed between the parties or the
nurposes to construct thirty Tour story building namely "Mall of Islamabad” consisting of shoppin

u

ir

mall. corporate offices and services aparuments, The scope and responsibilities of cach party are as
foltows;

The Company shall have Hrst lien and hold the physical possession of this plot;

- The Company shall be sole responsible to invest in the construction of mall and supervise the
project Gl its commpletion whereas Vieky Trading (Privater Limited shall assume the responsibiiity
o the marketingsale of project against management fee equal to one pereent el net profit alwer
completion of the project.

19.3 e Company executed joint venlure agreement with Zardari Group (Private) Limited to construct
hotel. shops, residential Haws and offices with the name and stvle "Bahria Opal 225, Karachi”. The
scope and responsibilities of both partics are as lollows:

cardwr Group (Private) Limited is the owner of plot bearing NO. 225, I-1 Lines, Karacii
measuring 6,813 74 sq. yds. valuing Rs. 3.407 bitlion.

Fhe Company shall assume the responsibility o carry out all financial investments for successiui
completion. management and marketing ot the project;

- “the Company is entitled to {irst recover its investufcyt v the surplus available i the pruject
- L
oeaeaers shadl share the proiiv’Coss ) determined alter oA bdatatPenses in the ratio of 56030
\ % D‘v'*\‘; L'\d-
1

PR L 2
gahria 1OV '



Bahria Town (Private) Limited
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For the year ended June 30, 2021

194 The Company exeeuied joint ventwre agreement with Al-Rehmat Metal Works (Private) Linvied
(ARMW) Tor development of real estate project. The scope and responsibilities of both parties ars
as follows:

- ARMW is the sole owner in possession of land measuring 663 Kanals and 18.5 Marlas in Kot
Lakhpat, Tehsil Canut, Lalore.

- The parties agree that ARMW shali remain the owner of projeet land and the Comipany undertake
o nvest in the development work and exereise all other rights,

- Project master plan will be prepared b\ the Company in accordance with the ap')llcab faws,
ARMW shall apply for and obtain all necessary approvals and consent of the project master plan
and viher aspects of the project trom concerned bodies/authoritics/departments with the support
and ussistance of the Company:

- The project will be marketed and promoted by the Company under the name and sivle of 7 Al-
Rehmat Project”. Atl terms and conditions of saie. silotment, retund, cancellation, re-sale of the
Project shiall be such as may be preseribed by the Company.

- The cost of development and deplovment of infrastructure for the project shall be part of the
araject cost and will be pavable by ARMW 10 the Company.

¢

- Pavtes further agrees that ARMW shall pay 3% of the gross nroceeds of the projeet sale o
marketing fee i Company’s consideration ol allowing use of its brand-name/intellcctual property.

WA The Company executed joint verture agreement with Kingerele Associates (Privare) Limited
comstruct thirty lour storey complex "Bahria Hoshang Poarl Project, Karachi” consisting
restdential ats. ofices and commercial Tacilities on plot owned and in po‘;‘xussion of Kingerers
Associates (Private) Limited. The scope and responsibilities ol both the parties are as follows:

Kingerete Associates (Privatey Limited is the owner of plot bearing No. 22/4 CL-9, situated in
the Civie Line Quarters. Karnchi measoring 3121 square vards:
- he Company shall assume the responsibifity to carry out all financial investments for suceessia

completion ol the projecte project management and murketing ol the project:

the Company is entitled to st recover its uvesunent from the surplas available in the projouet
after meeting ali the expenses and after campletion ol the project: and

- ihe Comprny und Kingerewe Associates (Frivate) Limited shali share the profivtoss) Jetennined
abter meering afl the expenses in the ratio ol 90: 10 respectively.

2021 2020
Note veeerneeen (Rupees in thousands) ...,
21 feng tevm seeurity deposits
Lono ter security deposits
-0 cleetricity supply companies - 20,1 ‘ 130,798 134, 758
-t Howalpindt Developmoent Aathority (R1DDA) 202 160,000 100060
' ' - 230,798 ‘ 230,798

2.1 This ‘me sents the seeurity dep osited Tor cleetricity connecuons as bulk supplier with [zhore

Ficcuic Sunply Company (LESCO). islomabyd Llectric Supply Company (HESCOY and K-Flectric.

20,2 hisx reprosents scourity deposits pui@ir
oot iav out plan,

Wyt
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Notes (o the Financial Statements
tor the year ended June 30, 2021

2021

2020

Note .. (Rupees in thousands) ...........
20 Loanzrerm certificates of deposit
’x.:c:"lil.'lcu.h: ol deposits ' 21.1 - l0.0-OO
- 10.000

20 hiese have been availed for a term ol 3 years commencing (rom 13 May 2019.

Thesc certificates

ot deposits have been issued by subsidiary company "Escorts Invesument Bank Limited (GIBL)”
urder profitand loss sharing scheme under which profit or loss will be caleulated by the consultant
of IBL payable annually. The same has been settled during the vear.

12 Dreferred tuyx asset-net
Oneing balanee

Movenent during the year

Closing bulance

22,4 Phe balanee of delerred tax is in respect ol the following major temporary ditferences:

Tuxuble temporary difference
Property. plant and equipment
imvestment property

Deductible temporary differences
f.ong termy imvestment

Foun and advances

Poused tax eredits

Unuhsorbed tax fosses

3,040,564 154514
685,621 2.886,050
3,726.185 3.040.564
(398,941) (666,133
(713,895) (794.962)
28,624 50,751
58,000 58.000
2,055,546 1.351.637
2,896,851 3.041 271
3,726,185 3.040.564

[
(]
et

aned 2027

Minimum wx eredits amoeunting Rs. 790,700,608/~ Rs, 229.226.563/- , Rs. 33
705908804 - shall expire in tax yvear 2023, 2024, 2025 and 2026.

5. 2.627 882813/, Ry, 6.843.292.351/- and Rs 317.967.017:- shall expire in tax vear 2024,

1.709.922/- and Rs,
Linused tax losses amount

ng

2026

323 dhereis no change in the corporate meome tax rate lor the vear 2021, So. delerred tax assets and

haintities on temporary differences are measured at 29%.

23 {aventories

Bahriae Town Projects Development Custs

272,305,643

$9,393,158

406.423.934
86,503,800

and cost 23.1
e cinpment cost 132
Total project development cost incurved to date A

371,698,801

492,727,754

Balrin Town Tower, Karachi' - Project Developinent Costs
Fand cosi 233

Pevelopoient cost

‘.\ Sy . .
\ Total project development costincurred to date B

Tapb

209,000 209,000
1,667,000 1,903,513
1,276,000 2,012,515

372,974,801 494.840.269

~

écrg*ary
Bahna Bwn (PYy pid.
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Notes to the Financial Statements - |
For the vear ended June 30, 2021 |
2021 " 2020
Note .o (Rupecs in thousands) ...
23.1  Luand cost {
Projects land ' 23.1.1 271,618,34( 403.730.651
Fand of Lake View Mol 23.1.2 687,303 687,303
272,305,043 406,423,954
23LE Projects innd
Opening balanee 403,736,631 361,263,008
Adids addition during the vear ) 12,206,656 32,176,679
boss: adjusument during the year 7 140,170,679 -
277,772,628 413,439,687
f.oss: charged to the statement of
nrefit or loss 32 0,154,288 7,703,036
271,618,340 403,736.65 1

23.1.2 “vae Company purchased the Motel located at Plot No. 3. Club Road. [$tamabad consisting land
Larca of 18 Kanal, The building ol the Motel has been demealished.
! e
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PELS dhis i ineludes fand held i the nanie of following

ndividuaisipartics:

Land

Marla

Cuost of acquisition
{Rupees in
thousands)

1

Locality

i H
Sy ; »,
N } Party Name
; 3 Kanal
I,

P Trading (Private) Limited 7.299
co D Gude Veading (Private) Limied 6.2
L5 Woues Ritfa , 3003

1 Wastem Riltat 2473
& NMuhimmat Awais 2314
& Shapid Mchmaoaod 13.533
L7 Faisal Sarwar 10308
5 dmran D Hag 2308
LU Rafi "rt':p:"!i(:-s (Privawe) Limited 34
Poia v Bhoty h i
‘ P Kingercie Associales (Private) 9N
% Vinmted
P12 N Bhald ) -394
o 13 Avam Bhaui ' 2y
‘ P Az Bhaid 3110
Do Defease Housing Authorin 1.280)
IR
Co et e Development (SMC- 074
Privatey omited _
St
i 2,312
i Avam Bhaw 342
FOIR Wagas Rilta 2750
DU Laran Liag Khan 2.658
Coo Aahammad Acam Bhott 196
; 20 Shahie Mehmood T2
( 22 Guide Urading (Priviaie) Limdied 3839
| 22 Vicky Prading (Privatej 1imited 232
! 230 Avan Bl 472
U250 Az Bhad _ [0
© 26 Avam Bhaid 32
P27 Priaon Developers 205
PR Ratt Propertics { Privane) Limited It
l 20 Avus Bhon J8
n M ragereie Fann House 160
Post o RInuerete Associates (Private} 5.70%
* fimired '
i 220 Garde Trading (Privawe) Limged 450
i 330 Azam 2l 93
E S Avaum Bt 189
3T Azan ithata 73
D oho Ay Bhai £03
EoAY .\':u:m:‘:}m;ul Asviis 13,840
L3 Awais Buiiders EH
Pt Aaeen 40
‘ oo Gunde Yrading (Privatey Limined 33

e R T 2
A

Tt e —
PP N R N

—_— s D X

14

v
h hed

s
tn

I W L

g8

4,684,910
+.481.020
10,709,208
274,444
272.638
2,004,524
1,.509.122
1.262.882
43,620
49.577
314,500

148,950

40,267
200.897
399,141

723,800

1,316,302
1.071.438
95,236
1.144.860
623,022
130.000
7.300
350,728
70.506G
56.676
12,168
43,638
16,687
l() 600
75230

|f). 20
564,370

497,932
3.575
10.400
2714
7.136

1.000.000

6.766

Rawalpindi/Lahare
Rawalpindi/i.ahore |
Ditterent Cities
Karachi -
Karachi '
Karachi
Karachi
l.ahore
Lahore
Lahore

{.ahore

Difterent Citics
Lahore
Rawalpindi |

Rawalpindi

Pashawar

Sheikhupar:
Rawalpind:

{.ahore

Multan

Faisalabad

Nawalbshub
Jabba Baoud 7
KPK

Chak Nisata KPK




Bahria Town (Private) Limited
. Notes to the Financial Statements
For the vear ended June 30, 2021

f T
“a . i‘ ' L.and Cost of acquisition
I oy g ‘ i cality
L Ng, | Party Name . (Rupces in Locality
P 1{ Kanal | Marla| Sq. 01 thousands)
{‘,. I T
% 2 .r}/.:nn Bl 160 - - 5.764 Moughalki
I Shabab Axzhar 2 - - 1.788 i L
-‘ . Nowshera, KPK
b Muhammad Ashlag } - - 3.97é
IS Avam Bhawi 187 - - 9,814 Papeen, Rawalpindi
to Wagas a»;if‘x111 4 - - 164,871 Islamtabad
CdT L Coll Ry Akhtar Saced 9 - - 21,900
DN vuhaumad Lgbal 395 - - 51,632
B Weagus Riltat 1.033 [s A 310,244
S Hoswan (Private)y Limied 3058 - GO 3335.069
ST Avzam Bhato 36 16 . 8,302 I’
320N Amir KRN N 24 20.791 !
35 Farsal-e-Inam 2 4 3 399
S Muhaminad Awais )6 [y 40 90.362
c3 0 sarfras Ahmed Khan 20 14 - 1.838
e .\'I‘d.!lj:.l .lmkh'm' ._ o 17-E 17 43 .64.633 BTPL JV Project
ST Caarde rading (Private) Timited N 18 |7 104,890 ' ;
SEFRasdan Nawa/ | 3 - 1.560 !
S Hussain Bakhsh 34 i - 1,624 :
ofh - HNyjeeh Haroon 4 18 - 336
Poob o Sharmd Melimoeod RRE 8 7 27.316
L 62 Sheikh Ali Rehman 370 - 51 72.119
’ 63 Lisman Nawye Khobkhar 137 7 ) 60.731
04 Sulcmnan Antad 13 . 12 - 1,368
s Sh;}'rm,l.v Haxsan Khan | 10 - 134
oo Hosan 136 - - 257,804 '
1 o7 Usman Naway Khokhar 9 - - 18.133 Enclave, Islamabad ;
, h.?\' ]‘i Lnsin G]o"na? (Private) Limited b.ah‘?"l - - 143.]21 Murree (Golf City),
Eoob o Azam Bhatt a6 - - 86.579
o= s g - . ‘ ) Islamabad &
T8 Avzam Bhaui 431 - - 24710 Abbottabad !
i TH Cubde Trading (Private) { imited 142 - - 109,100 o
¢ 720 King Creie Associale 623 - - 316,456
e Absan Hashmi HO0 - - 2:4.200
Db Baisal Server w2 - - 3.899
f7s 0 Muhammad [yvas 169 - - 74.692
1 76 Shahab Hussain 7 - - 715 Various Mouzas of
C T sulmany Ahmed g - - 20,017 ISB/RWP
| TR Vieky Trading {Private) Limited 103 - - 60,668
L Te o Wagas Riftat 201 - - 42,953
;} S0 veam Bhaty i - - 6,321
LSt Zubida Begum 19 - - 604
D82 Avam Bhatti 400) - - 3,750 Bahawalpur
D83 Moagus Rithn 128 - - 147,665 Agochs Society
LR Ghulam Mustata 152 - - 239,560 Istamabad
5 Totul 141,519 495 1,524 42,158,938




Bahria Town (Private) Limited

Notesto the Financial Statements
IFor the vear ended June 30, 2021

2021
Note

2020

. (Rupeces in thousands) ...........

132 Development cost
Opening balance 86,363,800 51.165,516
Addition during the yeor 37,593,917 42.836,934
123,897,717 94.002.450
Pesst charged o the staterent of
DO T 1088 32 24,504,559 7.698 630
99,393,158 36,303,800
235 s represents cost of Plot No. 172-C & 172-1, Block 2. PECHS, Maiv Tarlq Road. Karachi

measuring 2400 sq. yds. purchased oy tae construction ol twenty four storey complex conststing

af shopping mall corporate oftices. serviced upurtments namely "Bahria Town Tower Karachi”.
chis plot is inothe nne of Muhammad Awais §/0 Abdul Ranim. one of the employee of tie

Company. that shall be transterred i the name ol the company in due course of time.

Trade and ather reecivabies

Conslidered good

Receivabie rom customers ‘ 241 - 585 w04
Recorvable rom Lahore Ring Road Auathoriny 24.2 1,591,088 1.891.088
Caerend partion ol toang form eegeivabie from NE
Lesociales and Builders  Privatey Limited 14,3 514,438 -
' ' _ 2,403,526 2476992
240 This represented the muount reeeivable from customers against the sale of plots/vijlas.

(3%
dea
(3]

This represents the amount incurred at cost by Bahrda Town (Privae) Limited which is receivanle

fromg Lahore Ring Read Authority. Lahore against compensation of 1,434 Kanal and 14 Marias
and acquired by Authority under Land Acquisition Act. 1894 for the construction of Lahore Ring

Lowd Project Seutiiern Loop (51-UD (Phasce ).
23 Loun and advasnees

Unsecnred anmd considered good

Phis ropresents i advances toragainst
Dlund 25.1 127,796,667 86,128 542
Suppiicrs and conracions 14.302,149 15, )94 147
St aLainst expensgs : 863,241 05813
Lotier of cradit 13,732 -
facorts Cantidd Limted 15,2 - _ -
Nttt ugamst salary ' 43,291 42,0358
Due fam director 25.3 - 31150
Other recoivables 3,514,675 4,421,564
. 146,333,755 106.523.074
250 Tadvances avainst purchase of land
Paradise Real 1ouate (Private) Timited 28,562,968 24757 Aul
Rafl Propertics (Privates Limiled TED 30,318,287 22,726,043
noiihers N (';8 915,412 38.034.85 4
Yo ) ™~ 127,796,667 86.128.362

)

sheretary

oyt Lid
oW A Y



Bahria Town (Private) Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the vear ended June 30, 2021

2021 020
Note eerecener. (Rupees in thousands) ...........

- The maximum amount due as at the end of any month during the yvear was as follows:

Paradise Real Pstate (Private) Limited 29,951,407 34,443 474
Rali Properties (Private) Limited 38,283,331 32.832.260
152 Eseorts Capital Limited
Current portion of toan - 200,600 200.000
ess: provision For doubtful dels 15.2.1 200,000 200,000
25.2.1 Provision for deubtful debt
Upening baiance 204,000 -
Provision made during the vear 36 - 200,000
Ulosing balance 200,000 200,000
Duc 10 the reasons as referred in note 17.2. the management of the Company has reassessed the
recoverable amount of the loan as at reporting date and considered it doubdul. Conscquently.
provasion for doubtful debtis recognised.,
25,3 This represented the net running account of the dircetor - Malik Riaz [Hussain of the Company.

s s interest free and 18 repayable on demand.

- The maximum amount due as at the end of any month during the year was Rs. 31.149.741/-
U200 314974004

26 Deposus and prepaymenis

Deposity
Seetrity deposits (— 171,658 140.256
P margin | 123,987 38281
205,645 198.537
Prepavimenty
Runt 12,374 5.249 |
Frsurancs - 6,00 5
12,374 9,233
308,019 207,790
27 Pue from related parties
Paradize Amusement & Fntertainment (Private) Limited 1,267,457 1.329.23¢
hoingerete Asseclates Private) Limied ' 622,285 603,723
Claselc Entertainment (Povate) Linuted 603,226 580.370
SAN Modiu (Privatedy imied 1,068,087 869,097
Becwn Akt Rukhsana Memorial Wellare Trust 2,935,249 J.116.826
PParsinne Hotels and Resorts (Private) Limited 35,292 14,215
Seudhern Networks Tamited 191,217 183.008
Ania Noswes Network 251,358 249,128
Wihiie Water Hosphialivy (Private; Limited e - 20.256
et ©apriad Liminted i Eﬁ 15,366 -
t v 6.989.507 6.965.80Y
Com g/cr:-ta."‘j
nahria Town (P Lic



Bahria Town (Private) Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
o the vear ended June 30, 2021

27.0  The maximum aggregate amount outstanding at any time during the year calculated by reference to

month cnd balances of related partics is as:

i
!
I
! Name of Related party : ) 2021 2020

i

... (Rupees in thousaads).....

Haradise /\musuncm & l nluldml rent (I’mum.) l»m}_lml -, ' | V 1,26,,457 EE ’;79 6 :
‘I\1.15919}_L".."‘\E_b_c?;;,.llp (l’mulc_) [ nnm.d o b (;22,285 ! 906,89 t %
"”"Iass‘ic l:nlcnaimmm (an.m:) lm.lﬁl_:]_l_l}'_giw - 37 w:m :(16'3,226_}*___”_ 580,370 ‘,
SAN Media (Private) Limited Ll a6DBSS | 869.097 *
Bewum \l\hl.u Ruklmma \«h.mmml W L“\.II'\. lum 1 C2,324,03 7.463.5 /9
Purklane tlmLI\ &1 Ru,urlx (PII\JIC‘ L umlui o ﬁ 7. ' I_II.S'ES' 862 ’71
nmlhm T\Lmorksl I!I]Il(,d o _ o ﬁ‘_jw - 1oL460 7 - 193957 \
Asin N ‘-\\3 .\u,m ml\ (ANN) (Prive aie) I n}l@\l ) S ! 231388 24‘).11_’:{_.:
(Wh ite Water Ilospnalm (Private) L. mmul i 1 i 20266 20306
i!zhuuﬂ. G ujll_d_l__l_.l__n_l_;_l_@___ e ! 15,366, -

4
~-3
te

Fhese represent amount reeeivable from related parties against expenses incurred by the Company
ait behalt ol these parties. The entire amount is interest {ree and is repayable on demand.

2021 2029
Note wreeeeees (Rupees in thousands) ...
¥ Avdhvancee tax due from Government
Advancee tax due from Government : 724,876 547,969
Less: nrovision [or laxation 39 703,909 351710
20,967 16,259
29 Short term investments
sermn deposit reeeipts - TDRs 1,660,000 -

290 This include investments in local currency TDRs amounting o Rs. 1[160.000,000/-. These
investments are due w mature within a month. The TDRs carry mark up as per declared monthiy
rates per moenth pavable in arrears.

b
N
()
—
2
Z
jant
C.
..
=
=
~
=
=
P
3
-

4,22 local currency TDRs amounting o Rs. 300.000,000/- held as margin
against vuaraniee issucd by the United Bank Limited in favour ol Peshawar Development
Authority (PDA) for Market Survey. These are 1o mature within next 12 months. These TDRs

& carny mark up as per declared monthly rates per month pavable in arrears.

fﬁ\\tj—/




Bahria Town (Private) Limited

Notes o the Financial Statements
For the vear ended June 3 , 2021

i~d

2021
Note
30 Cash and hank halances

Caslyin hand 0,674
Cush xiupnsit receipts/puy order in hand -
Cushoat banks
LHITCNRE Aecuunts
- Pak Rupee ‘ ' - 3,565,554
- vergien Curreney '

2024

e {RuUpees in thousands) ...

14.778
214,703

7256823

Fauro s F 14,069
LSS ‘ 67384
[ N ’l 16,748

13,843

TN
PR §

b6.5¢4!

98,201
PLS gecounts

- Pak rupee 1,164,537

33.941

1,100,340

4,831,962

8.620.757

3.t Uhe PLS account carries interest @ ranging from 2.73 %5 e 3.5% per annum (20201 4.2% 10 3.3%

Pl

t

3.2 s includes Rs, 1.000,000.000:- which is under lien as explained in note 11,1,

HL3 O Cashand cash cquivalents included inthe siatement ol cash Bows comprise the foilowing:

i

Cashoand bark balances

4,834,962

2 Nades

Aeveitue trom real estate 31.1
ol clectrietty 31.2

36,094,340
6,057,274

Revenne from sale

_ 862 f‘:73'?

12,365,440
5.092,77¢6

42,151,614

3.1 Hevenwe from real estite

{irassy rovenue

36,130,348
36,008

! boais Berns iyam wvpLetpgra
DTNSDONHCS AN O m2I'VICCS

17438175

V240602
‘-:J (7 R

36,094,340

12,365, 44%

312 Revenue from sade of electricity
Liross revenue

rab sales N (GS'D)

7,061.524
1,004,250

Posstaene

{43

(W
D
LA
"IC

0,057,27:4

865.753
N

5.002.726

32 Oast of sales

fand ol 64542858
24,504,559
9.127.120

817,333

Cost of development
st ol sade o eleetricity

Lgpreciation

7,703,036
7.698.630
7233316
045, 2

40,603,502

23601240

=23 V.
Ba,iraa Town (Fvi -




- Bahria Town (Private) Limited
" Notes to the Financial Statements
For the vear ended June 30, 2021

2021 2020
Note vrevoenen (Rupees in thousands) ...
33 General and administrative expenses
Sttt saluries and benefits 2,579,293 2214263
Acroplanehelicapter lease rentals/operating expenses 385,785 639.213
Donations 33.1 058,324 173,166
fegal and prolessional charges 226,721 488.824
l)nu_tm.\ remuncration 132,000 132.000
Yehiele running and maintenance 204,515 199,573
Hrvelhme and convevaneg 39,687 60,293
Flecironty, gus ansd water 60,262 38,352
Printing and stationery 20,510 22918
Felephone und internet 69,051 70,000
Rent rates and tases 43,736 31,642
Potertienent 34,874 30.464
Kopair and maintenance 35,110 35296
Misceltancous 17,351 17,754
Pastaze aod courder 14,609 14,2355
Aaditor's rumuneration 332 20,000 9.600
fmpairient foss on property, plant and cquipent 16,747 -
Bisuranive : 7,406 4,639
ews paper and pertodicals 467 420
Drepreciativg on property. plant and equipment 15.1.1 690,893 729,909
Pepreciation on investment property 16.2 1,189,972 1,.316.695
6,443,519 6.249.286

331 Danations

Donations are being paid to Begum -'\kl'nan' Rukhsana Memorial Wellare Trust, Safari Villas Thwh
Court Road. Chaklala Scheme UL Car Chowk Rawalpindi. The Trust is registered by the sub-
Kegistrar, Rawalpindi having registration No. 1386, The director of the Company Malik Rias
Hussatn is also Trustee of the Begum Akhtar Rukhsana Memorial Welfare Trust,

332 Auditer's remuneration
vadit e 20,000 9.000
Out ef pocket expense - -
20,000 9000

- -

Non-audil services

20,000 9.000

34 Sclling and distribution expenses
Advertisement 128,731 116,671
S emmission 516,526 316025

N | 643,251 432.696




Bahria Town (Private) Limited

Notes 1o the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2021

2021 2020
MNote veveenen (Rurpees in thousands) ...,
35 Finance cost
faterest on bank short term running finance 45,305 33261
Harn charoes 9,791 f.O77
Amortization - Presem \aluu adjusunent 18.3 468,975 -

324,071 - 39935

36 OUther eliirges

Pxchange Joss 6,713 H3,080
Doy ision for mm(-“ menl on in .‘..blll'l“nl 17.2.1 - : 173004
Proseten tor deubtiul deit 25.2.1 - 200,080

0,713 440,684

57 Onher inconme

irom nen-finansial asset

Hocerd mamtenanee!’ ransler fucilitation charges 1,822,975 i 102,751
Dosign fee ' 254,139 234630
Kenal meome , 627,402 : J08.Es
Droducion fom Sustomers 19967 A3
Siseebisncous 11,410 8,0
\..um cianey charges 25,972 23 964
Bisuraree elabn 18,407 -
ntorest ticume on un-winding i8.3 145,333 _—
Gain on sade of property. plant and equipment ' 754,104 2563
Factiation charges 3. 60,000 20060
Freom financiad assel:
inteiesl on deposits with substdiary companies 17.2 1,492,206 2.724.204
Haterest on pls accouni 170,128 33,944
Amortization of long wer loan 18.2 - 10572
_ 5,403,043 4655 519
270 Ths foliowing represents Tecilitation charges received from associated Companies, The break up
15 s todlows:
Paradize RKeai Bstate (Private) Limned 20,000 36000
Kt Properties (Private) Limited 30,0040 RHAHNA
Vicky Trading (Private) Limited - 30084
Guide Tradimg (Private) Limited - S5.UG0
60,000 120000
37.2 ihis includes shure of interest curned on TDRs™ and bank balance., crediied by associated

sompanics al ihe rate mwentioned against cach company. These Yunds were deposited by the
coanpaites out of the unutilized funds received wgainst purchase of land. The breek up ol taierest
acerued is as oHows: '

Proadise Read dstue (r’a' at) Daeviied (h3% 701,909 FASE 340
WRait Propertios (Private) Dimiied (43%0 791,297 L.285.602

i
1, ,-.‘.()6 - 2,724.00%
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Bahria Toewn (Private) Limited

Notces 1o the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2021

358 Loss from Joint Venture Projects

Note eeeee
39 Taxation
Curreat vear -
- Mindrman tax on turnover : 28
221

Soeterred was
Due te ellect of rate change
ue to temporwy ditterences

This represeats loss incurred in DBIH joint venture project (refer note 12.2.1).

2021 2020
{(Rupeces in thousands) ..........

703,909 S % S v AT)

(2.886.050)

(685,621)
5,500 .
23,788 (2.554.340)

Prior vear

Reconcilintion of tax cxpense and product of accounting profit multiplied by the applicable tax

39
rate and numerical reconciliation between the average ax rate und the applieable tax rate is not

provided due o the applicability of minimum turnover Lax.




. Bahria Town (Private) Limited

- T
B . ° . 8 i
Notes to the Financial Statements |
S , ~ - ~ 7 “
For the yvear ended June 30, 2021
4 Finaucial instruments by category
Cor T ‘__'l N T 2020 T
| |
: Deserption ‘ ot Amortived {ost ] EVITL I Total Anortized Cost FVIPL | Tatal
: B B I ;
! ol Rupees in thansandsi o, ve v d REDELS i0 thousands)..
Fheciad aven
FUMTEHY A e e e
24 S Liesss - 2,405,525 470,992 .
p 3557 900 - 35379660 Pl 7R -
26 9504 - 295,644 158 337 -
27 6,959,305 - 0,989,505 ERGRR -
30 3670420 - 1,670,426 TR2AT -
n ) [BIEREY - L6337 [N ISR - 23
pu] F ot ULHE - 1,606,000 - - -
Maturits atter anee anm afe Leir
Sy ashenys hearing ‘
L wIneni: 1? £022.340 1,022,340 A2 |
Gy depuans k1 230,798 - 230,798 230,798
2 - . - 1000 : . HoLan
21990,741 - 20,996,741 28020075 - 220067
[ T ¢ T T -
Beseription ‘ Noty Amartized Cont FYTPL Total Amortized Cost FVTPL rfatal
cornne (RUDCES B0 thOUsENAS). .o L URupees in thousatdy )
vinanetsd LLbiliics
Reconntz ol
Matyrity gyt eng el
Ne# ek -up hoaring
Ponabiie Gt sl 9 - - - 27468583 - 27468583
Auvanee ITeat custores [[U 312980398 - 312,980.398 2HLRE 200 - 2452250
1 1 ur pavables 12 28.393.443 - 28.393,443 EHRIRRN 1 . 60313983
Mok e Lecnied 13 2777 - aan 430 - R

Merh-up hearng

AT R A IO N Y il F20.0060 - 450,000 TE Utk - TILLOG

Matarny alter mure Ui one yeas
Neat wriarheapy hearing

P ileniet s 7 I89.259 415 - 189,230,418

AR Y ey

6507 15 -

" [ 267.138.67% - 267138679 WL L0 -
[ il A pnas 5 U9 Y12 . 29912 2nbAdi . 260,68
TOR.994.624 - TI8904.624 [FERIUIES - 383844958

FEffective interest rates

2021 2020

Finaneial liabilities

 Shert corm neacimy Deposit rate (3%) Deposit rate (3%)
1

¥ e plus 0.75 pereent plus 0.7 percenl

.




Bahria Town (Private) Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements

tor the v

ear ended June 30, 2021

41 Financial instruments and related disclosures

411

412

wi nuetwite because of chanees o foreign exchange rates.

Financial risk managemoent objective
the Company™s activiies expose it 1o certain (inanciai risks. Such financial risks cianate from
various factors that include. but not fimited 0, market risk, credit risk and liguidity risk. The
Bourd of ihrcetors has overall respensibility lor the estanlishment and oversight of the Company's
sk management framework., Uhe Board is responsible tor developing

M and monitoring the
LumpamyTs risk management nolicies.

Risks measured and managed by the Company are
cxphined below: ' ‘
Viarket risk
N T S PR e il 10 Taie [hetee o P TS | - : Traneial inelr N S
vhirket risk s the risk that the Gor value of iuiare cash ows of the Anancial instrument wil!

Huciuaie due W changes 1 market vanables such as interest rate and foreign exchange rites,

} Currency risk

Forcign currencey risk is the risk that the Tarr value or future cash flows of a finuncial instrument

G The Company docs not bave any
forcien currency assets o liabilities exeept Joreien curreney bank secounts baving closing balance
s R O8201 0007 (20200 23 G- as at reporting, date.

e Compuny in maimhy cxposed o US dollar, Bure and UK Pound o As at June 30, 2621 i

20 Aol
slostan runee weekened! strengthion by 1% against US dollar, twro or UK Pound with ail athe:
variables held constant, toss 20200 toss) before taxation [or the vear would have been lower
PO dowery b s, Q82011 (26200 Ry, 339441574,

By thther price risk

Other price riskeis the risk that the faiv vatue or tuture cash Hows [rom a financizl instrument will
Nuctuate due te changes in markel prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk ar
curreney tisk). whether those changes are caused by factors spectiic o the individual finanaa
pistrumient or it tesuer. o factors aflecting all similar Nnanctal instraments taded e the marke

Foe Companty s net exposed to this risk,

i Interest raie risk

interest T mark-up rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest / mark-up rates witl

pitoct the value of financial instruments. At the ‘.‘CpO!‘li!’.g dater the interest rate probile of the
Compamy's interest-beartng Hnancial instruments are

202 2020
Naote veeieennen (Rupees in thousands) ..o

Fived rate instrurments
Finuncial ussess
Fincncial Hiahilivies

Yarviable rate instrunients Co l:TO‘*
. .-1-\:'
Fistuncial axsery Ba

Fong temn certiticiie ot deposils 21 -
SCash and bank balunoes 30 i, 16,537
Financiai linbilities 7
= Short wrin borrowings il 930,000 736000
s lark-up acerued ' 13 2771 _ 4,344
R

15



Bahria Town (Priimte) Limited

Notes to the Financial Sll‘atemenls
For the vear ended June 30, 2021

$1.3

M interest rate had been 1% higher 7 lower with all other variables held constant, loss / proii
betore taxation for the year would have been higher / ower by Rs. 2.117.605/- (Junce 30, 2020 Rs.
3.359.5006/4-).

Credit risk

Credit visk represents the accounting loss that would be reeognised at the reporting date if counter
pariies fail o perform as contracted. The carrying amounts of financial assets represent the

maximum credit exposure,

- ‘The muximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is as follows:

2021 2020
Note oo {(Rupees in thousands) ...,
Maturity upto one year
Nou-nwwrk hearing
{rade and other recetvables 24 2,405,525 2.476.4992
I oun and advances 25 3,557,966 4.494 7572
Deposits 26 295.644 | 198,537
Duc from related parties 27 6,989,503 0,965,800
Cash and bank balunces 30 3,670,426 7.520.247
Nan-muark bearing
Cush and bank balances 36 1,164,537 IOD. 340
Maturity upto more than one year
Now-mark hearing
Long term investments 17 1,022,340 1.022.340
Long term security deposits 20 . 230,7%8 230.798%
Non-mark bearing
fong term cerlificate of deposits 21 - 10.000

N 19336.741 74020075

N




Bahria Town (Private) Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

o1 the vear ended June 30, 2021

2021 2020
Note e (Rupeces in thousands) ...,

- the hank balances along with credit ratings are tabulated below:

Credit rating

Long term Shortterm

AAA A-t+ 439,976 239205
CAAA A-I 1,374,945 3.450.013
AAA A1+ ' 78,462 ‘ 66.604
AAT A1 387,748 1.787.833
AAAS A=t : 36,614 174,034
AAA A-l+ 4.340 EREY,
AAA A1+ 1,951,488 1870221
AAA A-1+ 28,786 S 212.887
AA A-1+ E ' 13,431 55061
AA+ A1+ 9,916 33.378
A A1 53,977 32,791
AAT A-l4- 20,309 736
AAF A-1+ 1,792 3,053
A A-1 159,130 187723
A- A2 2,247 P34
AA A-T- - : 90
At A-1 1,096 107.307
AA- A+ 15,136 3430
BBB- A3 12,460 42460
AA- A-1+ 4,440 24 360
4,828,293 8.391.303

- The age analysis of loan and advances. deposits and other receivables at reporting date is s
fotloawvy:

Foess thao S0 days 1,951,105 PSSO
H-Gi g ' 3,946,891 2.3502.64:
Gl-i80 divs 7,119,298 3.850.654
151565 days 23,383,467 14.665.875
Above 365 days 2,538,520 £6,725,903

i
148.939,281 109.000.066
Coneceniration of eredit risk o

Copeentrition ol eredit risk exists when changes in economic and industry {actors simitarly-aiteet
the group ol counter parties whose apgregated eredit exposure is significant in relation to. the
Company’s total credic exnosure. The Company's lnancial assels are broadly diversified and
punsactions are entered inte with diverse credit worthy parties thereby mitigating any signilicant
concentration risk. Theretore, the Company beifeves that it is nol exposed to majer concentration
ol eradit risk

“'\i
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Bahria Town (Private) Limited

Notes o the Finar‘lcial Statements

For the
414

1.5

ity bnputs other than gusted orices

vear ended June

Liquidity risk

30, 2021

figuidity risk is the risk that an enterprise will encounter dilTicuities in raising funds to mwet

commitments assoctated with fnancial instruments.

eaposed 0 any significant level of liquidity risk.

The management believes that it is not
The munagement manages the liguidity of the

Company on basis of expected cush How considering the level of liquid assets necessary to mect

such rsk.

Financial Habilities in accordance with

Payable apainst land
Advanee rom customers
Trade and other pavables
short erm borrowings
Mark-up aceruee

Long term seeurity deposits

Puayvable against land
Awdvanee from customers
fracde and other payables
Shart werm borrowings
Mark-up accrued

Long twerm sceurity deposits

Phe Company will manage the hguidity riﬁ:-z-f

mapagement.

Fair

fair value is the price that wouid be redBRGd! au sSil an ' assdt

Noic

~4

6
12

11

13

value of finaneial instruments

their contractual maturities are presented below:

Maturity upto

one year

Maturity after onc
vear

Total

{Rupees in thousands) ..

June 30, 2021

- 267,138,679 267.138,67¢
312,980.394 189,259,415 :o-,239,313
28,393,443 - 28,393,443
930,000 - 950,000
2,777 - 2,777
- 269,912 209912
342,320,618 436,068,000 798,994,024
Muturity upto | Maturity after onc|| Maturity after one

onc vear

vear

year

.. (Rupces in thousands) ...cvevnneens

June 30, 2020

17 168.685 380.000.000 107.468.685

241433.260 173.607.410 415.040.075

60.320.077 . 60,320,077

TA0.000 - 730,000

+.591) ) e

- 266.681 26648
329.976.618 553,874,091 ‘

883,830 700

1
B

sowrce through working capiwal

or paid 10 transfer a lability in an

vrderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date (i.c. an exit price).

Phe Company classifies the financial instruments measured in the balance sheet at tair value in

aceardance with the

Financial asscts and tinancial Labilities measured at
posttion are grouped into three fovels ol a Tair value hicrarchy.

tollowing fair value measurement hicrarchy:

fair value in the statement of ﬁmmcizll

o the observability ol significant inputs o the measurement. as [olows:

The three levels are

detined based

i Quoied prices vunicdjusted) in active markets for identical assets or linbilites {evel T

cithe

)
‘% [N
A

mcluded within level

that are sheervable

for the
rdireothy cthat s as pricesy avindireedy (that ts, derived from prices) {level 2).

¢ sset or Hahility



Bahria Town (Private) Limited
Notes 1o the Financial Statements
For the vear ended June 30, 2021

i) fnputs tor the asser or Hability that are not based on obscrvable market data (that is, unobservable
mpus) {evel 3).

The Company recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hicrarchy at the end ol the
reporting period during which the transler has occurred.

The Company did not held any instruments which could be included in Level 1, Level 2 and Level
as on June 30, 2021 (2020 Nl

Che carrying values of all financial assets and Habilities reflected in the Gnancial statements
approxintate their fair values. Fair value is determined on the basis of objective evidence at cach
reporting date.

42 Capiiaf risk management

Cemipany’s prime objective when managing capital is 1o sateguard its ability 1o continue as a going concern
a1 arder W provide adequate returns for the sharcholders and benetits for other stakcholders and 10 maintain
an eptinal capttal structure.

Company manages s capial structure which comprises capital and reserves by monitoring return on net
ageets and make adjustments to it in the Haht ot changes in cconomic conditions. In order to maintain or
adjust the captal structure, the Company may adjust the amount ol dividend paid to sharcholders and/ ot
wssute new shares. There were no changes to Conmpany's approach to capital management during the year.

Phe debi 1o equity ratio is as follows:

2021 2020
Note cerreeeene. (Rupees in thousands) ...........
ol borrowings 11 950,000 750,600
basss cash and cash equivalents 30 4,834,962 §.620.787
Net delst {3,884,962) (7.870.787)
Totd equity (173,197.797) (172.232.817)
ot capial (177,082.739) (180,103,599

Netdebi o eguits ratio
43 Rulated partics transactions

Lhe related parties comprise of associated undertakings, directors and key management personnel. The
Company in the normal course of business carrics out ransactions with various related partics. Amounts
due fromt and to related parties are shown under relevant notes to the financial statements. Remuneration to
o key management personnel has been paid during the vear are disclosed in note 44, Other signilicant

S iransactions with related partics are as under:
5 _
T
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T

oW (Puy Lid.



Bahria Town (Private) Limited

Notes
forthe year

to the Financial Statements
ended June 30,

2021

MName

Transaction during

Relationship
i the year

2021

2026

H

3 ‘

Sank Chvated

vacarts Camital

.l

fscorts Investmoens

- Subsidinm - Security deposits

- Percentage

- Settiemen o acerue
":'.:choldn._ weilienient of acerued

97 G nterest against right

£2020: . issue o shares

87,904} - Settlemeni of long wrm
foan against vight issue n[
shum-

- Settdement of shors
werm foan against right
ssue of shares

- oy estment made

-Proceeds from sale of
vehidies

- Recetpts ugainst

uiilitios CXPOISES
meurred  on

Fscons Invesunent Bank

-Parenase of fixed assets

U vuiuc

-Keeeint l’.,ulﬂ‘l vehicie

sotd

-Paymeni received on
acesum o rade andd

other pavable:

-Certiticate of deposit
nutired
- Subwsidiary: - Amontivatscs ol loan
IPereentage
sharenolding:

- Advancee reeelived

160% (2020: ° Provision  ugainst
FO0) imnairment of
Provisian for

doutbs i
debt o
=Advanee repatd
: o omT
i

-Advance extended

Com

gahria town (PVE

behall of

crrsreeneee (Rupee

10,04

e
h

4.6

12,4

10

10,4

L 18T

580

87

79

i

pG

in thousands) ...t

()"“ BIS1Y:

o
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i
£
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Bahria Town (Private) Limited

Noltes to the Financial Statements

For the v

ar ended June

30, 2021

Namne

Relationship

Transaction during

. 2021
the year

2020

DB fam: Ven

Project

Vicks Trading

iPrivate) o

Liae Trading

o vale N imited

Galaxs {onstruction

{Ervates bimitied

vindl o idane thad

Balutin Gpal 223

\i |_\. l"sh B

tahria Hoshane

Rait Proncrties

dPrvaten Damited

- Joint
Venture;

- Percentage
sharcholding
40 % (2029;
0%

- Subsidiary:
- Pereentage
sharcholding:
100% (2620:
100%)

- Subsidiary:
- Pereentaue
sharcholding:
LOO%, (2020:
100%;

- Jomt
Veniure:

- Pereentage
sharcholding:
50% (2020:
50%)

- Imm

Venture

- Jomt
Venture

- Joimt
Yenture

C - Joint

Venture

~ Subsidiary:
- Percentage
sharcholding:
O (2020

OGS

.- (Rupees in thousands) ...........

- Advance extended 4,465,573
- Advance received back 200
- Loss during the year 272,798

- Advanee extended

10.726,171

- Advance received back 10,685,500

-l-acilitation income -

- Donation paid on behall 52,438

of Guide Trading

(Privatey Limited

- Rental income -

- [oan paid back 600

- Investment made 295,930

- [nvestment made 415,836

- Investment made 7,643
106,161

13,425

- Advance extended 10,664,712

- Advance received back 3,832,764

- [nterest mcome carned 740,297

- Facilitation income 30,10

1.536.255
39,000

38

th

154

964913

jo
L
(9P
iz
o
=
<

o,
—
vy
~

3
]

200,000

30,000

L%
-

2,117,348

80,365



Bahria Town (Private) Limited

Notes o (he Financial Siatements

For the

vear ended June 30, 2

021

Name

Relationship

Transaction during
the yeor

2021 2020

 VOUREESR ENONP

{

..... i)
Puarilise 1.'..,;

Fstate

(Privaley Dinited

Porindise Andusement

N nieriinment

,l)r N,

H II
Al

P Linadted

AngerTIic esoctdies

threeete 4mtited

{Hissie Daiortainmeent

frrivated fninbed

sOUN M

Danied

Pt

VoL PR
oglint o

ok bsina vemeriad

CETasi

o qr

arkioe Hotels
5-'.1:'\‘.!':'{\\ (Private)
Donaned
savithend Networks

omted

T . [
sl Mews Network

- subeidiany
!)

Cr “"H.'.‘.;L_._‘,‘.:

shircholding:

1004 2 (2020

110%%)

- Relatives
are directors

- Relatives
are directors

- Subsidiizr_\;:

- Percentage

shaveholding:
100% (2020:
10G%4)

- el

are directurs

Lll) v ‘Q

- Director is
trustee
- Relatives

are directors

- Comrmaon
dir'cclm'shif
and relatives
ol d!"cclorS
- Percentage

sharcholding:

)iy
70y

{20208

- Advanee extended

Advance reecived hack

Interest imcome earned
-~ Facihitation imcome
- Payment made on
behall ol the Company

- Advance received back

- Payment  made  on

hehail of the Company

- Advanee received back

Fayvmeni  made  on

hehull o the Compuny

- Advinee extendea

Advance reecived back

- Adwvanee extended

- Advance received back

Donation paid

Advance exiended

Advunce recelved back

- Adrance extended

Advancee reecived hack

- Advance extended

{Rupe&s in thousands) ...........

29,196,499 26.726.973

26,102,309 39.504.633

701 ,409 1,438,343
30,400 :
15,183 31371

76,963 s

18,362 76.009
" RENRSAR

69 097

19403546
4.738.?5()

1,'?49.$)2
1,931,379
658,304

]
60,807 157 253
39,750 336,056

3,309



Bahria Town (Private) Limited -
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the vear ended June 30, 2021

Transaction during

Name Relationship 2021 ' 2020
the year
ce e . {Rupeces in thousands) ...........
White Water - Relatives - Advance received back 20,266 -
Hospitality {Privae)  are directors
Pimiiad
Matih R Hussain - Director - Advance extended - 370.047
I} P . - —_
POrCeage _ Advance received back 31,150 194713
“shareholding:
DIYRIIN VLA
(2020
99,0905,
44 Rewaucration of Chief Executive, Director and Exeeutives
Description Directors Exceutives Directors Executives
iaa) i
| 2021 | 2020
cremretsrei e (Rupees in thousands) &uveveenene
Managerial remuneration 132,004} 614871 132.000 - S28.229
Ststhwer of persons 2 220 2 206

441 the Company also provides Company’ maintained car and free wlephone facility. both for
Company and personal vse.

43 Number of employees

Che average number of employees during the year ended June 300 2021 were 23,817 (2020 23.280) and
number of cwplovees as at June 530, 2021 were 19206 (2020: 19.007).

46 Date of unthorization for issue

- - . y \ . . . .-‘\ ™2 i i .- .
Yhese Unancial stalements have been authorized for isstic vn _3_ ‘J_tf/" ~‘Q’7~—/}by the hoard oi directors

of the Company,
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Dated: 7/ @24

BEFORE THE NATIONAL ELECTRIC POWER
REGULATORY AUTHORITY

"Application for seeking Electric Power Supply License for
Bahria Town, Mohlanwal, Lahore and Bahria Orchards,
Raiwind Road, Lahore"

ON BEHALF OF BAHRIA TOWN l(PRIVATE) LIMITED

DETAILS OF CHARGES AND ENCUMBRANCES

|, Brig Bakhtiyawar Lal Hussain (Retd), Director Services holding CNIC
No. 35201-2986374-3 of Bahria Town (Private) Limited hereby confirm
that there has been no charges/encumbrances or liabilities attached with

the company. As such the information may be considered as “NIL".

/~>/~ /c/fa/ e

Bng,B’akhtlyawar Lal Hu;sam (Retd

‘Drrrector SerV}s/Bahrla Town Lahore




Dated: .5 Jan 2024

BEFORE THE NATIONAL ELECTRIC POWER
REGULATORY AUTHORITY

"Application for seeking Electric Power Supply License for -
Bahria Town, Mohlanwal, Lahore and Bahria Orchards,
Raiwind Road, Lahore"

ON BEHALF OF BAHRIA TOWN (PRIVATE) LIMITED
EXPRESSION OF INTEREST

Bahria Town (Pvt) Limited is one of those housing schemes which are
unique in many aspects providing numerous facilities to its residents. All
electrical and other development works carried out by experienced and
highly qualified employees of Bahria Town (Pvt) Limited. As such no
contractual work is given to the external agencies except for construction
of Grid Stations which entrusted to Company, M/s SIEMENS Pakistan
Engineering. The profile of the Company is attached. Hence no such
expression of interest to provide credit or financing facilities to the

//

contractors is desirable.

/ “’7@%4

@’Bakhhyawar ;
/(ﬁector Se s Bahria/Town Lahore

/__




ANNEXURE III

PROFILES OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT,
EMPLOYEES & SUB-CONTRACTORS OF
THE COMPANY

A.DETAILED PROFILE AND CVS OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT

B. EMPLOYMENT RECORDS OF ENGINEERING AND
TECHNICAL STAFF OF APPLICANT

C.PROFILE OF M/S SIEMENS



DETAILED PROFILE AND CURRICULUM VITEA OF
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Bahria Town management has engaged all technical and professional
staff with diversified experience and most of them with experience of
similar assignments from utility companies.

This policy provides Bahia's management experienced, trained managers
with an advantage of better relationship with concerned dlstnbution
companies.

CVs of the following senior management are attached:-

a. Brig {(Retd) Bakhtiyawar Lal Hussain - Director Services

b. Engr Zahid Latif - Chief Engr Elect

c. Col (Retd) Ejaz Ahmad - Senior GM
(Billing)

d. Engr. Javaid Hussain - GM (Electrical

Maintenance)

e. Engr Lliaguat Ali Khan - GM (Grid Station &
Coordination)

f. Mr. Waleed Bin Abid Gilani - Manager Meter
Connections)

in order to ensure quality of design and services related with grid stations,
distribution networks and all assignments regarding electric supply
arrangements, Bahria Town has engaged qualified Consultants M/s M.E
Consults (Pvt) Lid Lahore which are providing their expert services
satisfactorily for the last 24 years.

The CVs of the following staff of M/s M.E Consult (Pvt) Ltd is attached
herewith:-

a. Engr Muhammad Pervaiz Chaudhry - CEO
b. Engr Salahuddin - MD
c. Engr Asghar Mahmud - Chief Engr



CURRICULUM VITAE

Name: Brigadier (R) Bakhtiyawar Lal Hussain

Date of Commission 02 July 1967 Dats of Birth 15 Oct 1944 Date of Retirement: 20 Aug 1998

Education Qualifications

Correspondence Address:

Important Positions Held:
in Pak Army 1980-1998:

Masters in Political Science Govt. College University Lahore

BSc; Honors Balochistan Yniversity Quetta
Military and Civil Law . GHQ, Pakistan Army
Human Rights & Law Institute of Humanitarian

. Law, italy

#19 Army Housing Scheme Nishat Lahore Cantt,
Tel: 5734230 Cell, 03009422639
E mail: bakhtiyawar@yahoo.com

1. Director Budget Pakistan Army

2. Brigade Commander

3. Deputy Director Personnel Services Pakistan Army

4. Instructor class A and B at Army Training Institutions

5. Assistant Quartermaster General {Plans)

6. General Staff Officer Grade | (operations)

7. General Staff Officer Grade [i & lil (operations/intelligence)

Positions Held in Civilian Sector

Executive Director SNPET (A registered Public Education Trust
for charity, providing free education to the under privileged

children by establishing schools, and undertaking of community
uplift programme

Co-coordinator CARE

(Charitable NGO providing free quality and marketable education
to deserving children by adopting / running of Distt Govit; schools
and community uplift programme on self help bases.

General Manager Sardar Group of Companies

Senior Genera!l Manger Bahria Town (Pvt) Ltd Lahore (largest Real Estate Development

Company in Pakistan)




Director Services Bahria Town (Pvt} Ltd, Lahore

a.Administration

b.Member Management Committee of Begum Akhtar Rukhsana
Memorial Trust Hospital (a Charity project of Bahria Town)

¢.Member Management Committee of Bahria Town School

d.Coordination and aliocation of resources to development sites

e7Obtaining certifications and of Government approvals

f, Dealing and corresponding with Government departments i.e.
Revenue, Labor, Police, Social Security, WAPDA and SNGPL
NEPRA, LESCO, Roads/Highways, Irrigation/Drainage depts.

g. Transport Control repairs, documentation Regn/insurance

h. Public Relations, Protocol and Ceremonies

i. Security, watch and ward of personnel and material

To be overall in charge of Services; Development infra structures of Electricity, Telephone.
And Gas. Responsible for planning, obtaining of approvals and execution of services
development work in all phases/projects of Bahria Town Lahore.

Company Contact Person for Govt; departments, NEPRA, LESCO/NTDC, PTCL, and

SNGPL for getting approvals and provision of respective services o Bahria Town Lahore
projects.

Development Telephone, Gas, Electricity, Media and TV cable network.

Contact person for CDG Lahore, LDA, irrigation, Roads & Highways Authority, NHA and
their subordinate departments for related matters. Liaison with Company Lawyers follow-
up specially court cases '

Exercise control over operations and maintenance of Grid Stations and
construction/execution/commissioning, extension of load, electrification of
Mohlanwal, Orchard, Nasheman/E&MCand Qiases sites.

Member Kidney Re-transplant Committee Bahraini Town Hospital
Merhber Liver Re-transplant Committee Bahraini Town Hospital
Administrator Qasis Town Houses Badian Road Lahore

Senior General Manager JVs with HRL for Ashiana Housing Scheme M/S Kingscrete

{Pvt) Ltd for Rose Garden,and Alrehmat Projects



i3 251 D2, Wapda Town
Lahore, Pakistan

B 0092-42-5185626
0092-333-4237273

D.0.B. 15" December, 1948

Engr. Zahid Latif

CAREER PROFILE:

Overall 35 vears of experiences have been obtained in Electrical Power
Distribution Organization WAPDA Lahore and 15 years of experience in private
organizations including Barqaab Consulted (Pvt.) Ltd, Lahore,Valencia Housing
Scheme and Bahria Town Pvt Ltd Lahore after retirement in the fields of
operational, technical, planning and administrative activities along with the

additional qualification of Masters In Business Administration to enhance the =~

technical skiils for the better performance for achieving goals of the department.
Thereby the position of chief engineer had been attained in the said organization
in the field of distribution engineering.

CAREER OBJECTIVES

To use my prior experiences, skills and potential as an electrical engineer to assist
an organization in achieving its goal for better ranking. I’m a highly conscientious
individual and ardent in pursuing a professional career in a dynamic forward
thinking organization.

PRESENT STATUS

17-09-2013 To Date: Chief Engineer Electrical Bahria Town (Pvt) Ltd. Lahore
Projects, HT & LT cable laying for external electrification,RMU’s(Ring Main
Units), Pad Mounted Distributions transformers,HT Switches,Distribution
Boxes,Street light Poles,Installation of Generators and synchronizing for
generating HT 11KV, Installation of Energy Meters at the customer
premises,Billing and collection of revenue,Disconnections of
Defaulters,Maintenance and operation of the distribution system,Supervision of
the Extension of Grid station load from 10/13 MVA to 20/26MVA of M/S

Siemen on turnkeys basis.

13-02-2012 to 16-09-2013: Chief Engineer PECHS. Valencia & Izmir Town
Lahore. Due to growth of the Construction of new houses in Valencia Town the
load demand has been increased from the approved 3 MW. Therefore the case of
handing over the Electrical system to LESCO / WAPDA has been initiated with
LESCO for the erection of 132/11 KV Grid Station in Valencia. The
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) has been signed with LESCO / WAPDA

1



and the transferring of 32 kanal land for this purpose to LESCO is in progress
with LESCO / LDA. As regard the experience of coordination with Govt.
Departments it is pertinent to state that the undersigned is performing these
activities by abiding rule regulations of Cooperative Housing Societies.

Deputy Project Manager Barqaab Consulted (Pvt.) Ltd, Lahore.

Executing Consumer Census and Re-routification Project in Northern Circle
LESCO, Lahore.

The project has been commenced in Sanda Sub-division under Gulshan-e-Ravi
Division LESCO for obtaining consumer data, connected load, energy meter
particulars i.e. type of meters, Serial numbers of meters, meter rating, present
meter reading and physical condition of meters of individual consumers.

Allotting correct tariffs application, classification of tariff codes, correct feeder
codes etc., and reference numbers of consumer in walking orders by actually
visiting the sites.

POSITION ATTAINED

22-09-2008 to 14-12-2008 (Retired);
Chief Engineer / CSD (GEPCO)

Arrange monthly billing and revenue collection through all authorized bank
branches every month, under all tariffs and monitored monthly receivables.
Adopted several measures to reduce the receivable by the technique of follow up
of defaulter customers by formulating field teams. In this regard the targets were
achieved through tactical planning at subdivision levels. Monthly cash inflow was
raised.

Reduce monthly and progressively absolute unit lost by detecting the theft of
electricity and kept the line losses of the company within the permissible range as
per targets given by the PEPCO authority.

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCES:

SUPERINTENDING ENGINEER / MANAGER (OPERATION)

Central Circle LESCQ: 05/2003 to 10/2004
Okara Circle LESCO; 03/2007 to 02/2008
Kasur Circle LESCO; 03/2008 to 09/2008



Operation and mantainance of 11/0.4 KV network providing stability to the
system by attending major and minor breakdowns and faults. Granting domestic
commercial and industrial electric connections to the customers, power
connections at higher voltage level i.e. 11KV to electric furnancs, re-rolling miils,
textile mills and other continous processing industries by erecting indoor out door
substations containing vaccum circuit breakers (VCB) Current transformers
potential transformer CT/PT for the protection of the pannels and metering as
well. Adopted method for reducing the line losses of the system, reduced the theft
of electricity, and reduced the monthly receiveable of the organizations, executed
HT/LT proposals

Construction of 11 KV over head under ground lines and cables, installing 11/0.4
KV substations of 50 KV, 100KV, 200KV,400KV,630KV, 1000KV ratings.

TECHNICAL MANAGER (M&T) LESCO:
10/2004 T0 05/2006 :

Installation of power connections above 500kw at 11kv voltage level, erection of
11kv panels alongwith CT/PT of various ratings according to load demand, for
metering and protection purposes. Managed rectification of faults of 11kv
metering pannels, testing of 11kv cables by hotpot testing equipments at high
pressure and removal of fault in the HT Cables.

Set up computer laboratory for programming of 11kv electronics meter for new
connections and to download the data of defective meters as well.

Conducted checking and accuracy of 11kv metering equipments and pannels at
the customer premises.

Supervised and monitored the technical teams headed by Deputy Managers
(M&T) to detect theft of energy and accuracy of the metering equipment at
customers premises upto 500kw at 400 voltage level. Managed the testing and
callibration of energy meters in the laboratory under the control of Deputy
Managers (M&T).

MANAGER MATERIAL MANAGEMENT LESCO:

05/2006 10 08/ 2006 : Prepared procurement plan for distribution line material and
equipments for the extenion of the system, granting tube well connections, executing
HT/LT proposals , village electrification and upgrading the existing distribution network.

e Procurement of distribution line material by floting tenders, receiving bids,

technical evaluation of the bids to conform technical parameters according to the
specifications and commercial evaluation to award of purchase orders to the



lowest technically and commercial responsive biders. (Through competative
buildings) _

o Monitored the receipt of the material in stores and in pipelines of various
contractors. Perpetual checking of the inventory in regional stores pertaining their
receipt and issuance to the field formations.

e Flotting of tenders for the procurement of 132kv transmission line and gas
insulated 132/11kv grid stations material for extention the transmission line for
the new grid station and upgrading the existing grid stations.

DEPUTY DIRECTOR MATERIAL MANAGEMENT LESCO

11/2002 10 04/ 2003 : Prepared procurement plan for distribution line material and
equipments for the extenion of the system, granting tube well connections, executing
HT/LT proposals , villagen electrification and upgrading the existing distribution network

DEPUTY DIRECTOR INSPECTION WAPDA

07/1997 To 11/ 1999 : Inspection of distribution materials such as single phase and three
phase, HT/LT cables including 15KV XLP cables.

DEPUTY DIRECTOR DISPOSAL WAPDA

11/1999 To 12/2002 : Disposal of unserviceable WAPDA vehicles and materials through
tendering and auction

EXECUTIVE ENGINEER AREA ELECTRICITY BOARDS

03/1996 TO 07/1997 KAMONKE DIVISION:
10/1990 TO 04/1992 GUJARAT DIVISION

04/1984 10 05/1985 MESCO DIVISION MULTAN
10/1982 TO 04/1984 CIVIL LINE DIVISION LAHORE

¢ Operation and mantainance of 11/0.4 KV network providing stability to the system by
attending major and minor breakdowns and faults. Granting domestic commercial and
industrial electric connections to the customers, power connections at higher voltage
level i.e. 11KV to electric furnancs, re-rotling mills, textile mills and other continous
processing industries by erecting indoor out door substations containing vaccum circuit
breakers (VCB) Current transformers potential transformer CT/BT for the protection of
the pannels and metering as well. Adopted method for reducing the line losses of the
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system, reduced the theft of electricity, and reduced the monthly receiveable of the
organizations, executed HT/LT proposals.

¢ Construction of 11 KV over head under ground lines and cables, installing 11/0.4 KV
substations of 50 KV, 100KV, 200KV ,400K V630KV, 1000KV ratings.

DEPUTY DIRECTOR STANDARD SPECIFICATION WAPDA

04/1992 10 03/1996

e Upgrading WAPDA standard specification of distribution material conforming to
international standards (IEC) and American standards (ANSI), Technical and
commercial judications of to be procured material and equipments through
international tendering. Conducting prototype testing of material and also the final
inspection of the material and equipment at independent laboratories KEMA Holland
and at manufacturer’s works to judge the suitability and technical parameters in
accordance to WAPDA standards specifications.

DEPUTY DIRECTOR (PROJECTS) WAPDA
05/1985 10 10 /1990

The undersigned executed the Projects lounged under Asian Development Bank (ADB) loans
pk824-SF for the Electrification of 560 villages in the rural area of Pakistan and PK734-SF
Power Distribution system for erecting irrigation Tube wells at the door steps of the individual
formers due to abundant of scarp Tube Wells due to lowered water table in Sheikhupura. This
Project was also known as Scarp Transition Pilot Projects. In order to commence the Projects
field Surveys and estimates of Distribution lines material and occupants were prepared to
determine bill of quantities (BOQ). These Projects were based on two components i foreign
currency component ($) the cost of the material and equipments ii local currency component
(PK Rs.) for the payment of duties and Taxes of the material.

o International Tenders documents for the procurement of material and equipments were
prepared and sent to (ADB) for vetting and received the copies of same duly vetted.

¢ Incorporated all the terms and conditions as suggested by (ADB). Then tender notice
was published in newspapers to put the tenders on sale indicating the last date of
receipt of Bids along with the opening date.

» Subsequently the tender opening Committee opened the Bids in the presence of
participated Bidders and announced the prices.

* The Undersigned sent all copies of Bids to standard specification department of Design
Distribution WAPDA for Technical adjudication conforming WAPDA, IEC
specifications. :

e The Undersigned carried out the commercial evaluation of technically responses Bids.

e If the technical responses Bidders was not the lowest pricewise then the case for the
award of Contract was processed of the lowest technical responses Bidders as under
the guideline of (ADB) negotiation was not permissible.



e Draft letter of intent (LOI) was prepared and sent to (ADB) for vetting and then it was
issued by the undersigned to the technically / commercially responsive Bidders to
provide the acceptance within stipulated period. The clause of prototype testing of
material and equipments was included in (LOI) for those Bidders / Manufacturers who
were supplying material and equipment for first time.

e Subsequently the Contract Agreement was signed by Chief Engineer (Project
Authority) and the Bidders.

» 10% advance payment according to the conditions of the contract was released to the
Bidders / Manufacturers on receipt of equivalent of Bank Guarantee to facilitate
Bidders / Manufacturers to arrange to supply material and equipment according to
delivery schedule.

e The offered material and equipment was undergone inspection to conform the technical
parameter in accordance with the specifications by material Inspection Department
WAPDA.

¢ The inspected material and equipment was ship on FOB, FCS, Ex works etc, according
to shipping clause of the Contract Agreement. '

¢ The material was received in the WAPDA respective stores where the store officer
issued good receipt note (GRN) regarding the quantities.

e The Payments to Suppliers / Manufacturers on verification of Inspection Certificates,
Bill of lading, GRN etc.

e For the late delivery of material and equipment liquidated damages charges were
calculated by undersigned and detective from the payments.

e After the receipt of the material and equipment in all the Bank Guarantee was released.

e It is worth mentioning here that undersigned handle the entire Project activities
independently and was nominated as drawing and disbursing officers by the Chief
Engineer (REO) WAPDA Lahore. The undersigned prepared yearly Budget for local
currency payments and arrange the release of funds from Donner Agency i.e (ADB) as
per schedule.

¢ The undersigned prepared monthly progress report for the submission to (ADB).

e The final completion report of the Project was also prepared for Donner Agency i.e
(ADB) and other WAPDA higher Offices for perusal and record.

s Thus the undersigned feel no hesitation in describing the implementation, execution,
handling the Projects successfully.

SUBDIVISION OFFICER —AREA ELECTRICITY BOARD LAHORE
07/1975 10 10/1982

Fort, Gulberg, Sultan Pura, Samnabad, Islam Pura, Bhai Pheru, GOR

¢ Operation and mantainance of 11/0.4 KV network providing stability to the system by
attending major and minor breakdowns and faults. Granting domestic commercial and




industrial electric connections to the customers, power connections at higher voltage
level i.e. 11KV to electric furnancs, re-rolling mills, textile mills and other continous
processing industries by erecting indoor out door substations containing vaccum circuit
breakers (VCB) Current transformers potential transformer CT/BT for the protection of
the pannels and metering as well. Adopted method for reducing the line losses of the
system, reduced the theft of electricity, and reduced the monthly receiveable of the
organizations, executed HT/LT proposals

e Construction of 11 KV over head under ground lines and cables, installing 11/0.4 KV
substations of 50 KV, 100KV, 200KV,400KV,630KV, 1000KV ratings.

ASSISTANT ENGINEER MID EAST CONSULTANT LAHORE
12/1974 TO 07/1975:

¢ Supervision of foundation work of 500KV transmission line from terbela dam to
faislabad national power grid station

ASSISTANT ENGINEER IMPERIAL CONSTRUCTION COMPANY LAHORE
09/1973 TO 12/1974

o Construction of foundation, erection and stringing of 220KV double circuit
transmission line Mangla Dam to Burhan grid station though imperial electric company
Lahore Pakistan.

EXPERIENCE OF MANAGERIAL, ADMINISTRATIVE & PUBLIC DEALING

e Throughout my career of service through different departments, I have good technical,
managerial capabilities to get the jobs done successfully by engaging the right men for
the right job, division of work to obtain tangible and intangible goals. Also
administrative control on manpower has been exercised through Human Resources.
Since the date of joining WAPDA as sub-divisional officer (SDO) in 1975 to the age of
superannuation (60 years) the undersigned had performed duties as Executive Engineer
(XEN), Superintending Engineer (SE) / Manager Operation and Chief Engineer {CSD)
in Distribution wing of PEPCO WAPDA and dealt the consumers / General Pubiic
with good reputation and integrity. Help the people in solving the problems and
difficulties attended the Labor Courts pertaining the cases filed by WAPDA labor on
account of posting transfers and also civil suites filed by the WAPDA against the
consumers for the theft of the Electricity. The undersigned has the grate experiences of
Administrative control over the WAPDA staff for achieving tangible and intangible
goals.
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ACADEMIC QUALIFICATION

1968 T0.1972 B.SC. (ELECTRICAL ENGINEERING) POWER

University of Engineering & Technology Lahore, Pakistan

1998 T02000 M.B.A (MARKETING)
: ' University of the Punjab Lahore, Pakistan

MEMBERSHIP

M.LE.E (Pak) 8379
LEE.E.USA
REFERENCE 7 ‘
o Further information and references will be furnished on request



COL. (Retd) EJAZ AHMAD

H.No.178 Babar Block Sector A
Bahria Town Lahore
Ph: (042) 35341631
0300-4875720

Educational Qualification

» Civil

# B.Com (Hons) 1968 Hailey College of Commerce
Punjab University.

# B.Sc (Hons) 1979 University of Baluchistan
War Studies

# M.Sc 1988-89 University of Quaid-e- Azam Islamabad
Joint War Studies

= Military

# Intelligence Course

# Pakistan Staff Course (PSC)

# Joint Service Staff Course (JSSC)

#  Effective presentations and skill of writing and communication.

# Intelligence Collection, Evaluation and Counter Method/Measures.

Appointment held in Army

« Command Commanding officers of Two Field Artillery Regiments.
Commandant of Rangers Brigade of approx. strength of 4000
men (Anti Dacoit Force).

e Station Commander Sialkot

o Staff Adjutant of Artillery Regiment.
Grade 3 Staff officer of Headquarters Artillery.
Brigade major of an Artillery Headquarters.
Chief of Protocol of Joint Staff.
Headquarters/Ministry of Defence.
Study Tours
Visited following countries as a part delegation headed by Chairman Joint Chief of Staff
Committee

e USA Nov/Dec 2018

o Saudi Arabia March 1988 & Oct 1989

» Jordan

» Egypt Oct-Nov 1989
o Turkey

o Qattar



Publications

e Napoieonic War Pubiished in the magazine of Joint Staff College
s Pakistan Nuclear Option Published in the magazine of Joint Staff College
Indian Hegemony and its Research articles for M.Sc joint War neighboring states
Studies.
Profile

Demonstrated proven skills in administration, syllabus designing, implementation and
evaluation of academic policy in private institutions over a span of 10 years.

Exhibited academic and research adaptability and career development of
teaching/administration staff consistently.

Demonstrated ability in leading, coordinating and monitoring a team of teachers.
Demonstrated an ability to handle more than four institutions skillfully.

Formulated ruies and regulations of custom public school system and got them
implemented successfully for five years.

Experience

Secretary Institutions (ETPB) Oct 2003-Nov 2005

HAS Degree College
N.S Public School

Trust Model School
Jank: Devi Hospital
Diyal Singh Trust Library

HHEH KRR

Coordinator Custom Public School System Dec 1998-0O¢t-2003

Principal Army Public College Sialkot Oct 95-Aug-97

Station Commander Sialkot July 94-O¢t-95

. Carried out planning and provision of Logistic support of the complete
Garrison.

* Acted as advisor to the Garrison Commander on all administrative and
Cantonment matters including MES, Cantonment Board etc.

. Supervised the working of all administrative units including CMH, Army
Public School, Supply Units, Military Farms, Recruiting officers etc.

. Managed and supervised all the recreational facilities provided to troops in
the stations such as, Station Library, Station Messes, Station Sports
Complex and Station Welfare complexes.

« Organized the security system of the Cantonment including Entry/Exit
control, Fire Fighting, Alarm systems etc.

. Managed and supervised all the organization involved in taking care of
Health of troops such as Station Health Organization, Medical inspection
Rooms, Sanitation and Sewerage inspection teams etc.

President Cantonment Board Sialkot July 94-Oct 95

Commander Rangers May 92-July 94.




« Chief of Protocol (Joint Staff Headquarters) 1989-1992

Staff Officers at Various Headquarters

Senior General Manager Customer Services Bahria Town Lahore - Dec 2005 To-

date

#

Responsible for provision of physical possession of the ailotted plots duly surveyed
to the members after approval of the drawings.

To check/monitor under construction private houses in different stages.

Through periodical inspections keep a vigilant check to discourage violations, issue
timely notices and take appropriate action for removal of the violations.

Issuance of house completion certificate to the members.

Survey of developéd plots at all sectors.

Issue of electricity bills to all residents/shops.

Prepare and issue of service charges bills.

Prepare monthly consumption report of electricity used during the month.

Collected 20 billion in shape of billing and other charges for last 13 years.



CURRICULUM VITAE

CH. JAVAID HUSSAIN

HOUSE # 09, GOR-3,

PAF Road, SARGODHA, PAKISTAN
CONTACT # 0345- 1501362

0305- 1501362

PERSONAL INFORMATION

Name

Father's Name

Date of Birth

Nationality

Religion

Domicile

Marital Status

Language Spoken, Writing
Permanent Address

Contact

CNIC#
Present Postal Address

ACADEMIC QUALIFICATION:

Javaid Hussain
Ghulam Muhammad
September 17, 1957
Pakistani
Islam
Sargodha {Pakistan)
Married
English, Arabic, Urdu
House No. 150 F/4, Street No. 16 Islam Pura Sargodha
Pakistan
Cell #0305-1501362 / 0345-1501362
Email: javaid.hussain363@gmail.com
38403-7872653-7
GOR-3, PAF Road, Sargadha, Pakistan

Degree Year of passing | Division

5.5.C 1974 15t

Diploma of Associate 1977 15t with Distinction
Engineering( Electrical)

B.Sc. Electrical Engineering 1984 1st




TRAININGS:

> Defence training course of National guards (Janbaz Force) during the year 197¢.

» Management Training from WAPDA Academy Tarbela.

» Technical Training including introduction of thermal and Hydel power stations.

» Operating and Maintenance of Grid Stations, Transmission & Distribution Systems.

» Distribution Lines Construction.

> Safety and first Aid from WAPDA Engineering Academy Faisalabad.

» Basic Computer Usage & Applications.

EXPERIENCE:

» Twelve (12) years Field Experience as Electrical Engineer (Distribution) / (Construction)
under FESCO.

» Five{5) years Field Experience as Electrical Engineer Operation under FESCO.

. ¥ Seven (7) years Field Experience as Deputy Manager Technicai (Design/Planning) under

2w -FESCO.

> Four (4) years Field Experience as SE Operation and Maintenance/M&T/Grid System
QOperation. .

> Two (2) years Field Experience as GM Operation/ Development in Shalimar Construction
Company Sargodha.

» Four (4) years Field Experience as GM Operation and Maintenance in Bahria Town

Lahore Pvt. Ltd.

DETAIL OF DUTIES PERFORMED IN THE FIELD:

>

A4

Managed the activities of 1000 Operation Personnel of a Operation Division comprised
of 07 Nos. Sub Divisions, 1 No. 220 kv Grid Station, 08 Nos. 132kv Grid Stations and 05
Nos. 66kv Grid Stations. 186 Nos. 11ky distribution Feeders with 5000 Nos. distribution
Transformers at 400/230 Volts feeding to different categories of 1, 50,000 consumers of
the territory.

Managed the Network consisting upon 20 Nos. grid stations connected with
transmission lines of 33kv/66kv/132kv.

Performed the Work as drawing and disbursing officer to dispense with ali the financial
liabilities of Operation Division.

Operation, Maintenance and protection of 400/11000 Volt {LV/MV/HV) up to 132 kv
Lines, Distribution Transformers, Single Phase and Polyphase with Maximum demand
Indicators Energy Meters (Both analog and digital}.

Reading, billing and collection of revenue of Electricity Utility Company.

Develop Preventive/Emergency Maintenance Programs for Network Sub Stations,
Underground Cables and Overhead line as per standards.



Design of protective schemes for all feeders, Grid Station Transformers as well as major
load customers as per requirement of the area.

Maintenance and troubleshooting of problems at LV/MV/IV circuits and to adjust work
procedures to meet with abnormal or emergency situation.

Analysis and study of long duration and short duration outages and recommended
measures to reduce outages to minimum level.

Observing Electrical Safety in maintenance such as effective grounding, cautions on
equipment and issuing Permit to Work (PTW).

Plan and design new Network extensions to supply new customers and new system
improvement as required.

Pian and Design Network Substations, underground cables and overhead lines as per
standards.

Plan and Design Network for Plot Plans Electrifications of residential in cities and rural
areas, commercial plazas, Industrial load and forms.

Preparation of proposals for projects and to ensure its successful commissioning.
Completion of documents for bidders, proposals and recommendations for award for all
contacts/ equipment suppliers required to complete assigned projects in accordance
with Company Contracting Procedure.

Coordination between contractors and the project management teams and other
proponents of various organizations. Application of Critical Path Method Network
Schedule using computer and monitoring the implementations of the approved
Company Standards and Practices including project schedule overruns and job slippages
and the plan to effect the recovery thereof.



LIAQUAT ALI KHAN

Senior Electrical Engineer

Email: engineer_liaguat@hotmail.com

+923344372449 (PAK)

Employer: (SATECH) SAUDI TECHNOLOGIST CONSULTING ENGINEERS
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia '

Skilled engineering professional offering 19+ years of domestic and international experience in all -
aspects of design, construction, management, control,-instrumentation and electrical systems from
(380KV to 380/230-120 Volits). Proven record of success completing muffimillion dollar projects in
time and under budgef with onsite EI&C management of mulfiple vendors and clients. Expertise
includes designing, programming, testing, Pre-commission, Commissioning and trial-runs t. Strong
technical and methodical aptitude with an innate ability to analyze, coordinate and synthesize data.
Aggressive in identifying and revolving inefficient operational processes. Strong team member, able

to motivate other to achieve optimal success while maintaining high (EHS) safety methods and
practices. Excel in unpredictable and hectic environment.

. 1)-Supervisory field engineering experience including monitoring and inspection of (380/132/13.8

- KV, 380/115/13.8 KV and 380/110/13.8 KV) Substations. Erection, installation and energization of
Power Transformers, GIS, Surge Arrssters, (380 KV, 132 KV, 110 KV and 13.8 KV) Power cables,

" 13.8 KV MV switchgears, Auxiliary Transformers, Controf Panels, AC / DC supply systems etc.

2) — Monitoring of Testing, Pre-commissioning, Commissioning and start-up activities of
Substations equipment. Demonstrate technical support to the contractors and utilize expertise o -
the projects work as per international standards (IEC, IEEE) and SEC standards along with project
specifications. Also interface with Contractors and clients to arrange meetings of different

deviations specific to substation projects.

3) — Design Review of contractors submitted documents of substation equipment i.e Power
Transformer, C.B, CT, PT, Surge Amresters, GIS, MV switchgears, AC/DC panels, D.C Bafteries
and Rectifiers, AC lightings, Power Cables, energy meters, low voltage and protection cables and
wires. .

5} - Maintenance: Implementation of regularly scheduled testing, Corrective maintenance, and .
preventative maintenance of electrical equipment installed in a substations.

6) - Wide experience and knowledge of International Standards such as (ANSI, IEEE, NEC, NFPA,
APRI, IEC and NEMA) and SEC standards etc.

DEFAIEED WORK EXPERIENCE
- COMPANY ADDRESS & FROM TO ! BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF JOB PERFORMED
POSITION MOIYR MONR: )




SAUDI  TECHNOLOGIST
CONSULTING

ENGINEERS SAUDI
ARABIA

SENIOR EN ER
SUBSTATIONS

Mohamed Turki Mott
Macdonald (MTMM)
Engineering Consultancy

| Jeddah- WOA

SENIOR ENGINEER

ELECTRICAL
—T

08/16

3/13

4/2018

08/16

Projects: 132/13.8 KV and 110/13.8 KV
substations

Team leader of a group of design engineers for
technical evaluation of substation design and

contractual matter projects at Makkah, Madinah,
Tabuk and Taif Regions.

Review contractors submitted General layout
drawings, equipment fayoul drawings, one line
diagrams of substations, GIS diagrams, Material
Submittals, Schematics and logic drawings of GIS,
AC/DC single line diagrams, MV swilchgers and
Power Transformers dimensional drawings.

Base and detail design of afl the equipment of
substations installed in the following substations

A} - 110/13.8 KV, Jamoom, Muabdah, Duba,
Khobar Ext., Al-Thagher, Al-Bayah, Heraa, Rawabi
and Sail Road S/S Projects (Al- Gihaz)

B) - 110/13.8 KV, Bani Malak, Aleyse, Haweyah, Al-
Freeda, Ushairah, Rabigh, Eskan and al-Raidah
S/S Projects (ABB)

C)=110/13.8 KV, Al-Fayah, Al-Fardoos and Al-
Nakheel S/S Projects of (Al-Musharaiq)

D) - 110/13.8 KV, Eskan Prince Fawaz-1, Eskan
Prince Fawaz-2 and Jeddah Air Post-11 5/S
Projects of (Bamco)

E) - 110/13 KV, Al-Mahjar, Al-Murjan, Hadda
Centre, New Air Port-11

Projects:- 132/13.8 KV and 110/13.8 KV
Substation Projects

1)- Preparation & Review of Project Technical
Specifications (PTS) including Scope of Work
(SOW) and Tender drawings for 132/ 110/ 13.8 kV
Substation Projects of National Grid SA.

2)-Technical Evaluation of Tender/Bid docurmnents.

3) - Evaluation of confractor's submittals in view of
the scope of work, standards and contractual
conditions. Preparation of comments on
Contractor's/Manufacturer's- material proposais and

fechnical submittals as per PTS, SEC and IEC IEEE
international Standards.

4} - Review of Manufacturer’s prequalification
documnents, Manufacturer’'s compfiance
statermments, etc.

5) - Evaluation of project technical proposals,




Al-lazirah Engineers &

Consultants- Khobar

SITE MANAGER

ELECTRICAL

05/11

03/13

Detailed designs and calculations submitted by
contractors for different projects/contracts.

6) - Updating & Reporfing progress of design
activities. Conducting design review meetings of
various projects with the client & contractor.

Projects

- 110/33kV Ef Eyse & Ushaira S/S (Contractor ABB)

- 110/13.8kV Bani Malik-2, Rabigh-2, Eskan -2
(Contractor ABB)

- 110/13.8kV Tiyam-2, Hindawiyah-2 & Nuzah-2
Substations (Contractor Cogelex)

- 110/13.8kV Bida Substation (Al-Osais)

- Coordinating with SEC’s Design depariment &
Projects department, Confractor and Sub

Coniractor's engineering disciplines during various
stages of project. -

- Training new engineers of SEC who join our team.

Project - 380/115/13.8 KV S/§ Dehran- KSA

Responsibilities:

1) - Monitor the work of 380/115/ 13.8 KV
substation’s electrical instaflation and testing
activities.

2) - supervise the quality control inspections work of
contractor as per PTS, standards and SEC
specifications.

3) - witness the contractor’s work of testing, pre-
commissioning, commissioning and start-up
activities to ensure its compliance as per approved
plans and procedures.

4) - Review type test reports and routine site tests
performed by the subcontractors at site and
independent test agencies in approved faboratories.

5) - Installation and testing of Power cables and low
voltage cables / wires are supervised and submit
comments / deviations to the coniractors for proper
recfificalions.

6} - Organize, coordinate and conduct walk through
inspections of substation work, until all
discrepancies are corrected and reclified by the
concemed agency.




JACOBS-ZATE
ENGINEERING
CONSULTANCY-KHOBAR
PROJECT ENGINEER

e —

ELECTRICAL

5/11

7) - Prepare daily progress report , and assist the
Project Manager in preparing weekly and monthly
reports of subsftafion equipment to enhance the
Progress of the project for in time completion..
8)-Attend bi-weekly and monthly meetings with
contractor and SEC clients and prepare a report to
expedite the project activifies.

Major Projects:

380/ 115 KV Substation- Dhahran

115/ 13.8 KV Substation- Dhahran

Project:- 380-110/13.8 KV S/S KANDRAH -
Jeddah '

Essential Responsibiiities

1. Facilitaling and coordinating, as well as tracking,

of day-to- day acftivities required to ensure the = |

project is completed on time, successfully, and in a
manner consisfent with organizational goals,
departmental policies, and/or the standard terms
and conditions of the contract

2. Witness quality control inspections of substation
equipment to ensure thaf the work is initiated
according to SEC standards and project
specifications.

3. Monitor installation & testing work of
(380/110/13.8 KV) substation '

4. Witness all the pre-commissioning,
commissioning tests of all electrical equipment
installed in the subjected substation.

1 8. Check and review contractors IFC and As-built

drawings, material submittals, installation and
testing procedures, project schedule permits and

coordinate with the concerned agencies for getting
their approval.

6. Review type fest reports and routine site tests
performed by the Contractor / subcontractors af site
and independent test agencies in approved
laboratones. .

7. Instalfation and testing of Power cables and low
voltage cables / wires are supervised and submit

comments / deviations to the conltractors for proper
rectifications.




LAHOR ELECTRIC SUPPLY
COMPANY { LECS0)
ENGINEER ELECTRICAL

—

(SUBSTATION)

02/04

8 Organize, coordinate and conduct walk through
inspections of substation work, until alf

discrepancies are corrected and rectified by the
concerned agency.

9. Prepare daily progress report , and assist the
Project Manager in preparing weekly and monthily
reports of substation equipment (o enhance the
Progress of the project for in time completion

10. Create project status reports for SEC clients.

11. Adopt a proactive approach to identify risks to
project success and create and maintain a project

risk log; develop effective action plans for resolution
as early as possible.

12. Identify and report any quality or compliance
concemns and fake immediate corrective action as
required.

13)- Assist in punch lisf clearance

Projects:- 132/11 KV Grid Siations &

e — T T ——

Transmission Lines

Responsibilities:

1)- Develop full-scale projects plans and associated
communications documents

2- . Review of Manufacturer’s prequalification
documents, Manufacturer's compliance
statements, elc.

3- Complete track of site activities and identifying
crtical points and solve for closure.

4- Attend client / consultants meelings and solve
points for closure.

5- Safety coordination with site management.
6- Track the clients invoice according fo the work
completion and submit for payment.

7- Compliance with procedures and legal
management.

8- Assist in punch list clearance.

9- Effectively communicate project expectations to
team members i.e. project Manager, site manager,
in a timely and clear fashion.

10- Liaise with project stakeholders on an ongoing




basis.

11- Estimate the resources and participants needed
to achieve project goals. '

12- Preparation and finalization of supply request /
purchase order for all required equipments/
machineries complying with the contract
documents.

13- Coordinate with all the suppliers for appropriate
delivery of materials keeping the view not to delay
project.

14- Keeping a good relationship with the client and

fo provide a challenging work progress with full
satisfaction of client.

15- Draft and submif budget proposals, and
recommend subsequent budgel changes where
necessary.

16- Where required, negotiate with other
department managers for the acquisition of required
personnel from within the company.

17- Set and continually manage projects

expectations with tearm members and reporting
authority.

18- Track project milestones and deliverables.

19- Develop and deliver progress reports,
proposals, requirements documentation, and

presentations to the higher management and
clients. ’

20- Determine the frequency and content of status
reports from the project team, analyze results, and
troubleshoot problem areas. '

21-Supervise the work of Installation, testing,
commissioning, operation and maintenance of 14
No 132/11 KV substations . Termination & Testing of
132 711 KV XLPE Power cables with High voltage
test, insufation resistance test etc.

installation & Fixing of LV Circuit Breakers of
different ratings, Disconnect Switches (rating 20 A
to 1200 A),

installation, testing of earthing system nelwork.
Supervise the work of installation of CT, PT, C.83,

Power T/F, and D.C Battery & Rectifiers in a grid
stations




B.Tech.(hons) 4- years Degree of Electrical Engineering Technology

2) - Registration of "Higher Education commission of Pakisfan (HEC)
(Membership No.227-150-2004)

3} - 3-Years Diploma of (Associate Engineer Electrical) in 1979
4) - Membership of “Instifute of Engineers Pakistan in2004"

(Membership No.56605)
5) - Membership of “Saudi Councif of Engineer Saudi Arabia in 2011°

Trainings.

Management & Technical 06 weeks, AUGUST,
2002

On job training of ers and induction course at Faisalabad Engineering

Particiiation a2 f“

The Institution of Electrical & Electronics £ngineers (1. E.E.E)
(AUTHOR of power plant simufation sofiware}

sting Services (N.T.S d with 73 Percentile marks
T T = -

Safe operation of HV and LV Ckt Breaker.
Performance analysis of fire alarm detectors.
Performance analysis of fire suppression system
Visual inspections of substations

Power factor improvement

L}

»  Sound knowledge of operafing Computer and troubleshoot.
» Excellent abjiity to use Ms Office (Ms Word, Ms PowerPoint, Excel}
« Complete knowledge of using internet

« [ can understand and communicate in

« English .
»  Urdu
e Arabic

e [ocal languages of Pakistan

i % Nl i
] .;;%E» 4 I v o

- Date of Birth: October 14, 1959

» Fathers name: Shakoor Muhammad

+ Driving license valid Saudi Arabian
/

/ ’ - /
\Jﬁ



B s

Siemens in Pakistan

Global Resources - Local Presence

SIEMENS
' Y N
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e SEE : &

Pakistan's first Power & Desalination Cogeneration Plant in DHA, Karachi - A 94MW (15O} Combined Cycle
Power and a 3 million gallons per day Desalination Plant.

Siemens in Pakistan

Siemens' overall involvement in the
region dates back more than 130 years.
The company's name first became known
through the construction of the Indo-
European telegraph line from London to
Calcutta in 1870. Siemens' first office in
Lahore, what is now Pakistan, opened in
1922.

Siemens Pakistan Engineering Company
Ltd. was founded in 1953 as a Private
Company, and in 1963, the company
was registered as a Public Limited
Company.

Siemens enjoys a leading position in
Pakistan in the areas of Power
Generation, Power Transmission and
Distribution, Automation and Control,
Industrial and Infrastructure Solutions,
Medical Solutions, Transportation and
Information Technology Sclutions.

Our Top rankings in Karachi Stock
Exchange is the true testament of our
leading position and aiso a living example
of our vision which is “To remain market
leader and technology pace setter in the
engineering and electronics industry by
utilizing the high-tech engineering
expertise of the Siemens Group
worldwide. To maintain our strong and
prominent local presence.”

Globally, Siemens Group has 475,000
employees working to develop and
manufacture products, design and install
complex systems and projects, and taflor
a wide range of services for individual
requirements.

Siemens provides innovative technologies
and comprehensive know-how to benefit
customers in over 190 countries.

2

Energy Solutions
Power Generation Solutions

Fossil Power Generation
Gas Turbines and Power Plants
(68MW-340MW)}
Steam Turbines and Power Plants
(150MW-1900MW)
Fuel Gasification Technology
Combined Cycle Power Plants
Electrical Generators

Cil & Gas and Industrial Applications
Industrial Gas Turbines (4.7MW-48MW)
Industrial Steam Turbines
{(TMW-150MW)

Compenents for industrial power
plants including heat and power
cogeneration plants

Compressors (150-824,000 CFM) and
Drives

- PGW Compressors

- Air Compressors

-TLT Fans

instrumentation & Controls
Systems for all types of Power Plants
IT Solutions

Wind Power
Wind Turbines (On/Offshore)
Wind Farms {On/Offshore)
Ranging from 600kW upto 3.6MW

Services
Installation and Commissioning of
Power Plants
Inspections of Turbines & Generators
Modules & Upgrades, Rehabilitation
programs for Turbines & Generators
Long Term Service Contracts
Operation & Maintenance Cantracts
Heat Treatment services (upto 1200C)
Turbo charger work shop

Generating Sets

Installation, Testing, Commissioning,
Repair, Overhauling, Operations and
Maintenance Services of locally
assembled Diesel Generating Sets:
Upto 1.1MVA, 3-phase, 400V, 50/60Hz
Base load, Prime power or Standby duty
Automatic Mains Failure Units
(Relay based/Logic module based)
Changeover units - Manual/Motorized
Synchronizing units- Manuall/Automatic
Manual override panels
Main & Sub-distribution boards
Sound attenuated/Weatherproof
enclosures
Skid, Trailer/Trolley-mounted
Fuel tanks
Fully customizable and tailor made
options

Solar Energy Solutions

We are actively involved in Photovoltaic
business and have installed complete
Solar Energy Solutions across the country
mainly for House electrification,
Telecommunication (Microwave links,
Optical fibre & Digital exchanges), Water
pumping, Navigation, Qil & Gas fields
and Highway communication.

High Voltage Substations

Ranging from 72.5kV upto 500kV,
we offer complete solution for high

voltage substations including:

Project Management

Protection System Engineering and
Commissicning

GIS, HIS and AlS Gridstations
InfOutdoor Conventional Gridstations
Mobile Substation ranges from
72.5kV upto 220kV
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Dubai Sports City Stadium glitters like a jewe| at night. The substation for this magnificent
piece of architecture marvel is being set up by Siemens Pakistan along with the substations
for Festival City, International Media Processing Zone and Investment Park in Dubai.

Transformers

Installation, Commissioning, On-site
Testing, Re-engineering/Refurbishment,
Capacity Enhancement, Diagnosis & Life
Assessment of:
Locally manufactured Distribution
Transformers (upto S000kVA)
Locally manufactured Power
Transformers (upto 220kVi250MVA)
11kV Auto Transformers with OLTC
as Voltage Stabilizers
‘Rectifier Transformers
Furnace Transformers
Neutral Earthing Transformers
Dry Type Transformers (upto 2000kVA)
Reactors ,

Switchboards

Locally manufactured switchboards:
Medium Voltage Switchboards
MV Vacuum Circuit Breaker Panels upto
24kV, 40kA
MV Vacuum Contactor Panels upto
24kV, 800A
MV Load Break Switch Panels
MV SFé Gas Insulated Ring Main Units

Low Voltage Switchboards
Switchboards from 6300A upto 100kA
Power Centre & Motor Control
_Centre, fixed or draw-out type
Power Factor Improvement Plants
Distribution boards & Bus Tie Ducts
AC/DC Panels
Relay and Control Panels for
132/220/500kV Gridstations
Fan/Temperature/Auxiliary Control
Panels for Power Transformers
Soft Starter Panels

PLC Panels

Package Substations

Self contained, factory wired, separate

sections for MV, LV and Transformers
Pad Mounted Transformers upto
1250kVA

Kiosk type substations upto 2500kVA

Energy Automation

Protection & Control Systems:
Protection Relays, Relay Panels and
Control Panels

Power Quality Systems:

Energy Meters, Power Quality
Recorders, Fault Recorders
Substation Automation Systems:
Solutions for industry and utilities
with Smart Remote Terminal units

Substation Communication Systems:

Complete Solutions with Power Line
Carriers, Fibre Optic, Microwave and
High Speed Digital Link {HSDL)
SCADA & LDC Turnkey Solutians:
Comprehensive SCADA soluticns with
Energy Management Systems and
Distribution Management Systems

Power Transmission and
Distribution Services

Asset Services of PTD Solutions:
Maintenance, Rehabilitation,
Upgrading, Retrofitting, Spare Parts &
Transformer Life Management
Network Analysis & Consultancy:
Technical due diligence and Technical
Audits. Network Studies including
Load Flows, Short Circuits, Insulation
Coordination and Harmonic Analysis
Metering Services:

Automatic Remote Metering, Pre-
payment metering and Back office
operations (data processing)

P v

Bosicor 30,000 BPD Refinery Project - Siemens Pakistan carried out complete
Construction, Installation, Testing and Commissioning involving Civil,
Electrical, Mechanical and Instrumentation works.

Specialized Tools:

Software tools for Stability Studies,
Protection coordination & PTD networks
Customer Support & Training:
Support and Customized Training for
PTD problems

industry & Infrastructure Solutions
Standard Automation Products

Industrial Automation Systems
(SIMATIC PLCs)

Control & Distribution products
Process Instrumentation products
Discharge Reactors

Power Factor Relays

AC & DC Variable Speed Drives
Medium Voltage Motors

DC Motors

Wireless Modules

Motors

Low Voitage Locally Manufacturad

Motors
3-phase, solid shaft, squirrel cage
induction motors for industriai &
agricultural applications, THP to 400HF,
in 2, 4, 6 and 8 poles construction
3-phase, vertical hollow shaft, squirrel
cage induction motors for deep welil
turbine pumps, 7.5HP to 220HP in 2,
4 and 6 poles construction

Service and Repair
Pre & post purchase consuitancy
services for power solutions
Maintenance, repair, overhauls and
spare parts with full backup support
Installation, testing & commissiening
Turnkey contracts
Motor & Alternator rewinding
Dynamic balancing of rotating parts
upto 1000 kg



T

Water Supply Project K-1li, enhancing the water supply to
Karachi by 100 million gailons per day. Siemens Pakistan was

the consortium leader of the two Pumping Stations (Dhabeji

and NEK) built under this project.
Infrastructure Sclutions

Turnkey Infrastructure Solutions
including Project Management, Electrical
& Mechanical Design, Engineering and
Construction, Testing & Commissioning.
Electrical EPC for:
- {arge Industrial Parks
- Residential and Recreational facilities
- Airports and Tunnels
Balance of Plant and Electrical &
Mechanical Construction

Building Technology Solutions

Building Management System
Fire Alarm and Protection Systems
Security System/CCTV

HVAC Contrals

OSRAM Lighting Solutions
Voice/Data Soluticn

intelligent Traffic Solutions

Intelligent traffic solutions for:
Urban Traffic Control
Airfield Lighting

Oil, Gas & Marine Solutions

Oil & Gas solutions including compiete
Mechanical and Electrical erection in the
following area:

On/Offshore Production

Tank Farms, Drives for Compressors

Pumps and Gas Turbines

Pipelines

Oil Refineries

Water & Waste Water Solutions
Sea & Brackish Water Desalination

Water Telemetry & SCADA
Industrial & Municipal Waste Water

Treatment including Sludge Treatment
Water & Waste Water Treatment Plants
Water Pumping & Disposal stations
Screening & Membrane solutions
Pipeline & Disinfection solutions

Cross Industry Solutions

Project Management, Design,
Engineering & Commissioning of
Electrical & Process Control Systems
Distributed Control Systems for
Continuous & Batch Process Industry
SCADA Systems

Process Instrumentations
Management Information Systems
System Integration

Training & Workshops for Customers

On-call, Logistics & Maintenance
Services

Operation & Maintenance Service
(Industrial and Power Plants)

Repair, Overhauling & Maintenance
of Motors & Alternators

Condition Menitering (Thermagraphy,
Vibration Analysis, NDI & Qil Analysis)
Spare Parts Management

Call Centre for customer support
(021) 111-066-077

Information Technology Solutions

As a Value-Added Re-seller and
authorized Training Centre,
Siemens Pakistan is empowered and
equipped to provide comprehensive
SAP solutions

Business Solutions
SAP Turnkey Solutions: Core SAP
Solutions, SAP Industry, Core Banking,
and Utilities Solutions etc.

MCB Tower (tallest buiiding of Pakistan) and ABN-AMRO Bank, Karachi. Complete
Electrification and Lighting solution was provided by Siemens Pakistan.

Round-the-clock IT system support
and services to our clients

IT Infrastructure and Business
Connectivity Solutions

Software Development

IT Education

Siemens Learning Centre, state-of-the-
art, dedicated training center offering
SAP Education and IT Training

Siemens Transportation Solutions

Rail Automation

Traction Power Supply Systems
Mass Transit Systems
Electrical and Diesel Electric
Locomotives

Trains

Turnkey Solutions

Siemens OEM Onshore Soiutions

Security X-Ray Scanning Systems
Trace Detection Machines

Lawful Interception Systems - Voice
and Data Recording/Monitoring
Testing, Measurement and EMC
Equipment

TV Radic Broadcasting Systems
Road Side Communication

Radio Communication Equipment
Air Traffic Control & Navigation Systems
Radars

Siemens Home Appliances

Complete range of free standing

and built in appliances including split
type AIC's, refrigerators, gas cookers,
washing machines, vacuum cleaners,
dishwashers and a wide range of
kitchen appliances.
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Latest Multimodality Technology helping early diagnosis of diseases at Lady Reading  Quaid-e-Azam international Airport, Karachi
Hospital Peshawar. Siemens Pakistan installed state-of-the-art Cardiac Angiography Design, Engineering, Supply, Instailation and Commissioning of Precision
System Axiom Artis dFC, a dual head Gamma Camera, Ultrasound Systems Acuson Approach CATIl Lighting System, Runway Edge, Runway Centerline,

€V 70 and X-ray units.

Healthcare Solutions

lmaging and IT Solutions
Angiography Systems
MRI and CT Systems
X-ray Systems
Molecular Imaging Systems
Ultrasound Systems

Workflow & Soiutions
Women Health (Mammography)
Managed Healthcare Services
Clinical & Administrative Solutiens
Urclogy and Lithotripsy Systems
Radiation Therapy Systems
Image Management Systems
Telemedicine & Teleradiology

Diagnostics
Immunoassay and Urinalysis
Chemistry & Hematology analyzers
Molecular & Blood gas analyzers
Laboratory Solutions

Critical Care Solutions
{JV with Draeger)

Emergency and Precperative care
Patient monitoring System
Ventilator Systems

Solutions for Operation Theatre

Sarvices
Turnkey project execution
Project Management
Instailation and commissioning
Systemn integration/engineering design
After sales service support
Customer training

Taxiway Centerline Lighting System by Siemens Pakistan.

Our locally manufactured products at state-of-the-art
Industrial Complex, Karachi

Transformers Switchboards

Motors Diesel Generating Sets

Whatever the question is - we're providing the answer.
As we have been successfully doing for 160 years
around the globe.



Siemens Solutions for Megacities

Hospitals

Broadcasting Centre

Waste Water &
Sewerage Plant

Distribution

Siemens (Pakistan) Engineering Co. Ltd.

Registered Offices:

Karachi

Head Office & Industrial Complex

B-72, Estate Avenue, S.I.T.E.

P.O.Box No. 7158

Karachi - 75700

UAN: 111-077-088

Tel: +92 (21) 2574910-19
2561005-09, 2592000

Fax: +92 (21) 2563563, 2566218

Town Office

ILACO House

Abdullah Haroon Road
P.0.Box No, 7158

Karachi - 74400

Tel: +92 (21) 5635960-73
Fax: +92 (21) 5635979

Contact us at: )
businessdevelopment.pk@siemens.com

©Siemens Pakistan - All Rights Reserved

Lahore

Regional Office

State Life Building 15-A,

Sir Aga Khan Road, P.0.Box No. 293
Lahore - 54000

UAN: 111 -077 - 088

Tel: +92 (42) 6278758-67
Fax:+92 (42) 6363126

Islamabad

Regional Office

Sector 1-9/2, Industrial Area

£.0.Box No. 1098 Islamabad - 44790
UAN: 111-077-088

Tel: +92 (51) 4434981

Fax: +92 (51) 4434974

The information provided in this brochure contains general descriptions of characteristics of performance which in case
of actual use may not always apply as described or which may change as a result of further development of the
productsiservicesisolutions. An obligation to provide the respective products/servicesisolutions and their characteristics
shall only exist if expressly agreed in the terms of contract. Availabiiity and technical specifications are subject to change
without notice. The trademarks and their pictures used are owned by Siemens or their respective owners.

www.siemens.com.pk
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Quetta

Regional Office
Shahrah-e-Adalat

P.O.Box No. 21

Quetta - 87300

Tel: +92 (81) 2831311-12
Fax: +92 (81) 2831313

Peshawar

Representative Office

6th Floor, State Life Building
The Mall.

P.Q.Box No. 341

Peshawar - 25000

Tel: +92(91) 5276029

Fax: 492 (91) 5276187
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SIEMENS REFERENCE LIST

Siemens Pakistan Engineering Co, Ltd.
SET S0 ) High Voltage Substation Projects

Completion Year /

Customer { Contract Description .[Planned Completion. Voliage Level Arrangement
{Reference Llsl of HV Sub Stations - Comp|etod Projects ) .. . !
M iLahore ‘Pakistan =~ {Outdoor Conventional Single Bay,. Transfofmer Capacﬂy 12MVA o |Single Busbar :
2 jKarachi 7 ’_Pakislan ) Indoor Conventional Ring System (Ext.), 1 Bay. Ring Busbar F
' 3 :Karach‘l .. iPakistan ) _lindoor Conventional Single Bay, Transformer Capacnty 20MVA Single Busbar .
:1 4 :Nowshera :Pakistan :Outdoor Conventional Single Bay, Transformer Capacity 20MVA . Single Bushar ;
i 5 D ! ‘}Nooriabad ~ Pakislan . lOuldoor Conventional Single Bay, Transformer Capacity 10MVA 11985 ) ) ;Radial Feeder ;
s 5 a i t | B ki Outdoor: Conventional Single Busbar System, 3 Bays Transformer | i . . |
/ |peln Chomicals  fBela [Pastan |y 12, SMVA‘] 1685 a2k Single Busbar ;
1 7 . |Aftock Oil Refinery i Attock . ;Pakistan _ Outdoor Convenhonal Single Bay, Transformer - Capacily 7.5MVA 11986 ) o 32kv ) Radial - eeder i
L8 i ‘:Sheikhpura {Paidstan ?&‘fg&;ﬁ"""e"""'“‘ Single Bay, (Ext). Transformer Capacity 11987 f1a2 kv Single Busbar !
e . i . ! . L {
9 |PAEC(KCP I {Islamabad !Pakislan ?(;",‘1";’&,?"“""“"3‘ Double Trafo Bays, Transformer Capacily L1901 132 kv  |Radial Feeder !
| . Indoor Conventional Ring Bay, Transformer Capacnty FOMVA, 132kV | i .
1 ‘ - | ;
. 0 CAA R, lKafach| ) {Pak_",sm_r"” “under Ground Cablef Overhead Transmission Lie 11_991 , 132 kv‘ o Rnng Busbar i
11 |Ghazi Fabrics ;Lahore |Pakistan ?6‘,‘1";;:/?“""“"""3' Double Single Bay, Transformer Capacity 11991 132 kv Radial Feeder t
", |Pakistan Locomotive T i ’ Oultdoor Conventicnal Single Busbar System, 3 Bays, Transtormer | o s Ty
1 . K 11691 2 t
2 {Factory _ . :Rnsak‘)ur‘ . !.Paklstan> Capacity 6.3MVA ; 99 o 1? kY S Smgle Bushar !
13 KANUF'P o iKarachi 7 Pakistan ~~ |Indoor Conventional Smgle Bay, Transformer Capacnly 10!13MVA 11992 ) o 1azkv . Single Bushar E
' Outdoor Conventional Single Busbar System,3 Bays, Transformer i 2 KV Radiat H
14 GM “Corﬂnfnumcalmn ’ iChashmé o Pakistan _ [capacity 2 x 20/26MVA l199f1 N 132K . ‘ adial Feeder. ;
H Design, supply, erection, lesting and commissmmng of plant for Mukan . R ]
15““ ITI‘T.[?C \(\_IA?DA ) o Mullan o . Paklslan o  |500/220KV Substation ? 19'94 . o 500/220 IfV o adlal Feeder‘ !
16  |NTDC WAPDA Peshawer Patistan tDes'Q" supply, ereclion, tesiing and commissioning of plant of 500KV [, coe 500 KV Radial Feeder
R . o _ R Substation at Peshawar L i L . o
KESC, Surjani Town Grid . Indoor Conventionat Double Bus Syslem 4 Bays & 1 Coupler, ! v Double B
_m” ) Station __ Karachl o Ea&ns?n . .. iTransformer Capacity 40MVA o e 31‘996,‘ o i | 132 k, . . ouble Busbar
. C GIZI‘I Gnd Slauon i -Karat;hi o \Pakistan R Indoor Conventional Ring Syslem (Ext )| ] Bay' ) L !1996 L ook Rivng,B.usb‘a_r
19 ;gﬁgn Queens Road Grig Ikarachi Pakistan indoor Conventional Ring System (Ext), 1 Bay 1996 132 kv Ring Busbar
20 ESrSaggnB\'frV‘e(:laslm Lot I, iKarachi Pakistan Indoor Conventional Ring System (Exl.), 1 Bay 1998 132 kV Ring Busbar
"IKESC, Bin Qasim Lot Ii, ) T e indoor GIS Station, Double Bus System, 6 Bays & 1 Coupler, T T | bouble Bu
_ ,?1 _|Korangi West R K?r?(ih'_ o Pa@slan . |Transformer Capacity 250MVA, 220kV Transmission Line 1998 e 220 K . ouble sbarl/
KESC, 5th Power Project- . indoor GIS Station, Doubie Bus Syslem 6 Bays &1 Coupler, Doubi
- 22 |aueens Road 7 }Karachi o Pak|§lan “Transformer Capacity 250MVA N 1998 o 220 kV o ‘ ouble Busbar
KESC, 5ih Power Project- . indoor GIS Station, Double Bus System, 6 Bays & 1 “Coupler, (Ext.), 2 D b Busbar
] 21}  lQueens Road ) Karachi o ' Pakls‘lanr i * |Transformer Capacity 40MVA. . 19_98_ o 132 kV - oul usba
KESC, 5th Power Project ’ . Indoor GIS Station, Double Bus System, 11 Bays & 1 Coupier, {Ext), 1998 32 v D uble Bushar
',247 Korangi West %Karacm o Palfnvsrlanr o  {Transformer Capacity 40MVA B . e 132K [ °
25 \};Slig Sth Pawer Pro;ect- Karachi ' Pakistan Indoor GIS Station, Double Bus Syslem, 2 Line Bays (Exl ) 1998 132 kV Double Busbar !
26 |EssaCement 7 INoonabad istan |~ [Duidoor Convenlional Single Gay, Transformer Capacily 10/13MVA T 3d 7 [Radial Feeder |
27 Pakland Cemenl ... |Karachi_ 7 stan 7 tndoor Convenlnonal Single Bay, Transtorrner Capacily 20!26MVA L d . 1%82kvy __ iSingleBusbar i
i ' ) QOuidoor Conventional Double Busbar System, 7 Bays, Transformer
i 1998 132 kv Double Bushar
28 | Jepan Power P""?c‘ . Jwehore o PaksED o capadiy 4 x 45/55MVA Lo e pmw o (Dowblenshar
_|Bestway Cement _  ilslamabad = _ Pakistan _ |Outdoor Conventional Single Bay, Transformer Gapacity 30MVA 0 1997 T ls2pv_ . [Radial Feeder
30 BOC Gases !Kara chi Pakistan indoor Conwentional Smgle Busbar System, 3 Bays, Transformer L1997 132 kv Single Busbar |
O O L T . [lGapacityzomvAa . : : { R, L R i
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? IEens Eatilstan Engineering Co. Ltd REFERENCE LIST
em Il . .
SET SO High Voltage Substation Projects

Completion Year

Location Country Contract Description i Voitage Level Arrangement
f ) Saba Power ;Lahore ?Pakislan ‘Ouldoor Convenlional Single Busbar System, 3 Bays. 7 o Single Busbar )
ii 32 PARCO “;Mullan IPakistan (Ouldoor Conventional Double Bay, Transformer Capacily 2 x 45/55MVA {2000 220 kv Radial Feeder 7
i 33 |Islamabad University {lslamabad |Pakistan " ' |61S Double Busbar Transformer Capadily 2 x 160MVA 2003 220 kV ‘Double Busbar ;
_ 34 __ lislamabad University i Istamabad . |Pakistan __iGIS Double Busbar Transformer Capacily 2 x 20/26MVA 2003 o |12k Double Bysbar 1
I 36 _IPAPCO o ;Karachi Pakistan AlS Grid Stalion Exlension _ |2004 132 k¥ " [Single Busber i
v [ ) .
5. s lwaso (Pakistan Pakistan g&g’g&’w\°’“’e““°"a' Double Trafo Bays, Transiormer Capacily 2004 132 kv Radial Feeder !
§ L o ) "~ |Outdoor Conventionkil Single Busbar System, 3 Bays, Transformer . . ; {
N 37 _ Bahria Town . !lslamabad. . Pak1slar1 Capacily 10/13 MVA . . ’2004 . j32 kv Slngle Busbar ‘
33 NTDCIKESC EKarachi Pakistan GIS, 2 Line Bays 2 Trafo Bays 12006 500 kv Ring Busbar i
139 INTDC/KESC _ iKarachi Pakistan GIS, 2 Line Bays, 2 Trafo Bays ) o 12006 o 220 kV . 'Ring Busbar_ |
40 NTDQ ... . |Rewat Pakistan _ Qutdoor Conventional, Extension of one Diameter . o 2007 500 kV 124 Breaker Scheme |
1 N e N - 1
1 H
National Transmission & i |
¢ - i i . Contract No_: 2570 - Design, Supply, Erection, Testing & Commissioning H
41 ?I\T‘?E?S‘ Company Limited !Sahlwal iPakistan of Plant for Sahiwal 500/220/132 kv Substation 2007 500/220 kV 1%2 Breaker Scheme |
i
42" Sitara Chemicals ‘falslabad - }Pakls!an,‘ " 120/26 MVA Feeder Bay Extension o7 oo lid2kv Single Busbar
_ 43 |Maple Leaf Cement i Mainwali iPakistan iOne Line Bay, 2 20126 MVA Trafo Bays _ 2006 . 18%2kv Single Bushar
44 "|KESC Old Town ]Karachi ,Pakuslan C" " iTwo Line Bays, Two Power Transformer Bays and Cne Coupler Bay 2007 o o H32kv ... |Double Busbar
7 45__|KESC Queens Road |Karachi iPakistan Two Line Bays and Three Power. Transformer Bays _ C2007 T MB2ev 77 iDouble Buskar
L 46 KESC Wes! Wharf ~ {Karachi fl?akistanv . Two Line Bays, Two Power Translormer Bays and One Coup1er Bay 200? o 132 kv . |Double Busbar
. 47 KESC Vallka ‘Karachi Pakistan __ |Two Line Bays Extension 12008 . [132_ kv __ iDouble Busbar
i One Auto-Transformer Bay Two Line Bays " Two Power Transformer
48 KESC Mauripur jKarachi Pakistan Bays and One Coupler Bay for 132kV, One Auto Transformer Bay, Four {2007 22001132 kv Double Busbar
D B o o o . _ILine Bays and One Coupler Bay o . . . o .
' . One Auto Transformer Bay at 220kV, Two Line Bays One Auto-
. 49 KE§CKDA e Karachl. i - Paﬁisrlanv ~_ _{Transformer Bay and One Power Transformer Bay . _ - 2007 i i 2??’132 kY L PW?"’ Busbar
.50 |KESCBaldia ~~  jKarachi o Pakistan _ |GIS, 2 Line Bays, One Trafo Bay 2008 L 220/132ky  |Double Busbar
51 Karachi Pakistan Sbl,c\ioor Conventional System, 2 Line Bays, 1Transformer Bay 10113 2007 132 kv Single Busbar
52 YBahmaTown " jlahore " “{Pakistan " |Ouldoor Conventionai System, 2 Line Bays, iTransformer Bay Colzoos” T T U RAZkVTT T T 7 (Single Busbar
|53 |BatiaTown | \Rawabpindi " Pakistan  ~J1oMaMvA T T TTisops T T H3kv 7 isingle Busbar
i bar
!
National Transmission & Gakkhar (Nokh Contract No.: 2017-21 - Design, Supply, Erection, Testing and
54 Despatch Company Limited Gfl‘ranw a(l a ar) - Pakistan Commissioning of Plant for Gakkhar 500/220/132 kV Substation under |2010 500/200/132 kV 12 Breaker Scheme
(NTDCL) . J i KFW Loan Number BMZ200365882
; | i
| ' |PIEDMC Sunder ~_ tahore __ _|Pakistan ____ iTwoLine Bays, 1 40 MVA Power Transformer Bay T 2009 oo hezwv 7 lsingle Busbar
. . __iKarachj _ . {Pakistan d2 bays in KCR GIS R 2011 o j220kv Double Busbar
" avas Power Lahore " iPakistan ) i 2011 T 7 {220kv T iDouble Busbar |
Joosan_ . _iDhand " "0 T fPakistan T e e [BORE L 1220KY . |Double Busbar
Lahore v {Pakistan Smgle bay, 40 MVA Transforrner . B 2011 o Lok Single Busbar.
60 IESCOG-13 'Islamabad .. _ . iPakistan  |Design, Supply, Teslmg& Commnssmnmg of 132kv AlS Subslahon i 2012 o2k _{8ingle Busbar

Page 20f 7



SIEMENS

Siemens Pakistan Engineering Co. Ltd.

SET SO

(NTDCL)
82 |MEPCO

63 Bahna Town

i 64 _ |MEW Arghanistan
85  |MEW Afghanistan
X 66 IMEPCO
67 DHA
68 /IESCO18

69 LBG & B&V WV

National Transmission &
81 Despatch Company Limited ' Ludewala

83 |MEW Agghanistan

9 IMEPCO

70 LBG & B&V WV
i...71_ . |Agha Steel Mits

72 {Nishat Chunnian

73 |MEPCQ. h

74 MEPCO

National Transmission &

75 Despatch Company Limited
- ...... INTDCL)

78 JESCO

.77 [MEPCO

i) HESCO B

70 |HESCO

80 |HESCO = _

81 HESCO

82 Agha Khan & KESC

84 IGEPCO

85 GEPCO

a8 _IES/GQJ!G .

.87 |G
. .88 JGEPGO

89 Bahna Town

90 JDWM‘IIs " .
LB (DWMils
92 |RYK Mins

93 |LESCO

‘94 |MEPCO

95 |MEW Afghanistan

: Muttan
; Rawalpindi

‘Kabut
‘Kabul

'Multan
'Karachi
/slamabad’

.Naibabad Afghanistan’ Afghanlstan

,Kabul, Pul e Khumri
-and Chimtala
 Afghanistan
‘Karachi

iMultan

iMultan

‘Loralal
!lslamabad
rMullan }
,Jacubavad

1 Sukkur

iLarkana
{Talhar

" IKarachl

*Mahlpur
Deska .
Godhpur
! :Islamabad
1Kolo Tarar

_ | Jatapur Nao

iLahore
1Ghotkl

) {Rahim yar Khan

{Rahim Yar Khan_
iMomlnpuna
’Multan '

__ iNaghhy - Kabul

Multan

Couhlry

{Pakistan

‘Pakistan

{Palistan

{Pakistan_
:Pakistan

{Patistan

éPakislan
i Pa kistan

EAfghani stan
{

"\Pakistan

{Pakistan
|Pakistan

_;Pakistan

!Pakistan

gPal‘u"slanv .
{Pakistan

‘Pakistan

IPakistan

iPakistan

'Paklstan

iPakistan

LPakIstan B
{Pakistan

_ {Palstan
\Pakistan

lPakdstan

~ {Pakistan

iPakistan

" |Pakistan

{Pakdstan
Pakistan

IPaklslan
[PaKistan

§Pakls_tan R )

iPakistan

REFERENCE LIST
High Voltage Substation Projects

Contratt Destription

:Contract ICB No. GLW-04 - Design, Supply, Instaliation, Testing &
;Cummissioning of Extension of 220 kv Ludewala Substation &
1Associated Works at Chashma | & Il and Daud Khail Substation on
\Tumkey Basis

'132kV AIS Substation at Qasim Bagh

!Deslgn ‘Supply, Testing & Gemmissioning of 220/132kv AIS Substanon ;2012

111020 KV AIS Sub-.latlon -3 No 40 MVA Power Transformers .
.Supply of Equlpmer-t (Distribution Transfon'ners MV Switchgear)

! 132KV AlS Substation at WAPDA Town Multan

I e . . L H
Indoor Conventional System, 2 Line Bays, 1 Coupler Bay, 1Transformer 2012

lBay 40 MVA

| Design, Supply, Testing & Commissioning of 132kV AIS Substation 2012
1Exten5|on of 3 # 220 kV Shunt Reaclor Bays Including 2 # 25 MVAR and 32012

|1 # 10 MVAR three Phase Reactors

*Exlensmn of 3 # 110 kv Capagcitor Bank Bays at Chimtala -Extension of .
‘2 # 220 kV Capacitor Bank Bays at Pul 8 Khumri - Extension of 1 # 110 2012

i kV Capacitor Bank Bay at Kabul North

1132kV AlS Susblatlon at Agha Steel Mills Port Qasum

| 132kv AIS Susblallon al Nishat Chunnlan
132kV AIS Substatlon at WAPDA ann Mullan

" 1132kV AIS Substation at Lam District Multan

wTender Mo. ADB-52-2009 - Design, Manufal:lure, Supply Ereclion,

| Testing & Commisstoning on Tumkey Basis of 220 kV AIS Loralal Gird
i Station (Tranche i) . . . Lo
L 132kV AIS Substation at IESCO Noopur Comieted in 2014
) r132kV AIS Substation at Kameer_ iComieted In 2014
Demgn. Ins(allatlon Teshng & Commlssioning of 1 32kV ALS S.’S 2015
;Conversion of 66KV into 132KV Grid Station along with " 2015
Conversion of 66KV into 132KV Grid Station along with T 2015
1Cunwefsicm of 86kV into 132kv Grid Station along with T/L 2018
132kV GIS Grid Station on Turnkey Basis 12018
Rehabifitation of 110kv Grid Stalion at Naghiu ~ 2015
! Design, Installation, Testing & Commissioning of 1326V Substation 2015
‘Design, InslaIIatlon Testing & Commissioning of 132kv Substatlon . l2015
iDesign Supply, Testing & Commissioning of 132kV AIS 5ubslalinn 2015
|Deslgn Installation, Testing & 0ommlsslonlng of 132kV ALS S5 2015
{Design, instafiation, Testing & Commissioning. of 132KV A LS SIS 2015
Extension of Trafo Bay at Bahria Town Grid Station 2015,
132KV AIS Grid Station on Tumkey Basis at Ghotki Sugar Mils 2015
132kV AIS Grid Station on Tumkey Basls_at Ghotki Sugar Mitts 2015
132KV AIS. Switchyard at RYK Mills 2018 _
'Design, Installation, Testing & Commissioning of 132kV AlLS Subslatlon 2016
132KV Falehpur Substation vnth Transmlsslon Lines 20_16
Rehabilitation of 110kV Grid Station at Naghiu _ 2016 .
132KV Alipur Substation with Transmission Lines 2016
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‘ Cortpletion Yedr /
Planned Complstlon

I

v
3
1

2012

2012

2012
2012

{2012

'2012

12012 )

i2013
12013

Tk

Voltage Laval

Date: 26-05-2022

2201132 kY

132 kV AIS

1220132 kV

110/20 kv

132 kv

132 kv

132KV
220 KV

220 KV and 110 kV

132 KV
132KV

132 kv

132 KV
2201132 kv

fazkv
132 kV
132V T
132kV
182 KV
132kv
132KV
110k
132kV

132V
132V

1320
132V
132 kV

a2

132 kv
a2
1310V

"haaw

“ISingle Busbar

. iSingle Busbar
A
. i8ingle Busbar
. |Single Busbar
_ |Single Busbar
" |Single Busbar

.| Single Busbar

" {Sigle Busbar

_.Single Busbar

§1‘/= Breaker Scheme

iSchema
‘ Slngle usbar
;Dnubla Busbar

v
i

:Single Busbar
{Scheme
iDoubIe Busbar ;
iSingle Busbar i
Double Bushbar
Scheme

iDouble Busbar
[Scheme ) L

*Slng|e Bushar
{Single Busbar
|Single Busbar
{Single Busbar

i
1% Breaker Scheme

|Single Busbar
Single Busbar
Single Busbar
Single Busbar
Single Busbar
Single Busbar

Double Busbar
|Single Busbar

Single Busbar
Single Busbar

Single Bushar __
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Sr.
No.

97

98

99

100

101
102
03

104

105

106
o7
106

109

16

11

112

113

114

_|Gharo Solar 50 MW

_|Authority (DEWA)

_|Aulhorily (DEWA) _

Ctistomer

Ministry of Energy & Water

(MEW)

Hamza SugarMills ,
KEIPPIPID!MUTfom )

! KEIAKUH-Dedlo

220 kv Gardez S/
LESCO

HE1 - HRL Joint Venture

China Machinary
Engineering Corporation

Bahria Town
PESCO-01 -
HESCO-01- Relendenng
DABS/007ICE

DABS/010/ICB

Golen Gol

" |Bahria Town

National Transmission &

iKhulum

‘Rahim Yar Khan
{Karachi

.Karachi _

! Afghanistan
;Saggain

:Balloki

j Jhang

| Pakistan
Lahore
Rawalpindi
|Peshawar _

iHyderabad

b - -
|Khulm — Afghanistan
iAfghanislan

{Chitral

N
;Rawalpindi

Despatch Company Limited Sahlwal

{NTDCL)

Dubai Elact icity and Water |
Dubai Eleclricity and Water’
Aulhorily (DEWA)
Dubai Electricity and Waler
Aulhorily (DEWA)

Dubat Eleclricity and Water

~ |Authority (DEWA)

Dubai Electricity and Waler |

_jAuthority (DEWA) .
Dubai Flectricity and Waler
_jAuthority (DEWA)

Du

i Electricity and Water |

_|Authority (DEWA)

Dubai Eleclricity and Water

_{Authority (DEWA)

Dubzi Electricily and Water

. {‘ 3
"|Reference List of HV Sub Stations 132 1kV GIS - Projeécts Executed in UAE T

_\BRES)

~Arah|an Mali (ARML)
. .

Wadi (WADI)
Sporls City (SPRT)
'Ryadha (RYDA)

'Spons Club (SPCB)

'Bur] Residence

‘OId Town (OTWN)

!Dubal Logistics Park
iOffices (DLPO)
iJabel alt Airport Cargo

lgaacy

3

i
i
i

|
1

yAfghanistan

iPakistan
Pakistan
Pakistan
Afghanistan
Pakistan

Pakistan

Pakistan

Pakistan
Pakistan
Pakistan
Pakistan

Pakistan

_‘Alghanis!an

Pakistan

Pakistan

Pakistan

Pakistan

United Arab Emirales

United Arab Emirates

United Arab Emirates

Uniled Arab Emirates

iUmled Arab Emirates

Umled Arab Emirates

United Arab Emirates

Unned Arab merales

United Arab Emlrates

REFERENCE LIST
High Voltage Substation Projects

Conlract Description

|
inW Norih Easl Power System (Afghanistan) Contract Agreement No.:
2010 65283 - Lot 3 220/20 kV Substation Khulum

!132kV GIS Swilchyard at Hamza ngar Mills

1132 KV Lyari Maripur G/S Tumkey Basis.

1132 kv Agha Khan Grid Station.

1220kv Gardez Substahon Alghanistan.

|DeS|gn Installalion, 'estlnq & Commissioning of 132kV GIS 518
:Design, Supprles Transportation of 500 kV Eqmpment for Balloki 1223
iMW CCPP, Pakistan )

F220 kV Switchyard Area Englneenng Design (Purchase & Service) for
f1263 MW Punjab Power Plant, Jhang

[132111.5kV GIS ‘Substation and EBOP at 50 MW Gharo Solar PP
I132kv Gnd Slallon Bahria Orchard

[132kV AIS Grid Station at Bahria Town Rawaipindi

) |132kV AIS Grid Slallons on Tumkey Basis.

i Procurement of Plant, De51gn Supply, Installation & Construction of New
1132 KV (AIS) GS al New Malli _alongwith T/L o

‘220kV Subslallon at Kabul Soulhwesl Afghanlstan '

‘Procuremenl of Plant Desngn Supply and Installation of 220/110/20kV
|S/8 al Andkhoy, Sheberghan & Expension of Mazar-e-Sharif $/S
:Engineering and Design of 132/11kV Substalions at Chitral, Trmergara
and Chakdara

Ex1ensnon of 220KV Auto Transformer Bay

‘Extension of 5001220 kV Bay al Existing 500/220/132 kV Sahiwal
}Subslation

132kV GIS Substalion

132kV GIS Subs!allon

iDesngn Sprpiy, Teshng & Commissiomng of
Design, Supply, Testing & Commissioning of
Desigﬁ' é-uép-vry.,.'i'es1i.n-g;'.!. Commlssmx;mg ;::f- 132kV GIS Substahon
Design,- Supply, Testing & "Commi;sl-c;n-in.g o-f
Desig-n; S\;;ply,HTesling-E; Commlssmning -of 132k\l GIS Substahon
. Supp! 10 & Commissioning o 132kV GIS Substation

132kV GIS Substation

Dcsign. Supply, Tcsling 8 Commissioning of

Des«gn Suppiy Teshng & Gomm|ssuonrng of

Pesign, Suppry Teshng & Commlssmnmg or 1;32k\l GIS Subslalicn

Deslgn Supply Tesllng & Commissnonlng of 132kV GIS Subslahon

Paged4of 7

132kv GIS Subslallon

Completion Year /

Planned Campletion

Year

2016
2016
2016
2016
2018

2018

2018
2020
2018
2016
2016
2019

20186

2017

2020

2007

2007

2007

2008

2008

2018

2019

2007

2007

2008

Vollage Level

1220120 KV

132KV
132 kv
132 kv
220 kY
132 kv

500 kv

220 kv
132 kv

182Ky

132kv
132kv

132 kv
1220 kv
132/220 kv

132 kV
20k

500/220 kV

13é kv
132 kv
132 kV .
132-k\)
13é k\)
132 k\) -
132 .k\; o

132 kV

132 kV

Dale: 26-05-2022

Arrangement

|{Double Bushar

14 Breaker Scheme

1% Breaker Scheme

|
Double Busbar
Single Busbar

Single Busbar

Single Busbar

_ iDouble Busbar

Breaker & Half

Double Busbar
Double Busbar
Double Busbar

Double Busbar

Double Busbar

Double Bushar

Double Busbar

Double Busbar

Double Busbar
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20
21

22

25

26

28

31

- 32

23
24
27

29

30

Custormer

I
Aulhonty (DEWA)

EDUbaI Electricity and Water
i Authority (DEWA)
| Dubai Eleciricily and Water
xAulhonty (DEWA)
|Dubai Eleclricily and Water |
|Authority (DEWA)
iDubai Electricity and Waler
: Authority (DEWA)
,Dubal Electricity and Water
| Authority ({DEWA)
{Dubai Eleclricity and Water
Authority (DEWA)
1Duba| Electricity and Water
;Authonly (DEWA)
|Dubai Electricity and Water

Dubai Electricity and Water Dubal Logistics trelghl,

_ {Authority (DEWA)

{Dubai Electricity and Waler
Authority (DEWA)

’ |Duba| Electricity and Waler |

{Authority (DEWA)

EDubal Electricity and Water
!Aulhonly {DEWA)

i Dubai Electricity and Water’
Authority (DEWA)

{ Dubai Electricity and Water
[Authority (DEWA)
Dubal Electricity and Water
Authorily (DEWA)

Authority (DEWA)

Dubai Electricity and Water
Authority (DEWA)

Authorily (DEWA)

Dubai Electricily and Water’

JAuthorlly (DEWA)

Federal Elactricity & Water

. JAuthority (FEWA)

Federa! Electricity & Water

| Authority (FEWA). _

Dubai Eleciricity and Water

Dubai Eleclricity and Water
.. 1Authority (DEWA)_ i
Dubai Electricity and Water

Dubai Electricily and Water
_{Authority (DEWA)

‘forwarders (OLFF)

Umm Al Sharif
{{UMSF)

"Hospi:al (HSPL)

!United Arab Emirales
l
|
H

United Arab Emirates

Umled Arab Emirales |

REFERENCE LIST
High Voltage Substation Projects

Contract Description
j
i
,Design, Supply, Tesling & Commissioning of 132kV GIS Substation
’De5|gn Suppiy Teslmg & Commlssmmng of 132kv GIS Substation

Deslgn Supply, Teshng & Commlssmnmg of 132kV GIS Substation

Khaleej Tejari (KTJR) Umled Arab Emirates- [Demgn Supply, Testing & Commissioning of 132kV GIS Suhstation

: Investment Zone
H{INVZ)

‘Capilal Investment
19CPTY)

|Mirdif cily Centre

| (MDCC)

Dubai Bio tech
Substation (DBTH)
| Airport

¢ Residence(AR_SD)
'Sludio city(STDO)

1 Logistics(LOGS)

| [Pio(PILT)

’Zabeel Park(ZPRK)
{Dubai World Trade

Centre(DWTC)
Bur} Dubai

Dragon Mall
Meadows
CUC Cargo

DCA Phase 2

Meeras

Girath

Ajman PS

Jewel of Creek

lUmled Arab Emirales !
‘Umled Arab Emirates !
EUmted Arab Emirates

Umled /\rab Emirales

’

.‘LUnited Arab Emirales
H .
United Arab Emirales

EUnited Arab Emirates

{United Arab Emirates
United Arab Emirales
lUmled Arab I:mlrales

Umled Arab Emiralas

United Arab Emirates

Umled Arab Emirales

Umled Arab Emirales

United Arab Emtrales

United Arab Emirates

United Arab Emirates

i United Arab Emirates !

Uni1ed Arab Emirales |

Desngn Supply, Tesling & Commissioning of 132kV GIS Subslallon

Desugn‘ Supply, Testing & Commissicning of 132kV GIS Subslation
Design, Supply, Testing & Conlmmissionim;:; of 152kv GIS Subslation
1Design, Supply, Testing & Conl1m|’ssi0ning ;>f 132kv GIS Subs!élion
Design, Supply. Testing & Ccrr;miésioning of 132kV GIS Substation
iDesign, .Supp|y. Te;sting & Commissioning of 1:;2kv GIS Substalion
1Desngn Supply, Testmg & Ccmmlssmnang of 132kv GIS %ubstahon
[

lDesugn Supply Testing & Commlsswnmg of 132kV GIS Substation

Demgn Supply Testlng & Commlssmmng of 132kV GIS Substation

De5|grl Supply, Tesilng & Comm| snomng of 132kV GIS Suhslanon
Demgn Supply, Tesung & Commissioning of 132kv GIS Subslahon
Desagn Supply Testnng & Ccmmnssmnmg of 132kv GIS Subslauon

DeS|gn Supply Tesllng & Commissnonmg of 132kv GIS Subslahon

Design, Supply, Testing & Commissioning of 132kV GIS Substation

tDesign, Supply, Testing & Commissioning of 132kV GIS Substation
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De5|gn Supply Testing & Commnssnonmg of 132kV GIS Substation
Des1gn Supply, Teshng & Commtssmmng of 132kV GIS Substation

Desugn Supply, Testlng & Oommssmnmg of 132w GIS Subslalmn

De5|gn Supply Tesung & Commlssloning ol 132kV GIS Subslahon

Completian Year /

Planned Completion

{zoog
22009
32009
fzoog
22009
%2005
izoog
52010
i2010
52010
12010
2010
2011
2011
2011
2011

2011

2011

2012

2012

20114

Voltage Level

1132 kv
i

'
1132 KV
|

§132 KV

132 kY
@132 kv’
1132 k{/
\132 KV
132 kv

132 kV

132 kv

132 kV

132 kv

132 kV

i

132 kv

132 kV

132 kv

Dale: 26-05-2022

Arrahgement

Double Busbar

! Double Busbar
1 Double Busbar
Double Eusbar
:Double Busbar
Double Busbar
EDouble Busbar
Double Busbar
Déuble Busbar
Double Busbar
D;)uble Busbar
Doﬂble Busbar
Double Busbar

Double Busbar

Double Busbar

*'Double Busbar

Double Bushar
Double Busbar

Double Busbar

Double Busbar

Double Busbar

Double Busbar

Double Busbar
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REFERENCE LIST
Siemens Pakistan Engineering Co. Ltd.
SE TS0 High Voltage Substation Projects

Completion Year /

Contract Ceseription Planned Completion Voltage Level Arrangement

] ] I ; ’ |

! a3 I'IL—;‘edr:-:ral Electricily & Walter ;Nakheel PS ;fUniIed Arab Emirates |Design, Supply, Testing & Commissioning of 132kV GIS Substalion I2012 132 kV Double Bushar ’
i uthority (FEWA) ; ! i | ‘ ;
1] i i : ! \ i i
; . : ; : |
b34 JFederal Eleclricity & Waler :Shaggy fUniled Arab Emirates |Design, Supply, Testing & Commissioning of 132kV GIS Subsiation 12012 132 kV i Double Busbar :
i {Authority (FEWA) ; i j | ;
", 35 |Federar Electricity & Waler ERAK PS iUniled Arab Emirates ;Design. Supply, Teslir.g & Commissioning of 132kV GIS Substation 2012 132 kV iDouble Busbar
) {Aulhorily (FEWA) i i i ) ) . . o R N i ) ) i
| |Retemnce List of HV Sub Stalions Projects undor execution : : 1 : I
| j ) ! .
: i } ISur\rey, Design, Manufacturing, Supply, Consiruction, Installation, ! ,
i 1 KE TP-1000 iKarachi {Pakistan lErt-:-t:tn'm Tesling, Commissioning, Energization and Handing over on '2022 2201132 kV - i
| ; ! | | Tumkey basis for KE Transmission Packages - in total 29 Grid Stations
[ 2 |AMoiz ] {Punjab | {Pakistan 1132kV AIS Switchyard at Al-Maiz il Sugar Mills N 1132 kv ___iSingle Busbar '
' 3 Shahtaj Sugar Mills _{Punjab iPakistan ,132kV AIS Switchyard at Shahtaj Sugar Mills X ! o 5132 kv ) iSingle Bushar !
Coca Cola Beverages [ | . i ; (. !
! 4 Pakistan Ltd. ‘GUJranwala ;Paklstan ;132kv A',S SW|ch1yard o ‘ ; -132 kv is'lngle Busbar ;
‘I, | : 5 iDesign, Engineering, Manufacturing, Faclory Testing, Supply, | F :
{DESCON Engineering ! . , Supervision of Instaliation Carryout Testing, Commissioning, ! i i
b5 Limited :Elihad jPakistan Pesformance Test and Training of 132 KV Switchyard al 74.40 MW Co- | {132 kv .
) . ' {Generalor Power Project, at Rahim Yar Khan, Punjab, Pakistan ! E i o0 . !
6 Naveena Steel iKalachi Pakistan 1132 kv Substation al Naveena Steel ! 132 kV b !
Greenesol Power Syslem N 'De5|gn Manufacturing, Supply, Supervision of Installation, Testing & | ’ .
" lpwud, Tandlanwala o Pakistan {Commissianing of 132 kv Substalion at Chanar Energy Limited b 182 kv 0 ;
8 ;K Electric iKarachi iPakistan 220 kV GIS Substalion al Dhabeji 2022 220/132 kv IDouble Busbar :
9 chalec Solor iKarachi ]Pakislan ‘ 32 kV Subslahons for 3x50 MW Solar Power Plants |2022 {132 kv llDoubIe Busbar ;
e : S - - . . . . RV L
Nalional Transmission & ; i
L . . WB-07A-2020 - Desugn Supply and Installation of Augmenlahon Works f
10 ?hﬁg;tgn Company Limited |Faisalabad Pakistan al 220 kV Sumandani Road & Gakkhar Grid Station 2023 220 kv -
‘INational Transmission & Banu & WB-07D-2020 - Design, Supply and Instailation of Extension Works at
11 Despatch Company Limited Daud Khel Pakistan 220 kv Daud Khel Grid Station & Augmentation Works at 220 kV Bannu {2023 220 KV -
3 HNTDCL) . ) , {Grid Station
National Transmission & L
; Sibi & . WB-09A-2020 - Design, Supply and Fnstallahon of Extensvon Works at :
2 g\fﬁggg‘ Company Limited |, o atai Pakistan 220 KV Sibi Grid Station and 220 KV Lorala Grid Stalon 2023 20ky - |
National Transmission & T o - 1 ’ ‘ S I A o
. WB~OQB 2020 - De519n Supply and Installation of Augmenlahon Works
13 :Jrﬁ.gecu:lf? Company Limited {Quetia Pakistan at 220 kV Quelta Industrial Grid Station 2023 220 kV -
National Transmission & ' Sibi & A ' “WH-08B-2020 - Design, Supply and mstallation of Augmentation Works !
14 Despatch Company Limited Lclarala' Pakistan at 220kv T.M Khan Road & Hala Road Grid Station & Extension Works 2623 220 kV -
_{NTDCL) _ o ) ' e L . _lat 500KV Jamshoro Grid Station o e 1. B N
Tlsiddque Sons  |Karachi Pakistan 132KV GIS Substation at Saddlque_S - 2022 o H1¥2kV e }
_{nterdooplLtd ~ |Faisalabad = Pakistan __ . 132KV, AI$ Substation for Intericop Lid, i022 . oH32RV
__|Naveena Sleel L _|Karachi o Pakistan L Exiensmn in 132 kv GIS Suhs!allon at tes (2022 e t32kv
National Transmission & Sibi & WB-10B-2020: Design, Supply and Installation of Extension Works al
18 Despalch Company Limited Loralai Pakistan 220kV Grid Station Islamabad University & 220kV Grid Station New 2024 220 kV - i
CHUNTDCL) ) ! o o _ IKotlakhpat and Augmentation at 220kV Grid Station Ludewala ) ) SV S !
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\Karachi

REFERENCE LIST
High Voltage Substation Projects

Completion Year /

Contract Description Planned Compietion

{Pakistan '%K_E Hubchowki addition of 3 Nos. GIS Line Bay

Vaoltage Leve!

132 kV

Date: 26-05-2022

Arrangement

Karachi

{Pakistan 150 132kV KKi Grid Station
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ANNEXURE IV

TECHNICAL PROPOSAL AND PLAN OF
THE PROJECT |

A.FEASIBILITY REPORT
B.RELEVANT FEEDER MAPS
C.NUMBER OF CONSUMER AND EXPECTED LOAD

D.CONSUMER CLASS/CATEGORY, SUB-CATEGORY ON THE
BASIS OF SANCTIONED LOAD AND VOLTAGE LEVEL

E. TARIFF CATEGORIES OF CONSUMER CLASSES

F. DEMAND AND CONSUMPTION PATTERN ON DIFFERENT
TIME PERIODS



FEASIBILITY REPORT

Bahria Town (Pvt.) Limited is Pakistan’s leading private sector real estate developer engaged in
developing and delivering highly successful world class housing communities all over Pakistan
and in this context Bahria Town Lahore (BTPL) has developed a high standard living projects
comprising of 02 distinct areas of housing schemes, First area situated along the canal near
Mohlanwal Lahore (Bahria Town Mohlanwal) while second area a few kilometers apart from
first, on Raiwind Road Lahore in the name of Bahria Town Orchards Lahore.

The schemes are located approximately 20 KMS from Lahore, close to Mulian Road Lahore and
on Raiwind Road Lahore (Mohlanwal and Orchards respectively).

The total area of both schemes at present is 56,045 Kanal.

Keeping in line with international standards, spacious network of roads and avenues has been
developed. Play grounds, parks, sports facilities, clubs, hospitals, educational institutions, street
lights, security and firefighting arrangements have been most adequately incorporated.

Both schemes have their own dedicated 132 kV grid stations, telephone exchanges and gas
distribution networks,

The electrical distribution network is underground. The total assessed load requirements of both
schemes are 200 MW for Mohlanwal and 110 MW for Bahria Orchards.

Mohlanwal area is fed through 132kV grid station with 02 x 20/26 MVA Power Transformers
with 3% 31.5/40 MVA power transformer under installation through M/s. Siemens EPC
contractor after approval of extension of load by LESCO from 40 to 70MW.

To meet all future requirements in Mohlanwal, construction of new 132kV GIS grid station with
2x31.5/40MVA transformers has also been undertaken.

For Bahria Orchards, the area is being fed from 132kV Bahria Orchard grid station which has a
capacity of 2 x 10/13 MVA power transformers at present.

The said grid station is capable to meet all future requirements through augmentations / additions
casily. '

The key features of the Bahria Town are as under.

i) Town Planning:
BTPL through world class town planners have provided residential facilities for all walks
of life. It has farm houses, bungalows, town houses, apartments, commercial areas, all
developed and built on international standards which provide options for everyone to
avail true modern living concept at competitive prices.
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2)

3)

4

6)

7

8)

Roads:
Roads are wide, carpeted and have walk ways on both sides.

Markets / Shopping Malls:

Every area has its own market and shopping malls are in central locations which satisfy
all residents needs.

Hospital:
In both housing projects (Mohlanwal and Orchards), State of Art Hospitals are operative
with all modern facilities. Even open heart surgeries are also being carried out.

Mosques

Bahria Town Mohlanwal contains Pakistan’s second largest Jamia Mosque where five
times prayers are offered. Likewise Bahria Orchards has a central Jamia Mosque. These
are apart from Sector mosques for the ease of residents residing any where in the area.

Recreational Facilities:
The community contains gold class cinemas, country club, parks, Zoo, restaurants,
children play areas, and a five star hotel facility for the residents.

Security:
BTPL is providing a fool proof security of the area at all entry points alongwith mobile
squads, check posts in order to provide peaceful environments for the residents.

Provision of Electricity:

BTPL like their other housing projects has given a top priority to quality of electricity to
ensure interruption free and top quality electricity services to their residents in Lahore.
Bahria Town therefore opted for its own underground distribution networks on one point
bulk supply basis from LESCO through arrangements under distribution licence. BTPL
have obtained bulk supply connections in both its locations at Lahore through C3 tariffs
at 132 k'V grid stations constructed at Bahria own costs.

Both grids (Mohlanwal and Orchards) were constructed by M/s. Siemens as EPC
coniractor after approvals from LESCO meeting all NTDC specifications with approved
loads of 70MW and 19.6MW for Mohlanwal and Orchards respectively.

Bahria Pays LESCO every month on tariff C3 and has never defaulted. Further to, Bahria
has laid down its own network meeting all LESCO/NTDC and international
specifications through underground system and billing its residents (customers) without
discrimination (at same utility tariff, approved by NEPRA), through a licence obtained
from Govt. of Punjab during 1999.
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Bahria has applied for Distribution Licence from NEPRA since 2008 after the creation
of NEPRA to look after its customers in a best possible manner.

Babhria has its own standby generators which match the grid station capacity and are used
to meet the interruptions / shortfalls at both grid stations.

In fact, the provision of quality electric supply is the hall mark of Bahria Town which is

widely appreciated by the residents and is a major attraction for the public to reside in
Bahria.

The basic features of distribution network are as following

a) Infrastructure:

The HT ana LT distribution network is underground and has been constructed by
BTPL according to WAPDA specifications / international standards at Bahria’s own
cost. It comprises of following major equipments.

s HT/LT Cabies

e Ring Main Units (RMU’s)

o 11/0.4kV Pad Mounted Transformers

» Distribution Boxes

s LT Service Cavles

» Metering System

This quality infrastructure developed, supervised and maintained by competent and
experienced staff has made both the communities feel living in entirely different
communities compared to all other adjourning area.

b) Operation and Maintenance:

BTPL has its own department responsible for operation and maintenance of
distribution system. The trained staff with proper T&P. Safety equipment and
transport is available round the clock to attend consumer complaints, emergencies
and system faults.

Metering and Billing:

2TPL is carrying out 'p::eter reading of energy consuined at each consumer nremises,
on the basis of which, hilling of energy consumed is made and collection of electricity
bills is done accordingly. The disconnection of consumers on nonpayment of bills
and reconnections upo~. payment of outstanding dues is also practiced and followed
eiiiciently.

In fact, the environment and facilities for residents in Bahria Town Mohlanwal and
Bahria Town Orcharcs Lahore (Like all Bahria projects), are matchless to any other
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ho_using project in thé country and Bahria’s Town management with their vast -
business volume, strong financial strength have made affordable to all categories of
buyers and subsequently residents due to their diversified residential facilities.

The housing project also remains sustainable for Bahria management because of their
very large scale of successful business in this field with a track record that Bahria

Town Lahore has never defaulted in payment of monthly huge bills to LESCO
as a bulk supply customer.
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NUMBER OF CONSUMERS AND EXPECTED LOAD

1) Number of Consumers = 26576 (Oct 2023)

2) Maximum Load Recorded
1. 132KV Bahria Mohlanwal Grid Lahore = 40 MW (July 2023)
2. 132KV Bahria Orchards Lahore = 8.5 MW (July 2023)

3) Expected Maximum Load
1. 132KV Bahria Mohlanwal Grid Lahore 45.0 MW (June 2024)

2. 132KV Bahria Orchard Grid Lahore = 11.0 MW (June 2024)

]
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CONSUMER CLASS / CATEGORY , SUB-CATEGORY ON

BASIS OF SANCTION LOAD & VOLTAGE LEVEL

(Jan-2019)
Sr. No. Consumer Class / Sanctioned Voltage Level No. of
Category Load Consumers
01 Residential A-1 Above SKW 400/230 VoIt 10,645
02 Commercial A-2 Above 5KW 400/230 Volt 1,053
03 Services G Above 5KW 400/230 Volt 428
Total Consumers 12,126

(Pagelofl)




TARIFF CATEGORIES FOR DIFFERENT CONSUMER CLASSES

Bahria Town Lahore has following (03) categories of tariff for its customers / premises in their
service territory.

1) Residential Al - All residential customers, workers accommodations
mosques etc.

2) Commercial A2 - All commercial customers and contractors

3) Services G - Street Lights, Parks, Water Tanks etc.
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BAHRIA TOWN GRID STATION MOHLANWAL SUMMER & WINTER LOAD DETAIL FOR YEAR 2023

WINTER LOAD IN MW

SUMMER LOAD IN MW

TIME 07-JAN-2023 22-JUNE-2023 REMARKS .
1 11.58 35.77 ‘
2 11.16 34.42
3 10.47 32.58
a4 9.91 30.82
5 9.40 . 27.26
6 8.63 25.26 IN SUMMER MAXIMUM LOAD OF
7 751 23.63 40.33 MW RECORDED ON 22-JUNE-2023
g 7.40 22.40
9 7.23 22.68
10 8.70 22.40
11 10.35 22.46
12 10.88 24.14
13 10.67 0.00
14 0.00 28.14
15 12.00 28.68
16 13.00 27.23
17 13.89 3123
= T 29.98 IN WINTER MAXIMUM LOAD OF
" 470 5533 14,70 MW RECORDED ON 7-JAN-2023
20 0.00 31.25
21 14.47 0.00
2 13.51 34.60
23 13.11 39,32
24 12.88 ' 40.33°




12

10

" DEMAND AND CONSUMPTION PATTERN ON DIFRENT TIME PERIOD BAHRIA
ORCHARD

w
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BAHRIA TOWN GRID STATION ORCHARD SUMMER & WINTER LOAD DETAIL FOR YEAR 2023

WINTER LOAD IN MW

SUMMER LOAD IN MW

REMARKS

TIME 18-NOV-2023 22-JUNE-2023
1 261 6.39
2 2.59 6.12
3 2.44 5.73
q 2.27 5.59
5 2.37 4.69
6 2.12 4.64
7 1.83 4.49 IN SUMMER MAXIMUM LOAD OF
8 151 4.41 7.41 MW RECORDED ON 22-JUNE-2023
S 1.90 5.12
10 2.36 5.32
11 1.88 5.32
12 2.53 5.22
13 2.29 5.49
14 2.64 5.90
15 2.69 6.39
16 2.58 6.54
17 251 6.14 IN WINTER MAXIMUM LOAD OF
18 3.36 5.58 4.02 MW RECORDED ON 18-NOV-2023
19 3.68 5.59
20 3.76 5.95
21 4.02 6.08
22 3.76 6.81
23 3.64 7.41
24 2.80 7.00




ANNEXURE V

SERVICE TERRITORY, BILLING
PROCEDURES AND EQUIPMENT

A.PROPOSED SERVICE TERRITORY

B. BILLING AND COLLECTION PROCEDURES

C.ABILITY TO ACCESS CONSUMER METERING
SYSTEMS AND OTHER SERVICES/EQUIPMENT

D.BASIS OF COMMON SERVICES FOR COMMERCIAL
AND RESIDENTIAL CONSUMERS |

E. TYPES OF METERING SYSTEM

F. METERING AND TESTING FACILITIES



BILLING AND COLLECTION PROCEDURES

(Including provisions for remote metering)

Bahria Town Lahore is billing its customers under Nepra’s tariffs and purchasing electricity in

bulk supply tariff at C3 from LESCO through Bahria Town 02 grid stations (Bahria Mohlanwal
and Bahria Orchards).

As per NEPRA pfovisions: Bahiria Town is applying same tariff for its category of customers
which LESCO other DISCO’s apply. Bahria Town is following LESCO/DISCO’s billing /
collection programs which are proven effective and efficient.

For implementations, Bahria Town management has introduced its own SOP which defines the
duties and reading cycles for meter reading staff as well as billing section staff.

Bahria Town management also applies same procedure for customers defaulting on payments,
disconnections and subsequent reconnections on payments.

BILLING AND COLLECTIONS

ELECTRICITY BILLS
Eleiwicity biils are being generated / issued in accordance with Nepra’s tariffs (as amended time
to time).

Meter readings / billings
1. Billing Clerks completes Main Billing Record issued previous month, showing unpaid
bills details on 20" of each month.

2. Billing Clerks will obtain details of handed over houses of new connections for
construction during the biliing month from Possession Department.

(OS]

Billing Clerks will include newly handed over houses of Mohlanwal and Orchards where
meters were installed during the billing month in the Main Billing Record.

4. Manager Billing will check and ensure that 100% new Connections have been included
in Main Billing Record.

5. Manager Billing will hand over updated Reading list showing Previous menth’s reading
~fZouses / Shops to inchirge Meter Readers for taking Meter readings as per following

schedules:-
1. Banria Mohlanwa: - 21 to 24 of each month
i Bahria Orcharcs - 25 t0 28 of each month
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10.

11.

12.

14.

.
N o
DA

ST U r 1

Incharge Meter Readers will take 100% readings & return reading sheets duly completed.
to Manager Billing as per following schedule:- ™~

1. Bahria Mohlanwal - 22 to 25 of each month
ii. Bahria Orchards - 26 to 29 of each month

Manager Billing will hand over the completed Meter Reading lists after checking to
billing clerk / computer cperator for preparation of bills as per following schedules:

i Bahria Mohlanwal - 26 to 28 of each month
ii. Bahria Orchards - 2910 31 of each month

Billing Clerk / Computer Operator will prepare the bills according to the applicable tariff
and put up to Manager Billing for checking as per following schedule.

1. Bahria Mohlanwal - 22 to 25 of each month
ii. Bahria Orchards - 26 to 29 of each month

10% LP Charges will be imposed on House/Shops who will deposit bills after due date
as mentioned on Electricity bills. However, SGM(CS) can consider relief on case to case
basis.

Manager Billing will ensure that 100% Electricity Bills have been prepared & distributed
to the Houses / Shops and no house / shop is left without billing. He will also ensure that
arrears / unpaid bills of last month have been shown in the current bills.

Manager Billing will hand over the bills after 100% checking to Bill distributor as
schedule given below for distributing to the Houses / shops.

1. Bahria Mohlanwal - 26 to 28 of each month
ii. Bahria Orchards - 28 to 30 of each month

Account assistant will collect bank receipts daily from MIB, Askari, Sindh, Allied, Faysal
and UBL banks BTPL Branch at 1700 hours and hand over to DEO for entering collection
in Mein Billing Record.

. Billing Clerks wiil hand over the Bank receipts to Accountant for maintaining Cash Book

after making payment entry.

Billing Cierk wili put up dzfaulter list to Manger Billing on 11" of each month of Bahria
Mohianwal 16" of each month of Rahria Orchards.
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15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

22.

24,

Payable dates of bills will not be extended as a routine. Approval of SGM (CS) will be
required on case to case basis.

Manager Billing will issue disconnection orders of defaulters who failed to deposit the
Electricity bills of previous months & hand over to Incharge Meter Readers for
disconnection the Electricity supply.

In case of non-payment of Electric bill for one month, Electricity connection will be
disconnected. Connections will be restored on payment of bills & reconnection fee shown

as under. However, GM(CS) may grant relief as deemed appropriate on case to case
basis.

Amount (Rs) - Fees

Up to 1000 - Rs. 100/-
Between 1001-to 5000 - Rs. 500/
Between 5001 to 15000 - Rs. 1000/-
Between 15001 to 500C0 - Rs. 2500/-
Between 50001 ¢ 100000 - Rs. 5000/-
Over 1 Lac - Rs. 7000/-

On production of bill deposit copy / Reconnection Fee, Manager Biiling will issue
reconnection orders to Incharge Meter reader for Electricity resterations.

Manager Billing will put up Monthly Electricity Consumption report showing details of
units received consumed during the month.

Billing of Dead Damaged meters will be charged as under:-
a. As per consumption of electricity of proceeding year of same month
b. Average electricity consumption of last three months.

}

. Manager Billing will preyare Comparison state showing recovery and Electricity bill

issued by LESTO of the tilling month.

21! consurmers ~ill pay Eiectricity / Maintenance charges bills. However, Chairman /
30, can waive i fexemyt the charges.

. SGM carn ailow installmen:s to the client billing on case to case basis.

Cwrer of sronerty will be responsible to provide the allotment letter & copy of CNIC for
change of ownership on utility bills.



25. Long outstanding arrears will not be written off (except allowed by CEO). Electricity
‘Supply of the said defaulter houses / plazas will only be restored after payment of dues /
arrears. '

MAINTENANCE OF ELECTRICITY ACCOUNTS

LI

W

~1

. Accountant of Billing Department will maintain Electricity Bills Accounts.

Account Assistant will collect Bank receipts from banks and hand over to Concerned
Computer Operator for bill paid entry in main billing Record summary. -

Accountant will cobtain Bank Statements from Bank at the end of each month and
tally all collections with Bank Statement.

. Accountant will make reconciliation statement if balance does not tally with the bank

Statements.
No payment will be made out of this account.

Accountant will be responsible to get audit of the Accounts from Audit Department
on monthly basis.

Accountant will put up the Balance sheet duly completed to Manager Billing at the
end of the each month.

Manager Billing will put up the balance sheet duly endorsed with remarks to
SGM(CS) for signature in first week of each month.

Bahria Town Lahore is managing tilling and collections without any difficulty based
upon modern digital stat'c single phase meters, three phase meters and CT operated
meters.

Being a compact service territory, with private setup and a lesser number of customers
(approx. — 26009 Nos), there has not been any problem in metering or billing.

However, Bahriz, in future, plans to introduce remote metering as a modern technology
for customers where frequent and constant monitoring is needed.
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ORGANIZATION CHART OF BILLING DEPARTMENT

BAHRIA TOWN LAHORE

SENIOR GENERAL MANAGER

L

1

|

MANAGER (BILLING )

ACCOUNTS OFFICER

-

|

COMPUTER SECTION
HEAD

ACCOUNTS ASSISTANT

BILLING OFFICER

COMPUTER OPERATOR

BILL DISTRIBUTORS
(04 NOS.)




ABILITY TO ACCESS CONSUMER METERING SYSTEMS AND
OTHER SERVICES / EQUIPMENT

Bahria Town Lahore distribution network comprises of following components to provide quality

supply of electrical energy to its customers.

1) 11KV Feeders underground.

2) 11KV Ring Main Switches along walkways.

3) 11/0.4KV Pad Mounted Distribution Transformers along walkways.

4) LT Feeders underground from Transformers to Distribution Boxes installed along
walkways.

5) Services Cables underground for each customer from Distribution Box to customer’s
residence gate.

6) Energy Meters installed at wall / pillar adjacent to gate on road / street side.

As such, there is no physical / legal issue in accessing to all meters / equipment for meter

readings, maintenance or for any other development activity.

Due to Bahria’s modern and futuristic town planning, corridors / spaces for services and

equipment have been adequately and esthetically provided.

03 Nos. drawings (sections of distribution network) attached show the locations of all
equipment like 11KV lines, RMU’s, Transformers, DBs, services meters and clearly indicate
accessibility to every equipment / meter by any means of transport for meter reading,

attendance of faults, maintenance and development works.
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LEGEND

PAD MOUNTED TRANSFURMER

LT DISTRIUTION BOX(DB)

- |Under Ground Service

jm=1

anem—— lUnder Ground main Cable




i

.9&

h

R R

B R T

T

135" hansd

9 7 90’
135 Man 307 30 o wing 2

P NN

s-_ﬁr{amﬂg

o

R f 18 v, pLOTS |

S0

s
30’ ) geq ;mﬁsa
4/4/ % W

RDAE "40"~0” WIDE
: sat

S04

501

&gt

1O g
Déd:_/’f@] d
4 -
ff 120-\’\/ I D E 120° —~__ 8
s i i . | I : ;
s T
-MPLOTS s 1 MY
Joxeo L =
] ! ; I o
Fzsg sivzah | %QL-E:ZQG 3
N~ L~ A\ N
- [} (. L N
ROAD 40°-0" WIDE s |G| an
Py 69 T2 270
/9643 94\4 I | 200KVA
«sBENndEEL:
v =7 v /
5 3
. . A
1
/s os)lgl s o3
iy 3 MR g -
N YN
| I X @
| A S || SN
1 T M T
;] lw) | FalR ] / Lw] (A5 \
EeERY E Ty
™ ¢ oG I N 5 M
1 =/ \ /
g i
gt ey
s n [ ra n :
=7 g 7
31| 908 2/ 982

Cvi

\RLA PLOTS pszine |

DEZL’ZA‘I‘

(D\\L/

[

301/’\ L0-.0F avhy

08

i owlzsm

995
/o
ke 14
:\'\u 8
L\\ an ) "T‘
\ i
N
7
/o ] .
g & it | ROAD 40°~0* WIDE
\; ! 8\ g L_____._ﬁ 4 0 —
= : -
L8 > 'g%_;c S NN A
S B A s IS Teeae | onss
[ (‘E = ‘ | E i
]/§ é = g* S ;L:ﬂvzieq 3D’x-§1@-ﬂ}zea}
/; < 2 \ é W } f !
o © F—y A
A = e~
m = M ROAD 40'-07 WIDE
g g e Lasa[ | a—wzgu ,_.
: AR
® ° .
5 E: L. &. %:t -M D_HS
S

6001 VA

30&6
i
[

!

T

I [

228

Pt

'XgBD' E qszmw O DEz12A9‘ Yy
RIS

40 §j wmgo_ﬁ—_j

oz

2A7§

i

/‘ﬁﬁmg

14
K4 —;
4 T-2 M | ; 1 \Ji\
73(0 200 ’ ; A GhEL-Z gd
= TS 3
ﬁ ; ; I H
= | QE;O b
o 1

) g1 SL*Z 84 .

S0k

6

a2t

ot

(=

Ity *\

43

ARLA PLOTS PBieAs

i

Iy
i

S10Td VIV - 8

1PA-1G :
P MARLA PLOTS ?Bm“a

53212;\1% 0

24& 2?( 60’ msz 12A122

0821%21 8]

SRur
S
/g g\
SR

S

~J

E

L s6
g 4 o | ~
%’w 1‘ 0 suimzq]a ! ﬂralaaiq
5 2 W | 8+4M, PLOTS]
h) x ; (" :
o o ~30 <60
: 0
U

504

<
<
=
-
0
a
8
<
-~
@
a

ROAD 40-0° WIDE )g
T — 50 |

(699 [0s9)
Y
/|

é““

ROAD 109'~0" WIDE,

06 A

ﬂ‘\

!



State of Consumers - -

1

R R {Jan 2024)
Sr.No. Consumer Class/ Category No of Consumers
1. | Residential 22586
2 Commercial : 2891
3 Services 800
Total Consumers 26277




DETAILS OF BASIS OF COMMON SERVICES FOR COMMERCIAL AND RESIDENTIAL
CONSUMERS AND THEIR ALLOCATION THEREOF;';;_. -

Dated : 2-1-2024.

Sr. LOAD
No. Description (In XW)
1 Parks, Zoo & Recreation Areas 1500
2 Disposals 4953
3 Water Supply 2610
4 Street Lights 3500
’7 . -
| TOTAL 12,563




TYPE OF METERING SYSTEM

Bahria Town (Pvt.) Limited Lahore for th= sake of transparency has been using energy meters
with same specifications as those of other utility companies (DISCOS). As such, Bahria Town
Lahore is procuring all energy meters from vendors which are prequalified by LESCO/WAPDA.

Bahria Town at present is using following type of energy meters which completely address
Bahria / Resident’s requirements under NEPRA’s applicable tariffs.

1) Single Phase Static Meters.
2) Three Phase Static Meters.
3) CT Operated MDI Meters.

Bahria management through above energy meters is satisfactorily billing the residents / its
customers without any problems / complaints due to Bahria’s own dedicated billing section

operating under a senior general manager.

Importantly the metering is in line with the tariffs applicable to customers approved by NEPRA
for distribution of electricity in Bahria Town Lahore like other distribution companies.

However, at 132kV both grid stations, LESCO has installed MDI-CT operated metering systems

which record energy (active and reactive) and maximum demand for billing to Bahria Town

Lahore as bulk supply customer under tariff C3.
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METERING AND TESTING FACILITIES

Bahria Town management is procuring energy meters from LESCO/WAPDA prequalified
manufacturers and due to its manageable size of procurement, carries out testing / calibration

and thus ensuring accuracy of all meters at manufacturer’s premises before those are installed.

In fact all tests required like display indications, phase indications etc. are ensured at
manufacturer’s premises. Bahria Town takes utmost care in transportation of meters from
manufacturer’s premises to Bahria Town warehouse and further to places of installations to

eliminate any chance of mishandling and subsequent malfunction.

Bahria management has in house facility of checking of meters in case a customer challenges

the accuracy,

The in house facility to address the complaint easily detects the inaccuracy. But to satisfy the
customers, Bahria Town metering section installs a calibrated check meter in series with the
challenged / inaccurate meter to determine the difference in consumption over a period

acceptable to customer and metering section.

Bahria Town Lahore is developing its own meter testing laboratory for complete meter testing

arrangements which is likely to take one year.

Currently Bahria Town Lahore is in agreement with M/s. Transfopower Industries (Pvt.) Ltd,
Lahore who are providing meter testing facilities required for any meter reported malfunctioning
for the satisfaction of Bahria’s customers and in the interest of Bahria Town Lahore’s accurate

metering and biiling programs (copy of the agreement is attached).

Once the meter is declared incorrect, it is replaced through meter change order format issued by

Manager Customer Services with all details of old meter and new meter.
Likewise if a meter is reported / detected dead stop or slow, it is replaced through a meter change

order generated by customer services section with all relevant details.

The format of meter change order is attached.
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CONTRACT AGREEMENT

This AGREEMENT made at Lanore as of 15® day of March n the year 2019 by and between

Brig Bakhtiyawar Lal Hussain (Retd) Director Services, Bahria Town (Pv:) Limiteq
Lahore {Hereinafter called OWNER of the 1% part)

And

M/s Transfopower Industries (Pvt) Limited, Fifa Buitding Opposite Punjab Stadium, Main
Ferozepur Road, Lahore, Head Offica, 2-KM Katar 8und Road, Off Multan Road, Thokar Niaz
Baig, Lahore {Hereinafter callc.; Manufacturer on 2™ Part)

WITNESSED that OWNER and MANUFACTURER in consideration of the mutual coverants
hereinafter set farth, agree as follows: - w2 o

>

w,

& i

" trgue®
M/s Transfopower shall provice testing facilities to Bahria Town Lahore on deman:‘!bfor all
type of energy meters from Transfopower meter testing labcratories which are certified and
equipped with all testing faciities for measurement of energy. Further-to, if at any time,
Management of Bahria (Pvt) Ltd (Lahore) requires, M/s Transfopower shall also extend their
mobile meter testing facility - any kind of meter testing in the jurisdiction/service territory
of Bahria Town Lahore.

ARTICLE — 1: ERVICES;

e LT

ARTICLE - 2 ERVY H

M/s Transfopower shall be entit'ed to charge as following:-

1.

(1) Meter testing for sirgle phase meters = Rs 100/- per meter
{Rupees one hundred only)

!

(2} Meter testing for thr2e phase meters = Rs 300/- per meter

(3} Meter testing for CT Jperated meters = Rs 1,000/- per meter
{Rupees one thousand only) x

Meter testing for a2/ type of meter =

1
1
3
1

{Rupees three hundred only) $ :

N
= Rs 10,000/~ per meter (\
With mobile meter Lesting unit on site (Rupees ten thousand only) ©

)

&

R
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=3 vigi £

(1) i

Transgortation of meters to the workshop and nack wilt he the responsiility of Part
One except where festing on Site s recommendad

(2)  M/s Transfopower shall e obliged to provide meter festing results for each meter
within three (03} working days on receipt of meters
ARTICLE - 4; MODE OF PAYMENT:

M/s Transfopower shall raise the invoice for al! meters received and tested at the end of
every month whereas Bahria Town (Pvt) Ltg Lehore shall be obiiged to make tha payments
within three {03) v-eeks of receipt of invoice

: P |3 .

The period of agreement shall be initially for tweive {12} months of signing of sgreement as

by that time Bahrta Town Lahore shall estanlish its own meter testing facility. Hawever, the
agreement shall be 2xtendable with the mutial wngerstanding of ooth osrties

NTACT P N %) H

Al the notices are to be made from either party to the following nominges: -
6.1

Fromn Menufacturer's Sige:
Mr. Miar Nazim
Chief Operating Offtcer

M/s Transfopower Industries (Pvt) Ltd
Head Office, 2-KM Katar Bund Road

Off Multan Road, Thokar Nisz Saig, )
Lahore

From Owner”
Engr Muhammad Shakil,
GM (Electrical Maintenance),

Alfatah Plzza, Executive Head Office
Bahria Tovm Mohlanwe!, Lahore

N WITNESS WHEREQF the parties nera to nave executed this agreement the day, month ang
year first above written.

OWNER MANUFACTURER
For Batwia Town {Pvt) Limited Far Transtapawer Industries [Pvt) Limited
\‘--., o -
: (a/( SR e
,4./’ - . LY
(ngg»ﬁa htiyawar Laf Fissain Retd) Mian Nazim-shosewnbon =7 ,
ADirector Se| Bahria Top‘g» J.ahcre Chief Operating Officer

2-KM Katar Bund Road, Off

Muitan Road Thokar Niaz Baig,
Ltahore

;’ "
Witness: 5

witness:



Transportation of meters to the workshop and back will be the respons:bility of Part

provide meter testing results for each meter

=3 i Provisi is;
1)

One except where testing on Site is recommended.
(2} M™/s Transfopower shall be obliged to

within three {03) waorking days on receipt of meters.
T - 4; EOFP T:

M/s Transfopower shall raise the invoice for all meters received and tested at the end of
every month whereas Bahria Town (Pvt) Ltd Lahore shall be obliged to make the payments

within three (03) weeks of receipt of invoice.

= 5; P OF EMENT:

The period of agreement shall be initially for twelve (12) months of signing of zgreement as
by that time Bahria Town Lahore shall estanlish its own meter testung facility. However, the
agreement sha#l e extendable with the mutuai understanding of botn parties.

E - 6: CONTACT PE NS ARD

All the notices are to be made from aither party to the following nominees:-

6.1 Erom Manufacturer’s Side:
Mr. Mian Nazim

Chief Operating Officer

M/s Transfopower Industries (Pvt) Ltd,
Head Office, 2-KM Katar 8und Read,

Off Multan Road, Tnokar Niaz Baig,
tahore

Erom_Qwner's Sige

Engr Muhammad Shakil,

GM (Electricai Maintenance},

Alfalan Plaza, Executive Head Office

Bahria Town Mghlanwei, Lahore

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties here to nave
year first above written.

OWNER

For Bahria Town (Pvt) Limited
s ’ » ~ 1,
. ﬂ/m L hdes

J Pz

(Bl;lq'saﬁhtiyawar ussain Retd)}
_Director Services Bahria Tows; Lahore
. .'??- S

T 't he

executed this agreement the day, month and

MANUFACTURER

For Transrfopower Industries {Pvt)} Limited

Mian

LY

Fam ez 4
Chief Opearating Officer

2-KM Katar Bund Road, Off
Muitan Road Thokzr Niaz Baig,

Lahore -

N

.!U

Witness: s
N

Sanvnt



PART-I|

ELECTRICITY METER CHANGE ORDER

1. Connection order No, Dated / /2019

[
-

Meter No,

3. House No.
4. slock

S, Seclor.

[ Owner's Nome

7. Type of connection =V Domestic ¥ Commercial

During checking of Meter reading it found, that the meter installed in above
menfioned House i not shown electicity consumption. Therefore the
defecled / dead meter is required to be changed as soon as possible.

SGM (CS) / Manager (CS)
PARTICULARS OF METER

Old Meter New Meter !
1. Meter No.
2. Meler Reading = + = t
3. Date of Installation
4, Reason lor Replacemeni
5. MelerCost = Yes / No :

Dale:

GM EBlectrical (Malntenance)}




ANNEXURE VI

PROSPECTIVE & OPERATIONAL
DETAILS OF THE PROJECT

A. PROCUREMENT PLAN FOR MEETING EXPECTED LOADS

oMo

p—

12-MONTH PROJECTIONS ON EXPECTED LOAD, NUMBER
OF CONSUMERS, AND EXPECTED SALE OF UNITS FOR
EACH CONSUMER CATEGORY

. 3-YEAR INVESTMENT PLAN INDICATING

SCHEMES/MODELS/FRAMEWORK FOR UNDERTAKING
SUPPLY OF ELECTRIC POWER

TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT PROCEDURES AND
MANUALS

CONSUMER SERVICE MANUAL

EMERGENCY PROVISIONS AND PROTOCOLS

AFFIDAVIT

AUTHORIZED STATEMENT

AFFIDAVIT



PROCUREMENT PLAN FOR MEETING EXPECTED LOADS

INCLUDING OWN GENERATION AND OTHER 1.ONG TERM AND
SHORT TERM PPAs

Bahria Town at present is relying upon LESCO who have sanctioned 70MW power connection
at tariff C3 under NEPRA'’s provisions through Bahria’s own 132kV grid station Mohlanwal +
19.5 MW sanctioned load from 132kV grid Bahria Orchard.

To mitigate all the future load demands, Bahria Town Lahore has proposed a new grid station in

Sector-F Mohlanwal with a capability of 2x40MVA power whose site has been inspected by
LESCO board.

To meet the ultimate load demand of Bahria Town Lahore approx. 200MW in the distribution

network, 40 feeders have been designed and proposed, out of which 12 feeders have been laid.

132kV Orchard grid station has been provided a space for 3™ and 4the bays and also a with

enhancement to 80 MW to meer the total assessed load requirement.

As such, with extension of load from 40MW to 70 MW, Bahria Town'’s requirements shail be
mitigated up to the year 2027.

Bahria Town is simultaneously considering the development of Coal / LNG based own power

generation in the vicinity of their projects for the benefit of Bahria as well as consumers in
accordance with NEPRA’S provisions.
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12-Maonths Projections on Expected Load, Number of Consumers and Expected Sale of Units for Each
Consumer Category

Expected No. of Consumers Sale of Units

Month Load Residential Conumercial Services Residential Commercial Services
TOTAL TOTAL

{in MW) Al A2 G Al A2 G
Jan-24 18 22,586 2,891 8500 26,277 5,887,493 2,634,077 1,611,264 10,132,833
Feb-24 15.75 22,880 2,929 810 26,619 4,912,940 2,207,419 1,354,729 8,475,089
Mar-24 19.15 23,177 2,967 821 26,965 6,535,097 2,948,321 1,816,319 11,306,337
Apr-24 28.97 23,478 3,005 832 27,3158 9,474,455 4,295,122 2,659,630 16,429,207
May-24 48.03 23,784 3,044 842 27,670 13,763,792 6,265,360 3,894,019 23,923,171
Jun-24 49,61 24,021 3,075 853 27,950 14,933,870 6,826,550 4,270,987 26,031,408
Jul-24 53.22 24334 3,115 864 28,313 16,722,353 7,668,649 4,820,344 29,211,346
Aug-2- 54.87 24,650 3,155 876 28,681 16,368,110 7,539,811 4,755,401 28,663,321
Sep-24 40.98 24970 3,196 887 29,054 13,420,382 6,209,057 3,929,851 23,559,291
Oct-24 34.36 25,295 3,238 849 29,431 8,673,687 4,030918 2,565,486 15,270,491
Nov-24 21.85 25,624 3,280 910 29,814 6,200,734 2,892,241 1,848,946 10,941,921
Dece-24 21.57 25,957 3,322 922 30,202 6,494,192 3,043,203 1,952,009 11,489,404
Jan-25 20.33 26,294 3.366 uid 30,594 6,323,034 2,974,087 1,915,678 11,212,798




05-YEAR INVESTMENT PLAN INDICATING SCHEMES / MODELS / FRAMEWORK FOR
UNDERTAKING SUPPLY OF ELECTRIC POWER {INCLUDING FRAMEWORKS FOR
PROVIDING NON-DISCRIMINATORY SERVICES AND ACQUISITION/SALE OF ASSETS IN
RELEVANT SERVICE TERRITORIES)

Bahria Town management always keeps the future load projections in view regarding the demand of
power and accordingly makes investments ahead to ensure the quality services for Bahria Town
residents / consumers.

Bahria Town next 05 years load rEquiremegts are projected as following.

S. No. Year Max. Loading Remarks

01 2023 SC MW Already recorded in August 2023
02 2024 56 MW Projected

03 2025 60 MW Projected

04 2026 65 MW Projected

05 2027 70 MW Projected

a6 2028 75 MW projected

To address the immediate increase in coming summer i.e. year 2024 additional 31.5/40 MW power
transformer is under installation a: Mohlanwal grid, whereas in Orchards grid there is enough capacity
available, For next five years. However, 02 transformer bays at Orchard grid station are kept spare to
cater with all future total assessed load requirements.

For all future requirements at Mohlanwall (total assessed load) new 132 KV GIS grid station with
02x40MVA capacity is under approval with LESCO in F Block also with future availability of 02 power
transformers.

To distribute load in future requirement for next 05 years, 20 New 11KV feeders have also been
planned

| 5.No. | Projects | Details | Amounts (in PKR) |

01 Extension in load application with LESCO From 40 MW to 70 500 Million

| approved by LESCO Mw
02 ' 132/11.5Kv new grid station in Sector-f 2x40 MVA capacity 1500 Million

i
03 Laying of 20 new 11KV feeders with 06 Nos. | To meet next 05 800 Million
RMUs years load
requirements
‘ Total 2800 Million

Note: Bahria Town has sold all plots in the service territory and has enough funds to mitigate all the
expenses which are received in the shape of development charges from the plot owners at the time of
purchase of plots.
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TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT PROCEDURES AND MANUALS®

Bahria town management as a policy invests massively in development of power infrastructure
for its residents / consumers.

To develop, operate and maintain, all key personnel who are. selected and engaged to head
different sections are highly trained, capable and experienced to accomplish Bahria Town
policies in achieving excellence in services.

Likewise in Bahria Town Lahore, all senior management companies of engineers who are with
30 to 35 vears experience of similar jobs.

Bahria Town management has introduced comprehensive SOP’s for following sections to ensure
quality of services as well as safety to staff, public and equipment.

1} Development and Construction

2) Operations

3) Periodic and General Maintenance Copies attached
4) Billing

The staff is trained at the time of their induction and is well versed in the standard procedures

before undertaking the job in the field. It is ensured by the respective managers that these SOP’s
are available in all sections and are followed in true letter and spirit.

For fresh inductions for the supervisory or lower positions, training manuals (as below) are

available, with the help of those, all the new inductees are adequately trained with on job site
trainings.

1) Training Manual for Electrical Supervisor
2) Training Manual for Electrician Copies attached

Refresher training sessions are also conducted on periodic basis to improve the technical skills
of the staff and also at the time of introduction of any new equipment in the electrical network.

Furthermore, weekly T&P parades are held for the safety of staff.

Briefing / debriefing sessions are esseniial part of all assignments before and after
accomplishments of the tasks.

Page1of1



EXTERNAL ELECTRIFICATION SYSTEM
BAHRIA TOWN LAHORE.
(DEVELOPMENT AND CONSTRUCTION)
sOoP




EXTERNAL ELECTRIFICATION SYSTEM BAHRIA TOWN LAHORE.

(DEVELOPMENT AND CONSTRUCTION)
STANDING OPERATING PROCEDURES (SOP)

The foliowing procedures are introduced with immediate effect.

1-

Town planning wing wili prepare Town planning drawings of New Areas/
Project and provide to Chief Engineer Infrastructure / Chief Engineer
{Electrical) for External Electrification System.

Chief Engineer (Electrical) will approach to Consultant for preparation of
External Electrification system design of the area.

Consultant will prepare the External Electrification design of new area as
per specification / criteria of LESCO and will hand over to Chief Engineer
(Electrical) for execution of (Electrical) system.

Chief Engineer (Electrical) will get prepare the demand of material as per
BOQ (Submitted by Consultants) and pass on to Chief Engineer
{Infrastructure).

Chief Engineer infrastructure will arrange to place the P.O through Bahria
Purchase Department.

Chief Engineer (Electrical) will ensure the availability of material in store.

Work orders shall be issued by Chief Engineer (Electricaf) for carrying out
the jobs through Manager (Development) to construction crews indicating
the detaiis of excavation works, foundations of equipment and their
installations.

Manager Construction section will take the work in hand and prepare the
schedule for execution of work and send to Chief Engineer (Elecirical) for
approval.

Supervisor Construction section will prepare the S.R and get signed from
his Manager and submit to Chief Engineer (Electrical) for approvai.

a) The Drawing section of Chief Engineer (Electrical) will make the entries
of $.R with quantities and value in the register being maintained in this
section work-wise with BOQ and get the S.R approved by Chief
Engineer (Electrical).

b) Supervisor Construction will submit the approved S.R to store keeper
and store keeper will make entries in the respective columns of S.R for
issued material with value. First copy of S.R will be retained by the store
keeper in his office and second copy will be sent to Drawing Section of
Chief Engineer (Electrical}) for recording any change in material
demanded and issued with value. The third copy will remain with
Supervisor Construction.

¢) The Supervisor Construction will stock the issued material in his site
store.
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10-The Supervisor Construction will carry out the construction work of

11-

12-

13-

{Electrical) system as per approval schedule and in the following phases.

The phase of prescribed checks of Civii Construction works will be as under:

(i) Construction of Foundation for Pad mounting Transformers,
RMS's, DB’s, foundation for street light poles etc; will be carried
out by the Construction Supervisor and quality of the concrete
work will be checked by the construction staff by exercising the
prescribed checks as under:

Supervisor - 100%
Manager - 20%
C.E (Electrical) - 10%

(i}  The quality control of excavation of trenches, size of trenches,
laying of HT / LT cables, sand cushions, installation of bricks,
Layers / laying warning tapes and 95% compaction of back filling
will be ensured by exercising same prescribed checks as stated
under para 9 (i).

(lii)  Installation of equipment like Transformers, RMU'’s, DB’s and 11
KV Switch Boxes with proper placement, terminations, earthing
etc and prescribed %age checks by the staff / Manager / Chief
Engineer (Electrical) is the same as in proceeding para.

Over and above, Q.C.O will also carry out their prescribed checks
to ensure the quality of work at every stage.

Manager Construction Section is 100% responsibie for implementation of
design at site and Chief Engineer (Eiectrical) will exercise the prescribed
checks for quality control.

The progress of the work will be reviewed by the Chief Engineer (Electrical)
on weekly basis and informing the Administration accordingly.

On completion of work, the Supervisor Construction will record the entries of
material drawn and utilized at site for the work with value. The Manager
Construction will carryout 100% check of material installed at site for the
work and Chief Engineer (Electrical) will ensure the said check and counter
sign the verification of complete documents of Manager Construction.

Construction crew through Manager (Development) shail submit request for
shutdown / energization of newly developed network to Manager (O&M)
with details as. resuits of laid down cables {meggered), earthing results of
equipment installed and as built drawings. Construction crews shall provide
03 days time to operationai staff for their own checks / proceeds.
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15- The Construction section will finally prepare the handing over papers with as
built drawing and the system will be taken over by Manager (O&M) after

satisfying himself regarding design, quantity and quaiity of the work under
intimation to Chief Engineer (Electrical).

16- Material Utilized to be informed to drawing section for record / correction

17- Excess material be retumed to store or transferred to qther work (s) with the
approval of Chief Engineer (Electrical).

{Page 3 of 3)







BAHRIA TOWN
LAHORE

TRAINING MANUAL
"~ FOR

ELECTRICAL
SUPERVISOR

BAHRIA TOWN (PVT) LIMITED,
MOHLANWAL MULTAN ROAD,
LAHORE.




INTRODUCTION

The Electrical Supervisor is main technical person who is supervising skilled ‘
staff comprising of electricians, foremen and helpers. He is directly reporting
to senior engineers and is also responsible for maintaining documentation and
registers of all the works.

This training manual is required to give Electrical Supervisors working in
Bahria Town (Pvt) Ltd. Lahore Distribution System Operation and
Maintenance department an over view of basic elements of electrical network
and equipment and difficulties normally encountered in their day to day

performance of duties.

The purpose of this training manual is to give the trainees basic knowledge of
their duties and to train them to perform their duties diligently, safely and in

proper and efficient manner.

[ A
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CHAPTER - 1

ROLE OF ELECTRICAL SUPERVISOR:

- Electrical supervisor is an important technical person in the field. He is
incharge and supervisor of feeder construction, operation and maintenance
staff. He represents the face of Bahria Town services to the general
consumer. He has a complete knowledge of distribution network / equipment
and T&P items and their proper use. He also ensures that all the work on
electrical equipment is done according to equipment O&M manuals and
company’s safety code.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

Installation, operation, maintenance of electrical equipment and planning,
supervision and inspection of construction work of HT/LT feeders are among
the responsibilities of Electrical Supervisor. In addition, he is also responsible
for energization / reclosing of HT feeders and LT feeders.

Important Duties /| Responsibilities:

In execution of his duties the electrical supervisor reports to Assistant
Manager Electrical and is responsible for the following:

1) Safety procedures are followed by line staff.

2) Training of sub-ordinate line staff such as electricians.

3) Use of various testing and measuring instruments such as volt meter,
ammeter and voltage detector, if required.

4) Regular patrolling of electrical network and to attend the site in case of
fault.

9) Use of earthing for safety purposes in case of working on un-energized
equipment in the network.

6) Sizing of fuses and LT cable conductors.

7) Maintenance and supervision of use of T&P items.

8) Use and operation of earthing resistance tester and megger tester.

Behavior with Consumers:

The electrical supervisor should all the time behave responsibly and
courteously with complainant consumers. He should be an example to his
subordinate staff in this respect. He should not harass the consumers and try
{o attend complaint in a pleasant manner.

(Page 3 of 25)



CHAPTER - 2

BASIC ELECTRICITY TERMS AND THEIR USAGE:

Conductor:
Material which allows electric current to pass through it easily.
insulator:

Material which provides resistance to electric current and does not allow
electric current to pass through it.

Current:

Flow of electrons is called “current”. Its unit is ampere. It is of two types, direct
current and alternating current.

Voltage:
It is the pressure which causes flow of electrons. Its unit is volts.

Resistance:

It is opposition to flow of electron. its unit is ohm. Resistance is inversely
proportional to diameter of conductor.

Frequency:

" No. of waves passing through a given point per second is called frequency. Its
unitis Hz. :

Circuit:

The path of flow of electric current which its follows from one terminal of
electrical source to the other terminal.

Ohm’s Law:

This laws state that current is directly proportional to voltage, if temperature is
constant.

Current Generation:

When a conductor is moved in a magnetic field, voltage is produced which
causes current to flow if the circuit is closed. The more the numbers of
magnetic field lines are cut, the more voltage will be generated. This is the
basic principle of electrical generator.
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CHAPTER - 3

DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM OF ELECTRICAL POWER:

The electrical distribution system is single (01) phase and three (03) phase. In
single phase one line (phase) and one neutral is used. The single phase
voltage is 230 Volt. In three phase system there are three nos. 400 voits lines
(phases) and one neutral. Neutral is normally solidly earthed. They are
normally identified as red, yellow and blue with neutral either black or white.
This helps in making correct connections.

HUMAN BODY AS CONDUCTOR:

Human body is a good conductor of electricity. Current passing through the
body can cause severe shock, unconsciousness, burns or even death. 60 volt
or 0.1 amp passing through body can be fatal. Presence of water or moisture
increases the conductivity and therefore extra precautions are required in
case of rain or wet floor etc.

MEASURING AND TESTING INSTRUMENTS:

Earth Resistance Tester:

It is used to measure the resistance of earth electrodes, neutral, earth
continuity and electric seals.it can measure from 0.01 Q to 8990 Q.

Earth resistance tester consists of permanent magnet, moving coil, hand
operated AC generated and a resistance meter all enclosed in a steel

housing.

Method of Measurement:

Minimum voltage reading is selected and also possible range for voltage is
selected. Meter is set at zero (0) and reading is observed after application of
voltage.

insufation Resistance Tester (Megger):

It is used to measure insulation resistance of electric lines, cables, motors,
generators and other electrical equipment.

It consists of hand operated HV DC generator equipped with centrifugal

device which rotates the rotor of generator at a constant speed and gives a
constant voltage output.
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Method of Measurement:

The electrical equipment to be checked should be completely discharged and
away from any other electrical or magnetic field before applying the megger.
The handle should be rotated slowly and then speed should be gradually
increased. The insulation resistance reading should be noted.

Volt meter is used to measure the voltage of electric supply.

Method of Measurement:

Volt meter terminals are connected to the terminals of the electrical equipment
at which the voltage is to be measured. The volt meter is in parallel with the
electric supply. The reading is noted from the voit meter dial.

Ampere Neter:

Ampere meter is used to measure the current in electric circuit.

Method of Measurement:

Ampere meter is connected in series with the circuit where the current is to be
measured. The current reading is noted from the ampere meter dial.

Clip On Meter:

Since the ampere meter has to be connected in series with the circuit to be
measured it needs disconnecting of current circuit for installing the ampere
meter. With clip on meter current can be measured without disconnecting the
circuit, only the clip on meter is clipped on the conductor and the reading is
observed on dial. This is the most commonly used ampere meter for
measurement of current.

Enerqy Meter:

It measures the consumed energy of electrical locad / circuit. Electrical energy
has the formula volt x current x power factor x time. Its unit is watt hour. 1000
watt is called one (01) KW hour. One (01) KW hour is also called one unit.
The electricity consumers are billed accerding to the units consumed.

The energy meter is connected with electric supply circuit to measure the
electricity units in its dial register cumulatively.
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CHAPTER -4

ELECTRICAL SYSTEM EQUIPMENT:

PAD MOUNTED TRANSFORMER:

The pad mounted transformers in Bahria Town distribution system are
11KV/400 Volt transformers. Alongside pad mounted transformers, 11KV load
break switches, HRC fuses and LT switches for feeder protection are installed
in the same package unit. This equipment is enclosed in a metal housing and
installed on concrete pad. Pad mounted transformers are available in
200KVA, 400KVA and B30KVA and even in bigger ratings.

HT /LT POWER CABLES AND LT DISTRIBUTION BOXES:

HT Power Cables:

The HT cables are XLPE insulated, stranded aluminum conductor, armoured
power cables suitable for operation at 11KV voltage. The cables are rated for
operation up to 15KV 50Hz, three phase system. The cable are normally
directly buried or installed in duct bank. The ambient temperature range is
-10°C to 50°C. The conductor is stranded aluminum and covered by semi
conducting layer. The insulation of cabie is made of cross linked polyethylene.
The insulation is applied over the semi conducting layer. A black PVC sheath
is applied over the copper shielding and fits tightly over it.

The construction of individual cores of three core cable is same as for single
core cable except that overall sheath is applied over the combined three
cores.

The cores are identified with colors on the semi conducting tape of the core.

Cable Laying:

The cables are laid either direct buried, in trenches or in duct banks. At road
crossing duct banks are used. Spares ducts are normally used at crossings to
avoid re-digging for future cable laying. The ducts not used are plugged. The
cable should not rest upon sharp edges at the end of duct. Indicated cabie
routes are marked on drawings which are separately provided and should be
availabie with the electrical supervisor of the area.

If the direction change is necessary the radius of bend may not be less than
the twice the diameter of cable drum or 20 times the diameter of cable.

{Page 7 of 25)



No cable trenches or holes are left unprotected in open state at any time
without completing the job and refilling them. When cable laying or fault
removal work is going on suitable warning signals shouid be exhibited.

Normally markers are located at point where joint boxes are located and
markers are alsc provided at regular intervals of 50 meters or when route

changes directions.

Termination of 11KV Cable:

The termination of 11KV Cable are of pre molded, cold, heat shrinkable and
slip on type for indoor and outdoor use. These terminations are suitable for
quick and easy instailations and maintaining safety of staff and equipment.
Indoor terminations shall be made in pad mounted steel enclosure and switch
gear panels. The terminations, tee and straight joints suitable for continuous
operation at an ambient temperature of 50°C and for conductor operating
temperature of 90°C. Terminations shall be made in pad mounted steel
enclosures where condensation is likely to occur. Tee and straight joints are
suitable for direct burial or installation in ducts.

Power cable shall be terminated using proper size cable lugs and as per
manufacturer’'s instructions. A protective covering is use for insulated core. A
tube or pre molded cone having specified electrical properties are provided
over insulated cores. A suitable tubing for enclosing and sealing the prepared
lug for indoar and outdoor terminaticns is used.

Indoor terminations are provided with lugs. Outdoor terminations are provided
with sleeves and connectors.

LT Power Cables:

LT cables from transformers to distribution box and consumer service cables
are PVC insulated aluminum conducior cables. The cable is suitable for
operation up to 1000 Volts 50 Hz in three (03) Phase Neutral earthed system.
The cables can be direct buried or instailed in ducts. The maximum ambient
temperature can be up to 50°C.

The individual core cof cables below 25mm sq has circular stranded cross
sections while cables having higher diameters can be either circular or

shaped cross section.

The cables are laid in directly / trenches / ducts. The drawings of cables
routes should be available with electrical supervisor incharge of the area.
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Cables are terminated in switch board or connection point using suitable
glands. The cables are secured by means of cable cleats to maintain required
spacing. The cores of multi core cables are colored red, yellow, green or
black.

Cable jointing is made using heat shrinkable cable splices and terminations
kits suitable for aluminum conductor LT cables. Cable joints are available in
complete kit form with all materials and components including compression
type connectors and lugs required to complete the instaliation. Heat
shrinkable tubing coated with hot melt adhesive is used to seal the ferrules to
PVC insulation. Mechanical strength and electrical continuity of steel wire
armour is checked after the jointing. Armour is clamped to the wire armour,
using worm drive armour clamps.

LT Distribution Boxes:

LT three phase distribution boxes are used for making connections of
underground services to underground LT mains. The distribution boxes are
three phase four wire for voltage rating 415/240 Volt. The ambient
temperature is 55°C. inside the distribution box hard drawn, extruded
aluminum bus bars are used. Terminal lugs are used to connect each service
box with 300mm sg PVC service cable.

This distribution box enables each service connection to be switched off

separately in case of fault or selective disconnections. The distribution boxes
are installed on concrete foundations with proper earthing of the box.
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CHAPTER -5

EARTHING SYSTEM:

The purpose of earthing system is to safeguard the public as well as the
distribution network. It helps in smooth operation of the system. The LT
neutral earth provides the path to fault current to ground. Thus the fuse or
disconnecting breakers operate and faulty portion is isolated.

The following electrical equipment in a distribution network is earthed.

1) Distribution transformers tank and neutral.
2) RMU enclosures

3) Distribution boxes

4) Capacitor Bank, body and neutral

5) Common transformer and consumer neutral

For earthing of transformer and earth electrode of MS galvanized earth rod
ten (10) feet long is hammered into ground. The rod is the connected to the
earth by means of a connecter. The no. of rods installed at earthing point
depends on earth resistance. The earth resistance at any point in the system
shall not exceed 2.50Q.
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CHAPTER - 6

TOOLS AND PLANT (T&P) EQUIPMENT:

The electrical supervisor should have a compiete knowledge of all T&P items
which are used in the operation and maintenance of electrical systems. For
every work suitable tool should be used, which will help in getting the work
done quickly and efficiently. Also he should know the proper storage methods.

The tocls are categorized according to their use such as earth digging-toois,
testing tools, measurement toals, safety tools, cable pulling/cutting toois,

transformer installation tools etc.

Digging Tools:

Earth Digger
Pick Axe
Shovel

Spade
Tamping Bar
Hammer & Chisel

Testing Tools:

Earth Resistance Tester
Volt Meter
Ampere Meter

High Voltage Detector

Clip On Volt & Ampere Meters
Ground Sets

Insulation Oil Tester

Insulation Resistance Tester (Megger)

Safety Tools:

Rubber Gloves
Safety Belts

Safety Helmets
Safety Goggles
Leather Gloves

First Aid Kit

Face Shield

Safety Shoes

Bags for Safety Items
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Mechanized Tools:

Winch
Fork Lifter

Power Auger
Line Derrick
Bucket Truck

Misc. Tools:

Saw Pruner
Hand Saw
Wood Chisel

Cold Chisel

Pair of Pliers

Fuse Puller

Drill Machine & Bits
Screw Drivers
Adjustable Wrench
Spanner Set

Axe

Hand Shearer
Emergency Light
Insulation Tape
Warning Tape
Paint Brush

Qil & Grease
Warning Sign
Complete First Aid Kit
Rasps

Wire Brush

Stop Watch

Ladder

Hydraulic Compression Tools
Cuffing Hoist

STORAGE OF T&P TOOLS:

Rubber Gloves:

Gloves should be kept in cold and dry place in summer. After usage the
gloves should be cleaned, talcum powder or chalk shouid be applied and kept
in the glove box. The gloves should be kept away from sharp or pointed
metallic edges.
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Safety Belts:

Sunshine, humidity and dust should be avoided. The safety Telts should be
kept away from sharp or pointed metallic edges. The belt should be inspected
daily by the user. a ' o

Manila Rope:

It shouid be cleaned after every use. If the rope is wetit shoudd be dried
before storing. Also avoid extreme heat and water. The rppe should be
checked every month.

Earth Tester & Meqgger:

Earth tester and megger should be discharged after every use py shorting the
testing wires.
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CHAPTER -7

LOADING AND UNLOADING OF MATERIAL.:

This includes the loading and unloading electrical material or trailers / trucks /
pickups. Before starting the loading of material, proper planning, safety
precautions and basic knowledge of type of material being loaded or unloaded
is required. Every type of material has a proper place of storage on the truck /
trajler etc. This helps in distributing the weights for heavy items. Loading
should be according to the maximum loading limit of the vehicle.

An item list shouid be prepared of loaded materials.

Small items should be loaded and stored separately so that they can be
reached easily.

The breakable items such as insulators should be kept separate from hard
materials. All heavy items should be tied with truck.

insulating material, T&P items etc. should be covered With'{érpaulin to
safeguard against weather conditions.

No material should protrude out of truck or trailer. All transport rule and
regulation should be followed on road. There should be no loose material
which can roll out of truck.

In case of non-availability of crane, fork lifter etc. skids should be used and
heavy material should be supported with ropes.

At the time of unloading trailer / truck should be parked at hard surface and
brakes should be applied and stoppers placed at the wheels.

It is better that heavy material and equipment is unloaded with the help of
cranes and hoists etc. Lifting jacks should be used for lifting the material and
equipment. The jacks should be of proper capacity and working order.

For material of large diameters, rollers should be used for dragging and
shifting purposes. For this rail can also be laid on ground to shift the material.

The loading / unloading staff should have proper gloves, safety shoes, safety
helmets, safety glasses etc. to avoid any accident or mishap. The staff should
take precaution that while lifting heavy material it should not be beyond body
capacity which can cause damaged to material or bodily harm to the person.
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CHAPTER - 8

DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM PLANNING:

The Electric Supervisor should have some basic knowledge of planning .of a
distribution network. The distribution system planning should ensure that the
network has least interruptions in power supply and their duration is minimal,
For this purpose the following should be considered.

In case of maximum and minimum load, no part of distribution system should
be damaged.

All consumers should get the power supply at guaranteed system voltage.
In case of fault, least number of consumers and minimum area is affected.

Financial savings should be kept in view while planning of a distribution
network.

In case of increase in demand the power supply should be made available in
a most economical way.

In medium and short term planning the following should be our priority.
The system is to be operated at optimum capacity.

The energy losses are minimized.

Proper load planning and load management is done.

Innovative solutions are adopted. Any new solution is to be properly analyzed
before implementation.

Modern and latest techniques are adopted in the distribution network.

Limits of Distribution Planning:

The distribution network should operate within acceptable and specified limits
and parameters.

Grid Stations:
No. of HT feeders in a grid station should be at least equal or more than the
no. of feeders required to meet maximum demand of the consumers of the

planned area. Each individual feeder loading should not exceed the allowable
loading limit.
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Thermal Capacity:

The maximum current carrying capacity of each electrical equipment is called
thermal capacity. The various equipment used in distribution system such as
transformers, switches, re-closers have a rating rate on which the maximum
loading limit is indicated. However, during planning phase the engineer
decides the acceptable overload conditions of each equipment according to
ambient temperature, environmental conditions and system requirements.

Voltage Drop Limits:

In a distribution circuit voltage drop occurs due to oading conditions. At the
time of peak loading the minimum voltage should be 230 Volts at the
consumer end. The distribution company has to ensure that voltage variation
is within +/- 5% limit from grid station up to the consumer end.

In case the voltage drop is exceeded the load on the one circuit is shifted to
another circuit or capacitors are installed.

The load on all phases of three phase system should be balanced.
Sometimes in order to improve the voltage level the 11KV coble of higher
capacity has to be used.

In case of flicker in voltage, initially the consumer electrical gadgets should be
checked if they are working properly, the electrical supervisor should check
the incoming distribution system.

When heavy motors are machinery are switched on the system there is drop
in voitage and when they are switched off there is rise in voltage.

The distribution transformers are manufactured according to specifications so
that when operating on rated load their temperature rise is in 55°-75° range.
The electrical loading of transformers depends on the impedance rating. The
normal impedance value of a distribution transformer is 4%. The transformers
“are able to carry more loads during winter as compared to summer due to
less ambient temperatures.

When deciding the capacity of transformer it should be kept in view the
expected loading for next five years.
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CHAPTER -9

IDENTIFICATION OF CAUSE OF CIRCUIT OUTAGE:

The electrical supervisor is expected to immediately identify the cause of
outage of any circuit due to electrical fault. He should be able to pin point the
location of faulty portion, arrange alternate source of supply and do the
planning of secticnalizing.

The foilowing are most common causes of circuit outages.

1) Over voltage

2) Qver current due to short circuit

3) Weather conditions such as stails, rain, snowfall etc.

4) Accident of vehicles with electrical network equipment

5) System overload ;

For line staff working on faulty area, temporary earthing is to be provided for
safety of personnel.
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CHAPTER - 10

TECHNICAL DESCRIPTION OF IMPORTANT EQUIPMENT

DISTRIBUTION TRANSFORMER:

Distribution transformer is generally used in electrical power distribution
system. The power rating is normally determined by the type of cooling
methods the transformer may use. Some commonly used method of cocling is
by using oil. Ampere rating is increased in a distribution transformer by
increasing the size of the primary and secondary windings.

Following are the main components of a distribution transformer.

1) Steel tank

2) Transformer core

3) Primary and secondary windings
4} Temperature gauge

5) Pressure relief valve

6) Qil drain valve

7) HT and LT Bushings

8) Qil gauge

9) Silica gel breather

Transformer should be earthed after installation. After completion of earthing
the earth resistivity is to be checked with help of earth tester. The transformer
loading on each phase should be balanced after energization.

The transformer is protected by fuses or switches on HT side. On LT Side
also, switches are used to disconnect the LT circuit.

Calculation of Current in a Transformer:

The current in a transformer can be calculated by following formula.

lp = KVA x 1000/11000 x v3

For example 200KVA transformer shall nave the foflowing currents.
Ip (primary current) = 200 x 1000/11000 x V3 = 10.497

ls (Secondary current) = 200 x 1000/415 x ¥3 = 278.25
Transformer Losses:

Due to transformer impedance, losses occur in the transformer which are as
follows.

1) Copper losses.

2) Core oriron losses
i) Eddy current losses
iiy Hysteresis losses
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ENERGY METERS:

Energy meter is used to record the energy consumed in kilo watt hours. The
important components of energy meter are:

Meter base
Meter cover
Meter frame
Earth terminals
Terminal blocks
Current coil
Volitage coil

Auxiliary components such as:

"KWH / KVARH register
~Relays

Turn coll
Impulse counter

The energy meters can be mechanical type or digital type. Presentabiy digital
type energy meters are mostly commonly used in the distribution system.

Principle of Enerqy Meter:
The current and voltage are multiplied with help of magnetic fields produced
by voltage and current coils. The time factor is also considered by

accumulating the movement produced by these coils over a time period.

Types of Energy Meter:

The following are commonly use types of energy meters.

Single phase energy meter
Three phase energy meter
CT operated energy meter
Maximum demand indicating energy meters (MDI)
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CHAPTER - 11

MAINTENANCE OF DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM:

The main purpose of maintenance of distribution system is:

Reduce the duration of outage of distribution network.
Increase the life span of electrical equipment used.
Increase the operational efficiency of electrical system
Prompt rectification of faults.

Maintenance of the distribution system can be categorized as:

Regular Maintenance:

This maintenance of distribution network is carried out according to pre-
scheduled plan. This is normally done during the time when the load on
system is less. All defective / polluted / damaged items in the electrical
netwerk are identified and replaced with new items. This maintenance avoids

the major breakdown during peak loads and saves lot of future financial
losses.

The electrical supervisor is incharge for making the planned scheduled for
regular maintenance.

He has to perform maintenance in such a way that maximum benefits are
received by this exercise. Maintenance of LT feeders should be done at the
same time when the maintenance of that particular transformer is performed.

The earthing of all electrical equipment installed in distribution system should
be checked during maintenance. The electrical supervisor should be present
at site during maintenance to ensure that the staff is doing the work in a
proper manner and is observing all the safety precautions.

The transformer should be checked for the following:

Qil level

Bushings

Arching horn distance

Tightening of connections

Checking of electrical load on transformer during peak load
Balancing of transformer load

Enclosure conditions

Enclosure insulation

Earthing of neutral and transformer body
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The RMU should be checked for the following:

Overloading of switches

Operation of switches under load conditions
Contacts to be cleaned

Worn out contacts to be replaced

Earthing of enclosures

The HT and LT cables should be checked for the following:
Leakage of cable terminations
Physical condition of terminations

Tightening of clamps
Damage of service cables.

Emergency Maintenance;

This maintenance is carried out when a breakdown has occurred in the
system and after fault removal it is to be ensured that similar fault does not
happen again.

In case of any emergency such as fault in underground cable the electrical
supervisor shall carry out the route survey using the fault detecting
equipment.
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CHAPTER-12:

SAFETY AND SAFETY EQUIPMENT:

Safety of each person in the organization of the company is very important.
Every employee should know the safety rules.

The electrical supervisor should have complete knowledge of major causes of
electrical accident. ' '

Every circuit and equipment will be taken as energized unless it is
disconnected and earth. Prevention of accidents means both fatal accidents
and injuries are prevented.

Purpose of Safety:

The purpose of safety is to avoid accidents which Cause death or injury to
company's staff, public, animals or caused to damage to company’s or public
property.

Target of Safety:

All distribution, construction and maintenance work of electrical network
should be carried out safely.

Safe environment is to be created for working. Safety equipment and T&P are
to be made available all the time to the line staff.

All field staff is to be trained for importance of safety.

Basic Rules of Safety:

The following basic rules of safety are to be followed by electrical supervisor.

- Take care of your co-workers as you take care of your family members.

- For any work being performed you should be able to communicate the safety
requirements of this work to your staff.

- During replacement of electrical equipment / devices, get advice from
experienced person in this equipment.

- Encourage your staff to consult senior and experienced co-workers for safety
guidelines.

- New workers should be acquainted with safety rules before being put on the
job.

- Get your safety instructions to workers implemented strictly.

- All accidents or near-misses, even smalil are to be reported to manager.

- Set example by yourself following the safety rules.

- Cooperate with safety department staff.

- Make safety a part of your private life also.

(Page 22 of 25)



AVOIDING ACCIDENTS:

- Avoid unsafe act.
- Avoid unsafe conditions.

DUTIES OF ELECTRICAL SUPERVISOR FOR SAFETY:

- To arrange safety T&P for line staff.

- To create safe conditions of work.

- To keep safety T&P in good condition.

- To brief the line staff about the job before starting the work.

- Monthly safety T&P drill.

- To ensure implementation of safety instructions by the staff.

- To ensure that line staff is following safety rules before, during and after the
work.

- To ensure correct use of safety T&P.

~ To train new workers in safety rules.

- To inform concerned department / personnel in case of any accident.

- To find the cause of any accidents and submit report to higher authority.

SAFETY TOOLS & PLANTS (T&P)/ EQUIPMENT:

- Safety helmet.

- Safety rubber gloves

- Bag for safety gloves

- Leather protective gloves
- Safety beit

- Safety goggles

- Safety shoes

- First aid box

- Fire extinguisher

- Water bucket _

- Danger / warning signs
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CHAPTER-13:

FIRE PREVENTION AND EXTINGUISHING:

The electrical superviscr should implement an affective fire prevention routine
for his work area. He should have a basic knowledge of methods of fire
extinguishing and firefighting equipment.

TYPES OF FIRE:

There are four (04) types of fire.

Type-A:

Fire of combustible items e.g wood, cloth, paper etc.
Type-B:

Fire of highly inflammable items e.g oil, petrol, grease etc.
Tyge-C: |

Fire of highly inflammable gases.

Type-D:

Electrical fire

FIRE FIGHTING EQUIPMENT:

Handheld or portable fire extinguisher.
Trolley mounted fire extinguisher.
Spade

Ladder

Face shield

Eye wash

Safety helmet

Leather gloves

Fire hoses

Mega phone

Fire water vehicle
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METHOD OF USE OF FIRE EXTINGUISHER;

Fire extinguisher is to be held in vertical position.

Remove the safety clip J

Press the lever or strike the knob according to fire extinguisher type

Fire extinguisher should not be directed towards a person. :

If fire is due to electric short circuit, switch off the electric supply.

Continue operating the fire extinguisher directed towards base ¢f fire.

Fire extinguisher should be controlled from handte and not fromilpipe.

Stand at safe distance from fire in direction of wind flow.

When fire is extinguished the extinguisher should be turned upside down to
finish the remaining pressure.
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FOR

ELECTRICIAN
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INTRODUCTION

The Electrician is main technically skilled person in the field who is

responsible for executing operation and maintenance work.

This training manual is required to give Electricians working in Bahria Town
(Pvt) Ltd. Lahore distribution system operation and maintenance department a
concise view of basic elements of electrical network and equipment normally
encountered in their day to day performance of duties under the supervision

of Electrical Supervisor.

The purpose of this training manual is to give the trainees basic knowledge of
their duties and to train them to perform their duties diligently, safely and in

proper and efficient manner.

The nature of Electrician work is mostly manual and working directly on the

equipment. This requires that he is trained in safety rules and regulations and

has necessary basic technical knowledge.
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CHAPTER -1

ROLE OF ELECTRICIAN

Electrician is an important technically skilled person in the field. He works
under the supervision of Electrical Supervisor. He has a good knowledge of
distribution network / equipment and T&P items and their proper use. He
actuaily performs the work manually on electrical equipment in the distribution
network according to company’s safety code.

DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

Installation, operation, maintenance of electrical equipment of HT/LT feeders
are major responsibilities of Electrician. In addition he carries out energization
/ reclosing of HT feeders and LT feeders. He also attends the faults in the
distribution network.

Important Duties / Responsibilities:

In execution of his duties the Electrician reports to Electrical Supervisor and is

responsible for the following:

1) Safety procedures are followed by him.

2) Use of volt meter, ammeter and voltage detector, if required.

3) Regular patrolling of electrical network and to attend the site in case of
fault.

4) Use of earthing for safety purposes in case of working on un-energized
equipment in the network.

5) Maintenance of T&P items.

6) Operation of earthing resistance tester and megger tester.

Behavior with Consumers:

The Electrician all the time should behave responsibily and courteously with
complainant consumers. He should not harass the consumers and tfry to

attend complaint in a pleasant manner.
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CHAPTER - 2

BASIC ELECTRICITY TERMS AND THEIR USAGE:

Conductor:
Material which allows electric current to pass through it easily.
Insulator:

Material which provides resistance to electric current and does not allow
electric current to pass through it.

Current:

Flow of electrons is called “current”. Its unit is ampere. It is of two types, direct
current and alternating current.

Voltage:
It is the pressure which causes flow of electrons. Its unit is volts.

Resistance:

it is opposition to flow of electron. Its unit is ohm. Resistance is inversely
proportional to diameter of conductor.

Frequency:

No. of waves passing through a given point per second is called frequency. Its
unit is Hz.

Circuit;

The path of flow of electric current which its follows from one terminal of
electrical source to the other terminal.

Apparatus:

All electrical equipment related to distribution network such as transformers,
switches, cables etc.

Permit to Work (PTW):

It is permit given by authorized person to work on electrical system.
High Tension:
This is the system which has a voltage rating of 11KV.

Low Tension:

This is the system which has a voltage rating of 230/400 Volt.
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CHAPTER -3

DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM OF ELECTRICAL POWER:

The electrical distribution system is single {01) phase and three (03) phase. In
single phase one line (phase) and one neutral is used. The single phase
voltage is 230 Volt. In three phase system there are three nos. 400 volts lines
(phases) and one neutral. Neutral is normally solidly earthed. They are
normally identified as red, yellow and blue with neutral either black or white.
This helps in making correct connections.

MEASURING AND TESTING INSTRUMENTS:

Earth Resistance Tester:

It is used to measure the resistance of earth electrodes, neutral, earth
continuity and electric seals. It can measure from 0.01 Q to 9990 Q.

Earth resistance tester consists of permanent magnet, moving coil, hand
operated AC generated and a resistance meter all enclosed in a steel

housing.

Method of Measurement;

Minimum voltage reading is selected and also possible range for voltage is
selected. Meter is set at zero (0) and reading is observed after application of
voltage.

Insulation Resistance Tester (Megger):

It is used to measure insulation resistance of electric lines, cables, motors,
generators and other electrical equipment.

It consists of hand operated HV DC generator equipped with centrifugal
device which rotates the rotor of generator at a constant speed and gives a

constant voltage output.

Method of Measurement;

The electrical equipment to be checked should be completely discharged and
away from any other elecirical or magnetic field before applying the megger.
The handle should be rotated slowly and then speed should be gradually
increased. The insulation resistance reading should be noted.
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Volt Meter:

Volt meter is used to measure the voltage of electric supply.

Method of Measurement:

Volt meter terminals are connected to the terminals of the electrical equipment
at which the voltage is to be measured. The volt meter is in parallel with the
electric supply. The reading is noted from the volt meter dial.

Ampere Meter:

Ampere meter is used to measure the current in electric circuit.

Method of Measurement:

Ampere meter is connected in series with the circuit where the current is to be
measured. The current reading is noted from the ampere meter dial.

Clip On Meter:

Since the ampere meter has to be connected in series with the circuit to be
measured it needs disconnecting of current circuit for installing the ampere
meter. With clip on meter current can be measured without disconnecting the
circuit, only the clip on meter is clipped on the conductor and the reading is
observed on dial. This is the most commonly used ampere meter for
measurement of current. '

Energy Meter:

it measures the consumed energy of electrical load. Electrical energy has the
formula volt x current x power factor x time. its unit is watt hour. 1000 watt is
called one (01) KW hour. One (01) KW hour is also called one unit. The
consumers are billed according to the units consumed.

The energy meter is connected with electric supply circuit to measure the
electricity units in its dial register cumulatively.
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CHAPTER -4

ELECTRICAL SYSTEM EQUIPMENT:

PAD MOUNTED TRANSFORMER:

The pad mounted transformers in Bahria Town distribution system are
11KV/400 Volt transformers. Alongside pad mounted transformers, 11KV load
break switches, HRC fuses and LT switches for feeder protection are installed
in the same package unit. This equipment is enclosed in a metal housing and
installed on concrete pad. Pad mounted transformers are available in
200KVA, 400KVA and 630KVA and even in bigger ratings.

HT/LT POWER CABLES AND LT DISTRIBUTION BOXES:

HT Power Cables:

The HT cables are XLPE insulated, stranded aluminum conductor, armoured
power cables suitable for operation at 11KV voltage. The cables are rated for
operation up to 15KV 50Hz, three phase system. The cable are normally
directly buried or installed in duct bank. The ambient temperature range is
-10°C to 50°C. The conductor is stranded aluminum and covered by semi
conducting layer. The insulation of cable is made of cross linked polyethylene.
The insulation is applied over the semi conducting layer. A black PVC sheath
is applied over the copper shieiding and fits tightly over it.

The construction of individual cores of three core cable is same as for single
core cable except that overall sheath is applied over the combined three
cores.

The cores are identified with colors on the semi conducting tape of the core.

Cable Laving.

The cables are laid either direct buried, in trenches or in duct banks. At road
crossing duct banks are used. Spares ducts are normally used at crossings to
avoid re-digging for future cable faying. The ducts not used are plugged. The
cable should not rest upon sharp edges at the end of duct. Indicated cable
routes are marked on drawings which are separately provided and should be
available with the electrical supervisor of the area.

If the direction change is necessary the radius of bend may not be less than
the twice the diameter of cable drum or 20 times the diameter of cable.
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No cable trenches or holes are left unprotected in open state at any time
without completing the job and refilling them. When cable laying or fault
removal work is going on suitable warning signals should be exhibited.

Normally markers are located at point where joint boxes are located and
markers are also provided at regular intervals of 50 meters or when route

changes directions.

Termination of 11KV Cable:

The termination of 11KV Cable are of pre molded, coid, heat shrinkable and
slip on type for indoor and outdoor use. These terminations are suitable for
quick and easy instailations and maintaining safety of staff and equipment.
Indoor terminations shall be made in pad mounted steel enclosure and switch
gear panels. The terminations, tee and straight joints suitable for continuous
operation at an ambient temperature of 50°C and for conductor operating
temperature of 90°C. Terminations shall be made in pad mounted steel
enclosures where condensation is likely to occur. Tee and straight joints are
suitable for direct burial or installation in ducts.

Power cable shall be terminated using proper size cable lugs and as per
manufacturer's instructions. A protective covering is use for insulated core. A
tube or pre molded cone having specified electrical properties are provided
over insulated cores. A suitable tubing for enclosing and sealing the prepared
lug for indoor and outdoor terminations is used.

Indoor terminations are provided with lugs. Outdoor terminations are provided
with sleeves and connectors.

LT Power Cables:

LT cables from transformers to distribution box and consumer service cables
are PVC insulated aluminum conductor cables. The cable is suitable for
operation up to 1000 Volts 50 Hz in three (03) Phase Neutra! earthed system.
The cables can be direct buried or installed in ducts. The maximum ambient
temperature can be up to 50°C.

The individual core of cables below 25mm sq has circular stranded cross
sections while cables having higher diameters can be either circular or

shaped cross section.

The cables are laid in directly / trenches / ducts. The drawings of cables
routes should be available with electrical superviser incharge of the area.
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Cables are terminated in switch board or connection point using suitable
glands. The cables are secured by means of cable cleats to maintain required
spacing. The cores of multi core cables are colored red, yellow, green or
black.

Cable jointing is made using heat shrinkable cable splices and terminations
kits suitable for aluminum conductor LT cables. Cable joints are available in
complete kit form with ali materials and components including compression
type connectors and lugs required to complete the installation. Heat
shrinkable tubing coated with hot melt adhesive is used to seal the ferrules to
PVC insulation. Mechanicai strength and electrical continuity of steel wire
armour is checked after the jointing. Armour is clamped to the wire armour,
using worm drive armour clamps.

LT Distribution Boxes:

LT three phase distribution boxes are used for making connections of
underground services to underground LT mains. The distribution boxes are
three phase four wire for voltage rating 415/240 Volt. The ambient
temperature is 55°C. Inside the distribution box hard drawn, extruded
aluminum bus bars are used. Terminal fugs are used to connect each service
box with 300mm sg PVC service cabie.

This distribution box enables each service connection to be switched off

separately in case of fault or selective disconnections. The distribution boxes
are installed on concrete foundations with proper earthing of the box.
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CHAPTER -5

EARTHING SYSTEM:

The purpose of earthing system is to safeguard the public as well as the
distribution network. It helps in smooth operation of the system. The LT
neutral earth provides the path to fault current to ground. Thus the fuse or
disconnecting breakers operate and faulty portion is isolated.

The following electrical equipment in a distribution network is earthed.

1) Distribution transformers tank and neutral.
2) RMU enclosures

3} Distribution boxes

4) Capacitor Bank, body and neutral

5) Common transformer and consumer neutral

For earthing of transformer and earth electrode of MS galvanized earth rod
ten (10) feet long is hammered into ground. The rod is the connected to the
earth by means of a connecter. The no. of rods installed at earthing point
depends on earth resistance. The earth resistance at any point in the system
shall not exceed 2.5Q.
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CHAPTER -6

TOOLS AND PLANT (T&P) EQUIPMENT:

The Electrician should have a good knowledge of all T&P items which are
used in the operation and maintenance of electrical systems. For every work
suitable tool should be used which will help in getting the work done quickly
and efficiently. Also he should know the proper storage methods.

The tools are categorized according to their use such as earth digging tools,
testing tools, measurement tools, safety tools, cable pulling/cutting tools,

transformer installation tools etc.

Digging Tools;

Earth Digger
Pick Axe

Shovel

Spade

Tamping Bar
Hammer & Chisel

Testing Tools:

Earth Resistance Tester

Volt Meter

Ampere Meter

High Voltage Detector

Clip On Volt & Ampere Meters
Ground Sets

Insulation Qil Tester

Insulation Resistance Tester {Megger)

Safety Tools:

Rubber Gicves
Safety Belts

Safety Helmets
Safety Goggles
Leather Gloves

First Aid Kit

Face Shield

Safety Shoes

Bags for Safety ltems
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Mechanized Tools:

Winch

Fork Lifter
Power Auger
Line Derrick
Bucket Truck

Misc. Tools:

Saw Pruner

Hand Saw

Wood Chisel

Cold Chisel

Pair of Pliers

Fuse Puller

Drill Machine & Bits
Screw Drivers
Adjustable Wrench
Spanner Set

Axe

Hand Shearer
Emergency Light
insulation Tape
Warning Tape
Paint Brush

Oil & Grease
Warning Sign
Complete First Aid Kit
Rasps

Wire Brush

Stop Watch

Ladder

Hydraulic Compression Tools
Cuffing Hoist

STORAGE OF T&P TOOLS:

Rubber Gloves:

Gloves should be kept in cold and dry place in summer. After usage the
gloves should be cleaned, talcum powder or chalk should be applied and kept
in the glove box. The gloves should be kept away from sharp or pointed
metallic edges.
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Safety Belts:

Sunshine, humidity and dust should be avoided. The safety K

elts should be

kept away from sharp or pointed metallic edges. The belt should be inspected

daily by the user.

Manila Rope:

It should be cleaned after every use. If the rope is wet it shoujd be dried

before storing. Also avoid extreme heat and water. The r
checked every month.

Earth Tester & Megger:

Earth tester and megger should be discharged after évery use
testing wires.

pe should be

py shorting the
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CHAPTER -7

LOADING AND UNLOADING OF MATERIAL.:

This includes the loading and unloading electrical material or trailers / trucks /
pickups. Before starting the loading of material proper planning precautions,
safety and basic knowledge of type of material being loaded or unloaded is
required. Every type of material has a proper place of storage on the truck /
trailer etc. This helps in distributing the weights for heavy items. Loading
should be according to the maximum loading limit of the vehicle.

Small items should be loaded and stored separately so that they can be
reached easily.

The breakable items such as insulators should be kept separate from hard
materials. All heavy items should be tied with truck.

[nsulating material, T&P items etc. should be covered with tarpaulin to
safeguard against weather conditions.

No material should protrude out of truck or trailer. Aii transport rule and
regulation should be followed on road. There should be no locose material
which can roll out of truck.

In case of non-availability of crane, fork lifter etc. skids should be used and
heavy material should be supported with ropes.

At the time of unloading trailer / truck should be parked at hard surface and
brakes should be applied and stoppers placed at the wheels.

It is better that heavy material and equipment is unloaded with the help of
cranes and hoists etc. Lifting jacks should be used for lifting the material and
equipment. The jacks should be of proper capacity and working order.

For material of large diameters, rollers shouid be used for dragging and
shifting purposes. For this rail can also be laid on ground to shift the material.

The loading / unloading staff should have proper gloves, safety shoes, safety
helmets, safety glasses etc. to avoid any accident or mishap. The staff should
take precaution that while lifting heavy material it should not be beyond body
capacity which can cause damaged to materia! or bedily harm to the person.
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CHAPTER -8

IDENTIFICATION OF CAUSE OF CIRCUIT QUTAGE:

The Electrician is expected to immediately identify the cause of outage of any
circuit due to electrical fault.

The following are most common causes of circuit outages.
1) Over voltage

2) Over current due to short circuit

3} Weather conditions such as storms, rain, snowfall etc.

4) Accident of vehicles with electrical network equipment

5) System overload

For line staff working on faulty area, temporary earthing is to Be provided for
safety of personnel.
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CHAPTER -9

TECHNICAL DESCRIPTION OF IMPORTANT EQUIPMENT

DISTRIBUTION TRANSFORMER:

Distribution transformeris generally used in electrical power distribution
system. The power rating is normally determined by the type of cooling
methods the transformer may use. Some commonly used method of cooling is
by using oil. Ampere rating is increased in a distribution transformer by
increasing the size of the primary and secondary windings.

Following are the main components of a distribution transformer.

1) Steel tank

2} Transformer core

3) Primary and secondary windings
4} Temperature gauge

5) Pressure relief valve

6) Qil drain valve

7) HT and LT Bushings

8) Oil gauge

9) Silica gel breather

Transfermer should be earthed after installation after completion of earthing
the earth resistivity is to be checked with help of earth tester. The transformer
loading on each phase should be balanced after energization.

The transformer is protected by fuses or switches on HT side. On LT Side
also, switches are used to disconnect the LT circuit.

ENERGY METERS:

Energy meter is used to record the energy consumed in kilo watt hours. The
important components of energy meter are:

Meter base
Meter cover
Meter frame
Earth terminals
Terminal blocks
Current cail
Voltage coil
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L i e g

Auxiliary components such as:

KWH / KVARH register
Relays

Turn coil

Impulse counter

The energy meters can be mechanical type or digital type. Prientably digital

type energy meters are mostly commonly used in the distributi

Types of Enerqy Meters:

The following are commonly use types of energy meters.

Single phase energy meter

Three phase energy meter

CT energy meter

Maximum Demand Indicating Energy Meter (MDI)

system.
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CHAPTER - 10

MAINTENANCE OF DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM:

The main purpose of maintenance of distribution system is:

Reduce the duration of outage of distribution network.
Increase the life span of electrical equipment used.
Increase the operational efficiency of electrical system
Prompt rectification of faults.

Maintenance of the distribution system can be categoerized as:

Regular Maintenance:

This maintenance of distribution network is carried out according to pre-
scheduled plan. This is normally done during the time when the load on
system is less. All defective / polluted / damaged items in the electrical
network are identified and replaced with new items. This maintenance avoids
the major breakdown during peak loads and saves lot of future financial
losses.

The Electrician is assigned the task by electrical supervisor according to
planned scheduled for regular maintenance.

The earthing of all electrical equipment installed in distribution system should
be carried out during maintenance. It is to be ensured that maintenance work
is done in a proper manner and all the safety precautions are followed.

The transformer should be checked for the following:

Oil level

Bushings

Arching horn distance

Tightening of connections

Checking of electrical load on transformer during peak load
Balancing of transformer load

Enclosure conditions

Enclosure insulation

Earthing of neutral and transformer body

The RMU should be checked for the foliowing:

Overloading of switches

Operation of switches under load conditions
Contacts to be cleaned

Worn out contacts to be replaced

Earthing of enclosures

(Page 18 of 23)



The HT and LT cableé should be checked for the following:

Leakage of cable terminations
Physical condition of terminations
Tightening of clamps

Damage of service cables. .

'
i

Emergency Maintenance:

This maintenance is carried out when a breakdown has o}:c’urred in the
system and after fault removal it is to be ensured that similar fauit does not
happen again. |

In case of any emergency such as fault in underground cable{the Electrician

shall carry out the route survey under supervision of Electrical Supervisor /
Team Leader.
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'CHAPTER - 11

SAFETY AND SAFETY EQUIPMENT:

Safety of each person in the organization of the company is very important.
Every employee should know the safety rules.

The Electrician should have good knowledge of major causes of electrical
accident.

Every circuit and equipment will be taken as energized unless it is
disconnected and earth. Prevention of accidents means both fatal accidents
and injuries are prevented.

Purpose of Safety:

The purpose of safety is to avoid accidents which cause death or injury to
company's staff, public, animals or caused to damage to company's or public
property.

Target of Safety:

All distribution construction and maintenance work of electrical network should
be carried out safely.

Safe environment is to be created for working. Safety equipment and T&P
should be available with electrician all the time.

Basic Rules of Safety:

The following basic rules of safety are to be followed by Electrician.

- Take care of your co-workers as you take care of your family members.

- During replacement of electrical equipment / devices, get advice from
experienced person in this equipment.

- All accidents or near-misses even small or to be reported to seniors.

- Set example by yourself following the safety rules.

- Cooperate with safety department staff.

- Make safety a part of your private life also.

Avoiding Accidents:

- Avoid unsafe act.
- Avoid unsafe conditions.
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Duties of Electrician for Safety:

- To work in safe conditions.

- To keep safety T&P in good condition.

- To get briefing from Electrical Supervisor / Team Leader about the job before
starting the work.

- To participate in monthly safety T&P drill.

- To follow safety instructions given by Electrical Supervisor.

- Correct use of safety T&P.

- To inform concerned department / personnel in case of any accident.

Safety Tools & Plants (T&P) / Equipment:

- Safety heimet.

- Safety rubber gloves

- Bag for safety gloves

- Leather protective gloves
- Safety belt

- Safety goggles

- Safety shoes

- First aid box

- Fire extinguisher

- Water bucket

- Danger / warning signs
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CHAPTER - 12

FIRE PREVENTION AND EXTINGUISHING:

Electrician should have a basic knowledge of methods of fire extinguishing
and firefighting equipment.

Types of Fire:

There are four (04) types of fire.

Type-A:

Fire of combustible items e.g wood, cloth, paper etc.
Type-B:

Fire of highly inflammabie items e.g oil, petrol, grease etc.
Fire of highly inflammable gases.

Type-D:

Electrical fire

Fire Fighting Equipment:

Handheld or portable fire extinguisher.
Trolley mounted fire extinguisher.
Spade

Ladder

Face shield

Eye wash

Safety helmet

Leather gloves

Fire hoses

Mega phone

Fire water vehicle

(Page 22 of 23)



Method of use of Fire Extinquisher:

Fire extinguisher is to be held in vertical position.

Remove the safety clip }

Press the lever or strike the knob according to fire extinguisher type

Fire extinguisher should not be directed towards a person.

If fire is due to electric short circuit, switch off the electric supply.

Continue operating the fire extinguisher directed towards base of fire.

Fire extinguisher should be controlled from handle and not from:pipe.

Stand at safe distance from fire in direction of wind flow.

When fire is extinguished the extinguisher should be turned upside down to

finish the remaining pressure.
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EMERGENCY PROVISIONS AND PROTOCOLS

In order to maintain the continuity of power supply, Bahria Town Lahore has established
complaint center which works round the clock.

The staff deputed is on shift basis and complaint office contact numbers are printed on energy
bills for contacts in case of failure of supply / any query.

The complaint staff is well equipped with all T&P items, vehicles and safety equipment.

Bahria management has introduced a software which enables the complaints to contact the site
crew of that area directly through the complaint office contact numbers and the site crew attends
the complaint satisfactorily.

In case of any major fault, faulty area is isolated but the supply to affected area is restored
immediately by the complaint staff through alternate routes by operating Ring Main Switches /
MCCBs at transformers which are incorporated in the distribution network. Therefore, the supply
to any area is not affected even in case of any major fault.

The complaint staff after restoration of supply assigns the job to rectify the fault to maintenance
supervisor who with maintenance staff immediately takes over the assignment, being well
equipped with cable fault detectors, other T&P items, spares and material.

Minimum levels of spares / material are always ensured which are available to staff at any time.

Stock balance status on 29-12-2023 is attached (one page important items summary with detailed
inventories).

Bahria Town Lahore has established its own fire brigade station in Safari Villas (within service

territory) which is well equipped with three (03) Nos. most modern fire vehicles alongwith all
other equipment and 19 fully trained personnel.

It is capable to reach any place within three (03) minutes in case of emergency due to fire at grid
station or any other electric installation.

In case of an emergent situation caused due to main supply failure, Bahria Town electrical staff
switches on the standby diesel generator sets as per demand. The total capacity of standby diesel
generator sets is sufficient to meet Bahria Town’s important loading requirements.
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Bahria Towr: :..:hiore Electrical stock

Important ltems Summary as on 29-12-2023

Sr No Description Unit Quantity Available
1 HT Cables Mtrs 3664
2 LT Cables Mtrs 6027
3 RMUs A Nos 9
4 Distribution Boxes Nos 172
5 HT/LT Termination Kits Nos 326
6 EFl Indicators Nos Nil
7 Transformers Nos 25
8 3 Phase Energy Meters Nos 715
9 Single Phase Energy Meters Nos 45
10 Bi-Directional Meters Nos 250




Maix Store Lahore

Serial# Item No. Decription Unit Current Qty
1 04/02/01/0001 BEND PVC CUNDUITE 3/4". NO 64.00
2 04/02/01/0003 BEND PVC CUNDUITE 1 ' NO 1,294.00
3 04/02/01/0004 BEND PVC CUNDUITE 1-1/4" NO 4,395.00
4 04/02/01/0007 BEND PYC CUNDUITE 3" NO 478.00
5 04/02/01/0008 BEND PVC CUNDUITE 4" NO 176.00
6 04/03/01/0001 SOCKET PVC CUNDUITE 1/2" NO 66.00
7 04/03/01/0002 SOCKET B+ CUNDUITE 3/4" NO 290.00
8 04/03/01/0006 SOCKET PVC CUNDUITE 2" NO 40.00
9 04/03/01/0007 SOCKET PVC CUNDUITE 3" NO 3,662.00
10 04/03/01/0008 SOCKET ¢VC CUNDUITE 4" NO 137.00
11 04/04/01/0001 JUI\'CTIC"-N SO 34 X1-1/2" NO 225.00
12 04/04/01/0002 JUKCT0 LT GHTKE NO . 2,510.00
13 04/04/01/0005 Jb 5&'3:1’, ,‘> ‘:‘ i"X3" NO 1,836.00
14 04/04/01/0008 JUNC'I‘;C.;f SO -127K1- 14" NO 107.00
15 04/04/01/0013 JUNCTIGH EOX 34" (4 WAY)' NO 1.00
16 04/04/02/0001 CIELIN;'B LIGHT LOX 3" NO 62.00
17 04/04/02/0003 CIELING LIGI{T LOX 4"X6" NO 47.00

TR
18 04/04/03/0001 BOX PLASTIC $W/TICi! 1D SMALL 2-172" * 4 NO 123.00
R Y - T
19 04/04/03/0002 BOX PLASTIC & .. {7 Cr. KIU LARG 2-1/2" * g" NO 586.00
20 04/04/03/0003 BOX E:L‘:;'E'?C:lﬁ';‘.;11‘CII wID TV-TP NO 1,133.00
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Mein Store Lahore

Serial#

Item No. Decription Unit Current Qty
21 04/04/03/0013 BOXPVC A" X 4" NO 11.00
22 04/04/05,0006 BOX PLASTIC 6 GANG IMPORTED NO 609.00
23 04/04/05/0007 BOXPLASTIC 3 GANG IMPORTED NO 243.00
24 04/04/06/0007 BOX WOODEN 10" X 10" X 14" NO 129.00
25 04/04/07,0001 BOX MS SMALL 3" X 3" NO 133.00
26 04/04/08/0007 FAN BOX Gl 6" NO 5.00
27 04/04/08,/0009 FAN BOX PVC 6" NO 3.00
23 04/04/11/0005 BOX GU4FEET X 30¢ NQ 2.00
29 04/04/11/0006 BOX Gl FOR STREET LIGHT POLE NO 20.00
30 04/05/010002 TE.E BYvC 3/4" NO $9.00
31 04/06/01/0001 L.L}SOW PVC 3/4" NO 16.00
32 04/06/01/0007 El.l.éO"»‘J 1"}."'\3 [-1A NO 36.00
33 04/07/01/0001 Ci\BLt 154 8/C GREEN MTR 90.00
34 04/07/02/0001 CABLE 3/29 (1.51\/-11\/1) S/C BLACK MTR 90.00
35 04/07/02/0004 CABL]IE 3)29 (1.5MM) S/C RED MTR 360.00
36 04/07/06/0001 CABLE 7/29 (2.5 MM) TWO CORE MTR 386.00
37 04/07/08/0001 CTHLLE 73520008 MTR 27.00
38 04/07/09/0010 CABLE 4w .’;L:-C.i). ‘.d éOi'PER FLEXIABLE MTR 90.00
39 04/07/10/0002 CAl)‘;,l;: " {2.5 MiM) 16 CORE MTR 152.00
40 04/07/10/0005 CABLLL 2,5.:\1.-.: 4-CORE COPPER MTR 90.00
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Muin Store Lahore

Serial# Item No. Decription Unit Current Qty
41 04/07/11/0001 CABLE 7/44 S/C BLACK (6 MM) MTR 90.00
42 04/07/11/0003 CABLE 7/44 S/C RED (6 MM) MTR 47.(?0
43 04/07/11/0008 CABLE 6MM 2-CORE FLEXIBLE MTR 90.00
44 04/07/17/0002 CALGLE TELEPHONE 2 PAIR V MTR 270.00
45 04/07/20/0001 CABLE 240MM §/C ALUMINIUM MTR 84.00
46 04/07/23/0002 CABLE 500MM S/C XLPE ALUMINIUM MTR 114.00
47 04/07/24/00062 CABLE 25 MM S/C COPPER MTR 15.00
48 04/07/28/0002 CABLE 70 MM S/C COPPER MTIR 398.00
49 04/7/29/0001 CABLE 70MM 4CORE COPPER MTR 67.00
50 04/07/29/0005 CABI:E 70MM 3-CORE COPPER MTR 67.00
51 04/07/30/0003 CABLE IZOII'v'li\I S/C COPPER ‘ MTR 80.00
52 04/07/32/0001 CABLE 35Mx1 4«CORE COPPER MTR 11.60
33 04/07/32/0008 CADLE 35 MM 3-CORE COPPER MTR 52.00
54 04/07/37/0002 CABLE 185 MM .4CORE COPPER MTR 146.00
55 04/07/41/0002 CABLE RG-7 MTR 90.00
56 04/07/51/0004 CALLE 300iMM 5/C COPPER MTR 417.60
57 04/07/62/0001 | FIBER Ci‘.BLE MTR 134.00
53 04/07/65/0006 CABLE IMM SiIQGLE CORE FLEXIBLE MTR 50.00
39 04/0%/01/0003 TAFEIL-T NO 64.00
60 04/10/01/0001 THIL\[BLE 6MM NO 196.00




Main Store Lahore

Serial# Item No. Decription Unit Current Qty
61 04/10/01/0003 THIMBLE 16MM NO 88.00
62 04/10/01/0005 THIMBLE 35MM NO 64.00
63 04/10/01/0007 THIMBLE 70MM NO 265.00
64 04/10/01/0011 THIMBLE 185 MM NO 164.00
65 04/10/01/0015 THIMBLE 500MM NO 86.00
66 04/10/01/0016 THIMBLE 300MM NO 253.00
67 04/12/01/0003 BULB 100 WATT NO 4.00
68 04/12/01/0004 BULB 125 WATT NO 16.00
69 04/12/01/0008 BULB 250 WATT NO 2.00
10 04/12/01/0009 BULD 460 WATT NO 7.00
71 04/12/01/0014 BULD 12 WATT NO 8.00
72 04/12/01/0017 BULB 70 WATT NO .23.00
73 04/12/01/0020 BULB FOR BEEGA LIGHT 250 WATT NO 9.00
74 04/12/01/0021 BULB FOR BEGA LIGHT 26 WATT NO 8.00
75 04/12/01/0022 BULB FOR BEGA LIGHT 35 WATT NO 2.00
76 04/12/01/0023 BULB FOR BEGA LIGHT 400 WATT NO 8.00
77 04/12/02/0008 BULB FOR SPOT LIGI IT MR-16 NO 86.00
78 04/12/02/0009 BULB FOR SPOT LIGHT MR-11 NO 48.00
79 04/12/08/0001 SI;CT LIGHT 2" NO 16.00
80 04/12/08/0002 SPOT LIGHT 3" ‘NO 43.00
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Muain Store Lahore

Serial# Item No. Decription Unit Current Qty
81 04/12/08/0007 SPOT LIGHT COMPLETE 40 WATT NO 454.00
82 04/12/09/0001 CIELING LIGHT NO 219.00
83 04/12/09/0002 CIELING LIGHT HANGING NO 2.00
84 04/12/09/0004 CIELING LIGHT SQURE NO 177.00
85 04/12/09/0006 CEILING SPOT LIGHT FRAME 3" NO 137.00
86 04/12/09/0007 CEILING SPOT LIGHT FRAME 5" NO 19.00
87 04/12/09/0009 CEILING SPOT LIGHT FRAME 4" NO 13.00
88 04/12/10/0003 SEARCH LIGHT 250WATT NO 3.00
89 04/12/10/0004 SEARCH LIGHT 400 WATT NO 1.00
90 04/12/11/0002 STREET LIGHT 150 WATT NO 82.00
91 04/12/11/0003 STREET LIGHT 250 WATT NO 108.00
92 04/12/11/0004 STREET LIGHT 400 WATT NO 106.00
93 04/12/12/0002 TUBE LIGHT 40 WATT COMPLETE NO 6.00
94 04/12/14/0001 GARDEN LIGHT NO 6.00
95 04/12/14/0004 PARK LIGHT STANDING NO 13.00
96 04/12/15/0001 WALL LIGIIT SINGLE NO 43.00
97 04/12/15/0007 WALL LIGHT HALF MOON NO 53.00
98 04/12/17/0003 TUBE ROD 36 WATT NO 24.00
99 04/12/17/0004 TUBE ROD 40 WATT NO 18.00
100 04/12'/17/0014 TUBZ ROD 16 WATT NO 15.00
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Main Store Lahore

Serial# “item No. Decription Unil Curreat Qty
101 D4/12£17/0023 TUBE ROD 2 FEET 40 WATT GOLDEN o | |4uu _
102 04;12/17/0030 ' TUBE ROD LED 16 WATT 4 FEET NO 6 00
103 04/12/‘17/0036 TUBE ROD TS 4 WATT 2 FEET NO i 300 '
e | 04/12/17/0037 | TUBE 1@(_‘);3 TS 8 WATT 1 FEET “NO | .1\5_;00
105 04/12/17/0053 TUBE RQ@'LED TS 13.5 WATT 3 FEET WARMLIGHT|  NO 1200 ’
106 04‘/1;2'/1-7/005'5 TUBE R‘_(‘)_D'L»P_IIV)- TS 9 WATT 2 FEET WARM LIGHT NO 28.00
107 oan2noss TUBEROD LEIP:TS 45 WA:TT LFOOT WARMLIGHT | NO - 1360
108 04/1%/18/0001 - DOWN LIGHT 3" NO 7 31)0
109 | 0412180002 DOWNLIGHT 4" No REL
110 04/12/20/0001 ' FOUNTAIN LIGHT NO 6.00
11 Q4/1_2)g_5/§ooé. HALOGEN LIGHT 500 WATT NO 10.00
12 04/12/37/0011 LED NET LIGHT NO 206.00
113 04/;2/37/0012 ' LED LIGHT D_iiCORfj\flON (ROPE TYOE) COIL _ 1.00
114 04/12/37@03 | ._F{}N\C)QS NO 64.00
115 04%1.2%2;10!@002 ' Buiﬁ ‘C,A,ElS'QJ.,.__ | NO
116 04/12/43/0001 SODIUM LAMP 150 WATT PHILIPS NO
17 04/12/43/0004 SODIUM LAMP 400 WATT NO 72.00
118 04/12/43/0005 SODIUM LAMP 1000 WATT - NO 13.00
119 04/12/43/0007 SODIUM LAMP 70 WATT NO 24.00
120 04/12/44/0005 LED DOWN LIGHT 5 WATT NO 10.00
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Main Store Lahore

Serial# Item No. Decription Unit Current Qty
121 04/12/44/0007 LED FLOOD LIGHT 100W NO 10.00
122 04/12/44/0012 LED FLOOD LIGHT 20 WATT NO 37.00
123 04/12/44/0023 LED LIGHT 30 WATT NO 6.00
124 04/12/51/0001 LED STREET LIGHT 90 WATT NO 17.00
125 04/12/51/0002 LED STREET LIGHT 70 WATT. NO 534.00
126 04/12/51/0003 LED STREET LIGHT 120 WATT NO 112.00
127 04/12/52/0043 PANEL LIGHT LED 36 “I’:?é;l"_n?: FEET X 2 FEET WARM NO 3.00
128 - 04/12/55/0002 FLOOD LIGHT 7830 NO 8.00
129 04/12/55/0005 FLOOD LIGHT SILVER 7878A NO 8.00
130 04/12/55/0006 FLOOD LIGHT SILVER 7447A NO 2.00
131 04/12/55/0007 FLOOD LIGHT SILVER 7870A NO 8.00
132 04/12/55/0008 | FLOODLIGHT SILVER WITH MOUNTING BOX 7454A NO 1.00
133 04/12/55/0010 SURFACE-MOUNTED FLOODLIGHT 8759 NO 3.00
134 04/12/55/0011 SURFACE-MOUNTED FLOODLIGHT 8754 NO 3.00
135 04/12/56/0001 IN-GROUND LUMINAIRE 8751 NO 1.00
136 04/12/56/0002 IN-GROUND LUMINAIRE 8014 NC 11.00
137 04/12/57/0001 STREET LIGHT FIXTURE NO 33.00
138 04/12/60/0001 SMD LIGHT 20 WATT NO 6.00
139 04/12/60/0002 SMD LIGHT 5 WATT NO 3.00
140 04/12/63/0001 LED LAMP (100 CM) 5 WATT NO 35.00
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Main Store Lahore

Serial# Item No. Decription Unit Current Qty
141 04/12/63/0002 LED LAMP (50 CM) 3 WATT NO 58.00
142 04/12/68/0011 LED DRIVER 36 WATT NO 10,00
143 04/14/01/0001 CHOKE 20 WATT NO 6.00
144 04/14/01/0002 CHOKE 40 WATT NO 162.00
145 04/14/01/0004 CHOKE 125 WATT NO 47.00
146 04/14/01/0006 CHOKE 250 WATT NO 20.00
147 04/14/01/0011 CHOKE 70 WATT NO 71.00
148 04/15/01/0001 TUBE LIGHT HOLDER NO 16.00
149 04/17/01/0002 LOUVRE FOR BEGA LIGHT (SHADE) 134 NO 127.00
150 04/18/01/0001 PLATE 1 HOLE SWITCH KID NO 96.00
151 04/18/01/0002 PLATE 2 HOLE SWITCH KID NO 160.00
152 04/18/01/0003 PLATE 3 HOLE SWITCHKID NO 473.00
153 04/18/01/0004 PLATE 4 HOLE SWITCH KID NO §3.00
154 04/18/01/0006 PLATE 6 HOLE SWITCH KID NO 169.00
155 04/18/03/0001 PLATE SILVER I HOLE NO 6.00
136 04/18/04/0001 PLATE GOLDEN 1 HOLE NO 25.00
157 04/18/04/0002 PLATE GOLDEN 2 HOLE NO 33.00
158 04/18/05/0003 PLATE 3 GAUG IMPORTED NO 362.00
159 04/18/05/0006 PLATE 6 GAUG IMPORTED NO 56.00
160 04/18/07/0001 PLATE FOR LIGHT PLUG SWITCH KID NO 339.00
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Main Store Lahore

Serial# Item No. Decription Unit Current Qty
161 04/18/08/0001 PLATE FOR POWER PLUG SWITCH KID NO 41.00
162 04/18/05/0006 SWITCH PLATE 6 SWITCH NO . 2.00
163 04/18/09/0009 SWITCH PLATE 2 SWITCH CHINA NO 67.00
164 04/18/05/0010 SWITCH PLATE 3 SWITCH CHINA NO 4.00
165 04/18/10/6002 SWITCH PLATE TELEPHONE NO 1.00
166 04/18/11/0001 SWITCH PLATE BELL PUSH CHINA NO 18.00
167 04/18/13/0005 SWITCH PLATE 5 SWITCH | SOCKET NO 1.00
168 04/18/14/0001 PLAIN PLATE 4"X6" NO 18.00
169 04/18/14/0008 PLAIN PLATE 12"X12" NO 20.00
170 04/18/14/0012 PLAIN PLATE 3"X3" NO 40.00
171 04/18/14/0017 PLAIN PLATE 12" X 14" NO 8.00
172 04/18/14/0018 PLAIN PLATE 12" X 10" NO 10.00
173 04/18/14/0020 PLAIN PLATE FIBER 7" X 3" NO 599.00
174 04/18/14/0021 PLAIN PLATE FIBER 4" X 4" NO 11,00
175 04/18/16/0001 PLATE PVC 7"X4" NO 5.00
176 04/18/20/0001 BAKOLIGHT SHEET 8 MM NO 36.00
177 04/19/01/0002 SOCKET FOR TELE PHONE SWITCﬁ KID NO 137.00
178 04/19/01/0003 SOCKET FOR TELEPHONE IMPCRTED NO 15.00
179 04/19/01/0008 SOCKET FOR TELEPHONE CHINA NO 11.00
180 04/19/02/0003 SOCKET LIGHT PLUG IMPORTED NO 154.00
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Main Store Lahore

Serial# Item No. Decription Unit Current Qty
18t 04/19/03/0001 SOCKET FOR POWER PLUG SWITCH KID NO 24.00
182 04/19/03/0003 SOCKET POWER PLUG IMPORTED NO 2.00
183 04/19/04/0001 SOCKET FOR TELEVISION SWITCH KID NO 139.00
184 04/19/04/0003 SOCKET TELE VISION CHINA' NO 1.00
185 04/19/05/0005 SOCKET TWO PIN PIANO NO 5.00
186 04/19/06/0005 SOCKET INDUSTRIAL FEMALE 3-PIN 32 AMP NO 12.00
187 04/20/01/0003 SWITCH SINGLE WAY IMPORTED NO 252.00
188 04/20/02/0005 SWITCH NO/OFF PIANO NO 1.00
189 04/20/03/0002 SWITCH POWER IMPORTED NO 6.00
190 04/20/05/0002 SWITCH DUMMY LARGE IMPORTED NO 51.00
191 04/20/05/0004 SWITCH DUMMY SWITCH KID NO 202.00
192 04/20/05/0005 SWITCH DUMMY FOR D B NO 167.00
193 04/20/18/0001 UNIVERSAL THERMOSTATE SWITCH NO 2.00
154 04/21/01/0001 SWITCH TIMER NO 7.00
195 04/22/04/0003 FAN PEDESTAL LOUVER NO 1.00
196 04/22/07/0005 FAN PLASTIC FOR ELECT. MOTOR 2 HP NO 5.00
197 04/23/02/0001 FAN RAGULATER NO 178.00
198 04/24/01/0001 SHOE 2-PIN NO 1.00
199 04/25/01/0001 FUSE 2 AMP NO 4.00
200 04/25/01/0005 FUSE 10 AMP NO 50.00
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Main Store Lahore

Serial# Item No. Decription Unit Current Qty
201 04/25/01/0013 FUSE 50 AMP SET 8.00
202 04/25/01/0014 FUSE 100 AMP SET 12.00
203 04/26/01/0002 ROUND TIKKI PVC 8" NO 1,395.00
204 04/28/01/0003 BELL PUSH IMPORTED NO 8.00
205 04/28/01/0015 PUSH BUTTON NO 6.00
206 04/29/01/0006 HOLDER FOR SPOT LIGHT . NO 199.00
207 04/29/01/0011 HOLDER FOR HOLLOGEN LIGHT 500 WATT NO 10.00
208 04/30/01/0008 CONNECTOR LINE UP NO 11,732.00
209 04/30/01/0017 CONNECTOR FOR TELEPHONE VY NO 100.00
210 04/30/01/0064 MAGNETIC CONNECTOR 100 AMP NO 8.00
211 04/31/01/0001 KIT KAT 30 AMPERE NO 32.00
212 04/31/01/0003 _KIT KAT 100 AMPERE NO 3.00
213 04/33/01/0011 DISTRIBUTION BOX 14"X20" NO 45.00
214 04/33/01/0025 METER BOX NO 511.00
215 04/33/01/0042 CONTROL PANNEL COMPLETE NOC 1.00
216 04/33/01/0064 PANNEL BOX 7.5HP COMPLETE NO 1.00
217 04/33/01/0067 PANNEL BOX STREET LIGHT CONTROL NO 2.00
218 04/33/01/0074 DISTRIBUTION BOX 36" X 24" X 18" NO 1.00
219 04/33/01/0097 CONTROL PANNEL COMPLETE UNIT 10 HP NO 1.00
220 04/33/01/009'9 SUB MAIN PANNEL 100 AMP COMPLETE NO 47.00
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Main Store Lahore

Serial# Item No. Decription Unit Current Qty
221 04/33/61/0102 IN/OUT PANNEL BOX 100 AMP NO 10.00
222 04/33/01'0104 POWER FACTOR PANNEL COMPLETE NO 1.00
223 04/33/010107 PANNEL 400 AMP OUTGOING NO 1.00
224 04/33/010111 DISTRIBUTION BOX 24" X 30" X 6" NO 10.00
225 04/33/01/0113 PHOTO ELECTRIC SWITCH PANEL 10 AMP NO 11.00
226 04/33/01/0178 LT PANEL 2000 AMP COMPLETE NO 1.00
227 04/33/01/0268 ELECTRIC PANEL 800 AMP NO 1.00
228 04/33/01/0281 PISTRIBITON R )S(I;foggngTE 06 NO 1.00
229 04/34/62/0002 BREAKER 6 AMP SINGLE PHASE NO 730.00
230 04/34/03/0001 BREAKER 10 AMP SP NO 8.00
231 04/34/04/0002 BREAKER 16 AMP S/POLE NO 7.00
232 04/34/05/0001 BREAKER 20 AMP S PHASE NO 36.00
233 04/34/07/0001 BREAKER 32 AMP SP NO 6.00
234 04/34/08/0002 CIRCUIT BREAKER 40AMP 3 PHASE NO 1.00
235 04/34/10/0001 BREAKER 63 AMP 4 PHASE NO 6,018.00
236 04/34/10/0003 BREAKER 63 AMPAIR 4-POLEF NO 71.00
237 04/34/13/0002 BREAKER 250 AMP 3-POLE NO 7.00
238 04/34/17/0002 CIRCUIT BREAKER 20AMP 3 PHASE NO 2.00
239 04/34/18/0001 CIRCUIT BREAKER 25 AMP NO 4.00
240 04/34/21/0002 CIRCUIT BREAKER 60 AMP 3 PHASE NO 2.00
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Main Store Lahore

Serial# Item No. Decription Unit Current Qty
241 04/34/24/0002 CIRCUIT BREAKER 100AMP 3 PHASE NO 152.00
242 04/34/27/0001 CIRCUIT BREAKER 250AMP 3 PHASE NO 1,309.00
243 04/34/27/0002 BREAKER 250AMP 4 POLE - NO 1.00
244 04/34/29/0002 CIRCUIT BREAKER 15 AMP 3 PHASE NO 1.00
245 04/34/30/0001 CIRCUIT BREAKER 400 AMP 3 PHASE NO 76.00
246 04/34/42/0002 BREAKER 2000 AMP 4-POLE NO 3.00
247 04/34/47/0001 BREAKER 1000 AMP 3-POLE NO 18.00
248 04/35/01/0005 CONNECTER STRIP 100AMP NO 50.00
249 04/36/08/0001 CHANGE OVER SWITCH 300 AMP NO 1.00
250 04/39/01/0008 TRANSFORMER 12V NO 86.00
251 04/39/01/0017 CURRENT TRANSFORMER CT 200/5 NO 2.00
252 04/39/01/0021 CURRENT TRANSFORMER CT 300/5A NO 2.00
253 04/39/01/0024 WATER PROOF TRANSFORMER 1P-65 NO 8.00
254 04/39/01/0025 STABOL TRANSFORMER 220 V NO 8.00
255 04/39/01/0049 TRANSFORMER PAD MOUNTED 750 KVA NO 1.00
256 04/39/03/0010 CURRENT TRANSFORMER CT 1250/5A NO 8.00
257 04/40/61/0001 GLASS FOR WALL LIGHT NO 27.00
258 04/40/01/0011 TOP GLASS FOR BEGA LIGHT NO 42.00
259 04/41/01/0002 COPPER BUSBAR FOR DISTRIBUTION BOX NO 117.00
260 04/41/01/0003 ALLUMINIUM BUSBAR FOR DISTRIBUTION BOX NO 2,906.00
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Main Store Lahore

Serial# Item No. Decription Unit Current Qty
261 04/41/01.0016 BUS BAR (I TYPE ) FOR 400 KVA TRANSFORMER NO 137.00
262 04/41/01,0017 BUS BAR (ITYPE) FOR 1250 KVA TRANSFORMER NO 137.00
263 04/41/01,0019 BUS BAR (Z TYPE) FOR 1250 KVA TRANSFORMER NO 33.00
264 04/41/01.0020 BUS BAR (Z TYPE) FOR 400 KVA TRANSFORMER NO 6.00
265 04/42/01/0001 DIGITAL ELECTRICITY METER NO 435.00
266 04/42/01:0003 AMPIR METTER (PANAL) NO 30.00
267 04/42/01/0006 CT DIGITAL ELECTRIC METER NO 2.00
268 . 04/44/01 f'OOOi‘ LIGHT PLUG NO 1.00
-26; 04/46/01/0040 HEAT SHRINKABLE TUBE 185 MM ZIPER TYPE NO 26.00
270 04/47/01/0001 GLOBE BASE FOR STREET LIGHT POLE NO 37.00
271 04/47/02/0002 GLOBE FOR LIGHT 16" NO 2.00
272 04/47/04/0001 GLOBE LIGHT COVER NO 42.00
273 04/49/01/0002 CABLE JOINT KIT §/C NO 5.00
274 04/49/01/0009 CABLE JOINT KIT 4/C 120MM NO 30.00
275 04/49/01/0018 JOINT KIT 120 MM 3-CORE NO 34.00
276 04/49/01/0020 JOINT KIT 300MM 4-CORE NO 26.00
277 04/49/01/0021 JOINT KIT 500 MM S/CORE NO 10.00
278 04/49/01/0024 LT THROUGH JOINT KIT FOR 1 KV 25 MM 4 CORE NO 50.00
279 04/49/01/0035 JOINT KIT 50MM 4-CORE (LT) NO 22.00
280 04/49/01/0047 JOINT KIT 185MM 4-CORE (LT) NO 21.00
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Main Store Lahore

Current Qty

Serial# Item No. Decription Unit
281 04/50/01/0003 ELECT METER PRE PAID P 423 NO 41.00
282 04/50/01/0004 ELECT METER PRE PAID P 424 NO 13.00
283 04/53/01/0002 CAPACITOR 3.5 UF NO 6.00
284 04/53/01/0003 CAPACITOR 4.5 UF NO 2.00
285 04/53/01/0006 CAPCITOR 25 UF NO 12.00
286 04/53/01/0008 CAPCITOR 35 UF NO 6.00
287 04/53/01/0033 CAPACITOR 45 UF NO 16.00
288 04/53/01/0035 CAPACITOR 32 UF NO 336.00
289 04/53/02/0001 CAPACITOR 25 KVR NO 3.00
290 04/54/01/0011 COPPER LINK BAR NO 318.00
291 04/54/01/0013 EARTHING ROD GI 10 FEET X 3/4" NO 722.00
292 04/54/02/0007 DC TAPE COPPER CLAMP (FOR EARTHING) NO 1.00
293 04/54/02/0013 EARTHING CLAMP GI 3/4" NO 541.00
294 04/54/08/0001 COPPER LINK BAR RED NO 259.00
295 04/54/08/0002 COPPER LINK BAR YELLOWV NO 264.00
296 04/54/08/0003 COPPER LINK BAR BLUE NO 261.00
297 04/54/08/0004 COPPER LINK BAR BLACK NO 2.00
298 04/55/03/0002 CEILING ROSE PVC NO 13.00
299 04/55/05/0017 COIL FOR DB NO 23.00
300 04/55/05/0044 ARC STANGLAR NOS 156.00
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Main Store Lahore

Serial# Item No. Decription Unit Current Qty
301 04/55/05/0050 MS CAP FOR GLOBE LIGHT NO 59.00
302 04/55/07/0001 LIGHT BOX COMPLETE FOR ONE UNIT BOX 5.00
303 04/55/11/0006 FERRULE ALUMINIUM 120 MM NO 30.00
304 04/55/12/0001 INSULATOR NO 252.00
305 04/55/14/0003 TERMINATION BOOTS 11KVA RMU 3X120MM NO 1.00
306 04/55/14/0004 TERMINATION BOOTS 11KVA RMU 1X500MM NO 17.00
307 04/55/16/0021 COPPER CONDUCTOR 70MM MTR 92.00
308 04/55/18/0033 ADOPTER FOR WALKI TALKI NO 4004
309 04/55/19/0011 RELAY SWITCH NO 1.00
310 04/55/23/0007 CABLE GLAND NO 1,840.00
311 04/55/27/0001 FAN HOOK MS NO 2.00
312 04/55/32/0005 TIMER BASE § PIN NO 3.00
313 04/55/36/0002 LT JACKET 185 MM NO 12.00
314 04/55/37/0001 LT FEROLE CABLE JOINT 185 MM NO 11.00
315 04/55/37/0002 LT FEROLE CABLE JOINT 300 MM NO 39.00
316 04/55/37/0004 LT FEROLE CABLE JOINT 120 MM NO 18.00
317 04/55/38/0001 HT TERMINATION TUBE NO 18.00
318 04/55/42/0002 H.T TUBE 38/16 SET 30.00
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1.1

1.2

CHAPTER 1
PRELIMINARIES

AIMS AND OBJECTIVES OF CONSUMER SERVICE MANUAL

The Consumer Service Manual lays down the instructions in pursuance of Section 21
of the Regulation of Generation, Transmission and Distribution of Electric Power Act,
1997 read with Rule 9 of the NEPRA Licensing (Distribution) Rules, 1999 which shall
be administered by a distribution licensee to ensure safe, effective and reliable supply
of electric power.

SCOPE OF CONSUMER SERVICE MANUAL

The Consumer Service Manual is applicable to all consumers served by Bahria Town
Private Limited (BTPL) and includes without limitation the following matters, namely:

(a)

(h)

(i)

form and manner of application by the consumer for obtaining electric service. -

connection, along with details of any documents to be submitted in supportof- - =

the application.
time-frame for providing service connection to the consumer:

procedure and manner for installation of meters and other facilities for
connection;

the procedure and manner for billing, the time limit of payment of bills and
procedure for collection of bills;

fees and charges for connection, installation of meters, other facilities for
connection and reconnection;

procedure for issuing disconnection notice to consumer for non-payment of
bills and the procedure thereof for disconnection of electric supply in case of
non payment and reconnection after payment of outstanding dues;

collection of arrenrs upon or following reconnection;
Procedure for disconnection and the charges and penalties for illegal
abstraction/theft of electric power or for use of electric power for purposes

other than those specified in the application for connection and service;

Requirement of safety and security;

efficient use of electric power including with reference to characteristics of
supply or usage such as time of day, week or season;
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(k) procedure anc the time-frame for handling and redressal of different types of
consumer complaints;

The Consumer Servier Manual shall also act as the code of conduct to be used in
conjunction with the pinvisions of Distribution Code, Performance Standards
(Distribution) Rules, 2005, Eligibility Criteria 2003 and other operating codes, Rules
and regnlations whan 2l where applicable.

INTERFACE WITH CONSZUIMER FORUMS

BTPL shall make efforts to have interface with the Consumer Forums/ Councils and
Associations. Combined efforts shall be made to improve BTPL-Consumer
relationship and the consumer's awareness about utility’s programs/ activities/
services. Consumer Services Centers and One-Window Operations shall be
established for the convenience of the consumers operating round the clock.

DEFINITIONS

BTPL, operating in pursuance of the supplier's/distribution licence granted by NEPRA
is allowed to charge only such tariff as approved by NEPRA. Such tariff provides for
the terms and conditions of tariff applicable to different categories of consumersalso
determined by NEPRA. The definitions of the following terms are accordingly as per
the determinations of NEPRA as amended from time to time. A copy of the current

applicable TARIFF and its TERMS AND CONDITIONS as approved by NEPRA is
annexed with this manual. as Annexed-ill

Rilling Demand: As definad in the tariff terms and conditions;
Rilling Period: As delined in the Tariff terms and Conditions;
Fnergy Charges: As defined in the tariff terms and conditions;
Fixed Charges: As defined in the tariff terms and conditions;

eneral Supply: As delined in the tariff terms and conditions;
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10.

11.

13.
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16,

Maximum Demand: /\c defined in the tariff terms and conditions; -

Maximum Demandrlndicator (MDI): As defined in the tariff terms and conditions;
Month: As defined in the tariff terms and conditions; |

Mower Factor: As definad in the tariff terms and conditions;

Temporary Supply: As defined in the tariff terms and conditions;

OTHER DEFINITIONS

“Applicant”: means any person who applies to BTPL for provision of electric
power service or modification thereof.

. Application: A request to the authorized office of BTPL for an electric service

connection on the pre<scribed form. (form annexed as annexure iv);

Common Distribution System (CDS): means the distribution system as defined in .
the Eligibility Criterta Regulations 2003;

Conductor: means a wire, cable or other form having suitable capacity for carrying
electric current and used for movement or delivery of electricity;

. CConnecting Point: means the point where the metering installation and protection

apparatus of the constimer is connected to the dedicated distribution system;

Consumer: means a parson or his successor-in-interest who purchases or receives
electric power for consumption and not for delivery or re-sale to others, including a
person who owns or oceupies a premises where electric power is supplied;
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18.

19.

24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

Consumer's Mailing Address: means the address specified in the consumer's
Application and Power Supply Contract form for the purpose;

Consumption: means the amount of electricity used and measured over a given
neriod of time;

Declared Voltage: means the voltage required to be supplied at the consumers
terminals with permissible variations according to Performance Standards
Distribution;

Dedicated Distribution System: (DDS) means that part of the distribution system,
required to supply power for the sole consumption of an applicant and not for
supplying power to any other consumer and shall comprise of the distribution system
from the connecting peoint upto the interconnection point of the applicant including the
inetering and service wire and such other connection arrangement;

Distribution Sub Station: means a substation furnished, installed, owned operated
and maintained by BTFL;

Nistribution Lines: mean overhead lines and/or underground facilities consisting of
conduit and cable which are operated at nominal distribution voltages;

Distribution facilities: means electrical facilities operating at distribution voltage
and used for movement or delivery of electric power;

PISCO: means a utility/entity engaged in the business of distribution of electric power
as licensed by NEPRA:

PDrop-Out Fuse: means a current interrupting device, the mechanism of which is so

designed that on melting of a fuse link the fuse carrier drops out to exhibit an open
gap in the primary circuit;
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32.

33.

35,

36.

37.

39.

. Earthing or Grounding: means electrical connection to general mass of earth in

such a manner as to ensure, at all times, an immediate discharge of energy;

. Eligibility Criteria: means criterion for a non-discriminatory provision of distribution

service and sale of eleclric power to all the consumers within the service territory of
a distribution company as prescribed by NEPRA as the Criteria for Eligibility of
Consumers, 2003;

Energy Meter; means a device that registers the quantity of electrical energy over a
period of time;

Horsepower (HP): means a practical unit of power representing the ability to do work

hy some kinds cf electrical equipment. One HP is equivalent to 746 watts of electrical
enargy/power;

. Interruption: means loss of electric power to one or more consumers;

l.oad Factor: means the ratio of average load over a designated period to the peak
lnad in that period;

Nominal Voltage: means a suitable approximate value of voltage used to designate
or identify a system;

Overloading: means a-condition under which part of the system is subject to a

demand in excess of the normal design rating of that part of the system and not due
directly to system fault current;

.NTDC: means National Transmission and Dispatch Company as licenced by

NEPRA.

Premises: means ihe building/site/location where Electric Power is
ronnected/constimead:
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41.

43,

44.

45.

46.

47.

48.

Primary Service Connection: Any connection which is provided at 11KV or above
is defined as a Primary Service connection;

Public Lighting Supply: means a supply given to a Provincial Government
Department/ Agency or a Housing Society charged with public lighting, for the
purpose of illuminating public lamps within the area of its jurisdiction;

. Reliability: means the degree of performance of the elements of the electric power

system that resulis in =lectricity being delivered to consumers within specified
sfandards; '

Sanctioned Load: means the load in kilowatts sanctioned by BTPL,;

Service Drop: means as the cable of appropriate current carrying capacity to
connect the CDS/DDS to the Premises at the inter connection point. The maximum
langth of this Cable shall he such that the voltage at the inter connection point does
not fall below the specified limits;

Secondary Service Connection: means a connection which is provided at 400 volts
nr below is defined as secondary service connection;

Service Wires or Connection: means the group of conductors, whether overhead
or underground, necessary to connect the service entrance conductors of the

consumer to the BTPL supply line, regardless of the location of BTPL meters or
Iransformers;

Tariff Schedules: means the rates, charges, terms and conditions for generation of
electric power, transmission, distribution services and sales of electric power to

consumers by BTPL as approved by NEPRA and notified by the Government of
Pakistan;

Under Ground Distribution System: means an electric distribution system with all

wires installed underground except those wires within surface-mounted equipment
enclosures; ‘
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49, Voltage: means differance of potential or “electric pressure” in an electrical circuit

measured in volts;
50. Voltage Drop: means the reduction in the voltage between two reference points;

51. Voltage Fluctuation: means a series of voltage changes or a cyclic variation of
voltage; )
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ACRONYMS{TO BE UPDATED BY EACH DISCO) |
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MDI
MCO
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SR
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2.1

2.2

2.3

CHAPTER 2

- NEW CONNECTIONS

GFENERAL INFORMATION

Information desired from BTPL relative to subject matters covered by this Manual may
be obtained by personal call, by telephone, or by mail and is also available on the web.
The local office of the area is the main contact office where a separate window is
available in addition to the consumer service centers established by BTPL, to provide
all necessary information required regarding application for new connections and all
other matters relating to consumer services and provision of electric power services.

APPLICATION FOR SERVICE CONNECTION

Application and Power Supply Contract {A&PSC) Forms in English and Urdu.are

available free of charge in concerned office of BTPL and on its webpage. (as annexure
iv)

An applicant shall be required to fill in the forms and attach the required supporting
documents as detfailed therein.

Any assistance or information required in filling the application form shall be provided
to the applicant by BTPi staff in the office where form is to be submitted.

Application for new connection can be submitted at BTPL concerned office in person

or by registered mail. A receipt as acknowledgement of the forms shall be issued by
BTPL,

DOCUMENTS TO BE ATTACHED WITH THE APPLICATION

Documents to be attached with the Application and Power Supply Contract are as
follows:

- Ownership proof of the premises where connection is required.

« An affidavit from the owner of the premises to the effect that no connection
existed previously at the premises for which connection is applied for and that he
shall pay the RD any nutstanding dues in respect of any previous connection which
existed at the premises in question, if noticed thereafter. '

- “No Objection Certificate” from the landlord (if the applicant is a tenant along with
landlord’s proof of cwnership and affidavit mentioned above).

- Attested copies of Mational Identity Cards of the applicant and two witnesses.



. -The power of attorney (in case of a Company), in favor of the applicant to the
effect that the applicant is authorized to sign the application and execute
agreement on hehalf of the Company.

« In case of a Puhlic Limited Company, the list of Managers, Directors etc. with
complete addresses and attested photocopies of all documents regarding
registration of the Limited Company.

. . Available site plan of Industry/premises where connection is required.

« In case of change of name/reconnection/extension or reduction of load, a
certificate from the Revenue Office, BTPL to the effect that nc arrears are
outstanding against the premises along with proof of owner ship/NOC.

2.4 DESIGN, COST ESTIMATE AND DEMAND NOTICE

After the receipt of Application Form along with the required documents
concerned office of BTPL shall issue an acknowledgement receipt and a serial
number to the applicant for further reference/processing etc. Based on the site
inspection, the application will be evaluated /processed and approved as per
the provisions of Consumer Eligibility Criteria, Grid Code and Distribution Code
(where applicable). A demand notice of cost estimate and security amount shall
subsequently be issued by the concerned office of BTPL for payment by the
applicant. A

- Demand Notices for Service Connection cost and Security Deposits may be
sent under registered post or courier to ensure their delivery to the applicant.

For payment, branches of designated banks authorized to receive the Demand
Notice charges efr. shall be intimated to the applicant. The bank shall receive
payment as per demand notice and issue an acknowledgement receipt etc.

- Subsequent to the deposit of payment mentioned in the demand notices the
applicant shall axernte the power supply contract with BTPL in triplicate.

BTPL shall determine new final priority number of connections to each

application after the demand notices have been paid and wiring test report
submitted.

72.5 APPROVAL OF APPLICAMT’S INSTALLATION

Before any electrical wiring or energy consuming apparatus is connected to the BTPL
distribution system, the same shall be subject to inspection and testing by the

concerned staff of BTPL and no connection shall be made to the BTPL system without
the prior Inspection/satisfaction of BTPL.

2.6 CATEGORIES OF APPLICANTS

2.6.1 For processing applications for new connections, applicants shall be divided into
[olowing five categories.
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2.7.1

CATEGORY-I (Domestic Connection)

For connection at 220/400 Volts supply for load up to 20KW for domestic use.

CATEGORY-ll {Commercial Connection)

For connection at 230/400 Volts up to 11 kV for various joads for commercial use.

CATEGORY-II (Public Lighting)

For connection at 230/4-()0 Volts for public lighting.

CATEGORY — IV (Tube wells)

For connection at 230/400 to 11-kV for various loads for tube-wells.

TIME SCHEDULE FOR A NEW CONNECTION

BTPL shall provide new electric power service connection to its eligibie applicants as
spncified in the Consumer Eligibility Criteria (CEC) in each of the following categories

within the time limits specified against each from the date of registration of the
application for new connection.

Time Schedule for giving new connections under Categories i, i1, IV
CATEGORY-| __CATEGORY -1l CATEGORY - lil CATEGORY - IV."
DAY DAYS DAYS .
S I 5
RS AR N - 731 106*

*1) The time limits shall not include any time required which is beyond the control
of BTPL as per performance standards distribution and shall exclude the time
taken by the applicant in depositing the amounts of the Demand Notices and

provision of wiring test report. Connection applications shall be processed on the -
basis of first come first serve.
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Chapter 3

Service Connections

New Connection Charges

All connection charges for new connections shall be as per provisions made in
Consumer Eligibility Criteria Regulations annexed with this manual.

Relocation of Service Connections Due To Public Works

If, for public improvement such as street widening, grading, excavating, sidewalk
spaces, or for other reasons beyond BTPL's control, BTPL has to move distribution
facilities from the existing position or new facility is to be provided for improvement
of the system, the shifting/relocation/addition of the facility (over head or

underground) shall he carried out at the cost of the sponseoring agency and not the
affected consumer(s).

Relocation of Service Connection on consumers request

If the consumer requires the relocation of an overhead or an underground service
crnnection for convenience, because of construction, or otherwise obstructing access

to the service connection, BTPL shall, at the consumer's expense, relocate its service
connection.

Repair or Replacement of General Supply Service wire.

Routine repair/replacement of service wires feeding the consumer premises up to the
metering point shall be the responsihility of BTPL.

TEMPORARY CONNECTION

A temporary electric power supply connection may also be provided by BTPL subject
to the availability of load and the prevailing rules, when an applicant demands electric
supply for a specific time period not exceeding three months, which may be further

extendable on three-manths basis by the load sanctioning authority subject to
rlearance of outstanding rnes,

An applicant may apply for temporary connection for the following purposes:

Ifitmination and lighting for weddings, festival, functions, exhibitions or national and
religious ceremonies etc.

Construction of buildings
Any other emergent requirement of temporary nature
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3.3.2
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3.34

3.35

3.3.6

3.4

3.4.1

3.4.2

3.43

344

Procedure For Application

The applicant shall apply for temporary connection to the competent load sanctioning
Authority as per correspanding regular category of connection.

The applicant shall attach NOC/Authorization from the local Authority (where
applicable} along with the documents as mentioned in the application form.

The sanctioning authority shall approve in accordance with the Eligibility Criteria
Regulations

The applicant shall be served with Demand Notice for the cost relating to the
Dedicated Distribution System and security* which will be deposited with the -

dasignated hank. For capital contribution, the terms of Eligibility Criteria regarding
payments shall he applicable.

~ *The amount against the security shall include:

The amount as per applicable tariff and load equal to the cost of expected
consumption of electricity during the approved temporary connection period.

BTPL, after the receipt of necessary payment and certificate, shall provide the electric
power connection immerliately as per priority maintained for temporary connections.

CONDITIONS OF SUPPLY AND DISCONNECTION'

BTPL will provide tempnrary electric connection to the applicant on his demand for a
specified period and disconnect the same after the expiry of this period unless
axtended further on the request of the consumer and confirmation by BTPL that the
purpose for which temporary connection is required, still exists.

The consumer shall apply for extension in the sanctioned period at least one week
before the expiry of the sanctioned period. The consumer shall pay in advance as

security an amonnt equal to the expected consumption of the period applied for
extension.

BTPL shall discontinue service without notice whenever it is no longer temporary in
character, or it is used for unauthorized purposes.

After the expiry of the contracted period or after the period when connection is no
more required and is disconnected, the cost of equipment installed for temporary
connection shall he reimbursed to the consumer at depreciated rates, if it is

dismantled and talken nver by BTPL or if it is not dismantled and is taken over by the
RTPL,



CHAPTER -4

ENERGY METER INSTALLATION

41 GENERAL

This chapter covers inslaltation of energy meters at the premises of consumers of all
calagories recaiving alacliic power from BTPL.

R 1PL shall provide tha appropriate metering equipment at the cost of the consumer for
al' lypes of consmner enlegories,

4.2  METER LOCATIONS

() 1t shall ba thrresponsibility of the consumer to provide a safe and

asressible loration to BTPL for the installation of the metering equipment.

(i} The meters <hiolf be installed at a reasonable height from the ground level

or at a lev=l from where the meter reading is possible without using
climhing revirag

tiit) For mudli oecopancy  buildings, the metering equipment of all the

consnmara 1 iding in that building shall be installed at one location at the
henndany eof the building.

43  MUTER IMSTALI ATION

BTFRL =hall inat« il= hest endeavor to install the meters in accordance with the
latest indosiry ~fvndards and workmanship.



L

1t

All melars =hall bn installed on a non-flammable boards in a true vertical

position in = manmner that will prevent water from entering the meters or meter
cahinats, :

When melaring < quipment is installed in a multiple-occupancy building (two or
maora occupant=; the meter connection devices shall be labeled, tagged, or
stenciled showdng the complete address and location of the area served such
as tha apaitinent office, or store in the building and account no of the
consumer for whicth the metering equipment is being installed.

Tha metering ~anipment shall be installed with permanent attachment to a
rigicl, vibralion frer wall or structure. When such facilities are instailed indoors,

the consumer shinll provide and install a mounting board in accordance with
BTPL s spenilicntions, :

In the case of nusttiple-position or grouped meter connections, conductors from
the gnurce of svipply shall be continuous to the last meter and connected to
the melar nonn=ction tarminals in accordance with BTPL's requirements.

BT shall hawe tha right at any time to change the place and  position of the
melaring ecpiipment to conform with the provision of the schedule of tariffs in
foree from thne to time and consumer eligibility criteria.

Shouldd the cocamer at any time require the metering equipment to be shifted
to annther plas = ot position within the same premises, he shall give not less
than 7 days nelice 1o BTPL, giving reasons also. BTPL may shift the metering .
equipment vpon raceipt of such a request upon deposit of such shifting
charges bv the <-msumer as demanded through a demand notice by BTPL.

1.4 Metar Replacemant

4.4.1

n case of replacemen! 1 » meter, the consumer’s account shall not be liable to any
Adiustment on Ihe basic of any discrepancy detected in the impugned metering

~quipment whare the diviapancy is not attributable to any act or omission of the
consiner



4.4.2

4.4.4

4.14.5

Should BTFL at any time. Joubt the accuracy of any metering equipment, BTPL may
allar informing the conzumer, install another duly calibrated and tested metering
~quipment (check melering equipment) in series with the impugned metering
anuipment {0 determine the difference in cansumption or maximum demand recorded
hy the check melaring equipment and that recorded by the impugned metering
arjuipment during a fived period, If on such comparative test being made the impugned
matering equipment shonld prove to be in-correct, the impugned metering equipment
shall be removed fiom tha nremises, and BTPL in the absence of any interference or
alleration in the meachsniam of the impugned metering equipment being detected by
RUIPL, shall instat a "crnect meter” without any further delay. 4.4.3Where it is not
possible for BTRIL 1o insinlf check metering equipment of appropriate capacity (due to
non-availabilily of sneh equipment or otherwise) in series with the impugned metering
aquipment, to chack the accuracy of the impugned metering equipment as described
above, BTPL shall, alley informing (in writing) the consumer, test the accuracy of the
impugned metaring equipment at site by means of Rotary Sub-Standard. If on such
t st being marle. the inymianed metering equipment should prove to be in-correct, the
impugned melering »quinmant shall be removed and immediately replaced with a
~rarect matar.

Where a consumer is not eatisfied with the accuracy of the meter, he may inform BTPL
ol his desire for the =ail imatering apparatus be checked at site in his presence. Upon
1engiving such a ranuest. DTRL will issue @ demand notice as meter challenge fees for
the checking of the eaiit mater and will check the accuracy of the said meter within

CAIVEN working days em the date of receipt of payment of such challenge fees by

m=talling a duly calituai~ check meter in series with the impugned meter or in the
ahsence of a checlk meler, through a rotary sub-standard, accompanied by an engineer
nl BTPL's metering and festing laboratory. If upon checking the meter is found to be
recording beyond the prermissible limits, the meter shall be changed immediately

I charging of conswoms on the basis of defective code, where the meter has
hocome defactive and i< ant recording the actual consumption will not be more than
1O billing cycles The anis of charging will be 100% of the consumption recorded in
the same month »f previong year. Only Authorized employee of BTPL will have the
power to declare a metes defactive. However, the consumer has a right to challenge
the defective stalus of the apergy meter and BTPL will get the meter checked at site

with a chack meler ~ = infary sub-standard accompanied, by an engineer of the
etering and tasting Inbreatory free of cost,

Hihere any nonsuimer gives a notice in writing to BTPL and informs of having requested
tha Eleclric Inspedtor/™ ) to check the accuracy of BTPL's metering equipment
in=talled at his premiens or the status of the meter regarding it being defective or
c'herwisa, BTPL shall v hremove or take off the impugned metering equipment from
th~ consumar's premi-e~ it the Electric Inspector has conducted a test of the
irpugned metering copiinment at site, in the presence of BTPL's authorized
representativa. by maees of a duly calibrated check meter installed in series with the
honugnad metey or thieesh a- Rotary Sub-Standard and has given the result of his test.
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5.1

5.1.1

5.1.2

5.2

5.2.1

5.2.3

CHAPTER 5
SECURITY DEPOSITS AND OTHER CONNECTION CHARGES

GENERAL

After sanction of a new connection a Demand Notice for security deposit and other
connection charges (rost of dedicated system of the consumer) as per the rate
approved by NERPA (according to Consumer Eligibility Criteria) shall be issued to the
applicant for depositing the same in the designated Bank Branch,

A period of one month for payment of Demand Notice is given (in case of all categories
ol connections).

SECURITY DEPOSIT

The Security Deposit is not transferable except with the operation of law. However, if
the consumer moves to a new premises at a new location within the same DISCO and
requests for a new connection at the new location, in that case the security deposit
may be updated & transferred provided there is nothing left at the pervious premises
and provided no arrears are outstanding.

In case of change of tariff and /or extension/reduction of Ioad the security amount
shall be updated as per the approved prevailing rates.

For the purpose of calculating the security deposit, the fraction of a kilowatt (for loads
ahave one kilowatt) which is equal to, or more than half kilowatt, shall be taken as one
kilnwatt, and the fraction which is less than half a kilowatt shall be ignored.

The security amount deposited by the consumer at the time of getting connection shall
be refunded at the time of permanent disconnection after getting approval for the
refund from the load sanctioning authority. (Provided there is no other amount

nutstanding against the consumer). The security deposit amount can also be adjusted
in the final bill, if appliad bv the consumer.



6.1

6.1.1

6.1.2

6.1.3

6.1.4

6.1.5

6.2

CHAPTER 6

METER READING AND BILLING:

METER READING

Meater reading of all the consumers of BTPL is carried out on a routine basis each
month to record the ronsumption of energy consumed by each consumer during a
given period (Billing cycle/billing month). The meter reading is generally
taken/recorded by the Incal Distribution office of the distribution company. For the
purpose, the consumers of each sub division are divided into a number of batches.
The meter reading program shall be prepared in such a way that the meters of a batch
are read on the same dates each month.

Meter reading of all types of connections are required to be taken by the Meter
Readers. Reading of Maximum Demand indicators of connections having load over 20
K are to be recorded hv the senior officers of the distribution company

Authorized representatives of BTPL (as detailed above) shall visit the premises, read
the meters at the premises or where they are located and enter the following data in
tha Meter Reading Records, the Meter Reading Cards preferably in the presence of
tha consumer or his antharized representative.

- Date ofrearling

«  Meter Reading/ MDI

« Units consumer! during the month
« Append their initials.

Meter reading officers/meter readers shall return the Consumer Meter Reading Cards
to the consumers before leaving their premises.

Meter Readers shall also check the irregularities/discrepancies in cases of meters, at
the time of reading meters and report the same to the concerned office of BTPL who
will take corrective action to rectify discrepancies as reported by Meter Readers.

Further prescribed percentage checks of the meter readings recorded by meter readers
are to be exercised by all econcerned

BTPL may develop altarnative meter reading program and/or establish revised

designations for meter readers as per DISCO Commercial Organization Plan.

Electricity Consumption Rill

The Electricity consumption hill shall generally contain the following information



+ Billing Month
+« Reference Nn.

»  Tariff
+» lLoad

« lIssue Date

« Due Date

« ED ‘
- Reading Date

« Total units
Consumed

» Total cost of
Electricity

» Instaliments
+ GST

»  Amount Payable
Within due date

« Arrears
« Non Payment
« lLate Payment (LP)

Surcharge

» Amount Payable
After due date -

Demand Charges

Energy Charges

Other Charges

The month for which bill is being issued. ,
Number allotted at the time of approving new
connection and to used for all purpose there on wards.
The applicable tariff for the category of connection.
Sanctioned load for the connection.

The date on which bill is issued to the Consumer.

The date by which amount of the bill is to be paid to
avoid surcharge. However, if the due date happens to
fall on a holiday, the due date shall be considered as the
next working date.

Electricity Duty levied by the Provincial Government.
The date on which meter reading is taken. Usually
meter is read on the same date every month.
Difference of readings of meter taken on the same dates
during the current month and the previous month.

Cost of total units consumed as per applicable Tariff.

Any amount to be paid as per installments allowed by
Competent Authority.

General Sales Tax levied by the Government of
Pakistan.

Total current amount of all the payment items as
mentioned in the bill including arrears amount, if any.

Unpaid amount of the bill for the previous month.

‘Payment of bill not paid up to due date.

if amount is not paid within due date,
surcharge is levied.

Total of amount payable within due date and
LP surcharge

Energy/fixed charges according to MDI meter reading.
Cost of units consumed as per applicable tariff.

These charges include Fuel Adjustment charge, Late
payment (LP) charge and GST charge etc.



6.2.1

6.2.2

6.3

6.3.1

6.4

6.4.1

6.4.2

6.4.3

6.5

6.5.1

6.5.2

In cases where accumulated readings are recorded, segregated bills shall be prepared
keeping in view the number of months for which the readings have been accumulated
to give relief to the consumers. ’

The consumers are advised to read the “INSTRUCTIONS FOR THE PAYMENT OF BILLS”
given on the back of Monthly Electricity consumption charges bill of general
consumers and bill for industrial {MDI1)/Bulk supply consumers for their knowledge
and guidance. :

TIME PERIOD FOR PAYMENT OF BILLS

The due date for payment of bills shall be within 15 days from the issue date of the
bills. However, the consumers will have clear 7 days from the date of actual delivery
of the bill for the purpnsa of payment.

PROCEDURE FOR BILLS DISTRIBUTION

Batch wise computerized bills for consumers having load up to 20 kW shall be
received by the local office of the area from the revenue offices. The same shall then

be handed ‘over to tha Bifl Distributors on the same day for distribution to respective

consumers.

The Bill Distributors shall deliver the bills at the premises of the consumers within a
day of receipt of the hillz by them for distribution.

Bitls for industrial consiimers and MDI connections above 20 kW load shall also be
distributed to the respective consumers through Bill Distributors who shall obtain the
acknowledgements of sirch bills from the consumers in the Bills Delivery books.

COLLECTION /PAYMEMT OF ELECTRICITY BILLS

Designated Bank Branches and Post Offices of the respective City/District where
connection exists shall be coliecting Electricity Bills from consumers who have been

given option to deposit their Electricity Bills in any designated bank branch/ post
office,

On line payment and payment through Credit Cards or through cheques at designated
bank branches can also he made where possible.

Procedure in brief regarding payment of bills in Banks/Post Offices is as under:

- In order to avoid late payment surcharge, consumers shall pay their bills and
demand notices in bank branches in cash or through Pay orders/Bank
Drafts/Crossed Chennes. Consumers can also make payments to Revenue offices
through Crossed heques or Bank Drafts. (For payments to avoid levy of late



payment surcharge macde through cheques a grace period of at least three days be
given for the realizatinn of payment).

- The Banks/Post Offices shall receive bills, acknowledge the receipt of payment by
stamping the bills and the counterfoils as “PAID” indicating the amounts received.
Authorized officer of Bank/Post Office shall sign bills and counter foils in order to
authenticate the transaction.

-~ The Bank branches/Post offices shall retain counter-foils and return the
acknowledged bills to payers/consumers. '

6.5.3 BIPL may develop and offer to consumers an option to receive bills and make
pavments via Internet nr in such other manner as is possible, convenient and effective.



741

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

CHAPTER 7
TARIFT-

TARIFF

Tariff means the rates, charges, terms and conditions for generation of electric power,
transmission, interconnection, distribution services and sales of electric power to
consumers by BTPL. BTPL shall charge only such tariff from consumers as is
approved by NEPRA. BTPL shall apply to NEPRA for any change of Tariff to be
charged from different categories of consumers.

APPLICATION/SCHEDULE OF TARIFF

The schedule of tariff as approved by NEPRA and notified by the Government of
Pakistan, shall be made available in DISCO offices -and shall be provided to the
consumers on demand free of cost (Copy thereof is attached as annexure Ill). All

consumer queries/clarifications in respect of applicable tariff shall be adequately
addressed by BTPL. :

POWER FACTOR FPENALTIES

The penalties for low power factor shall be levied according to the “Terms and
Conditions” of approved tariff of respective category as annexed with this document.

CHANGE OF TARIFF

741  The consumer shall apply, at least 30 days in advance, for the change of his
- existing tariff to the competent load sanctioning Authority.

7.4.2  The consumer shall submit the application for change of tariff along with the
required documents as mentioned in the application form.

7.4.3 BTPL shall accord approval for change of tariff within 30 days of receipt of

application after =ite verification and confirmation of other information provided
by the consumer in his application.

VHS-USE OF TARIFF

7.5.1  The consumer shall, in no case use the connection for the purpose other than

for which it was originally sanctioned. In case of violation, the consumer is
liable for diseonnaction and or penal action.

7.5.2 BTFL shall serve seven {7) days clear notice to the consumer who is found mis-
using his approved/sanctioned tariff. However, BTPL shall immediately change
the tariff and shall determine the difference of charges of the previous period
of mis-use to be recovered from consumer. However, in the absence of any
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documentary proof the maximum period of such charges shall not be more
than TWO billing cycles.

7.6, TOD TARIFF

TIME OF DAY (TOD) metering for various classes has been introduced. The advantage of
TOD metering is that the rates are less with TOD metering as per the schedules of TOD. In

addition it also helps in reducing the Peak Demand on the system. Consumers are advised to
avail the facility of TOD metering.



8.1

8.1.1

812

8.1.3

8.1.4

8.2

CHAPTER 8

DISCONNECTION AND RECONNECTION

DISCONNECTION

A premises is liable to be disconnected if the consumer is a defaulter in making
payments of the energy consumption charges bill(s), or if he is using the electric
connection for a purpose other than for which it was sanctioned. or if he has extended
his load beyond the sanctioned locad even after receipt of a notice in this respect from
BTPL.

The consumer shall be hound to pay his energy bill within due date specified in the bill
or with the late payment surcharge if paid after due date, before the issuance of the
next maonth bill.

In case of non payment of the previous months electricity bill, BTPL shall serve a clear
7 days notice to the defanlting consumer to either clear the out- standing dues with the
current bill or face disennnection and penal action.

Upon non receipt of payment even after the expiry of the notice period, the supply of
the defauiting premises shall be disconnected. In such cases BTPL connected supply
shall not be reconnected or restored by BTPL until full payment along with late
payment surcharge has been made by the consumer.

The power supply of the consumers who are allowed by BTPL to make the payment
in installments shall not ha disconnected. However, if a consumer further defaults in
making payment of instaliments, the power supply of such a consumer shall be

disconnected without anv further notice and shall only be restored after receipt of alt
arrears.

The power supply of a defaulting consumer shall not be disconnected who has lodged
a complaint/petition against any wrong billing or any dispute relating to the payment of
energy bill with BTPL, tha Electric inspectors office, the Provincial Office of Inspection
or NEPRA (For all such, proper restraining orders shall be issued). BTPL shall also

not disconnect the supply if a restraining order to this effect has been issued from any
court of law.

If a consumer extends his existing load beyond the sanctioned load he shall be issued
a notice to apply for ertension of load within One month. BTPL shall disconnect the
power supply if the consimer fails to avail this opportunity.

RECONNECTION



BTPL -lisconnected premises shall be reconnected at the request of the consumer if all
outstanding electricity charges are paid and subject to the following policy.

8.2.1 Not used.

8.2.2 Cost of Material to he recovared at the time of Reconnection.

8.3

a. The material and equipment which is removed from the site as a result of
disconnection shall be kept in the concerned office of BTPL for 365 days
from the date of disconnection and an entry to this effect shall be made in
a register to be kept for this purpose. It shall be re-installed after payment
of reconnection charges without recovering cost thereof on application for
Reconnection within 365 days to be reckoned from the date of
disconnectinn. If a disconnected consumer does not come forward for
reconnection within 365 days from the date of disconnection, then the
removed material and equipment shall be returned to the store. Removed
material and equipment shall be taken on stock and it shall be issued as
stock material by the concerned office.

b. In case a disconnected consumer applies for reconnection after the expiry
of 365 days of disconnection but within three years from the date of
disconnection, credit on depreciated value of the removed material shall be
given in the estimate for reconnection provided cost of the removed
material was originally borne by the consumer or it was wholly subsidized
by an external agency outside BTPL or if such cost had not element of
subsidy by BTPL. No credit of the cost of the removed material will be
accorded where it was partially subsidized by BTPL under any approved
package. (Cost of such material and equipment under any partial scheme
will be treatad as if cost of the removed material was originally borne by
BTPL and as =uch no credit for depreciated value of subsidized cost will be
provided.

c. Incase a disconnected consumer applies for reconnection after a period of
three years from the date of disconnection, no credit of the cost of the
removed material shall be accorded, even if he had originally paid the entire
cost nf the material and equipment at the time of obtaining connection.

d. In case of reconnection of a disconnected premise where no arrears are
outstanding against the Premises and due to some reason serviceable
equipment is available at site, BTPL may utilize such equipment and cost
of such material will not be recovered from the consumer subject o the
satisfaction nf BTPL that the material is genuine, operationally safe and the
equipment has A reasonable serviceable life.

On receipt of paymenis BTPL shall issue reconnection orders for implementation by
the field office after fulfilling the formalities as per Reconnection Policy mentioned
above and immediately regularize the billing after execution of reconnection.

SECURITY DEPOSIT AHID CHARGES FOR RECONNECTION



8.3.1

18.3.2

8.3.3

Once a consumer applins for reconnection, he shall be charged security deposit as

per the following policy.

a.

For consuniers whose security has not been adjusted against the
outstanding a1rears and their disconnected period is also less than or equal
to 365 days no additional security deposit shall be charged.

For consumers whose security has been adjusted against the arrears and

“their disconnectad period is within 365 days or less only the amount of

adjusted security shall be charged.

For consumers whose securily has not been adjusted against arrears but
their disconnectad period is more than 365 days, for such consumers the
difference in amount between the security deposit already available with
BTPL and the prevailing rate at the time of reconnection shall be charged.
For consumers whose security has been adjusted against the arrears and
their disconnected pericd is alsc more than 365 days, for such consumers

the security at the prevailing rate shall be charged.

Reconnection fee shall be recovered as per following rates for the amount of the

arrears on the basis of which DCO/ERQ was affected.

For arrears upto Ns. 1000/- Rs. 100.00
For arrears hatween Rs. 1,001/- and Rs. 5000/- Rs. 300/-
For arrears between Rs. 5,001/- and Rs. 15000/- Rs. 900/-
For arrears between Rs. 15001/- and Rs. 1 Lac Rs. 2000/-
For arrears hetween Rs. 1 Lac to Rs. 5 L.ac Rs. 2500/-
For arrears over Ps 5 Lac Rs. 10,000
For connection disconnected due to other reasons Nil.

i.e. disconnected nn technical grounds, for unauthorized

Extension in Ioad. or seasonal consumers disconnected

due to season off ar disconnected due to misuse of

Applicable Tarill. no reconnection fees shall be charged.

AIIBTPL consumers, having disconnected period of more than three years shall have

fhe option to apply for new connection in the same premises subject to clearance of

all dues outstanding against previously disconnected connection. In such cases

nothing on account of fivad charges/minimum charges for disconnected period shall

be debited against the pramises previously disconnected, if new connection is sought

instead of "Reconnectinn” For this purpose the security amount originally deposited _



by the consumer shall he adjusted against the arrears of the previous account number

and the arrear bill of balance amount to be served to the consumer. Upon payment of

the balance amount, the consumer can apply for a new connection as per new

connection policy given in Chapter No 2. If any material is available at site or is lying

with BTPL against the consumers premises, the same shall be considered and will be

arcounted for in preparing the estimate for the dedicated system of the consumer

8.3.5 BTPL consumers whose arrears have partially or totally been set aside by Courts,

Electric Inspectors(POIl). NEPRA or BTPL’'s competent authorities or have been

allowed part payments shall be allowed reconnections on deposit of remaining arrears

or their first instaliment.

8.3.6 Disconnection an consumear’s request.

Temporary disconnection of supply is allowed to a consumer on his request, for a period of 30

days subject to the following terms and conditions:-

a.

ol

That the consumer has paid the final bill upto the day immediately preceding the

intended date of request for temporary disconnection.
That exemption in payment of minimum/fixed charges will be admissible for the
actual period of disconnection subject to a maximum of 30 (days) consecutive days
during a period of twenty four consecutive months;

That no reconnection fees shall be charged if the consumer gets the connection
restored immediately after the expiry of the period of disconnection aliowed to him;
A seascnal consumer or a consumer whose connection is lying disconnected shall
not be eligible to the allowance given in the temporary disconnection;

After the expiry of the period allowed for disconnection as per clause (b) above,
the connection shall be deemed to have been restored for payment of
minimum/fixed charges even if the consumer does not request for reconnection
and does not use electricity. In case the consumer defauits in making thé future
bills, his connection may be disconnected and equipment installed at his premises
to supply energy be removed after service of notice as per disconnection
procedure. Restoration of supply to such a premises shall also be regulated as per

the Reconnection P'nlicy as given in section 8.2

A consumer who intends to gel his premises disconnected shall apply to the load sanctioning

Authority of the connection concerned, who will arrange the final bill from the revenue officer

concerned. After payment of final hill, the respective load sanctioning Authority will approve

disconnection. Disconnection fri consumers supply shall be effected through removal of, such

facilities in avoid misuse of alechicity during the period of disconnection.



NOTE: In all cases of reconnection/MCOs or any case where meter is changed for any other
reason, Part Il and Part 1V of the application form will be filled out argd a copy sent to the
consumer for his informatian duly signed by the officer in charge.

SR Connee




CHAPTER 9

COLLECTION OF ARREARS, PENALTIES AGAINST THEFT OF
ELECTRICITY

9.1 COLLECTICN OF ARREARS UPON OR FOLLOWING RECONNECTION |

9.1.1 Causes of Increase of Amounts in Arrears

The consumers who «default in making payments by due dates shall be issued
Disconnection Notices ptinted on monthly Electricity Consumer Bills. The connections
of consumers who stilt do not make payments of their arrears shall be disconnected
on the maturity of disconnection notices after expiry of the stipulated period.

The consumers who shilt sites of their tube wells, poultry farms, cattle farms and
industries to other locations without clearing the pending electricity bills, BTPL shall
tole legal action to recover the arrears.

The consumers who sell their houses shops, industries, seasonal factories etc without
making payment of slactricity bills, BTPL shall take legal action to recover the arrears.

9.1.2 Recovery of Arrears Amount

« Recovery of arrears from the running consumers shall be made through their
regular monthly bills. If the monthly bills are not paid in time necessary action for
disconnection of such consumers shall be taken according to the procedure as
described in Chapter 8 "DISONNECTION AND RECONNECTION”.

9.1.3 Proceedings Against disconnected Defaulting Consumers

In case consumers fail to pay the arrears amount, all legal measures/ actions shall be
initiated against such consitmers for recovery of outstanding dues.

9.2 STEALING OF ELECTRICITY

9.2.1 Interference with metering apparatus for illegal abstraction of electricity
The Licensee may disconnect the provision of electric power to a consumer for default in
payment of power charges or o a consumer involved in theft of electric power.



DIRECT THEFT OF ELECTRICITY RY PERSONS WHO ARE NOT REGISTERED CONSUMERS OF A
DISCO.

If a premizes/person is found to he hooked directly with BTPL’s supply line without a metering
equipment in between or if the consumer is using electricity direct from BTPL’s supply line
and/or the person living in the premises is not a consumer of BTPL then, BTPL shall inter-alia
process tha case as THEFT of elactricity. For all such cases BTPL shall register a FIR with the
police.

9.2.2 ILLFGAL ABSTRACTION NOF ELECTRICITY BY REGISTERED CONSUMERS

The following indications shall lead to further investigations by DISCO for illegal
abstraction of electririly. For such cases BTPL shall prepare procedures for
invastigation

a. Prize bond/postal order/meter security slip removed
h. Bond/Terminal cover seal broken/bogus/tampered
c. Terminal cover missing

d. Holes made in the KWH meter bodies

e. MSB showing signs of tempering

f. Meter hanging loose/tilted/physically unbalanced.
g. Meter glass broken

—_
—_

Meter dead stop/burnt
Meter sticking

I Meter digits upset

K. Meter running reverse

L Meter connected on temporarily/permanently disconnected premises
m. Meter fonnd missing at site.

n. Meter found at site but no record exists in the office

Any other means which can cause interference in true recording of
quantum of energy (kWh) by the metering equipment.

9.2.3 Proredure for estahlishing illegal abstraction shall be as under.

{a) Upon knowledge of any of the items in 9.2.2, the concerned office of the RD
will acl a< follows ‘

(i) Secure meter without removing it in the presence of the
owner/occupier or his Authorized representative/ respectable person
of the locality

(i) Install checl meter and declare it as billing meter

(iii} Have Magistrate, POl/ and an officer of the metering and testing
division »f the RD (who should be an electrical Engineer) inspect the
meter secired at site and declare that illegal abstraction of electricity
has, and/or is being carried out.



{iv) Once confirmed that illegal abstraction is being done Serve notice to
the consiiner informing him of the allegations and the findings and the
requirement of a written reply from the consumer.

(v) Wait for Seven working days for receipt of reply

(vi) if the reply is not convincing or if no reply is received or if the allegations
as levied are proved, the inspecting office with the approval of the next
higher office will immediately serve a bill for un claimed energy limited
to the period of two billing months previous from the date of
establishment of illegal abstraction.

(vii)  Thebill along with a notice for payment within Seven days will be issued
by the inspecting office.

(viii)  Upon payment of the bill, the tampered meter shall be removed and
no further action will be taken by the RD’s office.

(b) The maximum period for charging in such cases shall be restricted to two billing cycles
for general supply consumers. For period beyond two billing cycles approval of the chief
Executive of BTPL shall have to he taken. Also for such cases action will also be initiated
against the officer in charge for not being vigilant enough. For other consumer classes, the
period of charging can be more than two bifling cycles up to a maximum of SIX billing cycles.
However, if the consumer ohjects payment or disputes over the quantum of units determined -

to by BTPL, the next higher office of BTPL {than the one approving the detection bill) is:

competent to settle the issue. In case, the dispute remains un resolved, the matter shall be
referred to NEPRA/the Provincinl office of Inspection, who are competent to make
determination in the matter.

(c) In case if the consumer does not make payment and also does not dispute over the
quantum of energy assessed, then after the expiry of the stipulated period his premises be
disconnected and the procedura for disconnection and reconnection as per chapter 8 be
followed thereafter. The same would be the case after a consumer does not make payment
on the quantum of energy determined in such cases by the Electric inspector (POI)/NEPRA.

NOTE. Mere occurrence of any of the above defects in a meter does not warrant illegal
abstraction of electricity. In cases sometimes, weathering effects and atmospheric conditions
also wear out the postal orders, seals and other parts of the metering equipment. The
detecting Authority must he reasonably sure regarding the illegal abstraction happening
before it ctually decides to charge a consumer for the same. The same is true for the
appellant forum as weil. in addition in places where the meters are out side the premises, the
prime responsibility of the maintenance of the healthy state of the meter rests with BTPL. A
consumer shall not he charged if the meter wears out through normal atmospheric effects or
through snme internal fault in a meter for which a consumer cannot be held responsible. For
such cases the narmal course of action on part of a DISCO should be to replace the meter with.
a healthy meter. However, if RIPL feels that the quantum of energy lost because of
malfunctinning of the metering =quipment is more than ONE billing cycle then in such a case
BTPL shall install a check metar in series with the impugned meter and declare the check
meter as the billing meter. Difference between the consumption of the two meters to be
recorded and the same may he charged to the consumer for a maximum of three billing
cycles. However, it must be epsured that this would not be a DETECTION BILL.
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10.1

10.2

10.3

CHAPTER 10
CONSUMERS COMPLAINTS

GENERAL

Complaints in respect of new connections, meter reading and billing, electric supply
failures and other matters relating to supply of electric power services shall be handied
by DISCQOs expeditiously. In order to redress consumer complaints, Consumer
Services Centers shail he approached for all types of complaints to be lodged by the
consumers. Additionally. One Window Operations are established in BTPL offices
wherein all types of complaints are received from the consumers who are given
acknowledgements of tha same with definite dates for their replies according to time
frame for handling and redressel of such complaints.

DISCO shall handle a complaint in accordance with the procedure as laid down in
this chapter.

COMPLAINTS REGARDING NEW CONNECTIONS
Complaints in respect of non-availability of application and Power Supply Contract

(A&PSC) and other material, delay in issuance of Demand Notices etc. shall be

attended properly and connections given as per Procedure and Time Schedule laid
down in Chapters 2 and 2, hereof. '

COMPLAINTS REGARDING BILLING

Common billing colmplaints including but not limited to the following shall be
entertained for redres=al /reply within the time as given below.

a) Errors in bills arising from wrong meter readings, wrong calculation of charges
eto(within 7 days from the receipt of complaint).

b} Tariff changes (within 20 days from the receipt of complaint).
¢} Defective meters (within 2 billing cycles for meters charged under defective code).

d) Wrong application of surcharge (late receipt of bank scrolis or loss of a scroll)
{within 3 days of receipt of complaint).

e) Adjustments arising nn various matters including extension of due date and waiver

of surcharge {within 2 days from the receipt of complaint).

) Generally, the data for bills preparation is not sent in time to BTPLs Computer
Centre. This has consequential effects and in turn consumer bills are delayed as



h)

mt.

.

they do not get SEVEM clear days for payment of bills (In such cases the BTPL can
extend the date by THREE days).

Bills calculated on an average basis are usually on the higher side which need
reconsideration and rorrection from the next higher authority (within 7 days from
the receipt of complaint). '

Detection bills are prepared on the basis and for a period not acceptable to the

consumers (if referred to DISCO decision within 7 days from the date of receipt of .
request).

Detection bills issued on mere assumptions or reasons which cannot be attributed
to consumers invelvement in illegal/theft of energy ( if referred to DISCO decision
within 7 days from the date of receipt of the complaint).

Wrong billing due to wrong meter reading. (within 3 days from the receipt o
complaint)

Delay in fssue of 1™ Rill against New Connections. (Max of TWO billing cycles). The
consumer should receive his 1% bill within 2 months of the date of connection.
The bill should have the appropriate slab for the period. If delivered later, it should

have appropriate <lab corresponding to the number of months for which the
accumulated reading bill delivered)

Inclusion of paid amounts in next months bills. BTPL as well as Bank Managers,
incharge post office where the [ast bills were paid are competent to amend the
bills. {same day) upen production of previous paid bill.

Arithmetical Error<. ROs and SDOs are both competent to correct such bills forth
with upon receipt of the complaint.

Late delivery of bills. As printed on the reverse of the monthly bills, SDOs and ROs
both are competent 1o enhance the due dates. (same day)

fssuance of duplicate bills. BTPL is competent to issue the duplicate bills. (Same
Day)

Change of Tariff. BTFL may within 30 days from the date of receipt of complaint
change the tariff category,

Late intimation of input data after the implementation of Meter Change Orders
(MCO), delayed implementation of MCOS even after replacement of meters,
(Suitable number of instalments to pay the outstanding amounts are allowed by
the load sanctioning anthority proportionate to the delay).



10.3.1 All the above complaints regarding billing shall be registered in the Sub divisional
office or Consumer Service Center or One-Window Operation in BTPL offices wherein
dates for their rectification shall be given to the complainants as per procedure and
time frame for handling and redressal of complaints. All these complaints shall also be
monitored by BTPL Complaint Cells.

Time Frame for the redressal of each category of the above complaint is given in the
various chapters of this manual and above also. A performance appraisal of all such -
complaints shall be carried out at the end of each financial year of BTPL. The
consumers are encouraged to approach NEPRA in case their complaints are not
handled by BTPL according to the manual.

10.4 COMPLAINTS REGARDI!NG FAILURE OF ELECTRIC SUPPLY
10.4,1 Common Complaints r‘egarding failure of electric supply are mentioned as below:

a) Individual complaints of consumers regarding failure/fluctuation of supply
voltage other complaints of technical nature which can be rectified {ocally.

b) Collective complaints due to fault on 11 kV feeder.

c) Collective complaints due to fuse blown on 11 kV side of dlstrlbutlon
transformer.

d) Collective complaints due to damage to distribution transformer.

e) Frequent Tripping of 11 kV feeders.

f) Touching of branches of trees with the 11 KV/LT conductors.

g) Defectin 11 KV/LT jumpers, insulation etc.

h} Entangling of string used for kite flying with 11 KV/LT lines.

i} Leakage of current in poles/structures/other equipment installed on the
system,

" j)  Low voltage at consumer’s premises.

k) Fluctuations in the system due to deposit on joints of copper/aluminum
conductor.

I} Sub-standard quality of supply.

m) Any other technical complaint

10.4.2 The complaints shall normally be attended to in the following order of priority.

i) Attend leakage of current immediately on receipt of such complaint.

ii) Attend collective complaints of consumers.

i1) In case of damage of transformer, this should be replaced with trolley mounted
transformer if available in the sub division or after arranging from other sub

division to meet with the emergency till proper transformer is arranged for
replacement.

iv) Trimming of hranches of trees touching the electric lines as well as other
preventiva maintenance work under scheduled and well advertised



programme shall be carried out in order to avoid unnecessary trippings/
damage to electric installations.

v) Attend individual complaints of consumers.

vi) The complaints regarding tow voltage at consumer’s premises shall be
investigated by Sub Divisional Officer and remedial measures taken so as to
improve the wnliage thereby reducing the chances of damage to electric
gadgets of the consumers.

vii)The complaints regarding sub-standard quality of supply shall also be

investigated by the Sub-Divisiona! Officer and remedial measures adopted so
as to improve the same.

10.4.3 At the end of each shift in the complaint office an abstract shall be prepared as follows:

« No of complaints received
- . No. of complaints attended
- No. of complaints lying un-attended with Sr. Nos. and reasons.

10.4.4 B1PL shall have independent Complaint Offices to attend such complaints. These

10.5

10.6

complaint offices work on 24-hours basis even during holidays. The working of these

complaint offices is to he supervised by higher officers as well as DISCOs Complaint
Cells.

SPECIAL ARRANGEMENTS FOR HANDLING SPECIAL REQUESTS FROM ELDERLY
AMD HANDICAPPED CONSUMERS

DISCO shall make special arrangements for handling requests from elderly and
handicapped consumers with regard to consumer related issues.

DEVELOPMENT OF WEB SITE FOR CONSUMER SERVICES

BTPL shall develop a Web Site for Consumer Service. The consumer service can also
be part of BTPL main WER Site. The site may contain following information /facilities.

. Consumers billing status;

. Consumers billing record/historical data;

- Distribution Code. Eligibility Criteria, Performance and Standards Consumer
Service Manual;

. Tariff information,;

- Network information in GIS Format, indicating the loading of feeders;

- Payment of bills through credit cards, if possible and

- All kinds of forms required by a consumer.

The manual shall contain the telephone Nos of all the important officers of BTPL and
the complaint centers. A copy of the manual shall be handed to every new consumer

once his connection is energized. The RD shall also place a soft copy of the approved
manual on its website for down loading.
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11.1

CHAPTER 11

TRANSFORMER AND CONSUMER STATION

TRANSFORMER INSTALLATION ON CONSUMER’S PROPERTY

General
In case of consumers of category | to IV {as defined in chapter 2) where line voltage

(11000 volts or higher upto 132Kv) is stepped down on the consumer's property to the service
voltage required by the consimer, the facilities necessary to accommodate the transformer
or transformers and the related equipment will be either

11.2

113

11.4

11.5

(1} a Distribution Sub Station, if furnished, installed, owned, and maintained by BTPL,
or

(2) a Consumer Sub Station, if furnished, installed, owned, and maintained by the
consumer.

Distribution Sub Station

BTPL will install a Sub Station for such General-Purpose consumers.
BTPL shall ensure that all the installations are in accordance with BTPLs approved
design specifications and standards.

Consumer Sub Station

The responsibility for the provision of space, installation and maintenance of step
down transformer and all allied equipment in a consumer substation shall be that of
the consumer. The layout of the substation, the equipment installed must meet the
specifications, design and standards as approved by BTPL. The equipment may be
supplied by 8TPL on payment. However, for such facilities, the responsibility of BTPL
shall only be upto the metering point (Inter connection point}.

For such installations, the consumer shall provide land/space for the lines which will
extend to and from the sithstation.

Mo nised.
Metering Equipment and Installation Requirements

A Meter installation shall comply with Pakistan Standard Institute (PSI) or
International Flertric technical Commission (IEC) standard or Standards
developed/adopted by BTPL.

h. BTPL shall determine the location and method of installation for all metering

equipment as provided in the distribution code, Grid Code and related
manuals.



C. Whenever any electrical wiring is modified, new metering equipment
complying with these service requirements shall be used, except when in the
opinion of BTPL the existing metering equipment is satisfactory and adequate
to register al!l energy to be supplied.

d. Line side {un metered) conductors and locad side {metered} conductors are
prohibited from occupying the same enclosure.

11.6 GROUNDING SYSTEM-

As defined in Distribution Code, Grid Code and the PSI wiring Regulations, proper
neutral and protective earthing/ grounding system shall be installed by the consumer
and checked by authorized representative of DISCO.

11.7 FIRE EXTINGUISHERS

Suitable Fire Extinguishers shall be provided and maintained by the owner agency to
meet with any hazardous situation. C
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12.2

12.2

CHAPTER 12

SAFETY AND SECURITY

GENERAL

In order to prevent accidents which can result in injury or death, or damage to public

- property, the consumers =hall abide by the general safety requirements of the “Safety

Code".

BTPL will take all the safaety and security measures to avoid fatal/non fatal accidents.
The consumers shall he educated through all possible means to observe safety
measures in order to avoid any causality especially during the monsoon season. -

OBLIGATIONS OF BTPI.

BTPL shall monitor and implement the safety and security plan for consumers, The
safety and security objectives can be achieved by adopting good engineering
practice, including the following measures:

- Operatibn and maintenance of BTPL’s electrical distribution system /Network shall
be carried out only hy BTPL’s authorized and trained personnel.

~ BTPL's system equipment, including overhead lines, poles/structures/Towers
underground cables, transformers, MV panels, LV panels, MV and LV cutouts,

meters, service drops, etc, shall be installed and maintained in accordance with
good engineering and utility practice.

+ To ensure proper operation of BTPL’s network under abnormal conditions (short-

circuits, overloading, etc) appropriate relays shall be installed and properly
coordinated.

* The earthing systems instalied shall be dimensioned and regularly tested to ensure
protection from fire and shock hazards.

» The steel structure installed on the public places shall be earthed at ONE point
through steel/copper conductor, in accordance with BTPL’s laid down procedures.

OBLIGATIONS OF THE CONSUMER

The consumer is responsible to monitor and implement safety and security standards
within his own premises. The safety and security objectives can be achieved by
adopting good engineering practice, including the following measures:

» No matter how small, electrical installations, including earthing system, must be
designed, installed and maintained by competent electrical engineers and/or



123

licensed electrical contractors, and must be inspected and certified by an Electrical
Inspector as per terms and conditions laid down in C.E.C.

Wiring materials and electrical equipment installed must conform to the approved
relevant standards and be of a good quality.

For the protection of the consumer it is necessary that electrical installation at the
consumer’s premises conform to the rules established by BTPL and approved by
the Authority as per the terms and conditions of the Eligibility Criteria,
Performance Standards Distribution, Distribution Code, Safety Code and grid code.

No additions, alterations, repairs and adjustments to existing installations, (except
such replacement of lamps, fans, fuses, switches, low voltage domestic appliance
and fittings as in no way alter the capacity and the character of the installation),

shall be carried our within a consumer’s premises, except by a licensed electrical
contractor.

In case of fatal electrical accident to a person, an immediate report shalf also be
made to the nearest police station and to BTPLs Complaint centre.

Any consumer committing a breach of procedures/rules outlined above shall
render himself liable for disconnection of his electric power and punishment with
punitive damages.

SOME USEFUL SAFETY TIPS

Electricity, while being a very useful and convenient form of energy, has a number of
hazards, and consumer= would be wise to treat electrical installation with respect.

The following tips shall he keptin mind:

Hazardous conditinns on utility systems shall be monitored and immediately
reported to BTPL

Damaged or faulty insulators.

Burns on condurtnrs, insulator pins, or metal-work.

Damaged cross- arms on poles/structure /Towers.

Broken strands or wires on overhead conductors, or fallen wires.
Uneven sagging of lines.

Leaning or damage to poles/structures /Towers.

Branches of trees interfering with overhead conductors.

Loose stay- wires.

Construction of new roads, buildings, or other structures near the line.
Damaged or faulty fransformer structures, including oil leakages
k. Leakage currentsin poles and other structures /Towers.

. Unsafe working practices by employees

TSm0 oW

[



RCDs (Residual Current Devices), aiso called earth-leakage circuit breakers (ELCBs),
ground-fault circuit interrupters (GFCls) are extremely sensitive circuit breakers
that can prevent firec and shocks in electrical installations. Obtain specialist advice
on their installation at appropriate locations in your electrical systems.

Electricity is more dangerous in the presence of water. During rains, near
swimming pools, tanks or other water bodies, in laboratories, on construction
sites, for temporary functions/weddings, etc., special care must be taken to use

proper wiring and protective equipment, especially RCDs. Such instaliations need

to be inspected on a regular basis
Use proper circuit-breakers in preference to re-wireable fuse cut-outs.

Metallic and chemical string must not be used for kite fiying as it poses serious
danger to life and damages electricity installations.

Safety clearances from electricity conductors and equipment (e.g., hazardous
extension of balconies at the upper stories of houses in blocks/sectors which

comes within closa proximity of electric lines) must be maintained to avoid
glectrocution. '

Animals must not Ixe tied to poles/structures Towers of electricity lines in order
to avoid accidents/ electrocutions.
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13.2

CHAPTER 13

EFFICIENT USE AND
CONSERVATION OF ELECTRIC POWER

GENERAL

BTPL shall take steps towards improving the quality and reliability of electric
service to maximize the value of the energy that is used and to increase the sale of
power. ‘

Electricity adds to the quallty of life, hence it makes good sense to use it wisely.
Consumers are adviser! to be “energy smart”.

ENERGY EFFICIENCY AND ENERGY SAVINGS

The use of present day technology boosts the efficiency of energy systems —
such as the super-efficient compact fluorescent lamps. This revolutionary yet reliable

buib yields the same pleasing light as a conventional incandescent while consuming
less electricity.

There are many other proven ways to maintain and operate energy systems to
save energy costs all the time, many of which are at low or no-cost.

» Many of the quickest and easiest ways to save energy also cost little or nothing.
In fact, a lot of energv savings can be achieved by doing the following:

Turn off lights when not needed.

a
h. Remove unneered light bulbs.

c. When replacing hulbs, use lower wattage or more efficient ones.

d. Reduce your air conditioning thermostat setting.

e. Reduce air conditioning during unoccupied hours.

f.  Reduce air conditioning somewhat before the end of your operating hours.
g. Have the ventilating and air conditioning systems serviced and adjusted.
h. Turn off machines and equipment when not needed.

Make sure all anlomatic controls are in good working condition and are set
properly.

i. Ensure all mntive machinery is properly lubricated and maintained.

~  The following steps may be read carefully:

a. Find out last year's energy use and cost. Twenty to thirty percent savings
may be possible with little effort.

b. Do an energy “~udit”. Take a good look at how and where you use — and
waste —energy.
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c. Get some expert help with the audit if needed.

d. Ask friends for their ideas ... and listen to their concerns about health
and comfort. They should be fully involved in energy management efforts.

e. Decide the top priority things to do. Include them in the Energy Action Plan.

f. Do them — with outside help if needed. The sooner a start is made, the better
savings are made.

g. Keep a record of savings. See if what has been done is working and how
much is being savad,

LIGHTING

Lighting energy can be wasted in several ways, by;

~ Inefficient light sources — when the famp or fixture is inefficient in converting
electricity to light, using more watts (units of electric power) than necessary to

produce the lumens (units of light output);

* lllumination losses — when dirt or some other obstruction blocks some of the light;
or when the light source is too far away from what you want illuminated;

= Over lighting — when more light is used than is needed; when a “free” source such

as daylight is not userl; and when lights are on for no reason (e.g., when no one is
present}.

= Three major ways to save
 « turning lights off when they’re not needed;

» reducing light levels wherever you have more light than you need;

S

Installing more efficient lighting or controls.

12.4  INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS QF SAVING ELECTRIC POWER

BTPL shall provide sufficient information to the consumer to make him aware
of the benefits of efficient use and saving of electric power which in turn would result
in savings to the utility. BTPL shall publish pamphlets or make advertisements or issue

hand bills from time to time for the education of consumers with regard to efficient use
and saving of electric power,

BTPL shall inform consumers about energy efficiency opportunities by way of
“information inserts” includled in monthly bills.



13.5 MONITORING USE OF ENERGY

The consumer shall be educated and encouraged to prepare the figures of
months energy bills for the last calendar year and this year by collecting from the
monthly bills and recording in the table given below. Comparison of these figures on
monthly basis shall give the “base line” for making efforts for potential savings. In this
way, keeping in view all the suggestions for saving and keeping a strict watch on the
energy consumption, some fruitful results are achievable and it will be observed that
energy management efforts actually do pay off.

TABLE FOR CONSUMPTION OF ELECTRICITY

ELECTRICITY USE

ELECTRICITY COST

MONTH

LAST

January

YEAR

February

March

April

May

| June

July

August

September

Qctober

November

' December
Total

THIS
|__YEAR

% DIFF-
ERENCE

LAST
YEAR

THIS
YEAR

% DIFF-
ERENCE
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CHAPTER 14

RIGHTS AND QRLIGATIONS VIS-A-VIS CONSUMER AND DISCO

Access To The Consumer’'s Premises

. A duly authorized employee of BTPL shall be entitied at all reasonable. .
times, and on informing the occupier of his intention (after giving a notice
of clear 3 days), to enter the premises to which energy is or has been, or is
to be suppliad by BTPL, for the purpose of:

» Examining, inspecting and testing the electric supply lines, meters,
maximum demand indicators or other measuring apparatus, electric wires,
fittings, works or an apparatus for the supply or use of energy, whether
belonging to RTPL or to the Consumer, or.

. ascertaining the amount of energy supplied or the electrical quantity
contained in the supply or the apparatus, or.

. removing, where a supply of energy is no longer required, or where BTPL
is authorized to take away and cut-off such supply, any electric supply lines,
meters, maximum demand indicators or other measuring apparatus,
fittings. works or apparatus belonging to BTPL, or.

. along all other things necessary or incidental to the proper supply or
maintaining such supply to the consumer’s premises.

Facilities To Re Provided By The Consumer

- BTPL authorized staff member has access to meters, service connections
and other property owned by it which may be located in consumer’s
premises for purposes of installation, maintenance, operation or removal of
the property af the time service is to be terminated.

- The consumer's utility system shall be open for inspection to authorized
representatives of BTPL. The consumer’s failure to do so within a
reasonable neriod of time may result in disconnection.

- Consumers must provide access to all electric meters upon request for
billing purposes. If a premises is unoccupiedfiocked, an appointment to
obtain meter readings will suffice for a maximum period of three (3) months.
After that, a new appeintment will be required to update the readings.

Property Damage

« BTPLis notresponsible for any loss or damage caused by any negligence or
wrongful act of 3 consumer or his authorized representative in installing,

maintaining. operating or using any or all appliances, facilities or
equipment.
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14.5.

14.6,

14.7.

The consumer will be held responsible for damage to BTPL’s meters and
other property nr facilities resulting from the use or operation of appliances
and facilities on consumer’s premises, including but not limited to damage
caused by electricity, steam, hot water or chemicals.

If a consumer, new applicant, developer or other person is found to be
responsible for any damage done to BTPL property, such damages shall be
reimbursed to BTPL.

Liability of The Consumer For Damage to BTPL Apparatus

The consumer shall be solely responsible for and shall pay for any loss of,
or damage to, any electric supply lines, meters and/or other apparatus
belonging to BTPL and in use of the consumer for supply of energy purpose,
whether caused maliciously or through negligence or defauit on the part of
the consumer or any of his employees, or whether arising out of fire, theft
or any other cause beyond the control of .BTPL, always excepting
reasonable wear and tear and loss or damages arising out of defects in the

aforesaid eleciric supply lines, main fuses, meters and/or other apparatus
belonging to BTFL on the consumer’s premises.

Provided that the liability of the consumer for the cost of resealing any
metering equipment or other apparatus belonging to BTPL on the
consumer’s premises shall be as prescribed in BTPL Schedule of General
Chargesin forre from time to time.

Right Of Way

The right of way shall be as per the terms and conditions set in the Eligibility
Criteria.
Failure Of Sipply Due To Force Majeure

BTPL shall not be liable for any claims for loss, damage or compensation

whatsoever, arising out of failure of supply when such failure is due to force

majeure, as defined in the Performance Standards distribution
OBLIGATIOONS OF CONSUMERS

Interference With Service

Consumers whn operate equipment which causes detrimental voltage
fluctuations (suich as but not limited to, hoists, welders, x-ray apparatus,
radio transmitters, elevator motors, compressors and furnaces) must
reasonahly limit such fluctuations upon request by BTPL. The Consumer
will be requirerl fo comply with the necessary corrective measures.
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14.9.

14.10.

Separate setvice is required for x-ray units over 5 KVA, welder units over 3
KVA, radio transmitters and resistance welders.

BTPL may require the consumers to provide, at their own expense, special
furnace type transformers and reactors and capacitors sufﬁcierit to limit
secondary short-circuit current values to 200% of full load value. In such
cases, BTPL shall furnish energy at 12 KV.

The consumer should also make arrangements to filter out or prevent
harmonic distortions traveling onto/interfering with BTPL's system.

Power. Factor

BTPL encourages consumers to maintain a power factor of at least 90% to
avoid penalties.

Consumer’s Obligation to Remedy

Consumers must use their best endeavors to avoid any non-compliance of
this Manual within the time period specified in any notice of non-
compliance sent by BTPL, '

Disconnection of Supply for Non-Compliance

BTPL may disconnect supply to a consumers if,

the consumer has not fulfilled an obligation to comply with this Manual; |
and

BTPL has given the consumer 7 business days’ written notice of

disconnection (srich notice to be in addition to the notice already given);
and

The conzumer fails to comply with the notice; or



CHAPTER 15

Violation of Instructions

In case, the consumer is not satisfied with BTPLs response, the grievance in respect of
violation of instructions can be filed with POls respecting metering, billing, collection of tariff
and cases of theft of energy.

Complaints under Section 39 of the NEPRA Act can also be filed with the Director of Consumer
Affairs at NEPRA. All such complaints shall be handled under the complaint handling
procedure or dispute resolution procedure as notified by NEPRA.

For further information on the above NEPRA can be contacted at the following address

DIR CAD

NEPRA

NEPRA Tower, Ata-Turkk Avenue

G-5/2, ISLAMABAD.

Telephone 051-9207200 Ext 325
051-9205293

Fax 051-9217651

Email-CAD@nepra.org.pk

Web Site ~www.nepra.org.pk
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Annex -11

CONSUMER ELIGIBILITY CRITERIA

NATIONAL ELECTRIC POWER REGULATORY AUTHORITY
ELIGIBILITY CRITERIA FOR CONSUMERS OF DISTRIBUTION COMPANIES

2007

Pursuant to Section 21 (2) (b) of the Regulation of Generation, Transmission and
Distribution of Electric Power Act, 1997 (XL of 1997), the National. Electric Power
Regulatory Authority is pleased to lay down the following eligibility criteria for a non-
discriminatory provision of distiibution service and sale of electric power to all the

consumers within the service territory of a distribution company.

PART-I
SHORT TITLE, COMMENCEMENT, JURISDICTION AND

MEFINITIONS

1. Short Title Commencement and Jurisdiction

(1) This criteria may be called the NEPRA “Consumer Eligibility Criteria” 2003.

(2) This Consumer Eligibility Criteria shall be applicable from the date of its
notification in the official Gazette.

(3) This Consumer Fligihility Criterion shall be applicable to all the distribution
licensees permitted to carry out distribution of electric power service within
the territory of Pakistan.

(4) The Authority may amend the provisions of this Consumer Eligibility Criteria,
either suo moto or at the request of any person or a licensee, as deemed
appropriate after consultation with the licensee and other stake holders.

2. Definitions



U

(i)

(i)

(v)

(vil)

Unless the context otherwise requires ‘words and phrases’ used but not
defined here shall have the meaning assigned to them in the Regulation of

Generation, Tranamission and Distribution of Electric Power Act, 1997 and the
rutes made thereunder:- :

“Applicant” means any person who applies to a distribution licensee for
provision of electric power service or modification thereof.

“Common Distrihution System” means the distribution system as defined in
the distribution licence other than the dedicated distribution system;

“Connecting point” for the purposes of this Consumer Eligibiity Criteria means
the point where the dedicated distribution system of the applicant is
connected with the existing common distribution system;

“Concession Territory” means the territory outside the Service Territory of a
distribution licen<ee defined by the administrative/geographical boundaries
and as delineated in a distribution licence;

“Dedicated Distribution System” means that part of the distribution system,
required to supply power for the sole consumption of an applicant and not for
supplying power to any other consumer and shall comprise of the distribution
system from the connecting point upto the interconnection point of the

applicant including the metering and service wire and such other connection
arrangements;

“Inter Connection Paint” means the point where the metering installation and

protection apparatus of the consumer is connected to the dedicated
distribution system ;

“Metering Installation” means the metering and associated equipment

required to he installed for recording consumption/usage of electric power of
an applicant;

PART- I
FLIGIRILIEY CRITERIA

Eligibility Criteria for Consumers of Distribution Companies



(1)  Within the service territory of a licensee specified in a distribution licence, any
person, shall have the right to be supplied with electric power by the licensee
provided that:

(a) the applicant moves an application in the form prescribed by the
distribution company alongwith such other supporting documents as
approved hy the Authority; -

{b) the applicant deposits the charges for the proposed dedicated

distribution system upto to the inter connection point including the
“metering installation;

(c) the applicant’s wiring Installation, transformation and protection
equipmeant downstream of the inter connection point has been tested
and certified by an Electric inspector(who shall be an Electrical
Engineer registered with Pakistan Engineering Council} to be in
conformity with the technical and safety standards applicable under
the operating codes, procedure or manuals approved by the Authority;

(d) the distribution licensee is satisfied with respect to the compliance of
the technical and safety standards as per the operating codes,
procecdure or manuals approved by the Authority;

(e) the applicant has made payment of security deposit as determined by
the Anthority;

{f) no arrears of electricity bills are outstanding against the
occupier/owner of the premises for which the applicant has sought to
be providerd with distribution service;

(g) the applicant has not been guilty of committing an offence of stealing
of electricity under the law.
Provided however, if a guarantee to the satisfaction of the licensee is
pravided to rcompensate for any loss to the licensee which may accrue
due to dishnnest abstraction of electric energy or non payment of bills,

the applicant shall be eligible to be supplied with electric power
services

(2) Sub-regulation (1) of Regulation 3, shall not apply to consumers who are already
connected to the licensea distribution system or have applied for a connection and
have deposited the initial cost before the notification of the Consumer Eligibility
Criteria.

(3) All charges to be deposiled by an applicant shall be estimated in accordance with the

prudent utility practices. instructions issued by the licensee and orders of the Authority
‘issued from time to time,



(4)

(5)

(4)

5

6

Notwithstanding the provisions of Regulation 3(3), in case the licensee determines to
receive average charge for dedicated distribution system per applicant” from a class
of applicants, the licensee shall prescribe such charges with the prior approval of the
Authority under Regulation 8 hereof.

Subject to the prior application of complaint redressal mechanism of the licensee, alf
disputes in respect of estimation of charges shall be filed with the Authority for
resolution as per Regulation (10) of this Consumer Eligibility Criteria.

Extension and Reinforcement of the Common Distribution System

If an extension/reinforcement is required to be made in the common distribution system
within the service territory of the licensee in order to provide an applicant with electric
power as per Regulation 3 above, the licensee shall carry out the required
extension/reinforcement at its own cost in accordance with its development pian
approved by the Autharity. .
Provided however, if the required extension/reinforcement does not fall with in the
approved development plan of the licensee, the licensee shall arrange for the
provision of required extension/reinforcement in accordance with the least cost system
expansion plan of the licensee.

If the distribution licenses has shown its inability to provide the required extension
within its concessicn terrilory, at its own cost and surrendered its first right to serve in
the concession territory granted under a distribution licence, the applicant may get the
required extension arranged through any other licensee on terms mutually acceptable
to the applicant and the other distribution licensee as per the terms of relevant licence
and the applicable licensing rules.

Without prejudice to the faregoing, in case the applicant offers to deposit the cost, to
be incurred on the required extension/reinforcement of the common distribution
system, the licensee shall provide the required extension/reinforcement services upon

deposit of costs by the applicant subject to an agreement of reimbursement of costs
incurred by the applicant.

The provisions of Regulation 3 shall also be applicable to consumers who apply for
enhancement of load.

FPART- 111
APPLICATION

Save to the extent of any agreement between a consumer and a licensee, the existing
consumers registered with the licensee or applicants who have been charged an initial
cost of connection or system extension, reinforcement or development charges and have
deposited such cost prior o the notification of this Consumer Eligibility Criteria according
to the instructions of the licensée enforced at that time will not have any right to be
reimbursed with such deposits by the licensee.

The dedicated distribution system of the consumer shall be maintained by the licensee up
to th= metering installation of the consumer. Control of such a system shall be handed
over to the licensee for the purpose of operation and maintenance before commencement
of provision of electric powear service to the consumer.



7

10

The dedicated distribution system, other then service wire and meter, may be converted
into common distribution system with the written consent of the owner of the dedicated

distribution system in which case, the cost incurred by its owner shall be reimbursed by
the licensee at mutually agread terms.

Provided however, in case the right of way is contested by the owner of a dedicated
distribution system, subject to the full satisfaction of the Authority regarding licensee’s
claim, the licensee shall not he required to get such written consent, after payment of
appropriate compensation o the owner of the dedicated distribution system.

For the purpose of Regulation 3(4), the licensee shall submit a petition with the Authority
under NEPRA Tariff Standards and Procedure Rules, 1998 for its determination of average

charges to be paid by a class of applicants for their individual dedicated distribution -
systems.

The licensee shall publish and make available to all interested persons the average charges
as approved by the Authority.

All caomplaints and disputes in respect of the administration of this Consumer Eligibility
Criteria shall be referred to MEPRA for resolution.

*okok kKK




- Tariff Terms and Conditions

Of Tariff

| Annex -111 -




Annex -1V

Application and Power Supply Contract Form
APPLICATION FORM

(FOR CONNECTION)
Artirte | PART
Application No. Date Name of Sub Div
Name of Applan————— e of conmecton

Father’'s/ Husband name----—------

Complete Address where connertion is required

C.N.I.C (NADRA) Tmm e {Attach photo Copy of NIC)
Applicant E.Mail address---------- - e Phone No. ---Fax No
Size of Plot----—----m--- Marlas-------Kanals

Name of person with designation to whom application is handed over

Ref: No of existing connection if any-----------

1. I shall be hound to abide by all the terms and conditions of the

Eligibility Criteria for consumer of a Distribution Company, Consumer

Service Manual, and other applicable documents as prescribed for

provision of service.

{Signature of Applicant)



DOCUMENT TO BE ATTACHED WITH THE APPLICATION

¢ Ownership proof of the premises where connection is required.

¢ An affidavit from the owner of the premises to the effect that no connection existed
previously at the premises for which connection is applied for and that he shall pay BTPL
any outstanding dues in respect of any previous connection which existed at th_e
premises is question, if noticed thereafter.

¢ “No Ohjection Certificate” from the fandlord (if the applicant is a tenant along with
landlord ‘s proof of ownership and affidavit mentioned above).

¢ Attested copies of National Identity Cards of the applicant and two witnesses.’

4+ The power of attorney {in case of a Company), in favor of the applicant to the effect that
the applicant is authorized to sign the application and execute agreement on behalf of
the Company along with Memorandum and Articles of Association of the company.

4 Available site plan Industry/premises where connection is required.

¢ In case of change of name/reconnection/ extension or reduction of load, a certificate
from the Revenue Office, RTPL to the effect that no areas are outstanding against the
premises along with proof of owner ship/NOC.

4 Any other information if requrired by the company for connections above 11Kv, as per

requirements of the Distribiitinn Code and the Grid Code (wherever applicable).



e

Section 1000 tali] ||

(FOR OFFICE USE)

(1) Date of Survey------------

(2) Authenticity Certificate of particulars given by consumer
(3) Lead at site ——----—-- Kw
(4) Tariff Applicable.

(5) Material required (as per attached estimated)
(6) Size of plot verified -~ ---remmeev

{7) Proposed Reference No.----~=r=-=mmermeumme

(8) Whether area electrified/ un electrified/Housing Society

(9) Name of feeder--————-——---

(k)] Date put up to Sanctioning Authority for sanction

(11) Date of sanctién

(12) Amount of sanctioned estimate

{13) Demand Notice nn and date

{14) Load sanctione« -—- {kw)

{15) Capital cost Rs.------ ---=—----—-—-——-Meter security Rs.

(16) Demand notice paid on date------------- for Rs.~----vmm-n—- Bank name-—--—--
(17) Date of Return nf Demand notice by the applicant

(18) Date of submission of wiring test report by the applicant--

(Signature of officer with designation)

PART Il

Conner tinn installatinn



(19) Date of inspection of wiring -

(20) Date service instailation n
(21) Date and time of meter installation -
(22} Name of In charge installing the meter

(1)

(i) Meter”s Particulars

(23) (i) Meter NO-------=m
(if} Meter type--—-- - —mmmcmemmmmmanea_ Capacity
(a) KWH (b) KVARH (c) MDI |
(i) Initial reading---------—-srmeme (iv) Multiplying factor of ny-——
(iv) Seals/Postal order No---—-—--w-rwmme

(iti) Part IV i

(24) Date of submission of documents to R.Q FOR billing vide Iilo ________________
Date--—-mnre -
(25) Date of Certified copy send to reading sanction for billing-

(Signature of Officer with Designation)



NOTE”: Copy of the complete set (part Ito 1V) complete filled out and signed by the officer
of the RD will also be provided to the consumer for his record. The consumer'may lodge

complaint against non provision of such completed copy.

(Signatures of the Consumer as a token of receipt of a copy of the set )




Contract for Consumer Connection and Supply of Electric Power

This Comntract for Consumer Connection and Supply of Electric Power (“Power Supply

Contract”) is entered into between Mr./Ms./Mrs. M/s (“consumer”)

AND

BTPL

onthe  dayof _ ,at _ L

Whereas the consumer had applied vide Application Form dated for a load of
_to BTPL.

Whereas BTPL had issued a demand note # dated in the favour of consumer in

the amount of Rs. _ __which was duly deposited by the consumer on vide receipt no.

Whereas the consumer has in line with the provisions of Consumer Eligibility Criteria, 2003
deposited the charges, complied with the safety requirements and its electrical installations

checked and verified by a certified electrical engineer registered with the Pakistan

Engineering Council,

Whereas BTPL has also verifiad the electrical installation at the consumer’s premises and

ensured its soundness for the pirpose of its connection to its distribution system.

Now therefore, the parties to this contract hereby agree as foilows:



1. BTPL shall provide the distribution services to the consumer in accordance with
the terms- énd conditions approved by its ficensing authority i.e., the National
Electric‘ Power Regulatory Authority (“Authority”).

2. The Coﬁsumer Service Manual which can be obtained from BTPL providing for the
rights and duties of both BTPL and a consumer shall be binding on both the parties

and shall be referred to by the parties to deal with different aspects of services to

be rendered by BTPL.

In witness whereof, the parties hereto execute this Contract of Power Supply on this

dayof

BTPL: - | Consumer:

Witnesses:
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ID: ) PB-LHR- DC9323A61B67BC21

Type: Low Denomination

Amount: Rs 300/-

Description: AFFIDAVIT—4

Applicant: BAHRIA TOWN PVT LTD [00000-0000000-0) . M A S r‘-} : ;.:IE '[’*)\
Representative From: BAHRIA TOWN PVT LTD M ‘*‘!A LA
Agent: Self Lic, 7 830 rR IRt wore
Address: Lahore S
issue Date: 18-Jan-2024 11:45:11 AM Capial PNy e T

Delisted On/Validity: 25-Jan-2024

Amount in Words: Three Hundred Rupees Only

Reason: NEPRA ISLAMABAD

Vendor Information: Muhammad Javed| PB-LHR-832 | Kahng Nu Lahore

St et o 15 1 o il Yy ! sS85 s it 8 B0 il e st B S R 0 s e ] S (S Y i

BEFORE THE NATIONAL ELECTRIC POWER'REGUEATORYRUTHORITY

"Application for seeking Electric Power Supply License for Bahria Town,
Mohlanwal, Lahore and Bahria Orchards, Raiwind Road, Lahore"

ON BEHALF OF BAHRIA TOWN (PRIVATE) LIMITED

AFFIDAVIT

I, Brig Bakhtiyawar Lal Hussain (Retd} Director Services holding CNIC No. 35201-
2986374-3 of Bahria Town (Private) Limited hereby confirm that the Applicant

has not been earlier granted any License by the Authority.

it is further submitted that an Application for grant of Distribution Licence is still

pending decision before the Authority.

rig Bakhti
Director_Services Bahria Town Lahore

Date: : >£Jan 2024
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Ref. BTL/Svcs/Elect/PL/28-013 Dated: 25 Jan 2024

BEFORE THE NATIONAL ELECTRIC POWER REGULATORY AUTHORITY

"Application for'seeking Electric Power Supply License for Bahria Town,
Mohlanwal, Lahore and Bahria Orchards, Raiwind Road, Lahore”

ON BEHALF OF BAHRIA TOWN (PRIVATE) LIMITED

AUTHORIZED STATEMENT

|, Brig Bakhtiyawar Lal Hussain (Retd), Director Services holding CNIC No.
35201-2986374-3 of Bahria Town (Private) Limited hereby confirm that the
Applicant has never been refused any grant of license under the Act by the

Authority.

fig Bakhti’:a,waFIEI-Tu ain (Retd)
Dire ervices Bahria Town Lahore

-
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ID: PB-LHR- 82CE03922755C810
Type: Low Denomination
Amount: Rs 300/- Scan tor online verification
Description: AFFIDAVIT -4
Applicant: BAHRIA TOWN PVT LTD [00000-0000000-0}]
Representative From: BAHRIA TOWN PVT LTD
Agent: Self ' W AN
Address: Lahore M\JHAM R NS
Issue Date: 18-Jan-2024 11:47:23 AM Lic.# Nl
Delisted On/Validity: 25-jan-2024

I Nowamwe
Amount in Words: Three Hundred Rupees Only Sera
Reason: NEPRA ISLAMIABAD

Vendor information: Muhammad Javed| PB-LHR-832 | Kahna Nu Lahore
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Type "eStamp <18 digit eStamp Number>" send to 8100

BEFORE THE NATIONAL ELECTRIC POWER REGULATORY AUTHORITY

"Application for seeking Electric Power Supply License for Bahria Town,
Mohlanwal, Lahore and Bahria Orchards, Raiwind Road, Lahore”

ON BEHALF OF BAHRIA TOWN (PRIVATE) LIMITED
AFFIDAVIT

|, Brig Bakhtiyawar Lal Hussain (Retd) Director Services being the duly authorized
representative of Bahria Town (Private) Limited, duly authorized in this regard by virtue
of the Board Resolution attached with the Application, hereby solemnly affirm and declare
that the Applicant is compliant with and shall always fulfill the obligations imposed on it

under the National Electricity Policy and National Electricity Ptan made under section 14A

of the Act.
M

e

Brig Bakhtiyawar Lal Hussain (Retd)
Director Services Bahria Town Lahore
Date Jan 2024
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Ref: BTL/Svcs/Elect/PL/28-015 Dated: 05 Apr 2024

The Registrar

National Electric Power Regulatory Authority
NEPRA Tower Attaturk Avenue (East)
Sector G-5/1, Islamabad

Pakistan

Subject: APPLICATION FILED BY BAHRIA TOWN (PRIVATE)
LIMITED FOR GRANT OF ELECTRIC POWER SUPPLY
LICENSE AT LAHORE

Dear Sir,

This is with reference to the captioned subject in response to NEPRA letter
NEPRA/R/LAS-100/3262 dated 06 Mar 2024 and NEPRA/R/LAS-100/4640
dated 27 Mar 2024..

Information/documents required vide NEPRA cited letter are submitted as
under:-

a. Pay Order bearing No 00592151 dated 05 Apr 2024 for Rs 2,428,336
(Rupees Two Million Four Hundred Twenty Eight Thousand Three

Hundred Thirty Six only) on account of Application Fees as Appendix
-l

b. Certified Copy of Ceriificate of Incorporation of the company has
already been submitted with the application, however copy of the
same is again attached as Appendix-Il.

c. Certified Copy of Memorandum and Articles of Association of the
company has already been submitted with the application, however
copy of the same is again attached as Appendix-lll.

d. Feasibility Report pertaining to Technical and Financial proposals in
reasonable details has already been submitied with the Application,
however a detailed Feasibility Report pursuant to Regulation
3(4)(c)(i}(B) of the Regulations is attached as Appendix IV.
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BAHRIA TOWN

e. Information/Documents under Rule 3 of Supply Eligibility Criteria
Rules:

(1) The company fulfills the Minimum Solvency Requirements
pursuant to Rule 3(b) read with Schedule | Clause 3(iii) of the
Supply Eligibility Criteria Rules and has a minimum paid up
capital of one hundred and fifty million rupees proof of which was

(2) The company fulfills the Minimum Solvency Requirements
pursuant to Rule 3(b) read with Scheduie | Clause 3(iii) of the
Supply Eligibility Criteria Rules and has a minimum paid up
capital of one hundred and fifty million rupees proof of which was
attached as Annexure-{(C) with the Application. The company's
paid up capital at present is Rs 220,000,000/- (Rupees Two
Hundred and Twenty Million only).

(3) Company's Strategic Business Plan for three years duly signed
along with Certified True Copy of the Extract of a Resolution
Passed by the Board of Directors of Bahria Town (Pvt) Limited,
demonstrating its capability to undertake electric power supply
business pursuant to Rule 3 (¢) of the Supply Eligibility Criteria
Rules is attached as Appendix V.

(4) The Applicant fulfills minimum human rescurce requirements
pursuant to Rule 3(d) read with Schedule-Il (Minimum Human
Resource Requirements) Clause 3 read with Clause 2 of the
Supply Eligibility Criteria Rules the proof of which has already
been submitted with the Application as Annexure-llI(A) &
Annexure-Ill (B).

(5) The Affidavit declaring and affirming fulfillment of obligations
imposed on it under the National Electricity Policy and the
National Electricity Plan made under Section 14A of the Act
pursuant to Rule 3(e) read with Schedule-lll (Affidavit) of the
Supply Eligibility Criteria Rules has already been attached with
the Application as Annexure VI (l).

O O R L S Eabris Orobaed, Banermnd s,



BATIRIY TOWN

(6) Information regarding ability to ensure prompt and effective
coordination with the system operation, market operator and
relevant distribution licensees to comply with the provisions of

grid code, distribution code, commercial code and other relevant
legal instruments as applicable is attached as Appendix-VI.

(7) Information regarding ability to discharge alil kinds of stated
public service obligation is attached as Appendix-VI.

f. Following information/documents under Rule 4 of Supply Eligibility
Criteria Rules is attached as Appendix-VII.

(1) Information regarding capability to carry out detailed schemes
and programmes for supplying electric power to all consumers
pursuant to the regulations specified by the Authority is already
sufficiently provided with the Application.

(2) Information regarding budget developed, demonstrating its
financial requirements to ensure that it has adequate financial
resources available to engage in electric power supply in an
effective and efficient manner has already been provided
sufficiently with the Application Information regarding abitity to
provide electric power supply to the bulk power consumers of
other electric power supplier who defaults on its obligations of
electric power supply have already been provided sufficiently with
the Application.

(3) Information regarding ability to ensure timely publication of the
Authority’s approved rates, charges and other terms and
conditions on its website have already been provided sufficiently
with the Application.

g. Affidavit regarding fulfillment of Supply Eligibility Criteria under Rule 6
of the Eligibility Criteria Rules is enclosed as Appendix VIIl.

Yours truly,

I
/

(Brig B iyawar Lal Hussain Retd)
Direetor Services ia Town Lahore




CERTIFICATE OF INCORFPORATION

(Under section 32 of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 (XLVII of 1984)
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Company Registration No. L 09003 of 139€-97

"BAHRIA TOWN {PRIVATF) LIMITFDW
1 hereby certify that :
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// //

is this day incorporated under the Companies Ordinance, 1984 (XLVII of 1984) and thot f
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(Company Limited By Shares)

MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION

OF

BAHRIA TOWN (PRIVATE) LIMITED

I.  The name of the Company BAHRIA TOWN (PRIVATE) LIMITED.
II.  The Registered Office of the Company wiil be situated in the Province of Punjab.

II, The objécts for which the Company is established are to undertake all or any of the
following business:

. (a) To acquire and take over the running business now carried on under the name of
Bahria Town, 60, Imran Khan Avenue, Chaklala Scheme-III, Rawalpindi, with all
its assets and liabilities and property of that business including Land Buildings,
Machinery, contracts, privileges, rights, license, concessions and with a view
thereto to enter into an agreement with the said Bahria Town and to carry the
same into effect with or without modifications with immediate effect.

(b) To carry on the business and management of Housing Estate Development all
kinds of construction and to manage, maintain, improve,_develop, control and
construct housing societies, plazas, hotels, restaurants, shops, markets, bridges
spillways, highways, reservoirs, hospitals, clinics, dispensaries, maternity hornes,
nurseries, schools, colleges, training centers, residential blocks/bungalows,
commercial complex/centers, buildings, business offices, workshops, mills,
factories, where houses, apariments, multistory flats, roads, footpaths, streets,
sewerage and water ireatment System, airport run-ways, electric and gas
installation, dockyards, railway tracks/yards including hire and rent of buildings
and construction and supply of material/equipments and to participate
international tenders either singly as a company or in joint venture with foreign
companies, individuals and firms subject to any permission required under the

law.
(c) To carry out the distribution of electricity in the towns/colonies so
e developed/constructed and to obtain the necessary licenses/approvals from the

relevant Authorities, Govt. Agencies, eic.




10.

To carry on the business of estimation, drawing up or specifications and contracts,
quantity surveying, supervision and execution of construction works and installation and
maintenance thereof.

To construct, erect or maintain sewers, roads, waterworks, brick-kilns, and erection on of
any description whatsoever; and to provide all civic facilities to occupiers or tenants .
thereof as are commonly provided.

To carry on the business of contractors and suppliers of goods of all description to
Government, Central and Provincial, C.D.A., Local Bodies, Municipalities, L.D.A.,
K.D.A.,, Sui Northern Gas, WAPDA and other autonomous bodies, persons, hotels,
hospitals, firms or corporations and to supply goods of all kinds for the purpose subject to
any permission required by law of Pakistan.

To carry on the business of sales representatives either on commission or on profit
sharing basis of all kinds of goods and materials.

To carry on business of supervisors, administrators, executors, contractors, agents,
(except managing agents) experts, collaborations, advisors and negotiators of civil
engineering, hydraulic engineering, chemical engineering, mining, metatlurgy,
agriculture, a forestations oil conservation and rteclamation, industries, aeronautics,
telephone, telegraphs and wireless communication, rail, roads, water and air transport,
and all affairs relating thereto, petroleum-preduct, machinery for exploration of gas,
mines, petrol and petroleum product. :

To apply for, tender, offer and accept purchase or otherwise acquire any contracts and
concessions for or in relation to the projection, execution, carrying out improvements,
management, administration or control of works and conveniences and undertake,
execute, carry out, dispose of or otherwise turn to account the same.

To buy, manufacture, mix, sell, refine, import, export and to carry on any business in
minerals, methylated and rectified spirits dry or other colowrs, coal tar dyes, raw
materials, pigments, dyes, paints, synthetic paints and thinners, coloured or other
cements, varnishes, synthetic, resins, enamels, distempers, disinfectants oil, polishes,
electroplating, abrasive and its chemicals, grease, Vaseline, creams, glue, geletine and
other glue preparations and allied products. ‘

To manufacture, produce, refine, process, formulates, buy, sell, import, export or
otherwise deal in all types of heavy and light chemicals industrial chemicals, elements
and compounds including laboratories, scientific chemicals or any nature used or capable
of being used in the pharmaceutical industry, agricultural chemicals, fertilizers,
petrochemicals, industrial chemicals or any mixtures, derivatives and compounds thereof.

To carry on the business of general order suppliers, including Government, Semi-
Government agencies, Armed Forces, Army, Military or Defence and commission agents,
mdentors traders and as general merchants, wholesalers retallers dealers, dlstnbutors,




1.

12.

13.

14.

16.

17,

18,

To carry on the business of clearing and forwarding agents, custom agents, cargo agents,
travel agents, tour operators, common carriers and contractors.

To establish warehouses and to carry on the business of warehouse-men, stores,
custodians, and to provide facilities for storage of commodities, articies, things,
preparation of all kinds and description whatsoever, storage rooms, bins, godowns, cold
storage, clearing and forwarding, transportation and distribution of beverages, food
products and merchandise of all kinds.

To receive goods on consignment, from any company, firm, association of persons, body,
whether incorporated or not, individuals, Government, Semi-Government or any local
authority and sell the same as agents or on principal-to-principal basis.

To apply for, tender, offer and accept purchase or otherwise acquire any contracts and
concessions for or in relation to the projection, execution, carrying out improvements,
management, administration or control of works and conveniences and undertake,
execute, carry out, dispose of or otherwise turn to account the same.

To carry on in or out of Pakistan the business of manufacturers, importers, exporters,
indentors, transporters, dealers in all articles and commodities akin to or connected with
any of the business of the Company capable of being conveniently carried on or
necessary for the promotion of the objects herein contained, as permissible under law. -

To carry on agency business (except managing agency) and to acquire and hold selling
agencies and to act as selling agents, commission agents, manufacturers’ representatives
and distributing agents of and for the distribution of all kinds of merchandise, goods,
commodities, products, materials, substances, articles and things whether finished, semi-
finished, raw, under process, refined, treated or otherwise pertaining to trade and
commerce and for that purpose to remunerate them and to open and maintain depots and

branches.

To purchase, hire, apply for or otherwise acquire and hold for any interest, any rights,
privileges, lands, building, easements, trade marks, patents, patent right, licenses, secret
processes, machinery, plants, stock-in-trade, and any movable and immovable property or
assets of any kind necessary or convenient for the purposes of or in connection with the
Company’s business or any branch or department thereof and to use, exercise, develop,
grant licenses in respect of or otherwise turn to account any property, rights, and
information so acquired, subject to any permission required under the law.

To acquire by concession, grant, purchase, barter, license either absolutely or
conditionally and either solely or jointly with others any lands, buildings, machinery,
plants, equipments, privileges, rights, licensés, trade marks, patents, and other movable
and immovable property of any description which the Company may deem necessary or
which may seem to the Company capable of being turned to account, subject to any
permission as required under the law.
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20,

21.

22.

23.

24,

25.

26.

To act as representatives, for any person, firm or company and to undertake and perform
sub-contracts, and also act in the business of the Company through or by means of
agents, sub-contractors and to do all or any of the things mentioned herein in any part of
the world and either alone or in collaboration with others and by or through agents, sub-
contractors, or otherwise.

To go in for, buy or otherwise acquire and use any patent design, copyright, license,
concession, convenience, innovation, invention, trade marks, secret device, or process,
rights, or. privileges, plants, tools or machinery and the like in Pakistan or elsewhere,
which may for the time being appear to be useful or valuable for adding to the efficiency
or productivity of the Company’s work or business, as permissible under the law.

To acquire and carry on all or any part of the business or property and to undertake any
liabilities of any person, firm, association or Company’s possession of property suitable
for any of the purposes of the Company or carrying on any business which this Company
is authorized to carry on and in consideration for the same, to pay cash or to issue shares
of the Company.

To enter into arrangements with the government or authority (supreme, municipal, local
or otherwise) or any corporation, company, or persons that may seem conducive to the
Company's objects or any of them and to obtain from any such government, authority,
corporation, company or person any charters, contracts, rights, privileges and commission
which the Company may think desirable and to carry on exercise and comply with any
such charters, contracts, decrees, rights, privileges and concessions,

To enter into partnership, to amalgamate, or merge movable with immovable and/or to
buy on all interests, assets, liabilities, stocks or to make any arrangement for sharing
profits, union of interests, cooperation, joint venture, reciprocal concession or otherwise
with any person, firm or company carrying on or proposing to carry on any business
which this Company is authorized to carry on or which is capable of being conducted so
as directly or indirectly to benefit this Company and to have foreign collaborations and to
pay royalties/technical fees to collaborators subject to the provisions of the Companies

Ordinance, 1984.

To establish, promote or assist in establishing or promoting and subscribe to or become a
member of any other company, association or club whose objects are similar or in part
similar to the objects of this Company or the establishment or promotion of which may
be beneficial to the Company, as permissible under law.

To open accounts with any Bank or Banks and to draw, make, accept, endorse, execute,
issue, negotiate and discount cheques, promissory notes, bills of exchange, bills of lading,
warrants, deposit notes, debentures, letter of credit and other negotiate instruments and

securities.

To arrange local and foreign currency loans from schedule banks, industrial banks and
financial institutions for the purpose of purchase, and import of machinery, construction
of factory, building and for the purpose of working capital or for any other purpose.
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28.

31

33.
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Tp sell or otherwise dispose of the whole or any part of the undertaking of the Company,
elth_er together or in portions, for such consideration as the Company may think fit and in
particular, for shares, debenture-stock or securities of any Company purchasing the same.

To borrow or raise money by means of loans or other legal arrangements from banks, or
other financial institutions, or Directors in such manner as the Company may think fit and
in particular by issue of debentures, debenture stock, perpetual or otherwise convertible
into shares and to mortgage, or charge the whole or any part of the property, assets or
revenue of the Company, present or future, by special assignment or to transfer or convey
the same absolutely or in trust as may seem expedient and to purchase, redeem or pay off
any such securities.

To pay all costs, charges, and expenses preliminary or incidental incurred in formation or
about the promotion and establishment of the Company and to remunerate any person,
firm or company for services rendered or to be rendered in or about the formation or
promotion of the Company or the conduct of its business.

To give any servant or employee of the Company commission in the profits of the
Company’s business or any branch thereof and for the purpose to enter into any
arrangement or scheme the Company may deem fit and to procure any servanis or
employees of the Company to be insured against risk of accident in the course of their
employment by the Company.

To establish and support or aid in the establishment and support of funds, trusts and
conveniences calculated to benefit persons who are or have been Directors of or who
have been employed by or who are serving or have served the Company or any other
Company which is a subsidiary or associate of the Company or the dependents or
connection of such persons and to grant pensions, gratuities, allowances, relief and
payments in any other manner calculated {o benefit the persons described herein.

To capitalize such portion of the profits of the Company as are not distributed among
shareholders of the Company in the form of dividend as the Company may think fit and
for the purpose to issue bonus shares as fully paid up, in favour of the shareholders of the

Company.

To establish, construct, manage, maintain and run any charitable institutions, hospitals,
research institutes for the benefit of the public or employees of the Company, their
families and dependents and to send any person, employees or Directors of the Company
abroad to any foreign country or in Pakistan.

To distribute any of the Company’s property and assets among the members in specie or
in any manner whatsoever.

To adopt such means of making known the business and products of the Company as
may seem expedient, and in particular by advertisement in press by circulars, by purchase
and exhibitions of works of art or interest, by publication of books and periodicals and by
granting prizes, rewards, donations and also giving advertisements as permissible under
faw.
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37.

38.

39.

40.

V.

To carry out joint venture agreements with other companies or countries.
To cause the Company to be registered or recognized in any foreign country.

To do and perform all other .acts and things as are incidental or conducive to the
attainment of the above objects or any of them.

To apply for and obtain necessary consents, permissions and licenses from any
Government, State, Local and other Authorities for enabling the Company to carry on
any of its objects into effect as and when required by law.

It is declared that notwithstanding anything contained in the foregoing object clauses of
this Memorandum of Association nothing contained therein shall be construed as
empowering the Company to undertake or to indulge in business of banking company,
banking, leasing, investment, pre-payment sales scheme, managing agency or insurance
business directly or indirectly as restricted under the law or any unlawful operation.

The liability of the members is limited.

The Authorized Share Capital of the company is Rs. 1,200,000,000/= (Rupees One
Billion Two Hundred Million Only) divided into 120,000,000 (One Hundred Twenty
Million Only) ordinary shares of Rs. 10/= (Rupees Ten Only) each with powers to
increase or reduce the Capital of the Company and to divide the shares in the Capital for
the time being into several classes in accordance with the provisions of Companies

Ordinance, 1984.
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We, the several persons, whose names and addresses are subscribed below, are desirous of being
formed into a Company, in pursuance of this Memorandum of Association, and we respectively
agree to take the number of shares in the Capital of the Company as set opposite to our
respective names. - -

Name & Surmame | Father's/Husban | WNationality Occupation Residential Number of Signatute
{Present & Former) { d’s Name ir Fuf? with any Address shares taken by s
in Full former (in Full) each subscriber
_{in Block Letters) Nationality
1. Commander | Commander Pakistani Business D-6. Street 4,
NISAR  AHMED | Ghulam Ahmed N/A Executive F-8,
{Retd) Nominee of | {Late) Foundation [slamabad
BAHRIA N/A 6"  Floor,
FOUNDATION Bahria 99
Complex,
M.T. Khan
Road,
Karachi
2. Commodore | Mr. Aria Pakistani Business 314,  Street |
MOHAMMAD Mohammad Executive No.16, G-
ILYAS SKM) | (Late 1012,
S.Bt(Retd) Islamabad
3. MR, MALIK | Mr. Malik Ashig Pakistani Business 3, Guinar 50
RiAZ HUSSAIN Hussain Executive Colony Cobb
‘ Line
Peshawar _
Road, N
Rawalpindi
Cantt.
4. MR. MAHBOOB | Ch. Abdul Qadir Pakistani Business 107-A, Street 50
SHAUKAT ’ Executive No.4l. F-
10/4,
Islamabad
5. MRS. BINA | Mr. Malik Riaz Pakistani House Wife 8, Guinar 800
RIAZ Hussain Caiony Cobb
. Line
ReRistrg Pesr:jawar
W) Road,
r \"\?Ti?‘? Rawalpindi
7 . ' Cant.
Tetal 1,000
. Number of | (One
] Shares Thousand)
* Taken
Dated this 6" day of December 1995.
Witness to the above Signatures: Nationality:  Pakistanit
Full Name: Rana M. Usman Khan Occupation:  Chartered Accountant

Father's Full Name: Atta Mohammad Khan Full Address; 127-Habitat House
Cricket House, Gulberg Reoad

iMTegEs o Lahore

At T e ———
————

Signature:

No. ,/fs._DiE).f;l,ﬂ A A"‘*""M S/

Company Registration Office Islamabac ,\
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THE COMPANIES ORDINANCE, 1984

(Company Limited By Shares)

ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

OF

PRELIMINARY

Subject as hereinafter provided, the Regulations contained in Table ‘A’ of the First
Schedule to the Companies Ordinance, 1984, (hereinafter referred to as Table ‘A’) shali
apply to the Company so far as those are applicable to Private Companies, with the
exception of the Regulations which are modified, altered or added hereunder:

DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION

In these presents unless there be something in the subject or context inconsistent
therewith, words signifying the singular number only, shall include the plural and vice
versa and words signifying males only shall extend to and include females and words
signifying persons, shall apply mutates mutandis to bodies corporate.

“The Company” means “BAHRIA TOWN (PRIVATE) LIMITED.”
“The Office” means the regi‘stered office of the Company for the time being,
“Section” means Section of the Ordinance.

“Ordinance” means the Companies Ordinance, 1984.

“Month and year” shall mean the English calendar month and English calendar year
respectively.

“The Register” means the Register of members to be kept pursuant to Section 147 of the
Companies Ordinance, 1984.

“In Writing or Written” includes printed, lithographed and typewritten or other modes
of representing words in visible and legible form.

“Dividend” includes bonus shares.

“Capital” shall mean the Capital of the Company for the-time being raised or authorized
to be raised for the purpose of the Company.




“Shares” shall mean the shares in the capital of the Company for the time being.

“These }"resents” shall mean the Memorandum of Association of the Company and
these Articles and all supplementary, substituted or amended Articles for the time being
in force. '

“The Seal” in relation to a Company means the Common Seal of the Company.

“The Directors” means the Director for the time being of the Company including
alternate Directors, as the case may be.

“Board” means a meeting of Directors duly called and constituted or the Directors
assembled at a Board, as the case may be.

PRIVATE COMPANY

The Company is a Private Company within the meaning of Clause 28 of Section 2(1) of
the Companies Ordinance, 1984 and accordingly:

(a) No invitation shall be issued to the public to subscriber for any shares, debentures
or debenture-stock of the Company.

(b)  The number of the members of the Company (exclusive of persens in the
employment of the Company) shall be limited to fifty provided that for the
purpose of this provision where two or more persons hold one or more shares in
the Company jointly they shall for the purposes of this clause be treated as a

single members, and

(c)  The right to transfer shares of the Company is restricted in the manner and to the
extent hereinafter appearing,.

BUSINESS

The Company is entitled to commence business from the date of its incorporation.

The business of the Company shall include all or any of the objects enumerated in the
Memorandum of Association.

The business of the Company shall be carried out at such place or places in the whole of
Pakistan or elsewhere as the Directors may deem proper or advisable from time to time.

CAPITAL

The Authorized Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 1,200,000,000/= (Rupees One
Billion Two Hundred Million Only) divided into 120,000,000 (One Hundred Twenty
Million Only) ordinary shares of Rs. 10/= (Rupees Ten Only) each with powers to
increase, reduce, consolidate, sub-divide, re-organise or to divide the share capital of the

Company into several classes in accordance with the provisions of the Ordinange.—
Regishauo




10.

12.

13.

14.

SHARES

Subject to the provisions of the Ordinance, the shares shall be under the control of the
Board of Directors who may allot or otherwise dispose of the same to such persons,
firms, corporation or corporations, on such terms and conditions and . for such
considerations and at any such times as may be thought fit.

The shares in the Capital of the Company may be allotted or issued in payment or part
payment of any property, land, machinery or goods supplied or any services rendered to
the Company or promotion or formation of the Company or conduct of its business and
any share so allotted may be issued as fully paid shares.

Where at any time the Board decides to increase the issued capital of the Company by
issuing any further shares, then subject to the provisions of Section 86 of the Companies
Ordinance 1984, all new shares shall be offered to the members in proportion to the
existing shares held by each member, and such offer shall be made by notice under
registered post or circular specifying the number of shares to which the members is
entitled, and limiting a time within which the offer, if not accepted, will be deemed to be
declined; and after the expiration of such time, or on receipt of information from the
member to whom such notice is given that he declines to accept the shares offered, the
Board may dispose of the same in such manner as it may consider most beneficial to the

Company.
CERTIFICATE

Every person whose name is entered, as a member in the Register of Members shall
without payment, be entitled to a certificate under the Common Seal of the Company
specifying the share; held by several persons. The Company shall not be bound to issue
more than one certificate and delivery of a share certificate to any one of several joint
holders shal!l be sufficient delivery to all.

If a share certificate is defaced, lost or destroyed, it may be renewed on payment of such
fee, and on such terms, as to evidence and indemnity and payment of expenses incurred
by the Company in investigating title as the Directors think fit.

TRANSFER OF SHARES
The instrument of transfer of any share in the Company shall be executed both by-the
transferor and transferee, and the transferor shall be deemed to remain holder of the share
until the name of the transferee is entered in the Register of members in respect thereof.

Shares in the Company shall be transferred in the form prescribed by Table ‘A’ in the
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16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

The Directors shall not refuse to transfer any fully paid shares unless the transfer deed is
defective or invalid. The Directors may also suspend the registration of transfer during
the ten days immediately preceding a General Meeting or prior to the determination of
entitlement or rights of the shareholders by giving seven days previous notice in the
manner provided in the Ordinance. The Directors may decline to recognize any
instrument of transfer unless:-

(@) A fee as may be determined by the Directors is paid to the Company in respect
thereof. '

(b)  The duly stamped instrument of transfer is accompanied by the certificate of the
shares to which it relates, and such other evidence as -the Directors may
reasonably require to who the right of the transferor to make the transfer.

If the Directors refuse to register a transfer of shares, they shall within one month after
the date on which the transfer deed was lodged with the Company send to the transferee
and the transferor notice of the refusal indicating the defect or invalidity to the transferee,
who shall after removal of such defect or invalidity be entitled to re-lodge the transfer
deed with the Company.

TRANSMISSION OF SHARES

The executors, administrators, heirs, or nominees, as the case may be, of a deceased sole
holder of a share shall be the only person recognized by the Company as having any title
to the share. In the case of a share registered in the names of two or more holders, the
survivor or survivors shall be the only persons recognized by the Company as having any
title to the share. '

Any person becoming entitled to a share in consequence of the death or insolvency of a
member shall, upon such evidence being produced my from time to time be required by

the Directors.

A person becoming entitled to a share by reason of the death or insolvency of the holder
shall be entitled to the same dividends and other advantages to which he would be
entitled if he were the registered holder of the share, except that he shall not, before being
registered as a member in respect of the share, be entitled in respect of it to exercise any
right conferred by membership in relation to meetings of the Company.

ALTERNATION OF CAPITAL

The Company may, from time to time, by Special Resolution, increase the share capital
by such surm, to be divided into shares of such amount, as the resolution shall prescribe.
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22.

23.

24,

25,

26.

27.

Subject to the provisions of the Ordinance, all new shares shall, before issue, be offered
to such persons as at the date of the offer are entitlied to receive notices from the
Company of General Meetings in proportion, as nearly as the circumstances admit, to the
amount of the existing shares to which they are entitled. The offer shall be made by
notice specifying the number of shares offered, and limiting a time within which the
offer, if not accepted, will be deemed to be declined, and after the expiration to that time,
or on the receipt of an intimation from the person to whom the offer is made that he
declines to accept the shares offered, the Directors may dispose of the same in such
manner as they think most beneficial to the Company. The Directors may likewise so
dispose of any new shares which (by reason of the ratio which the new shares bear to
shares held by persons entitled to an offer of new shares) cannot, in the opinion of the
Directors, be conveniently offered under this regulation.

The new shares shall be subject to the same proviéions with reference to transfer,
transmission and otherwise as the shares in the original share capital.

The Company may, by special resolution:-

(@)  Consolidate and divide its share capital into shares of larger amount than its
existing shares;

(b)  Sub-divide its existing shares or any of them into shares of smaller amount than is
fixed by the Company’s Memorandum of Association, subject, nevertheless, to
the provxslons to clause (d) of sub section (1) of section 92; .

(c) Cancel any shares, which, at the date of the passing of the resolution, have not
been taken or agreed to be taken by any person.

The Company may, by Special Resolution, reduce its share capital in any manner with,
and subject to, any incident authorized and consent required by law.

GENERAL MEETINGS

The first General Meeting to be called Annual General Meeting, shall be held, within 18
months from the date of its incorporation in accordance with provisions of section 158
and thereafier once at Jeast in every year and within a period of six months following the
close of its financial year and not more than fifteen months after the holding of its last
preceding Annual General Meeting as may be determined by the Directors.

All General Meetings of Company other than the Annual General Meeting mentioned in
section 158 shall be called Extraordinary General Meetings.

The Directors may, whenever they think fit, call an Extraordinary General Meeting. The
Extraordinary General Meetings shall also be called on such requisition, or in default,
may be called by such requisitionists, as is provided by Section 159. If at any time there
are not within Pakistan sufficient directors capable of acting to form a quorum, any
director of the Company may call an extraordinary General Meeting in the same manner
as nearly as possible as that in which meetings may be called by the Dirg
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29.

30.

31

32.

33.

34.

PROCEEDINGS AT GENERAL MEETINGS

Subject to the provisions of Sub-Section (3) of Section 158 of the Companies Ordinance,
1984, at least 21 days’ notice (exclusive of the day on which the notice is given)
specifying the place, the date and the hour of meeting and in case of special business, the
general nature of that business, shall be given to such persons as are, under the
Companies Ordinance, 1984 or the regulations of the Company, entitled to receive such
notices from the Company, but the accidental omission to give such notice to or the non
receipt of such notice by any member shall not invalidate the proceedings at any General
Meeting. _ .

All business shall be deemed special that is transacted at an Extraordinary General
Meeting, and also all that is transacted at an Annual General Meeting with the exception
to sanctioning a dividend, the consideration of the accounts, balance sheets and the
reports of the Directors and Auditors, the election of Directors and the appointment and
fixing of the remuneration of the Auditors.

No business shall be transacted at any General Meeting unless a quorum of members is
present at the time when the meeting proceeds to business, save as herein otherwise
provided, two members present in person or by proxy representing not less than 25% of
the total voting power either on their own account or as proxy shall form a quorum.

If within half an hour from the time appointed for the meeting a quorum is not present,
the meeting, if called upon by the requisition of members shall be dissolved, in any other
case it will stand adjourned to the same day in the next week at the same time and place,
and if adjourned meeting, quorum is not present within half an hour, the members present
personally or by proxy being not less than two shall be a quorum.

The Chairman of the Company shall preside as Chairman at every General Meeting of the
Company.

If there is no such Chairman or if at any meeting he is not present within fifteen minutes
at the time appointed for holding the meeting or is unwilling to act a Chairman, the
members present shall choose one of their members to be the Chairman.

The Chairman may, with the consent of any meeting at which a quorum is present and
shail if so directed by the meeting adjourn the meeting from time to time and from place
to place, but no business shall be transacted at any adjourned meeting other than the
business left unfinished of the meeting from which the adjournment took place. When a
meeting is adjourned for ten days or more, notice of the adjourned meeting shall be given
as in the case of an original meeting. Save as aforesaid, it shall not be necessary to give
any notice of any adjournment of the business to be transacted at an adjourned meeting.

At any General Meeting, a resolution put to the vote of the meeting shall be decided on a
show of hands unless a poll is (before or on the declaration of the result of the show of
hands) demanded. Unless a poll is so demanded, a declaration by the chairman that
resolution has, on a show of hands, been carried, or carried unanimously, or by a
particular majority, or lost, and an entry to that effect in the books of the proceedings of
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38.

39.

40.

41.

42.

43.

44,

45,

the Cor‘npany shall be conclusive evidence of the fact, without proof of the number or
proportion of the votes recorded in favour of, or against that resolution.

If a poll is demanded as aforesaid, it shall be taken in the manner as is provided under
Section 167 and 168 of Ordinance. '

In the case of an equality of votes whether on a show of hands or on a poll, the. Chairman
of the meeting at which the show of hands takes place, or at which the poll is demanded,
shall be entitled to have and exercise a second or casting vote.

A poll demanded on the election of a Chairman or on a question of adjournment shall be
taken at once,

VOTES OF MEMBERS

On a show of hands every member present in person shall have one vote except for
election of directors in which case the provisions of Section {78 shall apply. On a poil
every member shall have voting rights as laid down in Section 160.

In case of joint-holders, the vote of the senior who tenders a vote, whether in person or by
proxy, shall be accepted to the exclusion of the votes of the other joint-holders; and for
this purpose seniority shall be determined by the order in which the names stand in the
register of members. {n case of minor, the guardian shall be entitled to vote for him..

A member of unsound mind, or in respect of whom an order has been made by any court
having jurisdiction in lunacy, may vote, whether on show of hands or on a poll, by his
committee or other legal guardian, and any such committee or guardian may, on a poil

vote by proxy.

On a poll votes may be given either personally or by proxy provided that no body
corporate shall vote by proxy as long as a resolution of its directors in accordance with
the provisions of Section 162 of the Company Ordinance, 1984 is in force.

The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing under the hand of the appointer or
by his attorney duly authorized in writing, if the appointer is a corporation either under
the common seal, or under the hand of an officer or attorney so authorized. No person
shall act as a proxy unless he is 2 member of the Company.

The instrument appointing a proxy and the power of attorney or other authority (if any)
under which it is signed, or a notary ally certified copy of that power or authority, shall
be deposited at the registered office of the Company not less than forty-eight hours before
the time for holding the meeting at which the person named in the instrument proposes to
vote and in default the instrument of proxy shall not be treated as valid.

An instrument appointing proxy may be in the following form, or in any other form near
thereto as may be approved by the Company. :
ReRistrom
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BAHRIA TOWN (PRIVATE) LIMITED

L of in the
district of being a member of
“BAHRIA TOWN {PRIVATE) LIMITED”, hereby appoint
Mr. of , as my
Proxy to vote for me and on my behalf at the Annual General Meeting or Extraordinary General
Meeting of the Company to be held on the day of

200 and at any adjournment thereof.

Dated .c.oovvvvvvvieiiennnns Signed .....ooiiiviiiiin.,

46. A vote given in accordance with the terms of an instrument of proxy shall be valid
notwithstanding the previous death or insanity of the principal or revocation of the proxy
or of the authority under which the proxy was executed, or transfer of the share in respect
of which the proxy is given, provided that no intimation in writing of such death,
insanity, revocation of transfer as aforesaid shall have been received by the Company at
the Office before the commencement of the meeting or adjourned meeting at which the
proxy is used.

DIRECTORS

47.  The Directors of the Company shall, subject to Article 48 hereof, fix the number of
elected Directors of the Company, not being less than four (2) and not later than 35 days
before convening of the General Meeting at which Directors are to be elected and the
number so fixed shall not be changed except with the prior approval of the General

Meeting the Company.

48.  The qualification of a Director shall be holding of shares in the Company of the nominal
value of Rs.10 (Rupees Ten only) at least in his own name, relax able in the case of
Directors representing interest holding shares of requisite value.

49,  Unless otherwise determined by the Company- in Geﬁeral Meecting in the manner
provided under Article 47, the number of Directors shail not be less than four (4). The
following are the first Directors of the Company who shall hold office till the First

Annual General Meeting.

Commodore MOHAMMAD ILYAS SI(M), SBt (Retd)
MR, MALIK RIAZ HUSSAIN

MR. MAHBOOB SHAUKAT

MRS. BINA RIAZ

bl ol s B

50.  The Directors of the Company shall, unless the number of persons who offer themselves
to be elected is not more than the number of Directors fixed under Articles Clauses 47
and 49 be elected by the members of the Company in General Meeting in the following
manner namely:-
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52.

33,

55.

56.

57.

59.

(a) a member shall have such number of votes as is equal to the products of the
number of voting shares or securities held by him and the number of Directors to
be elected;

(b) a member may give all his votes to a single candidate or divide them between
more than one of the candidates in such manner as he may choose; and

(c) the candidate who gets the highest number of votes shall be declared elected as
Director and then the candidate who gets next highest number of votes shall be so
declared and so on until the total number of Directors to be elected has been so
elected.

All elected Directors shall retire from office at the General Meeting held after every three
years. A Director retiring at a meeting shall retain office untii the election of Directors in

the meeting.

Subject to the provisions of Section 181 of the Companies Ordinance, the Company may
by resolution in General Meeting remove a Director appointed under Article Clause 58 or
elected in the manner provided for in Article Clause 45 hereof.

In addition to the Directors elected or deemed to have been elected by shareholders, the
Company may have Directors nominated by the Company’s creditors or other special
interest holders by virtue of contractual arrangements.

Save as provided in Section 187, no person shall be appointed as a Director unless he is
member of the Company.

The Directors of the Company elected under Article Clause 50 shall hold office for three
years except the Directors appointed against casual vacancy who shall be subject to
retirement in term of Article Clause 58 hereof.

A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election.

Subject to the provisions of the Ordinance, the Company may from time to time in
General Meeting increase or decreases the number of Directors.

Any casual vacancy occurring on the Board of Directors may be filled up by the
Directors, but the person so chosen shall be subject to retirement at the same time as if he
had become a Director on the day on which the Director in whose place he is chosen was

last elected as Director.

A Director who is out of Pakistan or about to go out of Pakistan for a period of not less
than three (3) months may, with the approval of the Directors, appoint any duly qualified
person 1o be an Alternate Director during his absence abroad and such appointment shall
have effect and such appointee while he holds office as an Alternate Director shall be
entitled to notice of meetings of the Directors and to attend and vote there at accordingly,
but he shall ipso facto vacate office as Director if and when the appointer returns to

f\\ Rep"’ff
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Pakistan, or vacate office as Director, or remove the appointee from office. Any
appointment under this Article shall be effected by notice in writing under the hand of the
Director making the same.

REMUNERATION

Each Director other than regularly paid Chief Executive and full time working Director
shall receive out of the funds of the Company a sum, as may be fixed by the Directors,
not exceeding Rs.500/- for each meeting attending by him plus other expenses incurred
by him in connection with attending of Board’s meeting.

Subject to the provisions of the Companies Ordinance, the remuneration of Directors
including Chief Executive shall from time to time be determined by the Company’s
Board of Directors.

The Director may also sanction the payment of such additional sum, as they may think fit
to any Director for the performance of extra services he may render to the Company
subject to the approval of the shareholders at a General Meeting in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Ordinance, 1984.

The Director who resides out of station shall also be entitled to be paid such traveling and
the Directors may fix other expenses as from time to time.

PROCEEDINGS OF DIRECTORS

Directors may meet together for the dispatch of business, adjourn and otherwise regu-late
their meeting and proceedings as they think fit provided that they shall meet once every

four (4) months.

The quorum necessary for the meeting of Board of Directors shall be  not less than two
Directors present in person.

The Directors may from time to time elect a Chairman, and determine the period for
which he is to hold office and not exceeding three (3) years, but if no such Chairman is
elected or if at any meeting the Chairman is not present within fifteen minutes afier the
time appointed for holding the meeting or is unwilling to act as Chairman, the Directors
present shall choose any one of their members to be Chairman for that meeting.

No business shall be transacted at any meeting of the Board of Directors unless the
quorum is present. If quorum is not present the meeting shall be dissolved and a new
meeting convened. The meeting so convened shall have the authority to transact any
business whether or not the quorum is present. The notice served for the purpose of
notice at least seven calendar days.

Questions arising at any Board meeting shall be decided by a majority of votes and, in
case of an equality of votes, the Chairman shall have a second and castmg vote.

Decisions on the following matters shall require the approval of the Board L
ay NERIsy,
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(a) any transaction of the Company, or of its other projects, with a director or
shareholder, or with companies or firms directly or indirectly controlled by a
director or shareholder, or with an undertaking associated with the Company, a
director or shareholder, his or her spouse(s), brother(s), sister(s) or the lineal
ascendants or descendants of any of the aforesaid persons; -

(b)  borrowing in excess of Rs.1,000,000 (Rupees One Million) or foreign currency
equivalent;

(¢)  appointment, removal and remuneration of the Chief Executive and Executive
Director;

(d) purchase, lease, or disposition of fixed assets with a value in excess of Rs.500,000
(Rupees Five Hundred Thousands) or foreign currency equivalent;

(e}  further issues of capital;
H approval of share transfers and dividends;
(g)  appointment and remova! of auditors;

(h)  acquisition of interest in new ventures and commencement of new projects;ré.nd

(i) interruption and closing of operations.

Subject to the provisions of the Ordinance, a resolution in writing signed by all the
Directors, without 2 meeting of Directors shall be effective for all purposes as a
resolution passed at the meeting of Directors duly held, called and constituted.

DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

No person shall become a Director of the Company, if he suffers from any of the
disabilities or disqualifications mentioned in Section 187 and if, already a Director, shall
cease 10 hold such office from the date he so becomes disqualified or disabled.

All acts done by any meeting of Directors or by a Committee of Directors or by any
person acting as a Director shall, notwithstanding that it shall afterwards be discovered
that there was some defect in the appointment of such Director, or person acting as
foresaid, as they or any of them were disqualified, be as valid as if every such person had
been duly appointed and was qualified to be a Director.

POWERS AND DUTIES OF DIRECTORS

The business of the Company shall be managed by the Directors who may pay all
expenses incurred in promoting and registering the Company and may exercise all such
powers of the Company as are not by the Ordinance or any statutory modification thereof
for the time being in force, or by these regulations required to be exercised by the
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- Company in the General Meeting, subject nevertheless to the provisions of the Ordinance

or to any of these regulations, and such regulations being not inconsistent with the
aforesaid provisions, as may be prescribed by the Company in the General Meeting but
no regulation made by the Company in General Meeting shall invalidate any prior act of
the Directors which would have been valid if that regulation had not been made.

The Directors shall duly comply with the provisions of the Ordinance or any statutory
modification thereof for the time being in force and in particular with the provisions in
regard to the registration of the particulars of mortgage charges effecting the property of
the Company or created by it, to the keeping of a register of the Directors, and to the
sending to the Registrar of an annual list of members and a summary of particulars
relating thereto and notice of any consolidation or increase or decrease of share capital or
sub- division of shares and copies of special resolution and a copy of the register of
Directors and notifications of any changes therein.

The Directors shall cause minutes to be made in books provided for the purpose :-
(a) of all appointment of officers made by the Directors;

(b)  of the names of the Directors present at each meeting of the Directors and of any
committee of the Directors;

(c) of all resolutions and proceedings at all meetings of the Company and of the
Directors and of any committee of Directors;

(d)  and every Director present at any meeting of Directors or committee of Directors
shall sign his name in a book kept for the purpose.

NOMINEE DIRECTOR

In addition to the elected Directors, the Financial Institutions shall be entitled, during the
currency of their respective loan(s) to the Company, to appeint on¢ person on the Board
of Directors of the Company to be called Nominee Director and to recall and/or replace
such a person from time to time. Such Nominee Director on the Board of Directors of the
Company may not be holder of Share(s) in the Capital of the Company and other
regulations and/or rules pertaining to the election, retirement, qualification and/or
disqualification of the Director shall not apply to him.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE

The Company shall appoint a person who is not ineligible to become a Director of the
Company under Section 187, to be a Chief Executive. Mr. Malik Riaz Hussain is the
first Chief Executive of the Company who shall hold office till the first Annual General

Meeting.

-
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- MANAGEMENT

The whole business of the Company shall be carried on by the Chief Executive who shall
have all powers, authorities and discretions as are given to or vested in by the Companies
Ordinance, 1984 or may be entrusted by these presents.

The Chief Executive subject to Article 68, supervision and control of Board of Directors,
without prejudice to or in any way restricting or limiting the general powers and authority
here-to-fore conferred by these presents or the Companies Ordinance, 1984 shall have the
power to do or concur in doing all or any of the following acts or things :-

(a)

(b)

()

(d)

(e)

)

(e

(k)

To take on lease, purchase, erect or otherwise acquire for the Company any lard,
building, property, rights or privileges which the Company is authorized to
acquire at such price and generally on such terms and conditions, as he thinks fit.

To sell, let, exchange or otherwise dispose of absolutely or conditionally all or
any part of the property, privileges and undertaking of the Company upon such
terms and conditions and for such consideration as he may think fit.

To buy, sell, import, export or procure the supply of all plants and machinery,
material, stocks in trade and other movable and immovable property and things
required for the purpose of the Company.

To engage, fix and pay the remuneration of and dismiss or discharge dny
manager, engineer, agent, secretary, clerk, accountant, workman, expert, technical
adviser, or other persons employed or to be employed in or in connection with the

business of the Company.

To appoint any person to be attorney of the Company for such purposes and with
such powers, authority and discretion and for such period and subject to such-
conditions as he may from time to time think fit and to revoke such powers at his

pleasure.

To enter into, carry, rescind or vary all financial arrangements or agreement with
any banks, persons or corporations for, or in connection with the Company's
business and affairs and in connection with such arrangement to deposit, piedge,
hypothecate any property of the Company or the documents representing or
relating to the same.

To take and give receipts and other discharges for money payable to the Company
and for the claims and demands of the Company and to draw, accept and endorsg,
negotiable promissory notes, bills of exchange or other negotiable and

transferable instruments.

To deal with the money of the Company not immediately required for the purpose
thereof upon such terms and conditions as may be thought expedient, :

35‘\" REH"SJ‘.
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To determine who shall be entitled to sign on Company’s behalf, bills, cheques,
notes, receipts, acceptances, endorsements, releases, contracts and documents.

To enter into such negotiations and contracts and rescind or vary as such contracts
and execute and do all such acts, deeds and things in the name of the Company as
he may consider expedient.

To open accounts with any bank or bankers or with any company, firm, individual
and to pay into and withdraw money from such accounts from time to time.

To insure the movable and immovable property of the Company.

To pay to any person employed by the Company a commission on the profits of |

the Company.

To institute, combat, prosecute, defend, compound, settle, compromise, adjust,
refer to arbitration, withdraw, abandon any legal proceedings by or against the
Company or its officers or otherwise concerning the affairs of the Company.

To make advances for the business of the Company to such persons upon such
security or without security as the may think fit, and generally to direct, manage,
control the receipts, custody, employment, investment and expenditure of the
moneys and funds of the Company and the keeping of accounts thereof.

To appear for and on behalf of the Company in any Court of Justice, Criminal,
Civil or Revenue, before any Executive, Judicial Municipal, Provincial, Revenue,
Police, Postal, Excise, Transport, Income Tax, or other offices in any action or
proceedings or matters in which the Company may be interested and to promote,
safeguard or defend its interests.

To sign and verify and plaint, written statement, petition, compromise,
mukhtarnama, vakalatnama, authorizing legal practitioner to act on behalf of the
Company in all Courts, Civil, Criminal or Revenue.

BORROWING POWERS

Subject to the provisions of the Ordinance, the Chief Executive/Board of Directors shall
have the powers to raise or borrow any sums of money for and on behalf of the Company
from individuals firms, companies, commercial banks, or financing institutions, or the
Directors may themselves advance money to the Company upon such terms and
conditions as they may approve from time to time. '

The Board of Director may from time to time secure the payment of such money in such
manner and upon such terms and conditions in all respects as they may think fit and in
particular by the issue of debentures or bonds of the Company or by mortgage or charge
of all or any part of the property or assets of the Company.
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ACCOUNTS

The Directors shall cause to be kept proper books of account as required under Section
230 of the Companies Ordinance with respect to:-

(@)  all sums of money received and expended by the Company and the métter in
respect of which the receipts and expenditure take place;

(b)  all sales and purchases of goods and services by the Company;

(c)  all assets of the Company;

{d) all liabilities of the Company;

(e) all other matters required by the Authority from time to time.

The books of account shall be kept at the Registered Office or at such other place as the
Directors shall think fit and shall be open to inspection during business hours.

AUDIT

Once at least in every year the accounts of the Company shall be audited and corrections
of the Balance Sheet shall be ascertained by one or more Auditors. The Auditors shall be
appointed and their duties regulated in accordance with the provisions of Sections 252 to
255 of the Companies Ordinance, 1984.

THE SEAL

The Company shall provide for the safe custody of the Seal and the Seal shall not be
affixed to any instrument except by the authority of a resolution of the Board of Directors
or by a Committee of Directors authorized in that behalf by the Directors and in the
presence of at least two Directors and of the Secretary or such other person as the
Directors may appoint for the purpose; and those two Directors and Secretary or other
person as aforesaid shall sign every instrument to which the Seal of the Company is so

affixed in their presence.

INDEMNITY

Every Officer or agent for the time being of the Company may be indemnified out of the
assets of the Company against any proceedings, whether civil or criminal, arising out of
his dealings, in relation to the affairs of the Company, except those brought by the
Company against him, in which judgment is given in his favour or in which he is
acquitted, or in connection with any application under Section 488 of the Ordinance, in
which relief is granted to him by the Court.
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SECRECY

No member shall be entitled to visit and inspect the works of the Company without the
permission of the Chief Executive/Board of Directors or to require discovery of any
information regarding any detail of the Company’s business or any matter which is or
may be in nature of trade secret, or secret process which may relate to the conduct of the
Company’s business and which in the opinion of chief Executive/Board of Directors, will

be not in the interest of the members of the Company to communicate to the public.

ARBITRATION

Whenever any difference arises between the Company on the one hand and the members,
their executors, administrators or assignee on the other hand, touching the true intent or
construction or the incident or consequence of these presents or of the statutes or
touching any thing thereafter done, executed, omitted or suffered in pursuance of these
presents or otherwise relating to these presents or to any statute affecting the Company,
every such difference shall be referred for the decision of the arbitrator or umpire under
the Arbitration Act, 1940 as amended from time to time.

The cost incidental to any such reference and award shall be at discretion of the
arbitrators or umpire respectively who may determine the amount thereof and direct the
same to be shared between the attomey and client or otherwise and may award by whom
and in what manner the same shall be borne and paid. ‘

WINDING UP

If the Company is wound up, the liquidator may, with the sanction of a special resolution
of the Company and any other sanction required by the Ordinance divide amongst the
members in specie or kind the whole or any part of the assets of the Company whether
they shall consist of property of same kind or not.

(i) For the purpose aforesaid, the liquidator may set such value as he deems fair upon
any property to be divided as aforesaid and may determine how such division
shall be carried out as between the members of different classes of members.

(iiy  The liquidator may, with the like sanction, vest the whole or any part of such
assets in trustees upon such trust for the benefit of the contributories, as the
liquidator, with the like sanction thinks fit, but so that no member shall be
compelled to accept any shares or other securities whereon there is any liability.

e
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We, the several persons, whose names and addresses are subscribed below, are desirous of being
formed into a Company, in pursuance of these Articles of Association, and we respectively agree
to take the number of shares in the Capital of the Company as set opposite to our respective

names.

Number of

Name & Sumame Father’s/Husban Nationality Qccupation Residential Signature
(Present & Former) | d’s Name in Full with any Address shares taken by
in Full former (in Full) each subscriber
{in Block Letters) Nationality
1 Commander | Commander Pakistani Business D-6, Street 4,
NISAR  AHMED | Ghulam Ahmed N/A Executive F-8,
(Retd) Nominee of | (Late) Foundation Isfamabad
BAHRIA NA 6"  Floor,
FOUNDATION Bahria 99
Complex,
MT  Khan
Road,
Karachi
2. Commodore | Mr. Atta Pakistani Business 314,  Street 1
MOHAMMAD Mohammad Executive No.16, G-
{LYAS Si(M) | (Late 1022,
S.Bi(Retd) Islamabad
3. MR. MALIK | Mr. Malik Ashiq Pakistani Business g, Gulnar 50
RIAZ HUSSATN Hussain Exccutive Colony Cobb
Line :
Peshawar
Road,
Rawalpindi
Cantt.
4. MR, MAHBOOB | Ch. Abdu} Qadir Pakistani Business 107-A, Street 50
SHAUKAT Executive No.4l, F.
16/4,
) [slamabad
5. MRS. BINA | Mr. Malik Riaz Pakistani House Wife 8, Gulnar 800
RIAZ Hussain Colony Cobb
Line
Peshawar
Road,
Rawalpindi
Cantt.
Total 1,000
Namber of | (One
Shares Theusand)
Taken
Dated this 6 day of December 1995.
Witness to the above Signatures: Nationality: Pakistani
Full Name: Rana M. Usman Khan Occupation: Chartered Accountant
Father’s Full Name: Atta Mohammad Khan Full Address: 127-Habitat House
Cricket House, Gulberg Road
Signature: im0 BE T
Ne. aDi
Dacod Additional Joint Registrar f}% ‘_:1“;?_‘?5’79 s

Company Registration Office Islamabadh
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DATRIA TOWN

FEASIBILITY REPORT REGARDING TECHNICAL AND
FINANCIAL PROPOSAL FOR ELECTRICITY SUPPLY
LICENCE

1. Introduction

This report investigates the feasibility of obtaining an Electricity
Supply Licence from the WNational Electric Power Regulatory
Authority (NEPRA) under Regulation 3(4)(e) of their Licensing
Regulations. The report outlines the technical and financial
considerations for establishing Bahria Town (Private) Limited as a
new electricity supplier of the iast resort in Lahore for projects of
Mohlanwal Scheme and Bahria Orchards.

2. Technical Proposal

2.1. Business Model

Bahria Town Lahore intends to proceed as per current practice to
purchase electricity from LESCO in bulk and sell it directly to the
residents (Bahria customers).

With provision of power supply license from NEPRA, the
management shall be running the business most viably with
purchase at appropriate tariff as wholesale market price approved
by NEPRA and selling its customers under NEPRA approved tariffs.

Bahria Town (Pvt) Ltd. Lahore has most reliable underground
distribution networks fed from LESCO on one-point bulk supply
basis in both its locations (Bahria Mohlanwal and Bahria Orchards)
under C3 tariff through 132KV grid stations (Both at Mohlanwal and
Orchards) constructed at Bahria's costs.

ix-1V
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Both grid stations were constructed by M/s. Siemens as EPC
contractor after technical approvals from LESCO meeting all NTDC
specifications with approved loads of 70MW and 19.6MW for
Mohlanwal and Orchards respectively and are running satisfactorily.

In view of future considerationof load provisions, Bahria town
management Lahore, has undertaken construction of 3™ 132KV
GIS grid station in Mohlanwal project to cater with all assessed load
demands in future. Whereas in Orchards, 132KV Orchard grid
station is sufficient to meet future demands of Orchard project.

Bahria Town Lahore has its own standby generators and are used
to meet emergencies, shortfalls and interruptions at both locations.

The basic infrastructure of distribution network is as follows.

The HT and LT distribution network is underground and has been
constructed by BTPL according to PEPCO/NTDC specifications at
Bahria’s own costs. It comprises of following major equipments.

e HT /LT Cables

¢ Ring Main Units (RMU'’s)

e 11/0.4kV Pad Mounted Transformers

¢ Distribution Boxes

e LT Service Cables

e Metering System T
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This quality infrastructure developed, supervised and maintained
by competent and experienced staff has made both the
communities feel living in entirely different communities
compared to all other adjoining areas. '

Once the power supply licence to Bahria is granted, Bahria Town
can alsoconsider opting other power supply arrangements more
viable under NEPRA provisions.

2.2. Target Market

Bahria Town Lahore is a leading world class private housing society
in the country with highest standards of living. First area
Mohlanwalis situated on canal side near Multan Road and second
area Orchards, few kilometers apartis along Raiwind Road Lahore.

As explained, the both areas are residential projects with different
kinds of accommodations like farm houses, villas, different
category/size of residential plots etc.

As such the target market is primarilyresidential market. But there
are commercial areas, markets, clubs, hospitals, schools etc as

allied infrastructure for the mega housing projects.

2.3. Power Source

Bahria Town Lahore intends to utilize initially the purchase through
national grid component (132KV network owned by LESCO)
through existing 02 No 132KV grid stations at tariff C3 from LESCO.
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2.4. Infrastructure Requirements

A) Bahria Mohlanwal

Site is being fed through 132 KV dedicated grid station with 02 x
20/26 MVA transformers with the approved extended load from
40 MW to 70 MW through addition of 3" Power Transformer of
31.5/40 MVA. The capacity is sufficient to meet future 10 years
demand of Bahria Mohlanwal. Construction of one 132/11 KV
grid station in Sector-F has also been under taken with 02 x
31.5/40 MVA Power Transformers to meet future requirements.
The capacity can be further enhanced to meet all load
requirements of next 35 years with only augmentations/additions
of power transformers.

B) Bahria Orchards
Installed capacity of 02 x 10/13 MVA power transformers at
Orchards grid station is sufficient to meet the requirement of this
project for next 05 years. With addition/augmentations of power
transformers at same grid station, can meet the future load
requirements of Bahria Orchard for next 50 years.

Both Bahria Town grid stations are constructed / completed by
M/s. Siemens Pakistan under the supervision of LESCO after
approval of its design by LESCO / NTDC.
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BAHRIA TOWN

From both dedicated 132KV grid stations, all the area is fed through
underground 11/0.4KV reliable distribution networks with pad
mounted distribution transformers meeting all technical parameters
up to the end consumers.

C)Following are key features of distribution networks:

Total no. of Grid Stations in Bahria Town Lahore. 2 (two)

Capacity of 132/11 KV Mohianwal Grid Station 40MW + (30 MW)

Mohlanwal Grid Station has two Power Transformers
of 132/11.5 KV, 20/26 MVA capacity each. Third
power transformer 40 MW is under commissioning.

Capacity of 132/11 KV Orchard Grid Station. 20 MW
Orchard Grid Station has two Power Transformers

of 132/11.5 KV, 10/13 MVA capacity each.

Length of feeders installed in Bahria Town Lahore. 1,194 KM

HT (11 KV) 586 KM

LT (0.4 Kv) 608 KM
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2.5. Technical Expertise

Bahria Town Lahore had already been provided distribution licence
from Punjab Government in 1999 under Electricity rules and
therefore had to develop complete distribution network at that time
alongwith hiring adequate experienced experiise to be eligible for
obtaining distribution licence.

To operate and maintain these distribution networks,senior and
junior staff mostly with rich experience of utility services are

engaged. Besides, Bahria is supported by competent, experienced
consultants.

Details of Staff. Attached as Annex A.

2.6. Reqgulatory Compliance

Bahria Town (Private) Limited has submitted the present application
for grant of Supplier of Last Resort (SoLR) Licence for its
Mohlanwal Scheme and Bahria Orchards, Lahore projects which is
in compliance to all the regulatory provisions under the Regulation
of Generation, Transmission and Distribution of Electric Power Act,
1997 read with NEPRA Licensing Regulations, 1999 and NEPRA
Eligibility Criteria (Electric Power Supplier) Rules, 2023.

While undertaking the project, BTPL shall also comply with all allied
provisions pertaining to Electric Supply Business.

o v v B, e ikl et Sahrin Orchard, Balwind oo
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3. Financial Proposal

3.1. Project Cost Estimation

(A) LicenceApplication Fees

The Licence Application Fees for the said Supplier of Last Resort
Licence is calculated to be Rs. 2,428,336/-.
(B) Infrastructure Development Costs

Since Bahria Town Lahore enjoyed the status of licence issued
through Government of Punjab during 1999, construction of
distribution facilities was commenced and as on today Bahria Town
has fully developed underground distribution networks.

After being coming in of NEPRA, Bahria Town Lahore applied for
distribution licence during 2009 for both locations (Bahria
Mohlanwal and Bahria Orchards).

The application for Bahria Town distribution licence could not be
matured/finalized only since host distribution company LESCO held
exclusive rights for providing distribution services in its service
territory, and did not issue NOC.
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Bahria Town management since then had been purchasing power
from LESCQO at bulk supply on tariff C3 and distributing at NEPRA
tariffsto their residents/consumers.

Bahria Town distribution networks were established with following
capital expenses.

(A).

Grid Stations

(i) 132 KV Mohlanwal grid station =620 Million PKRAprox

(i) 132 KV Orchards grid station = 380 Million PKRAprox.

Distribution networks 11KV/LT cables.
Pad mounted transformers, services etc=7000 Million PKR
Approx.

(Mohlandwal= 5200 Million + Orchards= 1800 Million)

Operation Costs

(i) Annual Maintenance = 419.81 Million PKR
Expenses of Grid Stations
Power Houses

(i) Annual Maintenance 71.97 Million PKR
Expenses of Underground
Distribution System

(i) Annual Energy Charges of
Street Lights, OHWTs, Disposals,
Masijids, Parks and Technical Losses

Total Annual Expenditures = 1791.38 Million PKR

1299.6 Million PKR
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(D) Administrative Costs
()  Salaries of Staff and
Depreciated Cost of
Vehicles

99.93 Million PKR

(i)  Annual Expenses of
Staff Accommodation
(Electricity & Maintenance)

8.41 Million PKR

(i)  Annual Food Expense of
Staff

21.20 Million PKR

(iv) Rent of Generators per 50.3 Million PKR

Annum
(v) Annual Diesel Expenses = 210.9 Million PKR

(vi) Annual Lubricant Expense = 08.5 Million PKR
(vii) Total Annual Expenses 399.24 Million PKR

Total Operational +
Administrative Cost

2190.62 Million PKR

3.2. Funding Strateqy

Bahria Town has developed the entire networks at 100% own
resources. The cost to be incurred on infrastructure remains
included as development charges with the purchase of plots.
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3.3. Revenue Model

Bahria Town generates its revenue from residents (customers)
exactly as per DISCO’s practices under NEPRA approved tariffs.

Till 2019, Bahria Town could generate revenue to meet the

expenses to pay monthly billing to LESCO on bulk rates alongwith
meeting O&M charges.

But sharp increase in bulk supply C3 tariff since 2019 without tariff
increase to end customers created a big gap and resulting financial
loss to Bahria Town management.

Application for power supply licence is an effort to address the
situation and provide Bahria management to run their financial
affairs in a viable manner.

3.4. Financial Projections

Bahria Town management always keeps the future load projections
in view regarding the demand of power and accordingly makes

investments ahead to ensure the quality services for Bahria Town
residents / consumers.




STRATEGIC BUSINESS PLAN FOR ELECTRIC POWER

SUPPLY BUSINESS

Executive Summary

This document outlines a strategic business plan for Bahria Town
(Private) Limited to enter the electric power supply business in Lahore
for its project at Mohlanwal Scheme and Bharia Orchards over the next
three years. The plan demonstrates our capability to operate as a
reliable and competitive supplier of the last resort (SoLR), complying
with Rule 3(c) of the Supply Eligibility Criteria Rules (2023).

1. Company & Project Background:

Bahria Town (Private) Limited is a company registered under the
Company’s Ordinance, 1984. Bahria Town (Pvt.) Limited is Pakistan's
leading private sector real estate developer engaged in developing and
delivering highly successful world class housing communities all over
Pakistanand in this context Bahria Town Lahore (BTPL) has developed
a high standard living projects comprising of 02 distinct areas of housing
schemes, First area situated along the canal near Mohlanwal Lahore
(Bahria Town Mohlanwal) while second area a few kilometers apart from
first, on Raiwind Road Lahocre in the name of Bahria Town Orchards
Lahore.The schemes are located approximately 20 KMS from Lahore,
close to Multan Road Lahore andon Raiwind Road Lahore (Mohlanwal
and Orchards respectively). The total area of both schemes at present is
56,045 Kanal. Keeping in line with international standards, spacious
network of roads and avenues has been developed. Play grounds,
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parks, sports facilities, clubs, hospitals, educational institutions, street
lights, security and firefighting arrangements have been most adequately
incorporated. Both schemes have their own dedicated 132 kV grid
stations, telephone exchanges and gas distribution networks.

2. Market Analysis
Target Market:

Our primary target market will be residents and businesses within Bahria
Town. We recognize Bahria Town's projected load increase, with a
maximum demand of 75 MW anticipated by 2028.

3. Business Strateqy

3.1. Target Market

Residents and commercial entities within the premises of Bahria Town
projects located at Mohlanwal Scheme and Bahria Orchards.

3.2. Service Offering

We will offer a variety of electric power supply contracts tailored to the
needs of our customers in Bahria Town. The Company shall seek Tariff
from the NEPRA after a Supplier of Last Resort Licence coupled with
Distribution Licence is issued by the NEPRA. The Company shall charge
the same tariff as duly approved by NEPRA.

3.3. Sourcing Strateqgy

At present, the Company intends to purchase Electric Power from the
LESCO at one-point supply. In longer period of time, the Company may
consider opting the following strategies:
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Negotiate power purchase agreements with generators to secure a
portion of our supply needs.

Participate in the wholesale electricity market to access additional
capacity and manage price fluctuations.

We will develop a robust risk management strategy to mitigate the
impact of potential price volatility in the wholesale market.

3.4. Technology and Infrastructure

The Company has already installed an efficient, effective, secure and
reliable technology infrastructure to manage customer accounts, billing,
and meter data management. It will be ensured that it includes a
Customer Relationship Management (CRM) system, billing software,
and a secure data management system that complies with relevant
regulations. Given Bahria Town's existing infrastructure plans, we will
assess the need for any additional physical infrastructure like
substations based on our chosen sourcing strategy.

3.5. Requlatory Compliance

We demonstrate a clear understanding of Rule 3(c) of the Supply
Eligibility Criteria Rules and highlight our ability to comply with all
licensing and regulatory requirements outlined by NEPRA.We will
maintain a team dedicated to staying updated on evolving regulations
and ensuring we possess the necessary licenses for operation.
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4. Management Team

Bahria Town has been maintaining the network in the premises for a
while now and consists of a dedicated and experienced team for this
purpose. The detailed CVs of the management and the technical team
are already submitted with the Application.

5. Financial Projections

The Bahria Town (Private) Limited shall receive Tariff as duly approved
by the NEPRA and shall charge all consumers accordingly. The financial
projections pertaining to the project are largely dependent upon the tariff
as approved and later on revised by the NEPRA, therefore, financial
forecast regarding revenue projections, cost estimates, and profitability
targets may not be applicable at present. Still however, the financial
feasibility of the project is separately submitted in terms of Feasibility
Report.

6. Marketing and Sales Strategy
Bahria Town (Private) Limited being the Applicant for Supplier of Last
Resort Licence as well as Distribution Licence for the same service

territory believes that all the residents as well as commercial entities in
Bahria Town shall purchase electric power from BTPL. Moreover, the
Company shall ensure to employ other marketing initiatives to raise
awareness of BTPL’s services and educate potential customers about
company’s offerings.

Dated: O April 2024

e e e Rt e S ST vaheia Gronard, Ravend oo
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CERTIFIED TRUE COPY OF THE EXTRACT OF A RESOLUTION
PASSED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OFBAHRIA TOWN (PRIVATE)
LIMITED, HAVING ITS REGISTERED OFFICE AT CORPORATE HEAD
QOICE BAHRIA ORCHARD, RAIWIND ROAD LAHORE

""Application for seeking Electric Power Supply License for Bahria Town,
Mohlanwal, Lahore and Bahria Orchards, Raiwind Road, Lahore"

WHEREAS, thc Management of Bahria Town (Private) Limited (hercin
referred the "Company") desirous ol applying to the National Electric Power
Regulatory Authority (NEPRAY) for Electric Power Supply License in respect
of Bahria Town at Mohlanwal, Lahore and Bahria Orchards at Raiwind Road,
Lahore.
RESOLVED THAT the Board of Directors of the Company hereby approve to
filc Application for sccking Electric Power Supply License (The
"Application") under NEPRA laws with the National Electric Power
Regulatory Authority (NEPRA).
FURTHER RESOLVED that the Company be and hereby authorizes Brig
Bakhtiyawar Lal Hussain (Retd) Dircctor Services of the Company holding
CNIC No. 35201-2986374-3 to file the Application, deposit fees and submit
documents/License Applications for Electric Power Supply Licence of the
Company with NEPRA, and any documentation ancillary thereto.
FURTHLER RESOLVED that the Company be and hereby authorizes and
empowers Brig Bakhtiyawar Lal Hussain (Retd) to do all acts and things
nceessary/incidental for the processing, completion and finalization of the
Applications as he may deem fit on behalf of the Company.
FURTHER RESOLVED THAT M/s Saqlain & Husnain Advocates and
Corporate Counsels, 65/3, FCC, Guiberg IV Lahore to appear and act for the
Company as its counsel in connection with the processing, presentation of the
Company's Supply Licence. Furtherresolved that the said Advocates or any one
of them to do all acts and things necessaryfor the processing, completion and
finalization of the Applications with NEPRA with concurrence of the
Authorized Person.
FURTHER RESOLVED THAT a certified true copy of this resolution be
communicated to whom it may concern and shall remain in force until notice in
writing to the contrary be given. S\ A
e

. '

!

Hamid Riaz
Company Secretary

Company Secrelaiy
Bahria Town {Pvi} ild.

Lo © 9251111333888 csrwphowhahriatown.com.pk
080000100 i 82515705821 - www.bahriatown.com
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FULFILLMENT OF PUBLIC SERVICE OBLIGATIONS BY
BAHRIA TOWN (PRIVATE) LIMITED

[UNDER RULE 3(f) and (g) OF THE ELIGIBILITY CRITERIA
(ELECTRIC POWER SUPPLIER LICENCES) RULES, 2023
(THE “SUPPLY ELIGIBILITY CRITERIA RULES”)]

Introduction

This document addresses Bahir Town (Private) Limited's commitment to
ensuring prompt and effective coordination with relevant entities within
the electric power sector and ability to discharge public service
obligations as outlined by the National Electric Power Regulatory
Authority (NEPRA). We recognize the importance of collaboration in
adhering to the provisions of various codes and legal instruments for a
reliable and efficient power grid.We are committed to providing high-
quality electric power supply services while maintaining transparency

and adhering to all regulatory requirements.

Obligations under Rule 3(f):

Effective Coordination

« Communication Channels: We will establish dedicated
communication channels with the system operator, market

operator, and relevant distribution licensees. These channels will




BAHRIA TOWXN

*

2

facilitate the timely exchange of information, allowing for

coordinated decision-making and problem-solving.

Joint Planning and Operations: We will actively participate in
joint planning and operational activities with these entities. This
collaboration will ensure efficient grid management, minimize

disruptions, and optimize resource allocation.

Dispute Resolution Mechanisms: We will actively engage in

establishing clear and efficient dispute resolution mechanisms with
system operators, market operators, and distribution licensees.
This will ensure timely and amicable resolution of any

disagreements that may arise.

Compliance with Codes and Instruments

Grid Code, Distribution Code, and Commercial Code: We are

committed to a comprehensive understanding and strict adherence
to the provisions of the grid code, distribution code, and
commercial code, as mandated by NEPRA. Our internal processes
and procedures will be designed to ensure compliance with all

relevant clauses within these codes.

Legal Instrument Compliance: We will remain updated on all

relevant legal instruments governing the electric power sector. We
will ensure our operations comply with all applicable regulations

and directives issued by NEPRA or other authorized bodies.
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Commitment to Collaboration

Bahria Town (Private) Limited recognizes the interconnected nature of
the electric power sector. We are dedicated to fostering a collaborative
environment with system operators, market operators, and distribution
licensees. Through open communication, joint planning, and strict
adherence to regulatory codes, we can contribute to a more reliable,

efficient, and well-coordinated electric power grid system in Pakistan.

Obligation under Rule 3(q):

A. Quality of Electric Power Supply Service

Automated Billing and Collection Systems: We will implement

advanced software tools for automated billing and collection. This will

ensure efficiency, accuracy, and timely delivery of bills to consumers.

Information Exchange Systems: We will establish robust information

exchange systems to facilitate communication and transactions with
system operators, market operators, distribution licensees, and other
relevant entities. This will enhance coordination and improve overall grid

management.
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Compliance with Performance Standards: We are committed to

complying with all NEPRA-specified performance standards and codes
for electric power services. This includes maintaining high standards for
effective and timely billing and collection, providing exceptional customer
support services, and resolving consumer complaints efficiently.

Timely Reporting: We will ensure the timely dissemination of all

reporting requirements mandated by NEPRA. This includes submitting
accurate and comprehensive data on various aspects of our operations.

Recordkeeping: We will maintain complete and accurate records and

data encompassing all aspects of our electric power supply business.
These records will be securely stored for a minimum of five years,

complying with NEPRA regulations and legal requirements.

B. Transparency of Transactions

Accounting Standards and IFRS Compliance: We will adhere to the

accounting standards and uniform system of accounts specified by
NEPRA. Additionally, we will ensure compliance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as applicabie in Pakistan. This

commitment fosters transparency and facilitates financial accountability.

s e e e et Bahria Orchard, Raiwind Raad,
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Information Sharing: We will establish a dedicated website or portal to

share necessary information and data with stakeholders, as mandated
by any legal instrument. This platform will promote transparency and

enhance public access to relevant information.

Reporting to NEPRA: We will diligently report all information required

by NEPRA for monitoring purposes. This comprehensive reporting will
enable NEPRA to effectively regulate the power sector and ensure

compliance with regulations.

C. Collection and Deposit of Charges

Timely Collection and Deposit: We are committed to the timely
collection and deposit of all charges determined by NEPRA, including
but not limited to:

Transmission use of system charges

Distribution use of system charges

Market and system operator fees

Any other charges as stipulated in Rule 5 of the Rules

Efficient Collection System: We will establish an efficient collection

system to ensure the prompt collection of all charges from consumers.
This may involve offering multiple payment options and implementing
effective credit control measures.

Bahrta Orchard, Raiwing Rowe,
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D. Collection and Deposit of Surcharges and Taxes

Timely and Effective Collection: We will ensure the timely and

effective collection and deposit of any and all surcharges imposed by the
Federal Government, along with all applicable taxes. This demonstrates
our commitment to fulfilling our financial obligations and contributing to

national revenue generation.

Bahir Town (Private) Limited is fully committed to fulfilling all public
service obligations as outlined by NEPRA. We will implement robust
systems and processes to ensure the delivery of high-quality electric
power supply services while maintaining transparency and adhering to
all regulatory requirements. This commitment will contribute to a more

efficient and reliable electric power sector in Pakistan.
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OBLIGATIONS AS A SUPPLIER OF LAST RESORT
LICENCEE

[UNDER RULE 4 OF THE ELIGIBILITY CRITERIA
(ELECTRIC POWER SUPPLIER LICENCES) RULES,
2023 (THE “SUPPLY ELIGIBILITY CRITERIA
RULES”)]

Introduction

This working paper provides a comprehensive overview of the Bahria
Town (Private) Limited's capabilities to fulfill the requirements for a
license to operate as an electric power supplier of last resort in Pakistan,
as outlined by the National Electric Power Regulatory Authority
(NEPRA). The information detailed here complements the information
already submitted within the application itself.

l.Capability to Carry Out Detailed Schemes and Programs

A. Planning and Development

« Bahria Town (Private) Limited possesses a dedicated team of
experienced engineers and planners who will develop comprehensive

schemes and programs for supplying electric power to all consumers
within the designated area.

« This team will conduct thorough load forecasting analyses to anticipate
future demand and ensure adequate capacity is availabie.
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We will collaborate with relevant stakeholders, including NEPRA,
distribution companies, and consumers, to identify and address specific
needs within the designated area.

We will develop contingency plans to mitigate potential disruptions and
ensure a reliable and consistent supply of electricity.

B. Infrastructure Development and Maintenance

Bahria Town (Private) Limited has a well-defined plan for the
development and maintenance of power generation, transmission, and
distribution infrastructure.

This plan includes investments in:

Upgrading existing power generation facilities.

Expanding transmission networks to reach underserved areas.

Modernizing distribution infrastructure to minimize losses and improve
efficiency.

Implementing smart grid technologies for better network management
and consumer engagement.

We will prioritize the use of reliabie and efficient technologies, adhering
to all environmental regulations.
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A robust maintenance program will ensure the smooth operation and
timely repair of infrastructure assets.

C. Implementation and Monitoring

Bahria Town (Private) Limited will establish clear timelines and
milestones for the implementation of all planned schemes and programs.

Regular progress reports will be submitted to NEPRA, detailing
achievements and addressing any challenges faced.

Performance indicators will be established toc monitor the effectiveness
of implemented schemes, allowing for adjustments and optimizations as
needed.

Il. Financial Capability

As demonstrated in the application itself, Bahria Town (Private) Limited
has developed a comprehensive budget that outlines our financial
resources dedicated to engaging in electric power supply effectively and
efficiently. This budget incorporates:

Capital Expenditure: Investments in infrastructure development,
equipment procurement, and technology upgrades.

Operational Expenditure: Costs associated with fuel procurement,
personnel, maintenance, and administrative functions.
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Financial Reserves: Sufficient reserves will be maintained to address
unforeseen circumstances and ensure uninterrupted service delivery.

The entire project of the Company is self-funded and the Company has
evidently sufficient funds and finances to implement & maintain the
project. Bahria Town (Private) Limited is committed to maintaining
financial prudence and will ensure transparent management of all
financial resources.

lll. Providing Power to Consumers of Defaulting Suppliers

Bahria Town (Private) Limited understands the importance of ensuring a
reliable electricity supply for all consumers. In the event of a default by
another electric power supplier, we are prepared to:

Negotiate Inter-Utility Agreements: Enter into agreements with the
defaulting supplier and the relevant distribution company to facilitate a
smooth transition of service provision.

Coordinate with NEPRA: Seek guidance and authorization from
NEPRA to assume responsibility for supplying electricity to the affected
consumers.

Prioritize Critical Infrastructure: Ensure uninterrupted power supply to

essential services like hospitals, emergency services, and water
treatment facilities.

Consumer_ Communication: We will proactively communicate with
affected consumers regarding the transition and provide them with clear
information on the continuation of their electricity service.

EE T N PO T P TON RS T LS RN



[ 3

Koy 2 * g, ] iy e thi T SO | Cevirioy atey Ho el Sifie o
g Jy B Trooa LAk A W ! Coviprovate Hoad Dty

Bahria Town Lahore
Prive SRR it e d Tel 042-35451344
e Fax: 042-35341810
BATIRES TOWN

It is committed that Company shall only provide this service to the bulk
power consumers located in its service territory as provided under the
NEPRA's Supply Eligibility Criteria Rules.

V. Timely Publication of NEPRA Tariffs

Bahria Town (Private) Limited recognizes the importance of
transparency in consumer billing. We are committed to ensuring the
timely publication of NEPRA-approved rates, charges, and other terms
and conditions related to electricity supply. This will be achieved
through:

Dedicated Website Section: A dedicated section on our website will be

established to display the latest NEPRA-approved tariffs, charges, and
terms and conditions.

Reqular _Updates: This section will be updated promptly upon any
revisions or changes implemented by NEPRA.

Clear Communication. We will communicate tariff changes to
consumers through various channels, including bill inserts, website
announcements, and social media updates.

Customer Service Availability: Our customer service department will

be readily available to answer any queries consumers may have
regarding tariffs and billing.

Batita Grenarl, Bdredtsng o,



. ovE s

fg ’hﬁ 3 3 7 T A Corporate Head Office

B @ B A H ﬁ g 4 : G x k,i N Bahia Orchard, Ratwind Road,
¢ J Bahria Town Lahore

& Private Limited Tel: 042-35451384

Fax: 042-35341610

BAHRIA TOWN

Bahria Town (Private) Limited is a highly qualified and capable entity to
serve as a reliable and efficient electric power supplier. The information
presented in this working paper, along with the details included in the
main application, demonstrates our commitment to fulfilling all NEPRA

regulations and contributing to a robust and sustainable electric power
sector in Pakistan.
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BEFORE THE NATIONAL ELECTRIC POWER REGULATORY AUTHORITY

"Application for seeking Electric Power Supply License for Bahria Town,
Mohlanwal, Lahore and Bahria Orchards, Raiwind Road, Lahore"

ON BEHALF OF BAHRIA TOWN (PRIVATE) LIMITED
AFFIDAVIT

|, Brig Bakhtiyawar Lal Hussain (Retd) Director Services, holding CNIC No 35201-
2986374-3 being the duly authorized representative of Bahria Town (Private)
Limited, duly authorized in this regard by virtue of the Board Resoiution attached
with the Application, hereby solemnly affirm and declare that the Applicant is
compliant with and fulfills all the requiremeht as stated under the Eligibility
Criteria (Electric Power Supplier Licences) Rules, 2023 (the “Supply
Eligibility Criteria Rules”) and shall comply with any amendments made thereto

pursuant to grant of Electric Power Supply Licence.

war Lal Hussain (Retd)
( o D|re or Serwces Bahria Town Lahore

' / Date: Mar 2024




	Page 1
	Page 3
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8
	Page 9
	Page 10
	Page 11
	Page 12
	Page 13
	Page 42
	Page 43
	Page 44
	Page 45
	Page 46
	Page 47
	Page 48
	Page 49
	Page 50
	Page 51
	Page 52
	Page 53
	Page 54
	Page 55
	Page 56
	Page 57
	Page 58
	Page 59
	Page 60
	Page 61
	Page 62
	Page 63
	Page 64
	Page 65
	Page 66
	Page 67
	Page 68
	Page 69
	Page 70
	Page 71
	Page 72
	Page 73
	Page 74
	Page 75
	Page 76
	Page 77
	Page 78
	Page 79
	Page 80
	Page 81
	Page 82
	Page 83
	Page 84
	Page 85
	Page 86
	Page 87
	Page 88
	Page 89
	Page 90
	Page 91
	Page 92
	Page 93
	Page 94
	Page 95
	Page 96
	Page 97
	Page 98
	Page 99
	Page 100
	Page 101
	Page 102
	Page 103
	Page 104
	Page 105
	Page 106
	Page 107
	Page 108
	Page 109
	Page 110
	Page 111
	Page 112
	Page 113
	Page 114
	Page 115
	Page 116
	Page 117
	Page 118
	Page 119
	Page 120
	Page 121
	Page 122
	Page 123
	Page 128
	Page 129
	Page 130
	Page 131
	Page 132
	Page 133
	Page 134
	Page 135
	Page 136
	Page 137
	Page 138
	Page 139
	Page 140
	Page 141
	Page 143
	Page 144
	Page 145
	Page 147
	Page 148
	Page 149
	Page 151
	Page 152
	Page 153
	Page 154
	Page 155
	Page 156
	Page 157
	Page 181
	Page 182
	Page 183
	Page 184
	Page 185
	Page 186
	Page 187
	Page 188
	Page 189
	Page 190
	Page 191
	Page 192
	Page 193
	Page 194
	Page 195
	Page 196
	Page 197
	Page 198
	Page 199
	Page 200
	Page 201
	Page 202
	Page 203
	Page 204
	Page 205
	Page 206
	Page 207
	Page 208
	Page 209
	Page 210
	Page 211
	Page 212
	Page 213
	Page 215
	Page 217
	Page 219
	Page 221
	Page 223
	Page 224
	Page 225
	Page 226
	Page 227
	Page 228
	Page 229
	Page 230
	Page 231
	Page 232
	Page 233
	Page 234
	Page 235
	Page 236
	Page 237
	Page 238
	Page 239
	Page 240
	Page 241
	Page 242
	Page 243
	Page 244
	Page 245
	Page 246
	Page 247
	Page 248
	Page 249
	Page 250
	Page 251
	Page 252
	Page 253
	Page 254
	Page 255
	Page 256
	Page 257
	Page 258
	Page 259
	Page 260
	Page 261
	Page 262
	Page 263
	Page 264
	Page 265
	Page 266
	Page 267
	Page 268
	Page 269
	Page 270
	Page 271
	Page 272
	Page 273
	Page 274
	Page 275
	Page 276
	Page 277
	Page 278
	Page 279
	Page 280
	Page 281
	Page 282
	Page 283
	Page 284
	Page 285
	Page 286
	Page 287
	Page 288
	Page 289
	Page 290
	Page 291
	Page 292
	Page 293
	Page 294
	Page 295
	Page 296
	Page 297
	Page 298
	Page 299
	Page 300
	Page 301
	Page 302
	Page 303
	Page 304
	Page 305
	Page 306
	Page 307
	Page 308
	Page 309
	Page 310
	Page 311
	Page 312
	Page 313
	Page 314
	Page 315
	Page 316
	Page 317
	Page 318
	Page 319
	Page 320
	Page 321
	Page 322
	Page 323
	Page 324
	Page 325
	Page 326
	Page 327
	Page 328
	Page 329
	Page 330
	Page 331
	Page 332
	Page 333
	Page 334
	Page 335
	Page 336
	Page 337
	Page 338
	Page 339
	Page 340
	Page 341
	Page 342
	Page 343
	Page 344
	Page 345
	Page 346
	Page 347
	Page 348
	Page 349
	Page 350
	Page 351
	Page 352
	Page 353
	Page 354
	Page 355
	Page 356
	Page 357
	Page 358
	Page 359
	Page 360
	Page 361
	Page 362
	Page 363
	Page 364
	Page 365
	Page 366
	Page 367
	Page 368
	Page 369
	Page 370
	Page 371
	Page 372
	Page 373
	Page 375
	Page 377
	Page 379
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8
	Page 9
	Page 10
	Page 11
	Page 12
	Page 13
	Page 14
	Page 15
	Page 16
	Page 17
	Page 18
	Page 19
	Page 20
	Page 21
	Page 22
	Page 23
	Page 24
	Page 25
	Page 26
	Page 27
	Page 28
	Page 29
	Page 30
	Page 31
	Page 32
	Page 33
	Page 34
	Page 35
	Page 36
	Page 37
	Page 38
	Page 39
	Page 40
	Page 41
	Page 42
	Page 43
	Page 44
	Page 45
	Page 46
	Page 47
	Page 48
	Page 49
	Page 50
	Page 51
	Page 52
	Page 53
	Page 54
	Page 55
	Page 56
	Page 57
	Page 58
	Page 59
	Page 60
	Page 61
	Page 62
	Page 63
	Page 64
	Page 65
	Page 66
	Page 67
	Page 68
	Page 69

